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Established Dah Sing
Bank which grew steadily
in the 1960s and 1970s
alongside the rapid
growth of Hong Kong's
economy.

T 1981

Gained prominence in Central
after purchasing the ground
floor property at World-Wide
House to serve as flagship
branch.
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71990

Gained licence and
authorisation for Dah Sing Life
Assurance Co. Ltd. to conduct
long-term insurance business
in Hong Kong.
KIFASRBARA SRS

71992

Expanded branch network and
customer base with acquisition
of Wing On Bank.
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1999

Launched first-in-market
Automatic Add Value Service
for Octopus Card for Dah Sing
credit cardholders.
#HEEEBEAIERR/\EES
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T 2005

Acquired Banco Comercial de
Macau, S.A. and Macau
Insurance Company Ltd. as
well as Pacific Finance (Hong
Kong) Ltd. in a separate
transaction.
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T 2011

Established OK Finance Ltd.
to further penetrate the local
consumer finance market.
RULZEMHEARAT - BEAR
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T 2014

Launched Dah Sing Mobile
Banking App for individual
customers as one of Hong
Kong'’s early digital banking
players.
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72018

Launched first-in-market
Autotoll e-Serve Credit Card
which made Mainland-Hong
Kong border crossings more
convenient.
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I 2006 2013

1980

Introduced iconic brand logo
which integrates the Chinese
character “X” (large) with two
abacus counters in perfect
symmetry.

1997

Entered private banking
business through joint venture
D.A.H. Private Bank.

2021

< 1991

< 1987

@ O e ET A . S0 ETED Moved into Dah Sing Financial FIREHEMABRITRE - - 20 04 o Moved into the new Dah Sing
éqj Tk %%D%%%¥7% ) Centre on Gloucester Road as Became strategl_c |nv95tor of 201 5 Financial Centre on Queen’s Road
S RO Acquired Hong Kong corporate headquarters. — Bank of Chongging with a 17% Launched DS-Direct as a - East to mark the next phase of
: Industrial and Commercial BEHETITEANERPLE shareholding; increased stake one-stop digital banking, cash _— transformational growth
Bank; listed Dah Sing @M - to 20% in 2007. management and trade '

Financial Holdings Limited in AR EERIT AR RIS R - finance service for corporate RIERP OB SR/ RNER

the same year as the Group’s customers. 2485 - BRAMBRELEE
holding company. 2008 BT EE P HEEDS-Direct—1Iik BT e
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Separately listed banking
businesses as Dah Sing
Banking Group Limited and
started to expand into the
Greater China market.
RIRITEBABRLS 2IF L
M- FABERPEEEBERE -

Opened Shing Yip Street branch as
part of a series of branch relocations
to strategically acquired properties
to strengthen the Bank’s franchise.
MEFDTHE  ZEEEYXEE
NTRERBHLENEZ—F -

Established Dah Sing Bank (China) with
headquarters in Shenzhen; other locations
were added in Shanghai, Zhenjiang,
Nanchang, Guangzhou, Foshan and Qianhai
in subsequent years.
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The Legacy Continues

REEEY




P HE
HEmE

E=NEEEEABEN

TREHREE
EE)]
rERERWE
EEeREE
MEBARES
fre iR
meEERER
e BB R
FEEREEE
FEReREHEER
B 7 R P R
RCEZM T BER
B ZHMERE

&

H &%

CONTENTS
Financial Summary
Corporate Information 4
Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile
Chairman’s Statement 16
Review of Operations 21
Corporate Governance Report 47
Report of the Directors 78
Directors of Subsidiaries 100
Consolidated Income Statement 101
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 102
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 103
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 104
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 106
Notes to the Financial Statements 107
Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information 327
Independent Auditor’s Report 336

3

&

AFEREEFRIF 2021 FF 3

1



M E

2

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
WUBEBTIAR HK$ Million 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
kRE: Shareholders’ funds 25,062 25,435 26,805 28,386 30,192
(kBB Subordinated notes 5,487 5,449 5,510 3,828 4,128
EPEH Deposits from customers 161,082 172,410 182,115 189,901 194,922
BRITNEGE Certificates of deposit issued 7,184 6,535 6,751 8,126 6,590
(2 ek Total deposits 168,266 178,945 188,866 198,027 201,512
AfERE Total liabilities

(BEREER) (including subordinated notes) 194,101 205,309 216,507 219,270 218,705
EPER Advances to customers

(TREBSRE) (excluding trade bills) 119,262 128,628 136,947 137,577 144,313
BERE Total assets 205,538 237,301 250,312 254,961 256,531
BREEGEM () Profit attributable to shareholders (Note 1) 1,574 1,915 1,708 1,158 1,308
2FIRERE Total dividend distribution 2,664 476 470 300 339
LUBTITS) T HK$
BREREF(FE1) Basic earnings per share (Note 1) 470 5.72 5.28 3.62 4.09
RS Dividends per share

— b R R A — Interim and proposed final 1.35 147 147 0.94 1.06

— A ~ Special 6.60 - - - -
i Note:
1. Q017F 7 I BRI i I E R T o 1. The financial information for the year 2017 is from continuing operations.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
EFER FREE BERAE
Advances to customers / Total deposits Total assets
B & 7T HKS Milion B #%57T HKS$ Milion
220,000 260,000
200,000 240,000
180,000 220,000
200,000
160,000
180,000
140,000 -
~ N o 160,000
< 0 -
120,000 @ 2 NS 3
= o 2 = 140,000
& &
100,000 o = 120,000
80,000 100,000
60,000 80,000
60,000
40,000
40,000
20,000
20,000
0 0
I 18 19 20 21 17 18 19 20 21
EFEX (TREEHRR)
Advances to customers TR , - BERE
(excluding trade bills) Total deposits Total assets
BREXRA SREE
RERES (FEFEFIRE)
Shareholders’ funds Basic earnings per share / Dividends
H#IT HKS Milion per share (excluding special dividend)
FETT HKS
32,000 6
30,000
28,000
5
26,000
24,000
22,000 4
20,000
18,000
16,000 3
14,000
12,000
2
10,000
8,000
6,000 ’
4,000
2,000
0 0
17 18 19 20 21 17 18 19 20 21
BRRES RS (TRERRIRE) BRREAREF
Shareholders’ funds Dividends per share Basic earnings per share

(excluding special dividend)

A& REBAR AR 2021F F5R 3



AR =

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Exg
BITES
IFE
£
EER
EFATIERTRARE,
EX(E) 4
BITTE AR

BYFHITES

£ B
REE
e
R
B (h2022F4 1B AR

FHITES

EE
IAE=2il

BRES

RS
FNE—ZETEF

EREES

LB
FE
Bt
R
BN (720224 1B AR

RERFHNERE
=B
e
REE
B S

\_

4

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

David Shou-Yeh Wong

Chairman
Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)

Managing Director and Chief Executive
Gary Pak-Ling Wang

Deputy Chief Executive

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Robert Tsai-To Sze

Andrew Kwan-Yuen Leung

Paul Michael Kennedy

Paul Franz Winkelmann

Mariana Suk-Fun Ngan (with effect from 1 April 2022)

Non-Executive Directors

Eiichi Yoshikawa
Yoshikazu Shimauchi

Alternate Director

Shinkichi Nakamura
Alternate to Eiichi Yoshikawa

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Robert Tsai-To Sze
Chairman
Paul Michael Kennedy
Paul Franz Winkelmann
Mariana Suk-Fun Ngan (with effect from 1 April 2022)

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Robert Tsai-To Sze
Chairman

Andrew Kwan-Yuen Leung

David Shou-Yeh Wong

DAH SING FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Harold Tsu-Hing Wong
Group General Manager
Vice Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive of
Dah Sing Bank, Limited

Nicholas John Mayhew
Executive Director and Deputy Chief Executive of
Dah Sing Banking Group Limited
Executive Director, Deputy Chief Executive and Head of Treasury,
Global Markets & Corporate Finance of Dah Sing Bank, Limited

COMPANY SECRETARY

Doris Wai-Nar Wong FCG, HKFCG

AUDITORS

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants in Hong Kong
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor

SOLICITORS

Herbert Smith Freehills

REGISTERED OFFICE

26th Floor, Dah Sing Financial Centre

248 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong
Tel: 2507 8866

Fax: 2598 5052

S.W.LLF.T.: DSBAHKHH

Website: http://www.dahsing.com

SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong
SHARE LISTING AND STOCK CODE

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Stock Code: 440 /
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. David Shou-Yeh Wong
Chairman

Mr. Wong, aged 81, was appointed as the Chairman of the Company
in 1987. He is also the Chairman of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited
(“DSBG”), Dah Sing Bank, Limited (“DSB”), Banco Comercial de
Macau, S.A., Dah Sing Insurance Company (1976) Limited, Macau
Insurance Company Limited and various other companies. He serves
as a member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the
Company, DSBG and DSB. Mr. Wong is the Honorary President of
Guangdong Chamber of Foreign Investors. He was the Vice President
of The Hong Kong Institute of Bankers. He holds a Bachelor of
Science degree in Electrical Engineering from Massachusetts Institute
of Technology and has over 55 years of experience in banking and
finance. He is the father of Mr. Harold Tsu-Hing Wong, the Group
General Manager of the Company.

Mr. Robert Tsai-To Sze
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Sze, aged 81, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company in 1997. He is also an Independent
Non-Executive Director of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited (“DSBG”),
Dah Sing Bank, Limited (“DSB”) and Dah Sing Insurance Company
(1976) Limited. He serves as the Chairman of the Audit Committee of
the Company, DSBG and DSB, the Chairman of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) of the Company and a member
of the NRC of DSBG and DSB. He was the Chairman of the NRC of
DSBG from August 2005 to August 2017. Mr. Sze is an Independent
Non-Executive Director of Nanyang Holdings Limited and Sunwah
Kingsway Capital Holdings Limited. He was an Independent Non-
Executive Director of Hop Hing Group Holdings Limited which was
delisted in January 2022 and Mr. Sze resigned in February 2022.
Mr. Sze is a Fellow of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales and The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He was a former partner of an international firm of
accountants with which he practised for over 20 years.

DAH SING FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Andrew Kwan-Yuen Leung
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Leung, aged 71, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director and a member of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee (“NRC”) of the Company in December 2017 and May 2019
respectively. He was an Independent Non-Executive Director of Dah
Sing Banking Group Limited (“DSBG”) and Dah Sing Bank, Limited
and a member of the NRC of DSBG (resigned in December 2017).
Mr. Leung is the President of the Seventh Legislative Council of Hong
Kong and a member of the Industrial (First) Functional Constituency
of the Legislative Council of Hong Kong. He was the President of
the Sixth Legislative Council of Hong Kong during 2016 to 2021.
Mr. Leung is also a member of The National Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference, the honorary president
of the Federation of Hong Kong Industries, the honorary chairman
of Textile Council of Hong Kong Limited and a fellow member of the
Textiles Institute and the Clothing and Footwear Institute. He was a
council member of the Hong Kong Trade Development Council and a
director of The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited. Mr. Leung is
an Independent Non-Executive Director of China South City Holdings
Limited, Wharf Real Estate Investment Company Limited and CN
Innovations Holdings Limited.

KIEeBMEBBRAR 2021 FF5R
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Paul Michael Kennedy
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Kennedy, aged 64, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director and a member of the Audit Committee of the
Company in December 2018. He is also an Independent Non-Executive
Director of Dah Sing Bank, Limited, an Independent Non-Executive
Director of Octopus Holdings Limited and Octopus Cards Limited and
an Independent Non-Executive Director of Vistra Group Holdings
(BVI) Il Limited. He was a financial services partner of KPMG Hong
Kong from 1991 to 2006 and Managing Partner of KPMG’s Shanghai
office from 2000 to 2005. Mr. Kennedy was chief operating officer and
executive director of the Securities and Futures Commission during
the period from 2006 to 2010 and he subsequently took up a role as
a Managing Director of HSBC Hong Kong’s Global Banking Division
from 2010 to 2012. Mr. Kennedy was appointed as Special Advisor to
the Chief Executive of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited
(“HKEX”) in January 2013 and subsequently served as the Group
Chief Financial Officer of HKEX from May 2013 to December 2017.
He continued to serve as Senior Advisor of HKEX until July 2018.
Mr. Kennedy is a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales. He holds a Bachelor of Arts in Accounting
and Financial Administration from the University of Bangor in the
United Kingdom and has over 35 years of experience in the financial
services industry encompassing auditing and professional advisory
services, regulation, risk management, banking and listed company
management.

DAH SING FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Paul Franz Winkelmann
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Winkelmann, aged 66, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director and a member of the Audit Committee of the
Company in May 2019. He is also an Independent Non-Executive
Director, a member of the Audit Committee and a member of Risk
Management and Compliance Committee of Dah Sing Bank, Limited.
Mr. Winkelmann joined PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”) in 1984
and was admitted to partnership in 1990 to become a member of the
first group of partners to set up PwC’s financial services practice in
Hong Kong. He specialized in the audits of financial institutions, both
local and international. He was partner-in-charge of PwC’s risk and
compliance matters for Greater China for 14 years up to June 2014. He
was also the leader of PwC’s Greater China Risk and Quality function
overseeing auditing and ethical standards within PwC. In 2001, he
joined the governance Board of Partners of PwC in Hong Kong and
subsequently was appointed to the Management Board of PwC China
and Hong Kong. Following his retirement from PwC Hong Kong in
June 2014, Mr. Winkelmann was engaged as a senior advisor of PwC
in Hong Kong on risk and quality matters during the period from July
2014 to December 2015. Mr. Winkelmann is currently an Independent
Non-Executive Director and a Non-Industry Member of the General
Committee of the Insurance Complaints Bureau. He is also the Non-IA
Eligible DP Member of Disciplinary Panel Pool of the Insurance
Authority. He was the Chairman of the Financial Reporting Standards
Committee of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) from 2004 to 2009 and the President of HKICPA in 2009. In
2005, he was appointed to the Standing Committee on Company Law
Reform and served for a period of 6 years. Mr. Winkelmann was the
Chief Executive Officer of Financial Reporting Council of Hong Kong
from April 2016 to March 2019. He is a fellow member of the HKICPA.
He holds a Bachelor of Arts (Business) Degree from Trinity College,
Dublin.

AFEREBEFRAIF 2021 FF3;

9




EENEEEEABEN

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S PROFILE

10

BEEEmw)

BERG L
BUIHHTEF

BAZL T - 647% © FN2022F 4 A Z AR RTIE
IBTEEREZLZEGHKE - X TI198445F
FRERFHERERBEEEBEAINAZEF
2 =BT (R AZEUFRIRT(TMUFG)) » AR
RAFERR(EERBBHERGMBER LA
FHEMBRA))BEBSITHBESZE - BEFAEE
BREZVBELEN - BXITHRMUFGEE D
TERETZEZE o KR20146F 20184 Hif &
EMUFGE B DT 2B F I RN E R &
HEKE  REHAMUFGEAD T2 EEHK
TP MR B B A TR DA TR IR BRI ZE 30 (oM ) B g 4 4%
B FEAPERKEBRRRGERTP « BXLR
2016F £2019F FFAMUFG#I1TI% B ° 7220194F
9ARKE XL T B2019F 10 REZT A
MUFGEE 1T 2 B (GREBF R - WRITHURAE
REBBE) - ERXTHBEBITFNIRITRZ (B
2 LEEE o

=i
T}

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Ms. Mariana Suk-Fun Ngan
Independent Non-Executive Director

Ms. Ngan, aged 64, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director and a member of the Audit Committee of the Company in April
2022. Ms. Ngan started her career with The Mitsubishi Bank, Ltd. (now
known as MUFG Bank, Ltd. (“MUFG”), a substantial shareholder of the
Company (within the meaning of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited)), Hong Kong
Branch after her graduation from the University of Kent at Canterbury,
The United Kingdom in 1984. She holds a Master Degree of Arts in
Management Science. Ms. Ngan had assumed various senior positions
in MUFG, Hong Kong Branch. She was a Co-General Manager of
MUFG Hong Kong Branch and General Manager, Corporate Banking
Office for Greater China during the period from 2014 to 2018.
Ms. Ngan subsequently served as Managing Director, Co-Head of
MUFG Hong Kong Branch and Head of Global Corporate Banking,
East Asia in charge of global corporate customers in Greater China
and South Korea. From 2016 to 2019, Ms. Ngan was concurrently
appointed as Executive Officer of MUFG. After retirement in September
2019, Ms. Ngan has been appointed as an advisor (part time basis with
no executive function and no management responsibilities) of MUFG,
Hong Kong Branch since October 2019. Ms. Ngan has over 37 years
of extensive experience in various areas in the banking industry.

DAH SING FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Eiichi Yoshikawa
Non-Executive Director

Mr. Yoshikawa, aged 65, was re-designated as a Non-Executive
Director of the Company in August 2016 after serving as an
Alternate Director of the Company from 2014 to 2016. He was
also a Non-Executive Director of the Company from 2007 to 2010.
Mr. Yoshikawa is an Advisor to the President of MUFG Bank, Ltd.
(“MUFG”, a substantial shareholder of the Company (within the
meaning of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited)), a wholly-owned commercial
banking subsidiary of Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group, Inc. He is also
an Advisor of MUFG Bank (China), Ltd. (formerly known as Bank of
Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ (China), Ltd.) and the Chairman of the Board
of Directors of BOT Lease Co., Ltd. Mr. Yoshikawa graduated with a
Bachelor Degree of Law from The University of Tokyo in 1981 and
then joined The Bank of Tokyo, Ltd. (now known as MUFG). He had
assumed various positions in corporate banking and corporate planning
before his appointment as a Member of the Board of Directors, Deputy
President, Chief Executive of Global Commercial Banking Business
Unit and Chief Operating Officer — International (COO-I) of MUFG,
the Senior Managing Corporate Executive, Group Head of the Global
Commercial Banking Business Group and Group COO-I of Mitsubishi
UFJ Financial Group, Inc. and Senior Managing Executive Officer of
Mitsubishi UFJ Securities Holdings Co., Ltd. in 2018. Mr. Yoshikawa
has over 40 years of extensive experience in corporate banking,
treasury and corporate planning as well.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Yoshikazu Shimauchi
Non-Executive Director

Mr. Shimauchi, aged 54, was appointed as a Non-Executive Director
of the Company in August 2019. He is Executive Officer, Managing
Director and Head for Hong Kong Branch of MUFG Bank, Ltd. (“MUFG”,
a substantial shareholder of the Company (within the meaning of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited)) as well as a director of MUFG Nominees (HK)
Limited. Mr. Shimauchi graduated with a Bachelor Degree in Economics
from Kwansei Gakuin University in 1990 and joined The Bank of
Tokyo, Ltd. (now known as MUFG) immediately after graduation.
Mr. Shimauchi possesses 30 years of extensive experience in various
areas in the banking industry. He assumed various senior positions
in MUFG before his appointment as the General Manager of Bank of
Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ (China), Ltd. (now known as MUFG Bank (China),
Ltd.) Shanghai Branch in 2015. Mr. Shimauchi took up the role as
General Manager, Osaka Corporate Banking Division No. 3 of MUFG in
2017.

Mr. Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)
Managing Director and Chief Executive

Mr. Wong, aged 69, was appointed as a Director of the Company in
1993 and promoted as the Managing Director in January 2002. He
joined Dah Sing Bank, Limited (“DSB”), a key operating subsidiary of
the Company’s banking group, in 1977 and has served and managed
various departments before appointed as a Director in 1989, promoted
to Managing Director in 2000 and then appointed as Vice Chairman of
DSB in April 2011. He is Vice Chairman, Managing Director and Chief
Executive of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited, Chairman of Dah Sing
Bank (China) Limited and a director of various major subsidiaries of
the Group. He is also a Non-Executive Director and Vice Chairman of
Bank of Chongqing Co., Ltd. (listed in Hong Kong and Shanghai) in
which the Group has a 13.2% equity interest. Mr. Wong is an Associate
of The Institute of Bankers (U.K.) and a Founder Member of The Hong
Kong Institute of Bankers and The International Retail Banking Council
of the U.K. He holds a Higher Diploma in Business Studies from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic College (now known as Hong Kong Polytechnic
University) and has over 40 years of experience in banking.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Gary Pak-Ling Wang
Deputy Chief Executive

Mr. Wang, aged 61, was appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company in 2001 and as Deputy Chief Executive of the Company
in June 2017. Mr. Wang joined Dah Sing Bank, Limited (“DSB”), a
key operating subsidiary of the Company, as the Group Financial
Controller in 1995 and was promoted as a Director in 1997, responsible
for the overall financial management and control, operations and
IT functions of the Group for a number of years. He was promoted
as the Managing Director and Chief Executive of DSB in May 2011
and was re-designated as the Deputy Chief Executive and Alternate
Chief Executive of DSB in August 2017. He is also a Director of Dah
Sing Banking Group Limited (“DSBG”), Banco Comercial de Macau,
S.A. and Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited. Mr. Wang was the Group
Chief Financial and Operating Officer of the Company, DSBG and
DSB until June 2021. Mr. Wang is a qualified accountant, a Fellow of
The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants of the U.K. and a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
He holds a Bachelor of Social Science degree from The University of
Hong Kong and has over 35 years of experience in financial
management and banking.

Mr. Shinkichi Nakamura
Alternate Director to Mr. Eiichi Yoshikawa

Mr. Nakamura, aged 48, was appointed as an Alternate Director to
Mr. Eiichi Yoshikawa, a Non-Executive Director of the Company, in
December 2020. He is currently the Managing Director, Deputy Head of
MUFG Bank, Ltd. (“MUFG”, a substantial shareholder of the Company
(within the meaning of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited)) Hong Kong Branch and a
director of MUFG Nominees (HK) Limited. Mr. Nakamura commenced
his banking career at The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi, Ltd. (now known
as MUFG) after his graduation from The University of Tokyo where
he attained a Bachelor Degree in Law in 1996. He assumed various
positions in investment banking before his appointment as Managing
Director, Corporate Banking Division for Asia & Oceania, MUFG
Singapore Branch in 2015. He was the Managing Director, Planning
Office for Asia, MUFG Singapore Branch during the period from July
2018 to September 2020. Mr. Nakamura has over 25 years of extensive
experience in various areas in the banking industry.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Harold Tsu-Hing Wong

Group General Manager

Vice Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive of Dah Sing
Bank, Limited

Mr. Wong, aged 52, was appointed as the Group General Manager
of the Company in April 2011. He is currently a Vice Chairman and
the Managing Director and Chief Executive of Dah Sing Bank, Limited
(“DSB”), a key operating subsidiary of the Company. He joined DSB
in 2000 and was appointed as an Executive Director in 2005 and
a Vice Chairman in March 2010. Mr. Wong was appointed as the
Managing Director and Chief Executive of DSB in August 2017. He is
also a Director of Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited, Banco Comercial de
Macau, S.A., Dah Sing Insurance Company (1976) Limited and Macau
Insurance Company Limited. Mr. Wong is currently a member of the
Industry Advisory Committee on Long Term Business established by
the Insurance Authority and a Non-official Member of the Trade and
Industry Advisory Board of the Trade and Industry Department. Mr.
Wong holds a Master of Business Administration degree from Harvard
University, U.S.A. and a Bachelor of Laws (Honours) degree from
King’s College, London, and is a qualified solicitor in England and
Wales and in Hong Kong. Mr. Wong is a son of Mr. David Shou-Yeh
Wong, the Chairman of the Boards of the Company, Dah Sing Banking
Group Limited and DSB.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Mr. Nicholas John Mayhew

Executive Director and Deputy Chief Executive of Dah Sing Banking
Group Limited

Executive Director, Deputy Chief Executive and Head of Treasury,
Global Markets & Corporate Finance of Dah Sing Bank, Limited

Mr. Mayhew, aged 54, was appointed as an Executive Director and
the Deputy Chief Executive of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited, a
subsidiary of the Company, in June 2017. He is currently a Director of
Dah Sing Bank, Limited (“DSB”), Dah Sing Insurance Company (1976)
Limited and Macau Insurance Company Limited. Mr. Mayhew also
serves as the Deputy Chief Executive of DSB and Head of Treasury,
Global Markets & Corporate Finance of DSB, responsible for its
treasury and corporate finance activities. Mr. Mayhew was an Executive
Director of the Company during the period from August 2004 to May
2017. Mr. Mayhew holds a Bachelor of Arts degree (Hons) (in Chinese
and Economics) from the University of London. He has over 30 years of
experience in financial services both in the U.K. and Hong Kong.
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We are pleased to report an increase in profit attributable to
shareholders of 13% for the year ended 31 December 2021 to
HK$1,308 million, despite continuing relatively weak business
conditions. Performance in the second half of the year was weaker
than that in the first half, due mainly to our banking business reporting
higher credit impairment charges and a higher impairment loss on our
investment in Bank of Chongging (“BOCQ”). Net interest margin started
to improve towards the end of the year as interest rates began to rise.

Our insurance business continued to deliver stable performance.
Despite difficult market conditions in our core markets of Hong Kong
and Macau, gross premium income was up by 2%. The performance
of our investment portfolio was strong, although below that of the prior
year, and costs and claims were both kept well under control.

BANKING BUSINESS

The operating profit before impairment charges of our banking business
was slightly lower than the prior year, down 2% compared with 2020.
Net interest income grew by 7% during the year both due to the
improved net interest margin and to somewhat higher balances of
interest earning assets, despite relatively subdued demand conditions
in our core loan markets. After a strong year in 2020, non-interest
income fell modestly by 7% for the year.

Loan demand remained weak across most business lines. Overall
loan growth was 5%, with modest growth in each of our commercial
and retail banking businesses. Our trade finance business rebounded
somewhat after a very difficult year in 2020, and our domestic
residential mortgage and consumer lending businesses were able to
report modest growth despite domestic business conditions remaining
challenging. Net interest margin grew by 9 basis points due both to our
efforts to control our funding cost during the year, and to some upward
movement in interest rates towards the end of the year.

Although overall non-interest income fell slightly, there was more
substantial growth in non-interest income in our commercial banking
business, and our wealth management business (excluding insurance
distribution), which grew revenues by 8% and 13% for the year
respectively.
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BANKING BUSINESS (Continued)

With the improvement in the local economy, albeit off a low base in
the prior year, we saw notable improvement in credit quality, with
credit impairment charges falling by 42%. However, whilst overall
credit quality improved, there was some credit deterioration in the
Mainland China real estate sector. Both our Macau and Mainland
China subsidiary banks reported an increase in profit for the year. To
promote our banking services to individual customers in the Greater
Bay Area, Dah Sing Bank (China) has successfully launched its new
mobile banking app to meet the customers’ banking needs, with plans
to introduce more comprehensive functions and services in the coming
year.

Our associate, BOCQ, reported a modest increase in profit attributable
to shareholders for the year. However, due to a reduction in the
valuation of this associate company in our regular year end revaluation,
we made a further provision of HK$475 million in the second half after a
provision of HK$251 million in the first half, bringing the total impairment
charge for the year to HK$726 million. It should be noted that the
provision made relating to BOCQ is non-cash and does not affect our
capital adequacy. BOCQ completed its A-share IPO in early February
2021, raising new equity to support its business growth. However, due
to the deemed dilution of our interest in BOCQ, this resulted in a loss
on the deemed disposal of this investment, of HK$31 million.

INSURANCE & INVESTMENT OPERATIONS

We are pleased to report continued progress in building our non-
life insurance businesses during the course of 2021. Despite difficult
market conditions in our core markets of Hong Kong and Macau, gross
premium income was up by 2% for the year. The performance of our
investment portfolio was strong, although below that of the prior year,
and costs and claims were both kept well under control. Together,
they generated a profit of HK$124 million which was 14% lower than
last year. It should be noted that the bulk of our investment portfolio is
accounted for under “Other Comprehensive Income” and therefore is
not captured in our Consolidated Income Statement. If we take those
gains into account, the overall returns for our insurance and investment
operations were HK$701 million in 2021, representing a return on
investment in excess of 16%.
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CAPITAL AND REGULATION

As at 31 December 2021, the consolidated Common Equity Tier 1
ratio of Dah Sing Bank, Limited (“DSB”) was 14.2%, slightly higher
than the level of 13.8% at the end of 2020. Taking into account DSB’s
outstanding Tier 2 subordinated debts, DSB’s consolidated capital
adequacy level at the year end was 18.1%, modestly higher than the
prior year ratio of 17.6%. We continued to operate well above the
minimum Liquidity Maintenance Ratio of 25%, reporting an average
level of 46.9% during the year. We believe that our capital and liquidity
ratios are maintained at levels within the market range for both peer
banks in Hong Kong, and indeed for banks internationally.

CHANGES OF THE BOARD DURING THE YEAR

Mr. David Wai-Hung Tam resigned as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company with effect from 3 June 2021 due to his
new role with Dah Sing Banking Group Limited, a subsidiary of the
Company.

The Board expresses its sincere appreciation to Mr. David Tam for
his valuable efforts and contributions to the Board during his tenure of
service with the Company.
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FUTURE PROSPECTS

At present it is even more difficult than usual to have a clear view as
to events in the coming year. Whilst some trends are positive, notably
the increase in interest rates led by the US, others are more uncertain.
Increasing efforts are being made by the Hong Kong government to
rein in the latest wave of COVID infections, but it remains unclear at
present how long this will take, and how much impact there will be on
the economy. In general terms credit conditions have improved, there
are still sectors of the economy that have not yet stabilized, notably the
Mainland China real estate sector, although the bulk of our business
remains domestic Hong Kong business. Despite this very mixed
outlook, the local financial market has started the year on a positive
note.

We continue to invest in technology. Whilst this had been a direction
for us for some time, we believe that current changes in customer
behaviour caused by COVID will accelerate this trend, and therefore
that the ability for our customers to access our services via remote
channels has become increasingly important.

Our general insurance operations remain a focus for growth, and
have so far been continuing to produce positive results. This business
has increased in strategic importance for our group, and we have
therefore invested both capital and management resources in growing
the business, and intend to continue to do so. In terms of current year
performance, we are mindful that part of the stronger performance
in the last two years has been driven by much stronger investment
returns, and whilst we remain focused on generating investment
returns, we note that other than Hong Kong, many major financial
markets have started the year negatively, so volatility in our investment
performance is to be expected.
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FUTURE PROSPECTS (Continued)

| also particularly want to recognize the efforts of our staff and
management team over the past two years in keeping our business
running smoothly during a period of many challenges. This has been
no small task and has required much dedication and flexibility from my
colleagues in all of our different businesses and locations.

Our capital adequacy and liquidity both remain robust, enabling us not
only to meet the challenges of a difficult business environment, but
also to position us for growth should market conditions allow. Liquidity
conditions domestically in Hong Kong, and our funding base, mainly
comprising domestic Hong Kong deposits, have stayed strong even
through the recent challenging times, and we expect that to continue.

Whilst it is clear that there are many challenges to be faced in the
current difficult times, we believe that over the longer term economic
and business conditions will recover, and we will be prepared to move
back to a more growth focused strategy at the appropriate time.

Finally, I would like to thank my fellow directors for their valuable
contribution and extend, on behalf of the Board, our appreciation to
all of our colleagues for their hard work and dedication over the past
year, and also our appreciation of the support from our customers and
shareholders.

David Shou-Yeh Wong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2022
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The highlights of the Group’s consolidated financial performance for the
year are summarized in the table below:

20214 2020%F bk
2021 2020 Variance
BEET HK$ Million
MR EEREBER 2 EE R Operating profit before credit 2,470.8 2,551.4 -3.2%
impairment losses
MR EERERBEBRZEERF Operating profit after credit 2,098.5 1,903.8 10.2%
impairment losses
R 250 AL A Profit before taxation 2,057.7 1,885.7 9.1%
P& R FE Al 55 F) Profit attributable to shareholders 1,308.4 1,158.2 13.0%
BEA Total assets 256,531 254,961 0.6%
aEaE Total liabilities 218,705 219,270 -0.3%
RERE S Shareholders’ funds 30,192 28,386 6.4%
SFFBUMAEERA Net interest income/operating income 69.7% 66.8%
AU A L = Cost to income ratio 56.5% 54.2%
B 7% B 8 FINANCIAL REVIEW

BB B R 2020F & 20199F 75 Rl K 456.5% M
156202@ C BB

1.7%1% » 72021 F1EK6.4% °
N Hb 37 B KR B FE R

gtz i

The Hong Kong economy grew 6.4% in 2021 after contracting by
6.5% and 1.7% in 2020 and 2019 respectively. The Hong Kong local

COVID pandemic was relatively stable during 2021, which allowed
HERAR T HFHRR zl&im,ﬁ%ﬁﬁwomi%a@
P MERIAROIE ZFTE M AR BB B ATAKT -

some relaxation of the social distancing measures in the second half
of the year. The local economy recorded steady recovery during 2021,
although it had not yet regained the level before the outbreak of COVID.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Total exports of goods grew strongly by 19% year-on-year in real terms
in 2021, supported by the continued recovery of major economies and
vibrant regional trade flows, against a lower 2020 base.

Benefiting from the more stable local epidemic situation and steady
economic recovery, private consumption expenditure rose 5.6% year-
on-year in real terms. The local unemployment rate fell to 3.9% by the
end of the year, much lower than the peak of 7.2% in February 2021.

After a strong rebound in the first half of 2021, economic activities in
Mainland China registered slower growth in the second half in 2021.
Mainland China reported GDP growth of 8.1% in 2021.

Interest rates were largely stable and short-term money market rates,
measured by short-term LIBOR and HIBOR, remained at extremely low
levels during the year, especially during the first three quarters in 2021.

Amid the difficult market conditions, our profit attributable to
shareholders in 2021 increased 13.0% to HK$1,308 million, mainly due
to the stronger performance of our banking business.

Our insurance and investment operations generated lower net profit
and lower total comprehensive income in the year compared with 2020.
The weaker performance was due to the lower insurance underwriting
profit and lower overall investment income recognized in profit or loss
and separately under other comprehensive income.
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RITHEH BANKING BUSINESS
20215 2020%F ey
2021 2020 Variance
FEE Net interest margin 1.72% 1.63%
AEET HK$ Million
BB A Operating income 5,384.2 5,248.8 2.6%
MR EERERER €& Operating profit before credit 2,363.0 2,415.9 2.2%
impairment losses
MR EERERERZEERF Operating profit after credit 1,989.7 1,768.9 12.5%
impairment losses
R A% B v4a A Profit before taxation 1,965.7 1,809.4 8.6%
FREEM Profit for the year 1,657.6 1,493.1 11.0%
TEIERE SN TR EELZ Profit attributable to shareholders 1,716.8 1,313.8 30.7%
Fm A MR ERE R R excluding the share of net profit from
A% R A 5 T and impairment and loss on dilution
on the investment in an associate
BPER Advances to customers 144,313 137,577 4.9%
BPER Customers’ deposits 196,135 190,340 3.0%
BRI T RE Certificates of deposit issued 6,590 8,126 -18.9%
A Total deposits 202,725 198,466 2.1%
BEEE Subordinated notes 4,128 3,828 7.8%
ER(TBRREESER)EHFX Loan (excluding trade bills) to deposit 71.2% 69.3%
(PIEEEITIFENRE ) L E (including certificates of deposit
issued) ratio
PN PN Cost to income ratio 56.1% 54.0%
BEE 2021 FL L IRIBEBUS - ANR1ITEEE With a general improvement in the operating environment in 2021, Dah
FRAR([ARFIRITER ) 815 2 IRRFEIG 5= F] £ Sing Banking Group Limited (“DSBG”) reported an increase in profit
F11.0% o EERAE2020F 1 )12.6% * TEH attributable to shareholders by 11.0%. Operating income was 2.6%
RERNE SR TREEFEEENE - TENFAE higher than 2020, mainly driven by higher net interest income due to
WA LR - FREERABSWAILEMNI%  ZEH a wider net interest margin mainly as a result of the lower funding cost
RV EEERBFEERBELNMAE - £ - during the year. Net fee and commission income increased by 1%,
HRBEBRITRAER BB GRRITRAEFREMNE mainly due to stronger wealth management and securities related fees.
BERAFRE  BYESEHAIL LA FEE Net trading income dropped significantly in the year, due to higher
IAKE T & o funding swap cost, in response to a narrowing in the HIBOR/LIBOR

rate differential when compared with prior year.
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BANKING BUSINESS (Continued)

Excluding the one-off subsidy from the Hong Kong Government’s
Employment Support Scheme in 2020, operating expenses increased
by 4.2%, due both to wage increases and continued investment
including higher spend on IT related projects. Credit impairment
charges dropped by 42% year-on-year, reflecting a better credit
environment in 2021, and improvement in our asset quality.

The Value in Use of our investment in Bank of Chongqging (“BOCQ”)
was again below the carrying value of the investment as at
31 December 2021, resulting in the need for a further impairment
charge of HK$475 million for the second half year, which together
with the impairment charge of HK$251 million made at the mid-year,
resulted in a total impairment charge for the year of HK$726 million,
higher than 2020 by HK$195 million. Despite this, the operating
performance of BOCQ remained satisfactory, and our share of its net
profit was HK$698 million, slightly below the prior year.

Our businesses in Macau and China delivered better results due
primarily to improvement on net interest margin and lower credit
impairment.

With the improvement in our net profit, DSBG’s return on shareholders’
funds increased from 5.4% in 2020 to 5.7% in 2021. Cost to income
ratio increased from 54.0% in 2020 to 56.1% in 2021, although the
ratio for 2020 would have been 55.2%, if the one-off Government
Employment Support Scheme subsidy in 2020 was excluded.

As at 31 December 2021, the consolidated Common Equity Tier 1 ratio
of Dah Sing Bank, Limited (“DSB”) strengthened to 14.2%, compared
with 13.8% at the end of 2020, driven mainly by higher retained
earnings. Taking into account DSB’s outstanding Tier 2 subordinated
debts, DSB’s consolidated capital adequacy level at the year end was
18.1%, higher than the prior year of 17.6%. Our banking business
continued to operate well above the minimum Liquidity Maintenance
Ratio of 25%, reporting an average level of 47% during the year. We
believe that our capital and liquidity ratios are maintained at levels
within the market range for both peer banks in Hong Kong, and indeed
for banks internationally.
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HIGHLIGHT OF BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

Personal Banking

The operating environment in 2021 recorded moderate recovery although
challenges remained as COVID-related impact continued to linger. Our
Personal Banking business delivered stable performance during the
year and stayed focused on building its customer franchise through its
omni-channel value proposition to improve customer experience while
maintaining operational resilience amidst the pandemic.

Overall deposits remained stable while the proportion of current
account and savings account (“CASA”) deposits grew, a result of our
further effort to expand our target customer base and deepen our
customer relationships. Our deposit strategy was underpinned by our
segment-based strategy to grow our business portfolio. Customer
assets under management of our VIP Banking wealth management
segment registered a moderate increase compared with the previous
year notwithstanding the weaker stock market in late 2021. Our YOU
Banking product, targeted at younger customers through digital channels,
achieved double digit growth in customer numbers. We also made good
progress in growing our Retail SME segments with enhanced account
opening efficiency aided by the opening up of SME banking centres.

4

KHTERITYOU Banking® Smartl B84 £ - B
ii‘%bﬁ?ﬂﬁ@%ﬁ%i@ BAR - B
R o

DSB YOU Banking helps young upwardly
professionals to accumulate wealth in a
smart way.
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HIGHLIGHT OF BUSINESS PERFORMANCE (continued)
Personal Banking (Continued)

We are pleased to report a 40% reduction in our credit cost year-on-year,
reflecting the better credit conditions in the market during the year.

Subdued private consumption caused challenges to our credit card
business, as the retail and tourism related sectors remained constrained
by the COVID pandemic. During the year, we continued to actively
pursue our card acquisition drive while increasing credit card balances
through a diverse range of usage programs throughout the year.

The performance of our Wealth Management business was supported
by the strong growth in investment fee income of 20% year-on-year
while securities fee income delivered 6% year-on-year growth despite
the Hong Kong stock market weakness during the second half of the
year. Meanwhile, with the promising results from the SME and merchant
business acquisition efforts, we are pleased to see a respectable
growth in banking fees performance from such growing businesses.

Our Private Banking business continued to make efforts in cross-selling
to our Corporate Banking customer base with encouraging growth in
customer assets under management and fee income. Overall operating
income grew by 8% year-on-year as robust growth in fee income
helped to offset softer net interest income brought by lower market rate
and compressed loan yields.

4

RATERATEBIF R (AR [HEX
SEHBITREMARE] 2 [BEREBWIEI
ARG A -

DSB won “Merits of Small Start-up and
Micro  Businesses  Services”  under
“CAPITAL Merits of Achievement in
Banking and Finance” presented by
CAPITAL  Magazine for the  third
consecutive year.
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HIGHLIGHT OF BUSINESS PERFORMANCE (continued)
Personal Banking (Continued)

Digital transformation continued to be a key business and operational
focus as we invest in digital solutions to improve our customer
experience across all customer touchpoints. A key milestone during
the year was the launch of our revamped mobile banking platform with
a new interface design and additional functions. By the end of 2021,
the number of active mobile banking users increased by 40% while the
number of mobile payment transactions increased by 38%. Measured
across all our digital banking platforms, the number of active users rose
by 12% and the number of digital payment transactions surged by 55%.
A similar upgrade program was launched during the year for our Mobile
Securities Trading App+ which helped to increase the number of users
and the volume of securities transactions via the app by 13% and 14%
respectively in the year.

D A #RIT

PN DAH SING BANK

A KHRITHL AR [FEHEZHApp+] - KRITATESRU S ERR T EMRMERELE - KHR
TRREBRRESE - URERNMEEAWNS MAREHE ENAZEARINGE - BIEP 24
B EERBIRIRERS -
DSB launched the upgraded Securities Trading App+ which helps customers screen stocks more
easily and capture trading opportunities more promptly. Mr. Cliff Chan, Executive Director and
Head of Wealth Management of DSB, Mr. Gary Wan, Senior Economist of DSB and Ms. June Lam,
Veteran Journalist introduced the new functions at press conference.
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HIGHLIGHT OF BUSINESS PERFORMANCE (continued)
Personal Banking (Continued)

Meanwhile, DSB opened its first flagship digital branch at 248 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong in March 2021. Designed with enhanced customer
experience in mind, the branch operation leverages technology to simplify
the transaction process for customers, enabling our staff to focus on
understanding our customers and attending to their needs with relevant
products and services. A broader digitalization program is currently
underway which includes efforts to go paperless across our branch
network to improve operational efficiency and reduce operating costs, as
well as contributing to meeting the Group’s environmental commitment.

A KHIRITN2021F3 A 2R NERME T ERBWGEEHTT
DSB opened its first flagship digital branch at Queen’s Road East in March 2021.

RERITBREEBH AR R FRES
7 B IR RIEFH B o 120215
120K - AEENEEREINEEHT - 08
27fEVIPIRITH O ~ 16[FEHR HH 0 K10/ F
ey o

DSB will continue to allocate resources to upgrade and/or relocate
our branches to improve our customer service and to achieve greater
operational efficiency. As at the end of December 2021, our presence in
Hong Kong included 43 retail branches, within which there were 27 VIP
Banking centers, 16 securities trading centers and 10 SME centers.
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EHRRAME @ HIGHLIGHT OF BUSINESS PERFORMANCE (Continued)
fELASRAT Personal Banking (Continued)
gESh + KETRITA10 A S M2 M A & 53518 8 Looking further afield, DSB announced in October its participation in the
Ao RARMBE - RIIRITEEAFIRIT(FE) Cross-boundary Wealth Management Connect Scheme in the Greater
SFRVMEERTE - UREABIREEH#ELY Bay Area (“GBA”). In the initial phase, DSB will collaborate with Dah
BEREEMER BEIRAREMS REXBRRE Sing Bank (China) (“DSB China”) to establish a wealth management
AEEENZT(EEEES  BHELA{EEY platform to introduce offshore financial products to Southbound investors.
NEBBERER - RINRITKEBE—TRE These include a diverse range of mutual funds featuring different global
B EBEE - ARATPEREHEEEN markets, investment strategies and currency denominations, as well as a
BP R - selection of deposit products in 11 currencies. DSB will continue to explore

further opportunities to leverage our presence in the GBA to broaden our
customer base and provide better services to customers.

DAH SING BANK
i

RARTXEIGe) FHIIA
RERERAT(RE)N -”_ PEIRIEIE

B | B ‘;,

A K%ﬁ%&(ﬁ%ﬂﬁ%%%ﬂﬁ%%ﬁﬁi%‘ﬁ%%&%&ﬁ‘aiﬁé (BRI A1 | B E i
8 FEE o
Mr. Cliff Chan, Executive Director and Head of Wealth Management of DSB
delivered a speech at Cross-boundary Wealth Management Connect Scheme
Online Seminar.

BEERT Corporate Banking

ERIITHEIRER I —THEH - REEMBHE Our Corporate Banking business continued to focus on implementing
RITEBRBFEZ INHEITHETRARPENES our customer account strategy across different target customer
R - I RAREFPREZ TN DERITE segments as a part of the execution of our Medium Term Strategy |ll,
ma M AR TS © aiming at providing a broad range of Corporate Banking products and

services to our customers.
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EBRREME@m) HIGHLIGHT OF BUSINESS PERFORMANCE (Continued)
BERIT@ Corporate Banking (Continued)
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We further strengthened our collaboration with DSB China in serving
our Mainland corporate customers. This included DSB China
colleagues providing witness service for our corporate customers in
China to open bank accounts with our Corporate Banking Division in
Hong Kong. These facilitated Mainland customers to establish banking
relationship and conduct banking transactions with us in Hong Kong
without travelling to Hong Kong during the pandemic situation.

In addition to the tough operating environment brought by the pandemic
and the weaker business performance of many corporate and SME
customers, we also faced challenges such as weaker loan demand and
more cautious credit underwriting in 2021. Despite all these difficulties,
our Corporate Banking business reported net increase in loan balances,
a result of our focus in expanding our business relationship with solid
and well-established mid-market and larger companies, in addition to
our continued support to SME customers.

Net interest income was better than prior year driven by the moderate
loan growth. Despite the low interest rate environment and tighter
interest spread earned on loans in general for our Corporate Banking
business, benefiting from lower funding cost, its net interest margin in
the year slightly improved. Our Corporate Banking business’s deposit
base was stable, including low cost deposits, which allowed us to fund
our asset growth while prudently managing our liquidity. Non-interest
income in the year was slightly above prior year, driven by higher
wealth management fee working with our Private Banking colleagues,
and increases in loan fees, which had helped offset the shortfall in
foreign exchange related income.
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HIGHLIGHT OF BUSINESS PERFORMANCE (continued)
Corporate Banking (Continued)

Loan impairment charges were lower in the year, mainly due to lower
non-performing loans arising from our SME customers, and recoveries
from some corporate bad debts. Lower provision for potential or
expected credit losses was required at the end of the year, after
considering the forward-looking macroeconomic outlook and the credit
quality of our loan portfolio. Overall, the asset quality of our Corporate
Banking loan portfolio remained manageable as of the end of 2021. We
will continue to closely manage the credit quality of our loan portfolio.

We continued to invest in digital solutions and upgrade our digital
banking platform to enhance customer experience, with a focus on
our capabilities of Transaction Banking including our digital channel —
DS-Direct. We continued to invest in our people to upgrade their
banking knowledge and credit skills. Meanwhile, we had made further
streamlining of our internal process to improve our efficiency and
enhance our service quality, which are important in our pursuit of
delivering better and more intimate services to our customers.

With the efforts we made and business initiatives we pursued in
executing our strategy, and the implementation of the new Medium
Term Strategy, we have built a stronger foundation for our Corporate
Banking business to support our growth and better customer service in
2021.
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EBRREME@m) HIGHLIGHT OF BUSINESS PERFORMANCE (Continued)
&R Treasury
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Our Treasury and Global Markets division reported somewhat lower
profit in 2021, with a drop in attributable profit of 11% to HK$502 million.
Despite low interest rates for the first three quarters of the year, net
interest income grew by 12% to HK$748 million for the year, with net
interest margin increasing modestly from 0.84% to 0.94%.

With lower volatility in the FX markets, and consequently lower volumes
of customer activity, both our trading and fee income businesses were
under some pressure. Trading conditions were difficult, both with lower
market volatility and higher net cost in our funding swap activity during
the year due to the lower differential between US dollar and HK dollar
rates as well as subdued transaction volumes in our customer related
and proprietary trading activities.

Our marketing and sales performance was buoyed by the robust
performance of our retail banking business which continued to be the
main contributor to our customer related activities. Overall operating
expenses increased by 11%, as we continued to invest in both people
and technology. Our credit impairment charge, on the expected credit
loss methodology, reduced to HK$15 million for the year. However,
underlying credit quality remained good, with an average rating of A-,
and with no defaults or actual credit loss experienced in the Treasury
portfolios during the year.

Liquidity was prudently managed with the average Liquidity Maintenance
Ratio for the year being maintained at 47%, slightly lower than 48%
of prior year. We maintained our high quality liquid assets portfolio
and managed the cash flow of DSB in a conservative manner given
the overall challenging operating environment and uncertainties faced
during the course of the year.
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HIGHLIGHT OF BUSINESS PERFORMANCE (continued)
Banco Comercial de Macau

In 2021, the economy of Macau, which relies heavily on gaming
and tourism, continued to be affected by the COVID pandemic. In
particular, the pace of recovery was severely impacted by the local
COVID outbreaks between August and October, which led to tightening
of cross-border travel between Macau and the Mainland for several
months. As a result, the number of visitor arrivals of full year 2021,
albeit somewhat higher than 2020, was still substantially lower than
the pre-COVID level of 2019 by 80%, and the amount of full year 2021
Gross Gaming Revenues was only 30% of that of 2019, significantly
lower than Government’s original projection for 2021.

Against such a slow and difficult operating environment and the fierce
market competition in Macau, our subsidiary, Banco Comercial de
Macau (“BCM”), paid much effort in building and strengthening its
banking business and achieved a mild growth of 1.1% in its loan
portfolio. Overall net interest margin of the year improved from 1.32% in
2020 to 1.37%, as BCM reduced its funding cost by actively managing
down higher-cost deposits and placed added emphasis on return when
granting new credit facilities. To diversify the funding sources and help
reduce its funding cost, BCM successfully completed two issuances
of non-negotiable certificates of deposit in the year. Total operating
income was slightly lower than the prior year by 1.1%, mainly due to
slightly lower net interest income, a result of lower interest-earning
assets in the year. Operating expenses were similar to the prior year,
although BCM continued its investments in the renovation of the VIP
Banking Flagship Centre and other IT projects. Credit losses were
significantly lower than the prior year, after the exceptionally high
loan losses recorded in 2020 in response to the unexpected COVID
outbreak and severe economic contraction, and in part due to our
prudent credit risk management amidst the weak economic conditions.
As a whole, BCM recorded a significantly higher 2021 net profit when
compared with 2020, more than doubling from the prior year, due
mainly to the much higher credit losses in 2020.
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EBRREME@m) HIGHLIGHT OF BUSINESS PERFORMANCE (Continued)
R ERITE@ Banco Comercial de Macau (Continued)
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During the year, BCM launched new products and enhanced services
to increase its competitiveness. In the fourth quarter, BCM launched
a new product named “Reverse ELI”, which was the first of its kind in
Macau, to cater for customers’ needs amidst the stock market volatility.
In April 2021, the VIP Flagship Centre in its Macau Main Branch was
renovated and officially opened, and a new 24/7 Automated Self-
Servicing Centre was also launched to the public.

4 SRPIEEIRITR2021F4 AL AR [RIZRAM | RS - WHRHARITRR T 28H [EIZ 2 ER

] o BRI EERDIHVIPEI R - EERDAHANBEREEARE - TP BERES
RFLZ—RKAVIP  £RZEHEEREREE -
BCM launched the newly upgraded VIP Banking service as well as the brand new VIP Flagship
Centre located in the main branch in April 2021. The service upgrade has introduced new exclusive
VIP banking services and the revolutionary inheritance program which enables spouse and children
of VIP customers to enjoy the exclusive offers together.
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HIGHLIGHT OF BUSINESS PERFORMANCE (continued)
Banco Comercial de Macau (Continued)

BCM continued to improve and enhance its digital banking capabilities
in line with its strategy, including being one of the first banks in Macau
to launch “Easy Transfer”, a new real-time inter-bank faster transfer
system led by the local government. Following the Group’s strategy of
stronger customer focus and delivering higher customer satisfaction,
BCM rolled out an internal customer centricity culture reform program
in September — aiming to create a customer centric environment and
in turn help BCM in building long-lasting and rewarding relationships
with customers. A number of initiatives have since been launched, with
more to be done, for its staff to embrace the customer centric mindset.

4
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BCM Easy Transfer Service was launched in
December 2021 to provide round-the-clock
interbank transfer service. Customers can
simply make online transfer via BCM internet
banking and mobile banking to other local
banks without boundaries.
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EBRREME@m) HIGHLIGHT OF BUSINESS PERFORMANCE (Continued)
RFRIT(FE) Dah Sing Bank (China)
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DSB China’s profitability improved in 2021. Its net interest margin was
maintained above 1.8%, with a modest loan and deposit growth during
the year, despite the COVID pandemic. DSB China remained vigilant
and selective in managing and growing its commercial and retail lending
businesses, and had continued to tightly control its credit underwriting
and risk management to maintain stable asset quality.

DSB China continues to operate in 6 major cities in China, with a
network comprising the Shenzhen headquarters, and branches in
Shanghai, Nanchang, Zhenjiang, Guangzhou (with a sub-branch in
Foshan), and a sub-branch in Shenzhen Qianhai, offering a wide range
of commercial and retail banking lending, deposits and related banking
services to customers in China, especially to customers that have GBA
cross-border banking needs.

Cross-border business momentum and flows were severely impacted
since the traffic across the border reduced significantly, whilst the
Mainland domestic market was affected from time to time by various
macroeconomic prudential measures and new Government policies and
rules, including those focusing on consumer protection and antitrust.
Policy tightening measures in relation to the real estate financing
market affected banking and bond markets in the year. A slower rate of
growth in China was recorded in the second half, although the country
still achieved meaningful economic growth in 2021.

During the year, DSB China’s commercial banking business achieved
stable business results, and had benefited from the write-back of loan
loss provision, thanks to effective credit risk control and management,
further to our effort in the prior year. The retail banking business of
DSB China recorded stronger performance versus the prior year, as
measured by its loan and deposit growth, and revenue contribution.

We are pleased that the cross-boundary Wealth Management Connect
was promptly established and DSB China was one of the first banks
being approved to offer this new service in the Mainland. With the
expectation of closer collaboration with DSB Hong Kong, DSB China
is given the opportunity to further expand its retail customer base in
the GBA, which is beneficial to both DSB China and the Group in the
medium term.
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HIGHLIGHT OF BUSINESS PERFORMANCE (Continued)
Bank of Chongqing

BOCQ delivered better business performance and financial results in
2021, with its profit attributable to shareholders up by 5.4%. BOCQ’s
loans and deposits grew 12.3% and 7.7% respectively and it reported
higher operating income, which was mainly caused by the improvement
in operating conditions. Non-performing loan ratio and non-performing
loan coverage ratio at the end of 2021 was 1.30% and 274%
respectively, as compared to 1.27% and 309% respectively at the end
of 2020.

BOCQ successfully completed its A-share IPO in February 2021,
with gross proceeds of approximately RMB3.8 billion, contributing to
raising equity capital and improving its capital adequacy ratio. After the
completion of the IPO, the Group’s interest in BOCQ was reduced from
14.66% t0 13.20%.

Our share of BOCQ net profit continued to be recognized on the equity
accounting basis, which amounted to HK$698 million in 2021. Due
to a further lowering in the Value in Use of our investment in BOCQ
assessed at June and also at the end of 2021, a total impairment
charge of HK$726 million on this investment was recognized in our
2021 consolidated results, compared with HK$531 million in 2020.

With the impairment charge in the year slightly higher than our share
of BOCQ net profit recorded in 2021, and the separate recognition of
HK$31 million deemed disposal loss arising from BOCQ’s A-share
IPO and the modest dilution in our interest in the form of a deemed
disposal of a portion of our interest in BOCQ, we recognized an overall
negative contribution in the year from our investment in BOCQ. The
carrying value of our investment in BOCQ, net of the total impairment
allowance, decreased slightly to HK$4,231 million as at 31 December
2021 compared with HK$4,278 million as at 31 December 2020.
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INSURANCE BUSINESS

The Group’s insurance business is focused on general insurance,
which is operated by our subsidiaries Dah Sing Insurance Company
(1976) Limited (“DSI”) in Hong Kong, and Macau Insurance Company
Limited (“MIC”) in Macau. MIC also has a subsidiary, Macau Pension
Fund Management Company Limited (“MPFM”), which operates a local
pension fund business in Macau.

The following provides a summary of the profit and loss of our
general insurance business, including the results of the pension fund
management business in Macau:

20214 20204
BEAT HK$ Million 2021 2020
FRE RE MU A Net insurance premium and 500 526
(BPRERBEERASKA) other income including fee and

commission income
RIERE R HFEE Net insurance claims and expenses (357) (872)
& A A Investment and related income
FLESA Interest income 5 11
FEE W Net trading gain 5 42
BEWE N HEFAEFNRES (EB18) Net gain/(loss) on fair value 1 (4)

adjustment on investment

properties
Hih & B A Other operating income 68 52
et Sub total 79 101
B I R E AR Operating expenses and other costs (145) (139)
B P AS25 A& A Profit before income tax 77 116
FRfS it Income tax expense (12) (17)
pEpingl Net profit 65 99
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INSURANCE BUSINESS (Continued)

With higher levels of capital and a very high solvency ratio, our general
insurance business has steadily expanded the volume of business
underwritten in the past few years in line with its medium term strategy.

In 2021, affected by the COVID pandemic, commercial and economic
activities were still generally subdued. Our insurance business gross
premium written recorded a 2.1% year-on-year increase in the year
while net premium earned recorded a mild decline. These were the
result of our conscious business decisions to be more selective and
cautious in underwriting and also competing in some product lines and
customer accounts amidst the changes in the market environment,
balancing business drive to deliver growth, risk and underwriting
profitability.

Insurance claims decreased partly in line with the lower volume of
business underwritten and the changes in business mix. We did not
record any meaningful claims directly caused by the COVID pandemic,
either in 2021 or 2020.

In building up the business scale and enhancing the functional
capabilities of our general insurance business, we incurred higher
staffing and marketing costs, and continued to invest in our IT platform
and systems to improve product offering and services to customers.
The operating expenses of our general insurance business increased
by 4.3% in the year.

To mitigate against large earnings variability arising from valuation
changes in the investment portfolios of our general insurance
subsidiaries, a large proportion of the equity investments held
were carried at the fair value through other comprehensive income
accounting classification. The investment performance of our general
insurance business was solid.
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INSURANCE BUSINESS (Continued)

As a whole, the overall 2021 returns from the investment portfolios of
our general insurance business, comprised of interest income, trading
income, dividends from equity investments recognized in the income
statement, and fair value gains on our investments recognized through
other comprehensive income, were HK$378 million. The overall
investment returns recorded in 2020 were HK$422 million, which
benefited from an exceptionally strong rally in mid and the second half
of 2020.

The following provides a summary of the net asset value of our general
insurance business and the respective solvency ratios of DSI and MIC
at the end of 2021 and 2020:

20215 20204F
BEAT HKS$ Million 2021 2020
AEFE Net asset value 3,328 2,986
R¥TRIg 2 ETRE D= Solvency ratio of DSI 1,327% 1,072%
BRPRER 2 BT Be LR Solvency ratio of MIC 1,205% 979%

REE—RRBRESHEEEFELRATIMFE
HIRENER - RENE—FIER11.5% K
BREBEFRAFERFIGENIN - RPN TR
BEMEBRASEE —RRBEBEBEEFE
BRBSEE = o

RATRER SR FIORBR B B BE 7 L RN F U —
Fhm  RREXBRARBLKEEEMLAGH
i URREBEHAGWEELT - KRR KR
FIRIRERIBMVE N RE )~ BB QR A4 E
FRAFZERMER  UEBEGBRERSIEN
EBERE - FNESBENERNES -

The total net asset value of our general insurance business increased
11.5% in the year, further to the steady increase in the prior two years.
In addition to the continuing profitability generated from the underwriting
results, the strong overall investment returns was a key contributor in
boosting the overall net asset value of our general insurance business.

The solvency ratio of DSI and MIC further improved in the year,
reflecting their solid business performance and changes in the mix of
investment assets, in addition to the higher valuation of the investment
portfolios. The robust solvency ratios of DSI and MIC allow these
subsidiaries to continue to grow their businesses in Hong Kong and
Macau, and pursue additional risk-justified business initiatives, whilst
maintaining solid capital strength.
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INSURANCE BUSINESS (Continued)

DSI continued to serve the general insurance needs of customers
segments similar to those served by DSB by offering a wide spectrum
of commercial and personal insurance products. Online platform for
its business producers including brokers and agents was upgraded to
support online transactions on a 24/7 basis, which has also significantly
improved its operational efficiency.

A KHREN2021F5 AE 2 FRBER [TeslaBBR] @ RHECHNE=EFTERBIRE FTeslaBEE)

BEFIREE - D —RRETSEREN T EENRRE KARBREBREERR [ T#IR] R
FBREF S]] % [EFRBEFEARE2021] B [HESERR] k [RERERRE] -
In May 2021, DSI launched new product “Tesla Plus”, an enhanced third party motor insurance
specialised for Tesla Electric vehicles, which marked a significant milestone in the General Insurance
market development. DSI has been named the winner of “the Best Motor Insurance” and “the Best
Home Insurance” (HomeSure Household Insurance Plan) in “Insurance Excellence Awards 2021”.

F20214F - AR IR B R H i SheyE T s
5 EEE(AM. Best)iX FA-J(1B5) B EN
RN a- [ REBTAGENE  FRRERE

REBRRPI—RRBMEARESEHERERY
FE - WER2021FNAERE - #RE LR
REEHRREREFE(LERRBEREAER
B ABORPIIRE AR ERBAAERL)T -
ERFIRIR DR AR BN EE S

With DSI’s very strong solvency position, DSI’s A.M. Best Financial
Strength Rating of “A-" (Excellent) and a Long-Term Issuer Credit
Rating of “a-” were reaffirmed in 2021, with a stable rating outlook.

Our Macau general insurance and pension fund operations have
recorded strong results against budget targets in 2021, as reflected in
MIC’s continued underwriting profitability notwithstanding significant
impact of COVID on the local economy, particularly tourist visits and
gaming revenues that remained subdued, due to restrictions on cross-
border traffic.
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INSURANCE BUSINESS (Continued)

MIC has been active in cooperating with BCM in cross-selling to BCM’s
commercial and personal clients, while also fostering close relationships
with and capturing more business referrals from leading local brokers
and agents. These channels allow MIC to continue the diversification
of its business mix and improve business profitability. Even though the
exceptionally low volume of claims in 2020, driven by social distancing
during the initial emergence of COVID, did not recur as daily activities
gradually returned to normal after 2020, MIC was able to keep claims
at a low level through disciplined underwriting and proactive claims
management, which has resulted in a healthy combined ratio of less
than 80% in 2021.

MIC’s solvency ratio remained very robust and was boosted by strong
operating profit and investment results recorded in the year. Its “A-”
(Excellent) Financial Strength Rating and Long-Term Issuer Credit
Rating of “a-” were also reaffirmed by A.M. Best during the year.

For the Macau pension management business, MPFM recorded
steady growth in assets under management (“AUM”) in 2021
despite an unfavorable environment characterized by a continued
subdued business pace and lack of new project and investments
locally. Development of the Central Provident Fund (“CPF”) business
was seriously hampered as the government agenda to make CPF
mandatory has been deferred in view of economic weakness under the
impact of COVID. MPFM has focused on continued enhancement of
internal infrastructures for better service and efficiency, and was able to
achieve its targets and grow its profit meaningfully year-on-year on the
back of fees generated from good investment performance of pension
funds and increases in AUM.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk limits or tolerances are set for the major risks inherent in the
Group’s operations, including both quantifiable risks such as credit
risk, market risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk, as well as less-
quantifiable risks, which include operational risk and reputation risk.
These limits and tolerances are monitored regularly by management
and reported to the Board level Risk Management and Compliance
Committee to achieve proper risk governance and oversight.

Benefiting from the economic recovery in 2021, the risk profile of the
banking business of the Group improved, resulting in better asset
quality metrics when compared with 2020.

Since the implementation of accounting standard HKFRS 9 starting
1 January 2018, the Group has implemented a set of Expected
Credit Loss (“ECL”) models and other tools to assess the amount
of impairment provision required for the credit portfolios, taking into
account macroeconomic factors, risk characteristics of the portfolios, as
well as forward-looking elements during the ECL calculation process.
Regular reviews were conducted on quarterly basis to assess possible
developments in the macroeconomic environment and ensure that
major issues that could affect future credit losses are properly and
fairly evaluated, and reasonable provisions for ECL are maintained.
Due to the significant economic downturn in 2020 and swings in the
economic recovery and forward-looking outlook in 2021, we conducted
a comprehensive review of our ECL models and calculations at the
year end to ensure that we had made adequate and appropriate ECL
provisions for our credit portfolios.

Moreover, the Group, further to its efforts in prior years, embarked
on preparations to deal with climate risk management and support
green and sustainable banking initiatives, including the formulation of
the related risk appetite and policies and action plans. The Group has
also participated in the industry-wide stress testing exercise organized
by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (‘HKMA”) so as to enable it to
build up the capabilities to manage this new and evolving risk and the
related risk management. During the year, the Group also took action
to prepare for the transition of LIBOR to an alternative reference rate, in
line with the transition milestones set by the HKMA.
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RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Cybersecurity and effectively mitigating cyber threats are a continuous
and increasing focus of the Group, which is closely monitored by
Management and regularly reviewed at Board level, including in the
Risk Management and Compliance Committee, as a part of our risk
governance and risk management, and to ensure that our cybersecurity
objectives and defence are commensurate with our business needs,
protection of customer data, technology and market developments.

The Group follows the requirement and implementation as mapped
out by the Cybersecurity Fortification Initiative 2.0 of HKMA, and has
implemented various cybersecurity resilience measures, controls and
defences to safeguard against system attack as well as data breach,
including a multi-layer security infrastructure and various defence and
prevention system tools. The Group has engaged qualified professional
firms to perform ongoing monitoring, detection and mitigation of cyber
intrusion attacks, and conduct assessments as well as simulated
attacks to ensure the robustness of the Group’s cyber defences, and to
enable us to keep abreast of sound market practices.

On the anti-money laundering (“AML”) front, as part of our continuing
efforts to strengthen our AML risk management framework including
governance, three lines of defence, policy and procedures, customer
risk assessment, customer due diligence, and transaction monitoring,
we have engaged an external consultant to assist us to enhance
our overall AML/CFT controls over the longer term. A number of
enhancements have been implemented, while some upgrade actions
are in progress. We are also making progress in our AML/CFT Regtech
adoption journey, with an aim to better mitigate money laundering or
terrorist financing risk, and enhance AML operational efficiency.
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RITEH Banking Group 2021 2020
P ERTT 2 B AN Capital base of banking subsidiaries

(LAB&EATTED) (HK$ Million)
M12A31H At 31 December

—EERE—R — Common Equity Tier 1 24,354 22,799

—— —Tier 1 25,252 23,697

= — Tier 2 5,854 5,421
& 2 BARETR4AEE Total capital base after deductions 31,106 29,118
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Capital adequacy ratio*

— Common Equity Tier 1 14.2% 13.8%
— Tier 1 14.7% 14.3%
— Total 18.1% 17.6%
Liquidity maintenance ratio 46.9% 47.8%

(average for the year)

The capital adequacy ratio as at 31 December 2021 and 31 December
2020 represents the consolidated position of DSB (covering BCM and
DSB China) computed on Basel Il basis with reference to the Banking
(Capital) Rules. This consolidated capital adequacy ratio takes into
account market risk and operational risk.

The liquidity maintenance ratio is calculated as the simple average of each
calendar month’s average consolidated liquidity maintenance ratio of DSB
(covering BCM and DSB China) for the 12 months of the financial year,
computed in accordance with the Banking (Liquidity) Rules.

The Group’s banking business continued to maintain healthy capital
adequacy ratios over the year.

Our Banking Group continued to maintain throughout the year a high
liquidity maintenance ratio backed by a strong pool of liquid assets
including high quality liquid assets (such as Hong Kong Exchange Fund
bills and notes), cash and placements with banks, and other diversified
marketable securities held for investment and liquidity purposes.

Stress testing on our capital and liquidity positions is a regular and
ongoing exercise conducted by our risk management function, with the
results reviewed by Management on a periodic basis. Regular update
and high-level reporting on our capital and liquidity positions, including
the results of stress testing, are submitted to the Board-level Risk
Management and Compliance Committee and highlighted to the Board.
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HUMAN RESOURCES

In 2021, the Group’s Culture & Values was updated to align with our
changing operating environment, and incorporated innovation as one
of our core values. A series of staff communication had been launched
to help every staff member better understand and live with the Group’s
Culture & Values. A programme on embracing a speak-up culture was
launched in October 2021 to raise staff awareness on our speak-up
channels. An online employee survey was launched in November 2021
for the second time since 2019 to assess awareness of our Culture &
Values and to measure progress made in enhancing our commitment
with our staff. The survey results were presented to management in
December 2021 and will be communicated to employees.

According to the requirement stipulated in the HKMA’s Supervisory
Policy Manual CG-5 “Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System”,
the discretionary performance incentive bonus of employees with
adverse performance in non-financial performance factors have been
reduced or eliminated. Our performance management process was
further enhanced in 2021 by rewarding employees with outstanding
performance in non-financial performance factors with additional
discretionary performance incentive bonus. A culture and conduct
related dashboard is also prepared on a regular basis to facilitate
tracking of relevant indicators and analysis.

In 2021, we have launched various training and development programs
to uplift the digital literacy of all employees and enhanced technology
in our HR management processes. Furthermore, we enhanced our
group medical insurance benefits for all employees and dependents,
in addition to offering vaccination and post-vaccination leave and lucky
draws to encourage staff vaccination.

Due to the changes in market conditions in Hong Kong, Macau and
Mainland China markets, the Group’s headcount slightly decreased in
2021, with the total number of employees of our Group decreasing from
3,079 at the end of 2020 to 3,014 at the end of 2021.

Additional information on our human resources development covering
employment, health and safety, training and development, awards
and recognition is included under the section “Workplace” in the 2021
Environmental, Social and Governance Report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES AND
PRACTICES

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) and the Management of Dah Sing
Financial Holdings Limited (“Company” or “Group”) are committed to
maintaining a high standard of corporate governance practices within
the Group and devote considerable effort to identify and formalize best
practices. We believe that sound and effective corporate governance
practices are essential for delivering sustainable value, enhancing a
culture of business integrity and maintaining investors’ confidence.
Good corporate governance promotes and safeguards the interests of
shareholders and other stakeholders, thereby enhancing the credibility
and reputation of the Group.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company has
applied the principles and complied with all code provisions as set out
in the Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) under Appendix 14 of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) which are applicable to the
Company in respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2021
(“2021 CG Code”) with the exception of code provisions A.4.1 and E.1.2
of the 2021 CG Code as explained in the following relevant sections.
This Corporate Governance Report has been prepared in accordance
with the requirements set out in the 2021 CG Code of Appendix 14 of
the Listing Rules, and explains how the Company applies the principles
of the 2021 CG Code.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Board

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Company
so as to promote its success and continued growth. The Board is also
responsible for ensuring that the Company has sound systems of risk
management, internal control and regulatory compliance. The Directors,
collectively and individually, have a duty to act in good faith, and to take
decisions objectively in the interests of the Group. The Board sets the
business objectives for the Company, and monitors the execution of
those objectives by the Management of the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

The Board (Continued)

The Board has delegated the day-to-day responsibility of running the
Group to the Management, and has delegated responsibility for certain
matters to a number of committees, which are described more fully in
the following sections. As defined in the Board’s terms of reference,
there are a number of matters which require the deliberation of the full
Board, and may not be delegated to the committees of the Board or the
Management. These reserved matters include:

- setting and overseeing the objectives and strategies of the Group

- approving annual budget and business plan, and monitoring
performance and execution of plan

- establishing and overseeing risk governance

- appointment and oversight of senior management, and ensuring
competent management is in place

- setting corporate values and standards

- ensuring a suitable and transparent corporate structure

- ensuring effective audit function and internal control

- ensuring an appropriate level of effectiveness in respect of the
structure, operation and risk management

- matters involving conflict of interest of substantial shareholders or
any Director

- material acquisition or disposal of assets (not in the ordinary
business or operation of the Company), investments and
business reorganization

- appointment of Directors and also appointment of individual
Directors as the chairman or members of Board Committees

DAH SING FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

The Board (Continued)

- corporate governance functions in respect of the development
and review of policies and practices on corporate governance

- overseeing management in the design, implementation and
monitoring of the risk management and internal control systems

- evaluating and determining the Company’s ESG-related strategy
and risks, and ensuring that appropriate and effective ESG risk
management and internal control systems are in place

Board Composition

As at 31 December 2021, the Board comprised 9 Directors and
1 Alternate Director, namely Messrs. David Shou-Yeh Wong (Chairman),
Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) (Managing Director and Chief Executive)
and Gary Pak-Ling Wang (Deputy Chief Executive) as Executive
Directors (“EDs”), Messrs. Eiichi Yoshikawa (Mr. Shinkichi Nakamura
as alternate) and Yoshikazu Shimauchi as Non-Executive Directors
(“NEDs”), and Messrs. Robert Tsai-To Sze, Andrew Kwan-Yuen Leung,
Paul Michael Kennedy and Paul Franz Winkelmann as Independent
Non-Executive Directors (“INEDs”). There is a strong independent
element in the Board to ensure the independence and objectivity of
the Board’s decision-making process as well as the thoroughness and
impartiality of the Board’s oversight of the Management.

The Board possesses appropriate experience, competencies and
qualities to discharge its responsibilities adequately and effectively. In
addition, the Board collectively has adequate knowledge and expertise
relevant to the business activities of the Company in order to ensure
effective governance and oversight. Brief biographical particulars of the
Directors are set out in the Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile
of this Annual Report. The Company has maintained on the respective
websites of Dah Sing Bank and Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing
Limited (“HKEX”) an updated list of its Directors including their roles
and functions and whether they are INEDs. INEDs are also identified
as such in all corporate communications that disclose the names of the
Company’s Directors.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Board Composition (Continued)

The independence of the INEDs has been assessed in accordance with
the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Following such
assessment, the Board considers all the INEDs to be independent.
Further, the Company has also received from each of the INEDs an
annual confirmation of his independence.

The Company issues appointment letters to each of the NEDs (including
INEDs), setting out the terms and conditions of their appointment.

Chairman and Chief Executive

The Company acknowledges that there are two key aspects of its
management — the management of the Board and the day-to-day
management of its business, and that there should be a clear division
of these responsibilities at the Board level to ensure a balance of
power and authority, so that no single individual should have unfettered
powers of decision.

The posts of the Chairman and the Chief Executive are held separately
by Mr. David Shou-Yeh Wong and Mr. Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)
respectively. This segregation ensures a clear distinction between
the Chairman’s responsibility to manage the Board and the Chief
Executive’s responsibility to manage the Company’s business and
a balance of power and authority. The Chairman mainly provides
leadership for the Board to ensure that the Board discharges its
responsibilities effectively, and that all key and appropriate issues are
discussed by the Board in a timely manner. The Chairman possesses
the requisite experience, competencies and personal qualities to fulfill
these responsibilities. The Chief Executive is responsible for the day-
to-day management of the Company to provide business direction
and operational leadership for the benefit of the Group’s businesses,
enhance shareholder value and ensure sound internal control.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
NEDs (including INEDs)

As at 31 December 2021, the Company had 2 NEDs and 4 INEDs.
Each of the INEDs has provided to the Company confirmation of his
independence as required under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company has complied with Rule 3.10(1) and (2) and 3.10A with
sufficient number of INEDs who possess the appropriate professional
qualifications and experience.

Pursuant to code provision A.4.1 of the 2021 CG Code, NEDs should
be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. The NEDs of
the Company are not appointed for a specific term, but are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general meetings in
accordance with the provisions of the Company’s Articles of Association.

NEDs, as equal Board members, give the Board and any committees
on which they serve the benefit of their skills, expertise and varied
backgrounds and qualifications through regular attendance and active
participation. They attend regular and special Board meetings, and are
encouraged to attend the general or extraordinary general meeting
of the shareholders of the Company. The NEDs make valuable
contribution to the development of the Company’s strategy and
policies through independent, constructive and informed comments
and suggestions.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Board Process

Board meetings are held at least 4 times each year at approximately
quarterly intervals, and additional board meetings are held as
necessary. Details of Directors’ attendance at the Board meetings
and the annual general meeting in 2021 are set out in the section on
Attendance Records of this Corporate Governance Report.

Notice of at least 14 days is given of regular Board meetings to give
all Directors an opportunity to attend. For all other Board meetings,
reasonable notice is given in advance. Directors may submit to the
Company Secretary, in writing, and at least 7 days in advance, matters
that they would like to include in the agenda for regular Board meetings.
Minutes of the Board and committees of the Board are kept by the
Company Secretary or the secretary of the relevant committees, and
are open for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by
any Director.

Other than regular Board meetings, the Chairman also meets with the
INEDs, without the presence of other Directors and other Management
staff, to facilitate open and frank discussion on issues relating to the
Company.

Directors may, upon reasonable request, seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expense. In circumstances where Directors believe that independent
advice is needed, they should approach the Company Secretary or
the Chief Executive in the first instance with their request. No such
request will be unreasonably denied, and the Company Secretary or
the Chief Executive will endeavor to identify and engage an appropriate
professional adviser at the expense of the Company. The Company
maintains appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal action against
its Directors.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties including:

- to develop and review the Group’s policies and practices on
corporate governance

- to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management

- to review the Group’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements

- to review the code of conduct and compliance manual applicable
to employees and directors

- to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
approve disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report

The following is a summary of the matters relating to the above
corporate governance duties reviewed and discussed by the Board in
2021:

Corporate Governance Report of 2020

- Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) Report of 2020

- Management’s confirmation on effectiveness of risk management
and internal control systems of the Group

- Change of the composition of the Board
- ESG Strategy of the Group and update of the Group’s progress

in meeting the new ESG requirements as set out in the updated
ESG Reporting Guide of the Listing Rules
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Code for Securities Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted its own code for directors’ securities dealing
(“Directors’ Dealing Code”) on terms no less exacting than the prevailing
required standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) under Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules. Following specific enquiry, the Directors of the Company
confirmed that they had complied with the required standard set out in
the Model Code and the Directors’ Dealing Code during the year ended
31 December 2021.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

A director appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall be subject to election
by shareholders at the first general meeting after his/her appointment.
Pursuant to code provision A.4.2 of the 2021 CG Code, every director,
including those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years. All new Directors
are subject to election by shareholders of the Company at the next
annual general meeting after their appointments have become effective.
All other Directors of the Company are subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years.

Delegation by the Board

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Audit
Committee were set up under the authority of the Board, to assist the
Board in carrying out its responsibilities.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Delegation by the Board (Continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the composition of the Board, the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee was as follows:

BEEg Board
HITEE EDs
FFE(EE) David Shou-Yeh Wong (Chairman)

R (EFRTIEFHTTIHAAE,) Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) (Managing Director and Chief Executive)
FIE (B TEAEZE) Gary Pak-Ling Wang (Deputy Chief Executive)
HHITEE NEDs

HIE— Eiichi Yoshikawa

USRI A Yoshikazu Shimauchi

BUHBITEE INEDs

LB Robert Tsai-To Sze

REE Andrew Kwan-Yuen Leung

A Paul Michael Kennedy

REER Paul Franz Winkelmann

BEFES Alternate Director

RS (FIE—Z2BEESR)

Shinkichi Nakamura (Alternate to Eiichi Yoshikawa)

RER Nomination and
FHEES Remuneration Committee ERZEER Audit Committee
BUHH{TEE  INEDs BUHHITEE  INEDs
EBW(FE) Robert Tsai-To Sze (Chairman) LBE(EE) Robert Tsai-To Sze (Chairman)
REE Andrew Kwan-Yuen Leung A Paul Michael Kennedy

FEE R Paul Franz Winkelmann
HHITEE ED
FrE David Shou-Yeh Wong
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A newly appointed Director is provided with a Director’s induction
handbook and materials relevant to the Company and briefed by the
Management to ensure that the Director has a proper understanding of
the operations and business of the Group and that he or she is aware
of his or her responsibilities under the relevant laws and regulations.
The Company also organized continuous professional development
and training to its Directors to ensure that they are fully aware of their
responsibilities under the applicable laws and regulations.

Directors participated in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. During the year, the
Company has organized board briefings for Directors. All Directors
provided to the Company Secretary a record of the training they
received in 2021.

The Directors received trainings on the following areas during the year:

3 ER
Training Areas
tEER/ KEEH RRIEE/
EERTE REE %,/ 0%
Corporate Group’s Macroeconomics/
Governance/  Business and Business/
s Directors Regulatory ~ Management Financial
BUEHITEE INEDs
£ &M Robert Tsai-To Sze v/ v/ /
REE Andrew Kwan-Yuen Leung / v/ g
[oleass Paul Michael Kennedy v v v
BB Paul Franz Winkelmann v v g
FHITEE NEDs
FIE— Eiichi Yoshikawa v v g
IEAZEAN Yoshikazu Shimauchi v v v
HITEE EDs
F5% David Shou-Yeh Wong v/ / -
=y Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) / v/ g
FrE Gary Pak-Ling Wang v/ v/ g
EHEE Alternate Director
RS Shinkichi Nakamura v/ - v/
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BOARD COMMITTEE — NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

Nomination of Directors

The terms of reference of the Board set out the requirement for a
formal, considered and transparent procedure for the appointment
of new directors to the Board. The terms of reference also explicitly
prohibit the delegation of decisions regarding the appointment of new
directors to sub-committees of the Board or to the management of
the Company, and require that such appointments are made after
deliberation by the full Board.

Remuneration of Directors

The Remuneration Committee was established by the Company in
August 2005 with specific written terms of reference setting out its
roles and responsibilities. The Committee was reconstituted as the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) of the Company in
August 2006 with a set of updated terms of reference. The NRC has
the following roles and responsibilities:

- To make nomination or review and endorse the nomination
for appointment as directors, and to review and endorse the
nomination for appointment as senior management

- To assist the Board in discharging its responsibility for the design
and operation of the Company’s remuneration system

- To review and make recommendation to the Board in respect of
the Company’s remuneration policy and practices

- To determine the specific remuneration packages of directors and
senior management

- To ensure that regular review of the Company’s remuneration
system and its operation is conducted
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BOARD COMMITTEE — NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE (continued)

Corporate Governance Duties

The NRC also performs the following duties:

To review the structure, size, composition and diversity of the
Board and also its committees at least annually and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board

- To regularly review the efficiency and effectiveness of the
functioning of the Board and also its committees, particularly in
respect of the composition of Board and committee members

- To review the Director Nomination Policy

- To review the Board Diversity Policy, the related measurable
objectives and the progress on achieving these objectives

- To advise and assist the Board in discharging its culture reform
and related responsibilities

The NRC is chaired by an INED and the majority of the members
are INEDs. As at 31 December 2021, the members of the NRC were
Mr. Robert Tsai-To Sze (Chairman), Mr. Andrew Kwan-Yuen Leung
and Mr. David Shou-Yeh Wong. The terms of reference for the NRC
are available on the websites of Dah Sing Bank and HKEX.

The NRC held 4 meetings in 2021. The attendance record of the NRC
members at NRC meetings held in 2021 is set out in the section on
Attendance Records of this Corporate Governance Report.

DAH SING FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021



EEERME
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EEZEE-RIENTMEZEEEW

E£ERBE@

UT ARG REFHNE B ern2021F 2 TEHE -

BERERTEERSEERAS ZHMH
KF

HFERBER—E2mEEEABRZ ZERFM
FBANER —BRTES 2B

ERNERERZEER
AN ERAEE 2 H IR EARR I E
%

BRARTFMAELEE 2 KE

BRAARBRARABRITZERTGER

EEAIIRTEE S 220205 K BT (E

BRNERAHRITITRARMER T EH

(B

EERAEEEITIRA UL 2B

BRNERRAMGNE B S BERETE

B MAERER] 2 B EIR TR

BOARD COMMITTEE — NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE (continued)

Corporate Governance Duties (Continued)

The following is a summary of the work of the NRC during 2021:

- Determining and approving the remuneration levels for executive
directors and senior management

- Reviewing and endorsing the appointment and remuneration
package of a senior executive and the update of the title of an
executive director

- Reviewing and endorsing the re-election of directors

- Reviewing and endorsing the Group’s remuneration policy and
related systems and practices

- Reviewing the disclosure on the Company’s remuneration
systems and practices

- Reviewing the Board governance of the Company and Dah Sing
Bank

- Reviewing the 2020 Board evaluation of Dah Sing Bank

- Reviewing and endorsing the succession plan for the Chief
Executive and Division Head positions of Dah Sing Bank

- Reviewing the culture enhancement initiatives pursued by the
Group

- Reviewing and endorsing on no change to the Terms of
Reference of the NRC

- Reviewing and approving the revised Code of Conduct for Staff
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BOARD COMMITTEE — NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE (continued)

The Group’s Remuneration Policy

The Group’s policy on remuneration is to maintain fair and competitive
packages for its employees, which are commensurate with market
terms, and are based on business needs, expertise and quality of
the individuals, and with proper reference to industry practice and
regulatory guidelines.

For determining the level of fees paid to members of the Board of
Directors, market rates and factors such as each director’s workload
and required commitment will be taken into account. The following
factors are considered when determining the remuneration packages of
EDs:

- Business needs and performance

- The economy and business conditions in general

- Each individual’s contributions to the Group

- Risk related performance

- Reference to market pay level commensurate with the individual’s
responsibility

- Consideration of regulatory guidelines

- Retention considerations and each individual’s potential

During the process of consideration, no individual director will be
involved in decisions relating to his/her own remuneration.
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BOARD COMMITTEE — NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE (continued)

Board Diversity Policy

The Board Diversity Policy was adopted by the Board in December
2013 which is subject to regular review to ensure its effectiveness.
The Board Diversity Policy aims to set out the approach to achieve
diversity on the Company’s Board in order to enhance the quality of its
performance which in turn benefits the Company and its business as a
whole.

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board in supporting the attainment of its sustainable
development. Board diversity has been considered from a number of
aspects. Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, ethnicity,
cultural and educational background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge, independence and length of service. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the factors
on personal attributes outlined above, expectation on contribution to the
Board, and the benefit of diversity of the Board.

The NRC will review and report annually, in the corporate governance
report to the Board, a summary of the Policy, the measurable objectives
to implement the Policy and progress made towards achieving those
objectives.

Director Nomination Policy

The Director Nomination Policy was adopted by the Board in May
2019 which is subject to regular review to ensure its effectiveness.
The Director Nomination Policy describes the process for identifying
and evaluating potential candidates for appointment to the Company’s
Board of Directors.
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BOARD COMMITTEE — NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE (continued)

Director Nomination Policy (Continued)

In assessing the suitability of the candidates for nomination as Director,
the NRC shall consider the candidates on the basis of the selection
criteria set out in the Director Nomination Policy which includes his/her
reputation for integrity, accomplishment and experience in the financial
services industry or other industries, commitment in respect of available
time and relevant interest, diversity perspectives including but not
limited to gender, age, ethnicity, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge, independence and length
of service, and independence criteria as set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules in respect of proposed appointment of independent non-
executive director.

For appointment or election of a new Director, the NRC shall take the
lead in identifying candidates suitably qualified to become a Director.
The NRC may solicit ideas for identification of candidates from a
number of sources including present members of the Board, senior
management and individuals personally known to the members of the
Board. The NRC and senior management will also consider information
and comment on individual candidates coming from other sources,
including but not limited to well regarded senior business executives
or professionals, professional firms, and business associates. Any
shareholder of the Company may nominate a person for election
as a director of the Company at a general meeting and the relevant
procedures are set out in the Procedure for Nomination of Directors by
Shareholders which are available on the website of Dah Sing Bank.

The NRC shall consider candidates recommended as nominees for
directors submitted to the NRC by any directors, senior management or
shareholders of the Company, provided that in the case of shareholder
recommendations, such nomination shall comply with the notice
requirements set forth in the Company’s Articles of Association.
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BOARD COMMITTEE — NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE (continued)

Director Nomination Policy (Continued)

The NRC shall endeavor to consider and select individuals who
possess the qualifications, qualities and skills to effectively make
contribution to the Board. In conducting the assessment, the NRC shall
take into account the selection criteria set out in the Director Nomination
Policy as well as the prevailing composition of the Board to maintain
a balance of perspectives, qualifications, qualities and skills amongst
members of the Board. The NRC shall then make recommendations
or endorsement to the Board on the appointment of the candidates for
directorship.

For retiring directors who are eligible for re-election at general
meetings, the NRC shall determine if the incumbent directors
consenting to re-nomination continue to be qualified and proposes the
retiring directors for re-election.

BOARD COMMITTEE - AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee (“AC”), established by the Board of the Company,
is responsible for ensuring the objectivity and credibility of financial
reporting, reviewing the internal control system and compliance with
regulatory requirements, and approving audit plans and reviewing
findings and reports of the internal and external auditors, and that in
presenting results to the shareholders, the Directors have exercised
the care, diligence and skills prescribed by laws, and that appropriate
accounting and financial reporting standards are followed.

The AC makes recommendations to the Board regarding the
appointment of the head of internal audit and reviews the effectiveness
of the internal audit function.

The AC makes recommendation to the Board on the selection,
oversight and remuneration of external auditors. The AC reviews
and monitors the external auditors’ independence and objectivity and
the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standards.

KIEeBMEBBRAR 2021 FF5R

63



EEER®RS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

64

EEZES-EXZTEEW

ERZBRENLERANAR ZFE R HR %
WRZIFLE  BREERVMBREAGARAZIEE
A5 S e )

ERZEERAARAZARNEE  YAESFE
BEETZRANERRERER - ARTANEE
ZHE AN T - KRERRERABEER
BRERE ZE(CMBRBEHNFEM GRS M
BERREIE & -

ZBERBENRAFRITREERS

EELE
BE&ER-

A L&

20215 12A318 » BEEE@XE RELEME
F(ERF)  BERELERBERLE - AR
ZEGNEBRBIIFNTES  BHENRT - B
BREXEEABLELR - EBREEREE
BEEE c EE199646 A& MestAI ST
BN TR EREET DR UK B FTAD
EB([BERKE] ZAE) - BIEEREER
EERUOKEBEZAIERA - EE20145F6 7 @ KH
2014F7 R E2015F 12 A BMEFRE LR KED
MEERT o B BTN - ZESMEHMKER
BE Y ok bA E At 75 SER AR A ) 2 TR S IR (R /MNIE A%
HMBHERR

%ﬁé%@ﬁﬁﬁ$ Tzﬁgﬁ@Aé~W%
2021¢Wﬁ\ EJs =5

EZLEgKELEF021FERLZEeem ot
R BENACEE RS R I F itk
—ffi o

%@%$ﬂ CERZEGZHAWMMARATE  BRE

EREHFEEE AR TEERKERZE
QE%EﬁEEIW%ﬁﬁ&Wﬂﬁhﬁmm%
ZERER

BOARD COMMITTEE — AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

The AC reviews and monitors the integrity of the Company’s annual
and interim financial statements, including significant financial reporting
judgements used in producing the financial statements.

The AC reviews the Company’s internal controls and reports its major
findings and comments to the Board. Descriptions of the Company’s
internal control system are set out below. Information relating to the
Group’s risk management including appropriate financial quantification
is set out in the Financial Risk Management sections as notes to the
annual financial statements.

The terms of reference for the AC are available on the websites of Dah
Sing Bank and the HKEX.

As at 31 December 2021, the members of the AC were Mr. Robert
Tsai-To Sze (Chairman), Mr. Paul Michael Kennedy and Mr. Paul
Franz Winkelmann. All members of the AC are INEDs with extensive
experience in banking, finance and business management. Mr.
Robert Tsai-To Sze is a qualified accountant and was a partner of
a predecessor firm of PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”) up to June
1996. Mr. Winkelmann was a former partner of PwC up to June 2014
and assumed the role as a senior advisor of PwC from July 2014 to
December 2015. Save for the above, none of the other committee
members are employed by or otherwise affiliated with the former or
existing external auditors of the Company.

The AC members meet at least 3 times a year with the Company’s
senior management, the head of internal audit and the external
auditors. In 2021, a total of 3 meetings were held.

The attendance record of AC members at the AC meetings held in
2021 is set out in the section on Attendance Records of this Corporate
Governance Report.

To enable Directors to be informed of the discussions and decisions of
the AC, members of the AC who also attend meetings of the Board will
advise on matters of significance relating to the financial statements
and the internal control system of the Group discussed in the AC.
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BOARD COMMITTEE — AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

The following is a summary of the work of the AC during 2021 in
discharging its responsibilities:

- Review, and providing advice and recommendations to the Board
for the approval, of the 2020 results announcements and audited
financial statements of the Group, and the 2021 interim results
and interim report

— Review of external auditors’ findings and comments, and
management’s reports on major accounting and financial
disclosure matters in respect of 2020 audit and financial
statements

- Review of the Corporate Governance Report of 2020 for inclusion
in the Company’s 2020 annual report

- Approval of the reports to the Board providing a summary of the
issues, focuses and discussion reviewed and dealt with by the
AC in the second half of 2020 and the first half of 2021

- Review of connected party transactions and disclosure

- Review and approval of the appointment and remuneration of
external auditors

- Review and approval of the external auditors’ audit plan
- Review and approval of internal audit plan
- Review of the internal audit’s work, findings and recommendations

- Review of updates from the Compliance Division of the Group on
the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (“‘HKMA”) examinations and
regulatory concerns, management’s actions in implementing the
HKMA'’s recommendations

- Review of the highlights of major new accounting and financial
reporting standards and guidance issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and impact to the Group
on their adoption

- Review of significant accounting treatments for the preparation of
2021 financial statements
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ATTENDANCE RECORDS

o

The attendance of individual Directors at the Board meetings, Audit

\

Committee meetings, Nomination and Remuneration Committee
meetings and the Annual General Meeting held in 2021 are as follows:

HE/BEREE
Attended/eligible to attend W s
REREH BEAE
Z88 Attended
EHZEE  Nomination and Annual
- Audit Remuneration General
s Directors Board Committee Committee Meeting
BUHHITEE INEDs
FERE Robert Tsai-To Sze 4/4 33 4/4 v
REE Andrew Kwan-Yuen Leung 4/4 N/A 4/4 =
ik Paul Michael Kennedy 4/4 33 N/A v
EER Paul Franz Winkelmann 4/4 33 N/A v
RE David Wai-Hung Tam 2/2 N/A N/A v
(R202146 H3A L) (resigned on 3 June 2021)
FHTEE NEDs
ElESs Eiichi Yoshikawa 4/4 N/A N/A -
ENE—2EAEES Alternate to Eiichi Yoshikawa
— RS — Shinkichi Nakamura 0/4 N/A N/A -
IBHZ A Yoshikazu Shimauchi 3/4 N/A N/A v
HiTEE EDs
FETELE David Shou-Yeh Wong () 2/4 N/A 1/4 -
HEH Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) 4/4 N/A N/A v
B2 (=) Gary Pak-Ling Wang 4/4 N/A N/A v

T IRIB2021 ¥R TR 2 SFRIR X FEA 2164
T EESIRELERREFAS  THESE
%EBE  FMWNZEET REZESREMEM
ZEg(RMAEEAME)WERLE - 142019
R ERIEBALREER  E29EF
TFERERE R EREBBIT8 B HZ R T R
ReEHFER2021F6 A2AEBBRITZ ARNT]
2021 FBRRBAFARG ([2021FRFBFAE ) -
AAREELEERITRAH EERL BT
2021 FHRFBFAGZER ©

Note: Pursuant to code provision E.1.2 of the 2021 CG Code, the chairman of
the board should attend the annual general meeting, and he should also
invite the chairman of the audit, remuneration, nomination and any other
committees (as appropriate) to attend. In light of the COVID-19 pandemic
and quarantine measures for inbound travellers, Mr. David Shou-Yeh
Wong, the Chairman of the Board, was unable to attend the 2021 Annual
General Meeting (the “2021 AGM”) of the Company held in Hong Kong
on 2 June 2021 as he was required to comply with compulsory quarantine
requirements in Hong Kong at that time. Mr. Hon-Hing Wong (Derek
Wong), Managing Director and Chief Executive of the Company, took the
chair of the 2021 AGM.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial Reporting

It is the responsibility of the Board to present a balanced, clear and
comprehensible assessment of the Company’s performance, position
and prospects.

Management is responsible for providing sufficient explanation and
information to the Board to enable the Board to make an informed
assessment of the financial and other information put before the Board
for approval.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Group. As at 31 December 2021, the
Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. The Directors have prepared
the financial statements of the Group on a going-concern basis. The
responsibility of the Group’s external auditor on the financial statements
is set out in the Independent Auditor's Report attached to the Group’s
financial statements.

The Board is also responsible for providing a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment in annual and interim reports, other price-
sensitive announcements and other financial disclosures required under
the Listing Rules, as well as to information required to be disclosed
pursuant to statutory or regulatory requirements.

Internal Controls

The Board has delegated to management the responsibility to develop
and maintain a sound internal control system. The internal control
system, operating through a framework of management and operational
controls, and risk management systems, is intended to allow the
Board to monitor the Group’s business performance and financial
positions, to control and adjust risk exposures, to adopt sound business
practices, to obtain reasonable assurance on controls against fraud
and errors, to ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations,
and to exercise oversight on and provide guidance to management in
achieving the Company’s objectives. However, it should be recognized
that the Group’s internal control procedures can only provide
reasonable, not absolute, assurance against material errors, losses or
fraud.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Internal Controls (Continued)

The key procedures that the Group has established to maintain an
effective internal control system are as follows:

A clear management organizational structure is set up with well-
defined lines of authority, accountability and responsibilities.

- Specialized committees are formed to oversee and control
significant risk factors, such as credit risk, liquidity and interest
rate risks, operational risk and compliance risk.

- Regular reporting of the performance of the Company’s
businesses to senior management and management committees.
Actual performance results against budgets are closely
monitored. The Board reviews the Group’s business and financial
performance on a quarterly basis.

- Written policies and procedures are established to facilitate
proper assessment of customers, services to customers,
segregation of duties, accuracy and completeness of transaction
processing, safeguarding of assets, credit control and risk
monitoring, control of business exposures, compliance control
and monitoring (including anti-money laundering (“AML”)),
staff training, IT development, IT governance and information
security, business continuity planning, financial control (including
accounting, regulatory reporting, financial reporting to comply
with regulatory and financial reporting standards, management
accounting and budget control, reconciliation of accounts), and
system of management oversight including the operations of
various functional committees.

- The independent internal audit function monitors compliance
with management policies and procedures, and regulatory
requirements; and will conduct a wide variety of internal
control reviews and audit activities such as compliance audits
and operations and systems reviews to ensure the integrity,
efficiency and effectiveness of the systems of control. The Head
of Internal Audit reports functionally to the Audit Committee and
administratively to the Chief Executive with direct access to the
Executive Committee.

DAH SING FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL R

EPORT 2021



DREARE
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BEREZ@®
0 EB BE 12 ()

- BUYNKERRIBEARESR  YASE
EBAE EREERAREESNREEE
PEFREE B ERA MR - AR AS
BEBAETEEE R ZIBE MERIES -
IRFEDE BRI EE R A 2 16 E T o

—  AEEEERFERREREEIEES - A
ANSR RIS R R - BT EE A B A ERER
ERFIRRBEAER -

- BEEEZSEAARZESmMENEMZET
BO#FEREEBRRENE  YREEER
REHIET - BRF RN REE - BRME
DIz - ERET B ARREREE
5] - SEARERENEELREER IR
Bz 817 L - BREEERE 2 R NE
AREE - MR R ERILIEE R ERIE R
MEEAKEZ RAERSRILERR -

—  BIEREBREREES] - R K ERAERRPT
HHE AR HHBE - R REREK - T
AR AR R BB P T E B AR

HEETEENEE EERER-

R BB BE AR I B 2 AT A

EFECERERZECHEHEMFLZE
- AR B R SNBAZ BE (R D 2 R - 1
maHEA BRI HIE 2 BRI -

AEBAREZNDDKIEERRE G ZIERIH
BEXIBEREHEREUE  2ERARERRR
BEEERE T METHE - 2021FE 2 EHE
BR2ZBANEZHINEZBE2ER - A%
BOBRRMEF - AR EENEERESI REEE
AT AREERETT 2 FEFNE - AEHE
HAEEE NIRTTNBEE RSB MIEF o

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Internal Controls (Continued)

- The independent group risk function monitors and reports the
Group’s risk positions and analysis to senior management, Risk
Management and Compliance Committee and the Board, and
operates to sustain a sound asset quality and risk control in the
portfolio of the Group’s businesses with due consideration of a
proper risk and return balance.

- The Group continues its ongoing upgrade of risk management
framework and capabilities to strengthen its risk control and
effectiveness, which are key to the maintenance of sound internal
control process of the Group.

- The Group Compliance Committee at the management level
serves to uphold a high level of awareness and accountability of
compliance requirements. It is responsible for overseeing and
guiding the development, maintenance and enhancement of
compliance system, policies and practices to ensure compliance
with all statutory requirements and regulatory guidelines. The
Group Compliance Division performs an independent on-going
monitoring and advisory role on the Group’s compliance with
relevant rules and regulations, while the AML and Financial Crime
Risk Department manages and oversees AML and financial crime
risk of the Group.

- A Guideline on Group Functional Reporting is in place to promote
collaboration between Group functions and subsidiaries, align
Group’s policies, practices and standards, and allow Group
functional heads to exercise proper control, supervision and
monitoring of subsidiaries’ operations.

Assessment of Internal Control System

In assessing the effectiveness of the internal control system, the Board
has considered reviews performed by the AC and Management, and
the findings of both internal and external auditors.

Under the direction of the AC, the Group’s Internal Audit conducted
an assessment covering all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management practices.
The 2021 reviews included an annual assessment of internal control
system with reference to the comments made by both internal and
external auditors, policies and procedures of the Group, regulatory
guidelines and the CG Code regarding internal controls. The Group will
continue to work to enhance its internal control system and processes.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

It is the responsibility of the Board to evaluate and determine the
nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the
Group’s strategic objectives, and ensuring that the Group establishes
and maintains appropriate and effective risk management and
internal control systems. The Board is also responsible for overseeing
Management in the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems. Management has to provide
a confirmation to the Board on the effectiveness of these systems.

The Group’s risk management and internal control systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. Such
systems comprise a well-established organisational structure and
comprehensive policies and standards. Areas of responsibilities for
each business and functional unit are clearly defined to ensure effective
checks and balances.

Procedures have been designed for safeguarding assets against
unauthorised use or disposition; for maintaining proper accounting
records; and for ensuring the reliability of financial information used
within the business or for publication. The procedures provide
reasonable but not absolute assurance against material errors, losses
or fraud. Procedures have also been designed to ensure compliance
with applicable laws, rules and regulations.

Systems and procedures are in place in the Group to identify,
control and report on the major types of risks the Group encounters.
Business and functional units are responsible for the assessment of
individual types of risk arising under their areas of responsibilities,
the management of the risks in accordance with risk management
procedures and the reporting on risk management. The Group
maintains an effective risk management framework through the
setting up of specialised management committees for the oversight
and monitoring of major risk areas and the establishment of risk
management departments for relevant functions of the Group.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL (continued)

Risk management reports are submitted to the relevant committees and
ultimately to the Board or its delegated Board committee for oversight
and monitoring of various types of risk associated with the Group’s
businesses and operations. The Group’s risk management policies
and major control limits are approved by the Board or its delegated
Board committee. Operating and risk performance are monitored and
reviewed against relevant risk limits regularly according to established
policies and procedures.

Annual Assessment

The Group has implemented a robust risk management and internal
control framework with ongoing monitoring and regular reporting of risk
profiles, risk positions and internal control issues to the Management
and to the Board. Based on the ongoing reviews and regular
assessments, the Management including the heads of business units,
financial control, risk management, compliance units and operations
management, and the senior management of the key subsidiaries of
the Group have evaluated the existing status of the risk management
and internal control system and confirmed that they remain effective
with reference to the requirements of the CG Code of the Listing Rules.
These statements of Management have been reviewed and endorsed
by Internal Audit function, and reviewed and confirmed by senior
management of the Group.

The results of the 2021 review, which have been reported to the AC
and the Board, concluded that the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems were effective and appropriate.

INTERNAL AUDIT

The Group has established an Internal Audit function. The primary role
of the Internal Audit function is to help the Board and Management
to protect the assets, reputation and sustainability of the Group. The
Internal Audit function provides independent and objective assurance
as to whether the design and operational effectiveness of the Group’s
framework of risk management, control and governance processes, as
designed and represented by the Management, is adequate.

Results of audit work together with an assessment of the overall risk
management and control framework are reported to the AC or the
Board as appropriate and at least annually. The Internal Audit function
also reviews the Management’s action plans in relation to audit findings
and verifies the adequacy and effectiveness of the controls before
formally closing audit issues.
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS’ INDEPENDENCE AND
REMUNERATION

The Company has reviewed and is satisfied with the independence of
the Company’s external auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”), for
performing the audit of the Group’s financial statements.

The Company will use the non-audit services of PwC only when the
Company can benefit in a cost-effective manner and the independence
and objectivity of PwC as the Company’s external auditors can be
maintained. Otherwise, professional services from other firms are used.

In addition to audit related services, PwC provided the Group non-audit
services during 2021 including review of tax returns and computation,
tax advisory services, review of the Group’s interim financial disclosure,
and review of the update on the offering circular of Dah Sing Bank,
Limited’s US$2 Billion Euro Medium Term Note Programme, and
independent assessments of certain operational processes, risk
management and internal control of the Group.

The remuneration paid/payable to PwC in respect of audit services and
non-audit services for the year ended 31 December 2021 is set out as
follows:

BEXft AXfFZEA
Fee paid/payable
(F#xT)

RARQ TR IRE Services rendered for the Company (HK$’000)

BERRS Audit services 12,538

EZLAIMNRH - Non-audit services:

. FBLE FBON T IS HARIRET S . Review of the updated Euro Medium Term Note 1,770
([#HE]]) RARFTIRITIERT B T 81T Programme (the “Programme”) and professional
HMiEBEBNEELE work on new subordinated note issue of Dah Sing

Bank under the Programme

. HEERKERE  MRBREIRE - . Compliance reviews and independent assessments 3,276
MAHARGIERSFRHEAEMR on operational risk management, technology risk
B R management, new IT system projects etc.

. BAREE B 2 S B % AR R A B 1R . Tax compliance review on taxation computation 2,124
STENMEARG MBS RES and advisory service on compliance with new tax

regulations relevant to the Group
o« Ef e Others 1,032
R Total 20,740
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

Effective Communication

The Board attaches great importance to communication with
shareholders. The Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) provides a
useful forum for shareholders to exchange views with the Board. The
Chairman of the Board and all Directors make a strong effort to attend.
The Chairmen of the Board Committees and a representative of the
external auditors also attend the AGM to take shareholders’ questions.

The Management holds group meetings with analysts in connection
with the Company’s annual and interim results. Apart from the above,
designated senior executives maintain regular dialogue with institutional
investors and analysts to keep them abreast of the Company’s
development, subject to compliance with the applicable laws and
regulations.

Moreover, the website of Dah Sing Bank (www.dahsing.com) offers
shareholders convenient access to the Company’s financial information,
announcements/circulars and information on the Company’s corporate
governance structure and practices, in addition to business and
corporate social responsibility activities of the Group.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting

Shareholder(s) holding not less than 5% of the total voting rights of
the Company may put forth requisition to convene an Extraordinary
General Meeting of the Company.

The requisition must (i) state the objectives of the meeting, (ii) be
signed by the requisitionist(s) and (iii) be deposited at the Company’s
registered office at 26th Floor, Dah Sing Financial Centre, 248 Queen’s
Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong or in electronic form. It may also
consist of several documents in like form, each signed by one or more
requisitionist(s).

The requisition must also state (i) the name(s) of the requisitionist(s),
(ii) the contact details of the requisitionists(s) and (iii) the number of
ordinary shares of the Company held by the requisitionist(s).
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting (Continued)

The Directors must proceed to convene an Extraordinary General
Meeting within 21 days from the date of the deposit of the requisition.
Such meeting should be held on a date not more than 28 days after the
date on which the notice convening the meeting is given.

If the Directors fail to convene the Extraordinary General Meeting
as aforesaid, the requisitionist(s), or any of them representing more
than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves
convene the meeting. Any meeting so convened shall not be held after
the expiration of 3 months from the date of the deposit of the requisition.

A meeting so convened by the requisitionist(s) shall be convened in the
same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings are to
be convened by the Directors.

Any reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) by reason of
the failure of the Directors to duly convene a meeting shall be repaid to
the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Putting forward proposals at general meetings

Shareholders representing not less than 2.5% of the total voting rights
of all shareholders, or not less than 50 shareholders, who are entitled
to vote on a resolution at a general meeting, may:

- put forward a proposal at a general meeting

- circulate to other shareholders a written statement with respect to
matters to be dealt with at a general meeting

Shareholders may refer to section 580 of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) for further details on
the shareholder qualifications and the procedures and timeline in
connection with the above.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (continued)
Submission of enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries requiring the Board’s attention
to the Company Secretary at the Company’s registered office at
26th Floor, Dah Sing Financial Centre, 248 Queen’s Road East, Wan
Chai, Hong Kong. Questions about the procedures for convening
or putting forward proposals at an Annual General Meeting or
Extraordinary General Meeting may also be put to the Company
Secretary.

Shareholders Communication Policy

The Company has in place a Shareholders Communication Policy
which sets out the Company’s practices in relation to communication
with shareholders and the investment community. The Policy is
available on the website of Dah Sing Bank (www.dahsing.com).

Dividend Policy

The Company’s dividend policy aims to pay sustainable dividends
over time. In determining dividend distribution, the Company takes
into account factors such as general business conditions, financial
results, business growth prospects, capital requirements, regulatory
requirements applicable to the Company’s businesses, shareholders’
interests and any other factors the Directors consider to be relevant.

HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE
INFORMATION

A Guideline on the Control and Disclosure of Inside Information is in
place, which sets out the guiding principles, procedures and internal
controls for the handling of confidential inside information, and
dissemination of inside information in a timely manner so as to allow
all stakeholders to be aware of the latest positions or price sensitive
information of the Group and its subsidiaries.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company has not changed its constitutional documents in 2021.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is accountable to the Board for ensuring
that Board procedures are followed and Board activities are efficiently
and effectively conducted. These objectives are achieved through
adherence to proper Board processes and the timely preparation and
dissemination to Directors comprehensive Board meeting agendas and
papers. Minutes of all meetings of the Board and Board Committees
are prepared and maintained to record in sufficient details the matters
considered and decisions reached by the Board or Board Committees,
including any concerns raised or dissenting views voiced by any
Director. All draft and final minutes of Board meetings and meetings of
Board Committees are sent to Directors or Board Committee members
as appropriate for comments, approval and records. Board records are
available for inspection by any Director upon request.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary who possesses the relevant qualifications and experience
pursuant to the requirements of Rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules. She has
taken more than 15 hours of relevant professional training to update
her skills and knowledge during the financial year ended 31 December
2021.
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ENVIRONMENT, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

Apart from focusing on its business development, the Group also
pays close attention to Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG)
development and endeavours to pursue corporate sustainability and
promote environmental protection and community engagement.

Starting from 2021, the Group’s ESG strategy will enhance focus on the
following areas:

ESG governance: To establish and develop our ESG positioning
through integrating ESG factors into our business strategy and
decision-making process under the Board’s oversight.

Marketplace: To prioritise green and sustainable banking and
differentiate with a focus on small- to medium-sized enterprises, as well
as to aim to progressively introduce green products across different
customer segments.

Workplace: To build an engaged and loyal workforce by promoting a
healthy working environment as well as by engaging and training our
employees to develop their ESG and green finance understanding.

Community: To enrich our community strategy with a focus on
partnering with non-government organisations to promote youth
development, inclusive communities and green awareness, and to aim
to scale up our impact on society over time.

Environment: To sharpen our focus on our environmental key
performance indicators through building internal awareness as well as
improving data disclosure quality and efficiency as a means to improve
operational efficiency.

The Company has complied with all applicable requirements and
provisions of the ESG Reporting Guide set out in Appendix 27 of the
Listing Rules in respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2021.

For more details, please refer to the Group’s Environmental, Social
and Governance Report (published on the website of Dah Sing Bank
(www.dahsing.com)). The ESG report provides an annual update of the
initiatives, plans and performance of the Group in ESG aspects in 2021,
and is prepared to disclose relevant information to meet disclosure
requirements and the “comply or explain” provisions set out in the ESG
Reporting Guide under Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules.
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Closure of Register of Shareholders (both days inclusive)

L% A

Record date

REBEFERE
Annual General Meeting

The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND SEGMENT ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS

The principal activity of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) is investment holding. The principal activities of the
subsidiaries are shown in Note 28 to the financial statements. An
analysis of the performance of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) for the reporting period by business and geographical
segments are set out in Note 6 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set

out in the consolidated income statement on page 101.

The Board declared an interim dividend of HK$0.33 per share and a
total of HK$105,459,783 in cash was paid on 21 September 2021.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.73
per share in cash, totalling HK$233,289,823.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF SHAREHOLDERS
For determining shareholders’ right to attend and vote at the

forthcoming annual general meeting:

202245 A23H (2H1—) N F4K305
4:30 p.m. on 23 May 2022 (Monday)

202255 H24H (28— ) F202265 H27H (EH#H)
24 May 2022 (Tuesday) to 27 May 2022 (Friday)

202295278 (28 H)
27 May 2022 (Friday)

202295270 (28 H)
27 May 2022 (Friday)
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B SR AR 18 5 R
Latest time to lodge transfers

TEemERRECTFE(BRERMR)

Closure of Register of Shareholders (both days inclusive)

FO8% A H

Record date

NHARR S TR AR 3 B EA
Expected final dividend payment date

(CBFRR R ENE 2 IR B FAEHE)

FEERERRELHE AR EHIER
MIBPERFE - FTA RN B SHERAE AR
SWEEAAEBIEIIERD B PR EATKER
RAZBRNBELREEPRESFEL AR A AR
BB FE - ML AEBETE2FANERI18IHA
MAL7E171221716F -

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

For determining shareholders’ entitlement to receive the proposed final
dividend™:

20226 A2H (2 8iM) T 48305
4:30 p.m. on 2 June 2022 (Thursday)

20226 A6H (EH—)E202256 A8H (EH =)
6 June 2022 (Monday) to 8 June 2022 (Wednesday)

20226 A8H(EH =)
8 June 2022 (Wednesday)

2022F6 168 (2HjmM)
16 June 2022 (Thursday)

(*subject to shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting)

During the periods of the closure of Register of Shareholders, no share
transfers will be registered. For registration, all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong before the relevant latest
time to lodge transfers.
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B SEEGIRARA o A LS ERAE
EEMEEZ M o

2021F IR - B REARMERBUFEHEBEL
HARFREREGD  URBHREERGHREE
BT B PR 2 A7) 4893k (www.hkexnews.hk) & K 7 8R 17
#3935 (www.dahsing.com) °

FEEEBRITZRM
RRRARFEEETRG ZF BN BHRKRM
7140 ©

B

REBAFE 2 #E REAMBHHT2,000/87T ©

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group and a discussion and analysis
on the Group’s future business development are provided in the
“Chairman’s Statement” and the “Review of Operations” of this Annual
Report. Description of the principal risks and uncertainties that the
Group may be facing can also be found in the “Chairman’s Statement”
and the “Review of Operations” of this Annual Report. The objectives
and policies of financial risk management and the risk management
structure and framework of the Group can be found in the “Notes to the
Financial Statements” of this Annual Report. Particulars of important
events affecting the Company that have occurred since the end of
the financial year (if any) can be found in the “Notes to the Financial
Statements”. An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year
using financial key performance indicators is provided in the “Review
of Operations” of this Annual Report. In addition, discussions on the
Group’s environmental policies and performance and also relationships
with the key stakeholders and compliance with relevant laws and
regulations which have a significant impact on the Group can be found
in the “Corporate Governance Report” of this Annual Report and
the 2021 Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the “2021
ESG Report”). The “Notes to the Financial Statements” also contain
description of the management structures and framework to ensure
compliance with various laws and regulations which are applicable to
the Group. The above sections form part of this Report of the Directors.

The 2021 ESG Report is issued as a separate report concurrently with
this Annual Report and both reports are also published on the websites
of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (www.hkexnews.hk)
and Dah Sing Bank (www.dahsing.com).

SHARES ISSUED IN THE YEAR

Details of the shares of the Company issued during the year are shown
in Note 40 to the financial statements.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to HK$72,000.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
Report of the Directors are:

David Shou-Yeh Wong
Chairman

Robert Tsai-To Sze*

Andrew Kwan-Yuen Leung*

Paul Michael Kennedy*

Paul Franz Winkelmann*

Eiichi Yoshikawa

Yoshikazu Shimauchi

Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)
Managing Director and Chief Executive

Gary Pak-Ling Wang
Deputy Chief Executive

Shinkichi Nakamura
Alternate to Eiichi Yoshikawa

David Wai-Hung Tam*
(resigned with effect from 3 June 2021)

* Independent Non-Executive Directors

The Directors retiring by rotation in accordance with Article 124 of the
Company’s Articles of Association are Mr. David Shou-Yeh Wong,
Mr. Gary Pak-Ling Wang and Mr. Paul Michael Kennedy who, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

Ms. Mariana Suk-Fun Ngan who will be appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director on 1 April 2022 will hold office until the
forthcoming annual general meeting in accordance with Article 128 of
the Company’s Atrticles of Association and, being eligible, offers herself
for re-election at the annual general meeting.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

The Company has received an annual confirmation from each of the
Independent Non-Executive Directors as regards their continued
independence while serving as members of the Board of Directors
during the year. The Company still considers all the Independent Non-
Executive Directors to be independent.

Details of the Directors to be re-elected at the forthcoming annual
general meeting are set out in the circular to the shareholders sent
together with this Annual Report.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION WITH REGARD TO
DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, changes in information
required to be disclosed by the Directors since the publication of the
2021 Interim Report of the Company and up to the date of this Annual
Report are set out below:

(@) Mr. David Shou-Yeh Wong
Chairman

- Ceased to act as a Vice President of The Hong Kong
Institute of Bankers with effect from 8 September 2021

(b) Mr. Robert Tsai-To Sze
Independent Non-Executive Director

- Resigned as an Independent Non-Executive Director of
Hop Hing Group Holdings Limited (delisted on 27 January
2022) with effect from 15 February 2022

- Resigned as an Independent Non-Executive Director of
Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited with effect from 26 March
2022

(¢) Mr. Andrew Kwan-Yuen Leung
Independent Non-Executive Director

- Elected as the President of the Seventh Legislative Council
of Hong Kong with effect from 4 January 2022

Save as those disclosed above, there is no other information required
to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election has a service contract
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable
within 1 year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

A list of the names of all the directors who have served on the boards of
the subsidiaries of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this Report of the Directors is provided in the “Directors of Subsidiaries”
section which follows this Report of the Directors.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the Chief Executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which were required to be notified to
the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“SEHK”)
pursuant to Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which they have taken on or are deemed to have acquired under such
provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to the SFO, to
be entered in the register referred to therein, or as otherwise required to
be notified to the Company and the SEHK pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers and the code
of conduct for directors’ securities dealing adopted by the Company
(collectively the “Securities Model Code”) were as follows:

(a) Interests in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company and its associated corporation

EEBTRS

By oER

AAFLBERRA HEROEE EL

Number of ordinary shares/underlying shares of the Company Percentage of

BAER EEER Hrs AR  interests in the

Personal Corporate Other Total total number of

Bz Director interests interests interests interests  issued shares
TFE David Shou-Yeh Wong - 137,285,682 (" - 137,285,682 42.96%
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(Continued)
() EARQTREBEEEiF2ReRAE (a) Interests in the shares and underlying shares of the
AR R Company and its associated corporation (Continued)
HERTRE
AFRTEAERADLERR G, HBROEE Y T
Number of ordinary shares/underlying shares of Aol
Dah Sing Banking Group Limited Percentage of
BARR EEER HitEs AR  interests in the
Personal Corporate Other Total total number of
Bz Directors interests interests interests interests  issued shares
FFE David Shou-Yeh Wong - 1,045,626,955 @ - 1,045,626,955 74.38%
Eaayd Gary Pak-Ling Wang 2,884,691 O - - 2,884,691 0.21%
EERTRE
ERRTRABRARNEERRSG BBERAHA (AR) ed
Number of ordinary shares/underlying shares of Aol
Bank of Chonggqing Co., Ltd. - A shares Percentage of
BARR EEER Htrs AR interestsin the
Personal Corporate Other Total total number of
gz Director interests interests interests interests  issued shares
EEH Hon-Hing Wong 2,000 - - 2,000 0.00%

\_
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

(Continued)

(@)

Interests in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company and its associated corporation (Continued)

Notes:

(1)  The corporate interests were in respect of shares held by a
corporation in which the director controlled one third or more of the
voting powers at general meetings and shares held by companies
under a family discretionary trust. HSBC International Trustee
Limited is the trustee of a family discretionary trust of which David
Shou-Yeh Wong is the settlor.

(2)  Such shares included the indirect corporate interests of David
Shou-Yeh Wong in Dah Sing Banking Group Limited (“DSBG”)
under Part XV of the SFO by virtue of his beneficial interests of
42.96% in the Company which currently holds a controlling interest
of 74.37% in DSBG and interests in DSBG held through a company
controlled by David Shou-Yeh Wong.

(3)  The personal interests of Gary Pak-Ling Wang comprised of (a)
interests in 934,691 ordinary shares of DSBG, (b) interests in
share options in respect of 450,000 underlying shares of DSBG
as disclosed in the following section regarding interests in options
under share option scheme of DSBG; and (c) deemed interests
in 1,500,000 notional underlying shares of DSBG relating to
cash-settled share-based incentive options granted by DSBG as
explained in note (4) below.

(4) DSBG had established a cash-settled share-based incentive option
scheme as a long-term incentive plan to incentivize employees
on 20 March 2018. The rights granted under the scheme shall be
exercisable upon vesting in 5 equal tranches commencing from
the first anniversary of the date of grant. Subject to the satisfaction
of performance appraisal factors, the grantees may exercise their
vested options. No shares of DSBG will be issued to the grantees
of the options under the scheme which is essentially a deferred
cash incentive scheme linked to the performance of the grantees
and the share price of DSBG.
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

(Continued)

(b) Interests in options under share option schemes of
the Company and its associated corporation

. Share option scheme of the Company

On 27 May 2015, the shareholders of the Company
approved the adoption of a share option scheme (the
“DSFH Scheme”).

In accordance with the requirements of The Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), a summary of
the DSFH Scheme is disclosed as follows:

(1)  Purpose of the DSFH Scheme:

The purpose of the DSFH Scheme is to provide
an incentive and/or reward to grantees for their
contribution to, and continuing efforts to promote the
interests of, the Group.

(2) Participants of the DSFH Scheme:

Any director, manager, or other employee holding
an executive, managerial or supervisory position in
the Group as the Board may in its sole discretion
determine to be eligible to participate in the DSFH
Scheme.

(8) Total number of shares available for issue under
the DSFH Scheme and percentage of total number
of issued shares as at the date of this Report of the
Directors:

The number of shares available for issue under the
DSFH Scheme and any other schemes is 15,978,755
shares, representing 5% of the total number of issued
shares of the Company as at the date of this Report
of the Directors.
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

(Continued)

(b) Interests in options under share option schemes of
the Company and its associated corporation (Continued)

. Share option scheme of the Company (Continued)

(4)

Maximum entitlement of each participant under the
DSFH Scheme:

No share options may be granted to any eligible
person which, if exercised, would result in such
eligible person becoming entitled to subscribe for
such number of shares as, when aggregated with the
total number of shares already issued or to be issued
to him under all share options granted to him in the
12-month period up to and including the offer date of
relevant share options, exceed 1% of the shares in
issue at such date. Any grant of further share options
above the limit shall be subject to the provisions of
the DSFH Scheme and the Listing Rules as amended
from time to time.

Period within which the shares must be taken up
under an option:

The exercise period is determined by the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee on behalf of the Board
of the Company, and is specified when related share
options are granted. Shares under the share options
must be taken up within 10 years from the date of
grant.

Minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised:

The minimum holding period is determined by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee on behalf
of the Board of the Company, and is specified when
related share options are granted.
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

(Continued)

(b) Interests in options under share option schemes of
the Company and its associated corporation (Continued)

. Share option scheme of the Company (Continued)

@)

Amount payable on application or acceptance of the
option and the period within which payments or calls
must or may be made or loans for such purpose must
be repaid:

The amount payable on acceptance of an option is
HK$1 and must be made within 21 days upon offer
of granting of share options or the date on which the
conditions (if any) for the offer are satisfied.

Basis of determining the exercise price:

The exercise price per option share is concluded
by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
on behalf of the Board of the Company on the basis
no less exacting than the requirement set out in
Rule 17.03(9) of the Listing Rules and is determined
as no less than the higher of (i) the closing price of
the Company’s shares traded on the SEHK on the
date of grant; and (ii) the average closing price of
the Company’s shares traded on the SEHK for the
5 business days immediately preceding the date of
grant.

Remaining life of the DSFH Scheme:
The DSFH Scheme shall be valid and effective for a

period of 10 years commencing from 27 May 2015
and expiring at the close of 26 May 2025.

No share options had been granted under the DSFH

Scheme from the date of its adoption to 31 December

2021.
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

(Continued)

(b) Interests in options under share option schemes of
the Company and its associated corporation (Continued)

1.

Share option scheme of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited,
a majority owned subsidiary of the Company

The respective shareholders of the Company and Dah Sing
Banking Group Limited (“DSBG”) approved the adoption of
a share option scheme of DSBG (the “DSBG Scheme”) on
27 May 2014.

In accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules, a
summary of the DSBG Scheme is disclosed as follows:

(1)  Purpose of the DSBG Scheme:

The purpose of the DSBG Scheme is to attract,
motivate and retain high quality executives to
contribute to the business and growth of DSBG
group of companies.

(2) Participants of the DSBG Scheme:

Eligible participants of the DSBG Scheme included
directors and employees holding supervisory
positions in DSBG and its subsidiaries.

(8) Total number of shares available for issue under
the DSBG Scheme and percentage of total number
of issued shares as at the date of this Report of the
Directors:

The number of shares available for issue under the
DSBG Scheme and any other schemes is 70,076,781
shares, representing 4.99% of the total number of
issued shares of DSBG as at the date of this Report
of the Directors.
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

(Continued)

(b) Interests in options under share option schemes of
the Company and its associated corporation (Continued)

I Share option scheme of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited,

a majority owned subsidiary of the Company (Continued)

(4)

Maximum entitlement of each participant under the
DSBG Scheme:

No share options may be granted to any eligible
person which, if exercised, would result in such
eligible person becoming entitled to subscribe for
such number of shares as, when aggregated with the
total number of shares already issued or to be issued
to him under all share options granted to him in the
12-month period up to and including the offer date of
relevant share options, exceed 1% of the shares in
issue at such date. Any grant of further share options
above the limit shall be subject to the provisions of
the DSBG Scheme and the Listing Rules as amended
from time to time.

Period within which the shares must be taken up
under an option:

The exercise period is determined by the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee on behalf of the Board
of DSBG, and is specified when related share options
are granted. Shares under the share options must be
taken up within 10 years from the date of grant. All
the existing share options granted under the DSBG
Scheme shall be exercisable upon vesting in 5 equal
tranches between the first and fifth anniversaries
from the date of grant.
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

(Continued)

(b) Interests in options under share option schemes of
the Company and its associated corporation (Continued)

I Share option scheme of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited,

a majority owned subsidiary of the Company (Continued)

(6)

Minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised:

The minimum holding period is determined by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee on behalf
of the Board of DSBG, and is specified when related
share options are granted. None of the existing share
options under the DSBG Scheme shall be exercisable
within 1 year from the date of grant.

Amount payable on application or acceptance of the
option and the period within which payments or calls
must or may be made or loans for such purpose must
be repaid:

The amount payable on acceptance of an option is
HK$1 and must be made within 21 days upon offer
of granting of share options or the date on which the
conditions (if any) for the offer are satisfied.

Basis of determining the exercise price:

The exercise price per option share is concluded
by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
on behalf of the Board of DSBG on the basis
no less exacting than the requirement set out in
Rule 17.03(9) of the Listing Rules and is determined
as no less than the higher of (i) the closing price of
DSBG'’s shares traded on the SEHK on the date of
grant; and (ii) the average closing price of DSBG’s
shares traded on the SEHK for the 5 business days
immediately preceding the date of grant.
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EERTHARES @ INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
(Continued)
() EARLTREEHELEEZRRESTEIT T (b) Interests in options under share option schemes of
BeRRERER @ the Company and its associated corporation (Continued)
. AREFEZHE 2 E]— AFR7TEE Il.  Share option scheme of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited,

BIR 2 A2 R 1T &) ()
(9) AFRITEEGBIHRAERY

AFTIRITE B AT & 2014 F
5R27HEFI0FRNEN &
202445526 R f@im °

RITRITERE IR 2 BBAE AR
BAGTIRITRE BB 2 s M
B(ETRADMBREZERIT

a majority owned subsidiary of the Company (Continued)

(9) Remaining life of the DSBG Scheme:

The DSBG Scheme shall be valid and effective for a
period of 10 years commencing from 27 May 2014
and expiring at the close of 26 May 2024.

The particulars of interests in options to subscribe for
ordinary shares of DSBG granted under the DSBG
Scheme and information that is required to be disclosed in
accordance with the Listing Rules are set out below:

AREEEZANBTEERAER
Number of DSBG’s shares underlying the options
2021% 0215/ R2021F ke g
1A1R 2021FA  20215R  E8/%% 12831R Exercise iR Exercise
®E Rit 1 Cancelled/ 5E price  Grant date period
Held at Granted  Exercised lapsed Held at (%) (B/BR/%) (B/BR/%§)
ERA Grantee 11/2021  during 2021 during 2021 during 2021  31/12/2021 (HKS) (DY) (DY)
BZ Director
Tia% Gary Pak-Ling Wang 450,000 - - - 450,000 18.24 26/04/2018  26/04/2019 -
26/04/2024
HivEagg e Aggregate of other 750,000 - - - 750,000 18.24 26/04/2018  26/04/2019 -
employees @ 26/04/2024

DAH SING FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021



EEEREE
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EERTHRARER @

(Z) EARDAREEE EERREE T A
B2 AR ERELS ()

Il ARFAEENE RG]~ AR 755
BIR A A2 R 1T &) ()

i

(1) FMERBRIFRITEEFETE
H2 BEERETHRHE1ER
E5EBFEDSH TIIRBER A T
T8

() RBEDNETETAERREE ®
ERAHRITEELIEZEMNER
AIMES  SEEEARNEE -
U REBERBEDITEERD]IT
fERIER -

(8) RBBEEZETFBHNTBER
FMIFE45 ©

B Ll EBif 2 - R20215F12A31H + K&
NEMKB(EF REERADMEE 2 EE RITH
BEER AR B EMANEE B ITRAH
BXRBHIFEEE o

B EXCATIREEE SN - R2021F12 A31H © AAFA
ERPITRARRAZE ZHEALTREREAR
Al HEMAEEEE (F & R(EF REBE G
EXVER) Z Befn - HEERND REFFHEDER
PDAEEHF R EENNEISEREBEF 2 &R
sk IRBEFHTETFARHNEEARET R
BEER G2 EERIAR

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

(Continued)

(b) Interests in options under share option schemes of
the Company and its associated corporation (Continued)

I Share option scheme of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited,
a majority owned subsidiary of the Company (Continued)

Notes:

(1) All the existing share options granted under the DSBG
Scheme shall be exercisable upon vesting in 5 equal
tranches between the first and fifth anniversaries from the
date of grant.

(2) Share options were granted to certain eligible employees,
who are directors, senior executives or officers of major
operating subsidiaries of DSBG and are working under
employment contracts that are regarded as “continuous
contracts” for the purpose of the Employment Ordinance of
Hong Kong.

(3) Details of the computation of the value of options are shown
in Note 45 to the financial statements.

All the interests stated above represented long positions. As at 31
December 2021, none of the Directors or Chief Executive of the
Company held any short positions as defined under the SFO which are
required to be recorded in the register of directors’ and chief executive’s
interests and short positions.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the
Directors or Chief Executive of the Company and their respective
associates had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the SEHK pursuant to the Securities Model Code.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Each of the Company and DSBG adopted a share award scheme
(respectively the “DSFH Share Award Scheme” and the “DSBG
Share Award Scheme”) to recognize the contribution or value of
certain employees or directors and to motivate and incentivize them
in furtherance of the long-term business objectives of the Group. Both
the DSFH Share Award Scheme and the DSBG Share Award Scheme
were adopted by the respective Boards on 9 September 2021 (the
“Adoption Date”).

Each of the DSFH Share Award Scheme and the DSBG Share Award
Scheme shall be valid and effective for a term of 10 years commencing
on the Adoption Date. Under the DSFH Share Award Scheme, the total
number of shares that may be awarded shall not exceed 9,600,000
shares of the Company (the “DSFH Award Shares”). Under the DSBG
Share Award Scheme, the total number of shares that may be awarded
shall not exceed 42,000,000 shares of DSBG (the “DSBG Award
Shares”). Under the DSFH Share Award Scheme and the DSBG Share
Award Scheme, the respective trustees may acquire issued shares
on-market and/or subscribe new shares from the Company and DSBG
and hold the DSFH Award Shares and the DSBG Award Shares
respectively upon trust for selected participants during the trust period.

During the period from the Adoption Date to 31 December 2021, no
Award Shares were granted under the DSFH Share Award Scheme
and the DSBG Share Award Scheme.

Save for the share option schemes and share award schemes as
disclosed above, no equity-linked agreements were entered into by the
Company or its subsidiaries during the year or subsisted at the end of
the year.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS THAT ARE
SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION TO THE COMPANY’S
BUSINESS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to
the Company’s business to which the Company or its subsidiaries was
a party and in which a Director of the Company or an entity connected
with a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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FTERFRELS SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS

R2021F12A31H U TAT(KRRARESZ KT As of 31 December 2021, the following are the persons, other than
BBEH 2 B ESURBERIN R R BIM&MS K& the Directors and Chief Executive of the Company whose interests are
RGO T FEADRRIB(ESRHEEG) disclosed above, who had interests or short positions in the shares
EXVEEI36IERETFE MR R E LM T A and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register of

SRR SEA R AMER R IAR -

shareholders’ interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
section 336 of Part XV of the SFO or otherwise known to the Company.

HEBTRE
BY IR

FERAEE Bk ®
iz R Percentage of
Number of interests in the

g =27 shares held/  total number of
Name Capacity Interest in shares issued shares®
IBREE FERBREAA TR ER MRS A RS

Christine Yen Wong Deemed interests by virtue of her spouse 137,285,682 () 42.96%*

ELERETERAR(DEEET)
HSBC International Trustee Limited
(“HSBCIT”)

T

Harold Tsu-Hing Wong

DSI Limited

DSI Group Limited

DSI Holding Limited

having a notifiable interest

EREAREBER
Trustee and corporate interests 126,764,787 @ 39.66%*

ARG R IEERESER(ETEA)
ESEEPA L S

Personal interests and deemed interests 129,679,654 © 40.58%*
in shares held by HSBCIT as trustee

ERARER R
Trustee and corporate interests 61,205,583 @ 19.15%*

EEAREREER
Trustee and corporate interests 45,068,894 ¥ 14.10%*

ERAREEER
Trustee and corporate interests 19,914,710 @ 6.23%"*
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FERRER @ SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS (Continued)

HERTRAD

B R
E=00 4= BoLL®

B2 R Percentage of

Number of interests in the

&% 54 shares held/  total number of
Name Capacity Interest in shares issued shares®

ZZEURISREE EERER

Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group, Inc.

= ZUFJiRTT
MUFG Bank, Ltd.

Aberdeen Asset Management
Asia Limited

Corporate interests

ER Al ddEN s
oy

Beneficial interests

REKE
Investment manager

* LA_EEZ (5T - DSI Limited « DSI Group Limited *
DS Holding Limited & B F%! 2 #35 [ T 0 £
WAR (B 2 25 (A0 T CEE(B) ATt ) 19 8 £ =7

EMBEARRRRM R 28

[IEEA a)

WIERERTHRAEER | — 8 TIAKE - THA
ENRENZEETEEARANEN 2 -
It AR AR R E - BIREBRETER

BEBARRBRMES ZBMIREE -

32,021,510

31,957,510

18,048,800

10.02%

10.00%

5.65%

The interests disclosed above by each of HSBCIT, DSI Limited, DSI
Group Limited and DSI Holding Limited and deemed interests disclosed
by Harold Tsu-Hing Wong (as explained in note (3) below) relate to the
shares held by David Shou-Yeh Wong in the Company as disclosed under
the heading “Interests of Directors and Chief Executive”. The interests of
Christine Yen Wong represent the whole of such shares. Therefore, these
shareholdings should not be aggregated, and rather form part or whole of
the same share interests of David Shou-Yeh Wong held in the Company.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS (Continued)

Notes:

(1) Such shares represent the deemed interests of Christine Yen Wong
by virtue of her spouse, David Shou-Yeh Wong being a substantial
shareholder of the Company having a notifiable interest in the relevant
share capital of the Company (under the interpretation of section 316(1) of
the SFO). These interests comprise the same shares held by David Shou-
Yeh Wong under the heading “Interests of Directors and Chief Executive”
above.

2) Out of these shares, 126,189,187 shares are mainly comprised of the
interests indirectly held by HSBCIT in trust for a family discretionary trust
of which David Shou-Yeh Wong is the settlor.

3) The interests of Harold Tsu-Hing Wong comprised of his (a) personal
interests in 3,490,467 shares; and (b) deemed interests in 126,189,187
shares held by trustee. Pursuant to section 322 of the SFO, Harold
Tsu-Hing Wong has a deemed interests in 126,189,187 shares held by
HSBCIT in trust for a family discretionary trust of which David Shou-Yeh
Wong is the settlor.

(4)  Such shares are mainly comprised of the interests indirectly held by DSI
Limited, DSI Group Limited and DSI Holding Limited in trust for a family
discretionary trust of which David Shou-Yeh Wong is the settlor.

(5) The percentage of interests was calculated with reference to the total
number of issued shares of the Company as at 31 December 2021.

(6) All the interests stated above represented long positions.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, every Director
and officer shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the
Company against all losses or liabilities (to the fullest extent permitted
by the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)) which he/she may sustain
or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his/her office or
otherwise in relation thereto. The Company has arranged appropriate
directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for the Directors and
officers of the Group.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES

There was no purchase, sale or redemption by the Company, or any of
its subsidiaries, of the listed securities of the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2021.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2021.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December 2021, calculated
under sections 291, 297 and 299 of the Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622), amounted to HK$5,846,988,000 (2020: HK$5,819,079,000).

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of transactions with related parties of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2021 have been set out in Note 44 to the financial
statements.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The published results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last 5 years are included in the section headed “Financial Summary” of
this Annual Report.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group derived less than
30% of interest income and other operating income from its 5 largest
customers.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the
Listing Rules, based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RULES GOVERNING THE
LISTING OF SECURITIES ON THE STOCK EXCHANGE
OF HONG KONG LIMITED

The accompanying financial statements comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditors
of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. The Company has not changed its auditors in the preceding
3 years.

On behalf of the Board

Hon-Hing Wong
Managing Director and Chief Executive

Hong Kong, 31 March 2022
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WEBANES
DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

REZE2021F12A31HIEFEREE2022F3 A The names of the directors who have served on the boards of the

BSTB(AARRIZAFEEETEWMEEHH) ILH subsidiaries of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2021

- HEARRZHBARESENEST 2 HE and up to 31 March 2022, being the date of the Report of the Directors

T of Company for the year, are set out below:

(BN FHES)) (in alphabetical order)

FREEDS CHAN Ha-Fong Nancy

BRELE CHAN Hoi-Kit Frederick

FeR % B CHAN lo-Meng (Vincent CHAN)

R s A CHAN Seng-Lee

PR B2 CHAN Wai-Kin Cliff

BRIME CHANG Pui-Yuk Vanessa

N CHEN Yi-Chuan (Rawson CHEN)

B3 )k CHENG Yu-Chung (Patrick CHENG)

B CHIU Yuk-Fai Alick*

sk " CHOW Wing-Hong (Calvin CHOW)*

Dak::icin FONG Ching-Yin (Celia FONG)*

77 JKEE FONG Siu-Chung Patrick

BILEA FUNG Siu-Ming (Philip FUNG)

OE=7 HO Ka-Yeung Eric

SIS Paul Michael KENNEDY

£ PR LAU Ka-Wai Frederick

BIRE* LAU Ka-Yin (Kent LAU)*

2Ma LAU Pak-Hung

ZEHTIR LAW See-Chan Embrose

EEER LEE Kai-Tai (Ricky LEE)

R LEE Nga-Yin Sandra*

RER LEUNG Wai-Sum (Terence LEUNG)

PRERC LIM Beng-Gin (Arthur LIM)

HInE MA Yuen-Lai Barbara

R Nicholas John MAYHEW

RFE* (FA20214F2 A25 A B ttt) NG Yuen-Tin* (deceased on 25 February 2021)

*mE Blair Chilton PICKERELL

EE POON Clement

Ly POON Wing-Fai Jimmy*

HR—I5 SUEN Yat-Ming Johnny

B SZE Tsai-To Robert

E(ELE TAM Wai-Hung David

FaZE WANG Pak-Ling Gary

Alan Robert WEATHERSTON Alan Robert WEATHERSTON

FHER Paul Franz WINKELMANN

mRER WONG Chit-Kwan (Vincent WONG)

WONG Edmond WONG Edmond

= WONG Hon-Hing (Derek WONG)

TxE WONG Mei-Chun Phoebe

EFE WONG Shou-Yeh David

F1H 8 WONG Tsu-Hing Harold

FE4 WONG Wai-Nar Doris

FED YAN Yun-Shum Grace

iEoi YAU Ho-Wing Vincent*

ENSES YU Yuk-Wing Kenneth

RizE YUEN Yat-To (Henry YUEN)

* BERE/ TEBEAARREBHBARESH * Those who have resigned/ceased as a Director of the relevant
%% o subsidiary(ies) of the Company.
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

B ZE2021412 A31H 1L Z For the year ended 31 December 2021
(LAZEBEF TA5I7R ) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Pt
Note 2021 2020
FLEMA Interest income 7 5,176,672 6,230,506
MEXH Interest expense 7 (1,222,447) (2,511,305)
BRI EWA Net interest income 3,954,225 3,719,201
AR5 & RAEBA Fee and commission income 8 1,407,589 1,378,808
ris B RAeXH Fee and commission expense 8 (221,741) (206,264)
FREBRASHBA Net fee and commission income 1,185,848 1,172,544
AEERA Net trading income 9 201,488 376,069
FIRE REMUA Net insurance premium and other income 10 481,050 500,128
HbgEWA Other operating income 11 191,468 155,249
EEWA Operating income 6,014,079 5,923,191
TRERZR1E N2 HFER Net insurance claims and expenses 12 (337,802) (851,882)
R R REZEERA Total operating income net of insurance
claims 5,676,277 5,571,309
EIEX I Operating expenses 13 (3,205,522) (3,019,884)
MERIRUE 5 1R A 2 & B A Operating profit before impairment losses 2,470,755 2,551,425
EEREES Credit impairment losses 16 (372,305) (647,668)
HRETREREEEEZ Operating profit before gains and losses on
W25 & B 18 A 2 2 B R A certain investments and fixed assets 2,098,450 1,903,757
S H M [E B E 2 S EE Net loss on disposal of other fixed assets (8,934) (8,027)
REMEN T ERARE 2 FEE Net loss on fair value adjustment of investment
\ ) properties (10,642) (142,753)
HRF S N a1k E 2 518 Loss on deemed disposal of investment in an
) associate (31,202) -
HE DA & B HZHE A Net gain on disposal of financial assets at fair
Hib2EBmmeREE 2 F value through other comprehensive income
2 4,993 13,448
R 2 R EEE Impairment loss on goodwill 29 - (98,239)
JE(RE AN B 2 ¥R Share of results of an associate 697,954 710,370
BN R E 2 REEE Impairment loss on the investment in an
associate 26 (726,000) (531,000)
FEMEHEEG B 2 ¥5 Share of results of jointly controlled entities 33,060 33,190
BR#t AT A Profit before taxation 2,057,679 1,885,746
Fi1a Taxation 17 (322,927) (342,714)
F B F Profit for the year 1,734,752 1,543,032
DB Attributable to:
7T'< Bl Shareholders of the Company 1,308,404 1,158,152
RIEHIRERR R Non-controlling interests 426,348 384,880
FERA Profit for the year 1,734,752 1,543,032
sRER Earnings per share
HEARN#E Basic and diluted 19 HK$4.09 HK$3.62
F107EEEI26 8 2 TN E ISk 2 — The notes on pages 107 to 326 are an integral part of these
B o consolidated financial statements.
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e 2R
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

B ZE2021412 31 H IEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021
(LAVEEEF TAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2021 2020
FERF Profit for the year 1,734,752 1,543,032
FEHMEHEKE Other comprehensive income for the year
AREEEF D AELRA WEIRRIIEE ©  Items that may be reclassified to the consolidated
income statement:
BHIRE Investments in securities
NAFEFEBEZS T AEMEME  Net change in fair value of debt instruments at fair
WEMER LA AFEZEFEE value through other comprehensive income 69,115 (78,386)
B S ARIERNEE AFl2  Share of other comprehensive income of an associate
H b2 s accounted for using the equity method 44,040 382
NAFEFEEEZS T AEMETE  Net change in allowance for expected credit losses
WarER T A2 BHREEEER of debt instruments at fair value through other
ST HER comprehensive income 7,347 6,438
R REB E IR Net gain realised and transferred to income statement
upon:
—HENAATFEAEAHE — Disposal of debt instruments at fair value through
STAHEMEEKE 2 EHTA other comprehensive income (4,993) (13,448)
B Lt 2 TR IR Deferred income tax related to the above (11,991) 18,852
103,518 (66,162)
RMEFIMEE IS HRAIEN =2 Exchange differences arising on translation of the
financial statements of foreign entities 207,165 387,964
TaENyEERe RERMIEE ¢ ltems that will not be reclassified to the consolidated
income statement:
AAFEEBHEEBTAEMEE  Net change in fair value of equity instruments at fair
W r s E TE 2 AFEZE)FEE  value through other comprehensive income 609,613 646,691
B bt 2 IRIER 1A Deferred income tax related to the above (34,737) (39,213)
574,876 607,478
HBRFIAR 2 FEEM 2 E RS Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 885,559 929,280
HNBRHREAZFELEINEEEE Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 2,620,311 2,472,312
ST Attributable to:
SRIEHIRER R Non-controlling interests 507,422 470,970
ZiN/NET Shareholders of the Company 2,112,889 2,001,342
NRBEAZFEZEIKEEEE Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 2,620,311 2,472,312
F107E 2 F326 B Z M E I AR AT ERER 2 — The notes on pages 107 to 326 are an integral part of these
& o consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2021412 H31H As at 31 December 2021
(LAZEBEF TA5I7R ) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

iz
Note 2021 2020
gE ASSETS
& RIRITH A Cash and balances with banks 20 12,791,862 16,119,500
TERITIE 1218 A N E ERTE R Placements with banks maturing between one and
twelve months 4,613,803 5,742,740
FEREREMES Trading securities 21 4,425,384 5,080,047
ARNFEFEBEZETABRENERERE  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 21 609,266 557,353
PTAESRIA Derivative financial instruments 22 635,852 1,147,201
FHEHR KA MARE Advances and other accounts 23 153,369,713 147,904,807
ARTET2 B H S8t AR Financial assets at fair value through other
THRENERHEE comprehensive income 24 46,398,268 46,395,704
PABEERRN ARSI BR M R R B B Financial assets at amortised cost 25 24,592,503 22,902,983
AN By Investment in an associate 26 4,230,951 4,277,927
KR EREIRE Investments in jointly controlled entities 27 114,373 105,553
Bl Goodwill 29 785,774 776,364
BVEAE Intangible assets 29 80,927 80,927
NENEBETEE Premises and other fixed assets 30 3,051,205 3,128,922
HEYE Investment properties 31 760,256 671,150
EERBEE Deferred income tax assets 38 70,852 69,923
BEAT Total assets 256,530,989 254,961,101
af LIABILITIES
RITIFR Deposits from banks 1,703,197 3,500,442
TESRIT A Derivative financial instruments 22 1,425,365 3,196,667
RHIEEBRENEE Trading liabilities 33 1,511,927 1,570,675
BPER Deposits from customers 34 194,921,713 189,901,345
BB T RE Certificates of deposit issued 35 6,589,717 8,125,802
BERE Subordinated notes 36 4,128,446 3,828,458
HAvBR B RIER Other accounts and accruals 37 8,169,362 8,710,618
B EaE Current income tax liabilities 162,365 389,147
EETIBAE Deferred income tax liabilities 38 92,550 46,978
BfESG Total liabilities 218,704,642 219,270,132
B EQUITY
R R Non-controlling interests 7,633,965 7,304,899
ERRRRELER Equity attributable to the Company’s
shareholders
EN Share capital 40 4,248,559 4,248,559
Hibf#E (BEREBH) Other reserves (including retained earnings) 41 25,943,823 24,137,511
BRES Shareholders’ funds 30,192,382 28,386,070
BERE Total equity 37,826,347 35,690,969
EREREaEEs Total equity and liabilities 256,530,989 254,961,101
=22 N202253 31 B M IRER M - Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 31
March 2022.
FR%E =Em Gary Pak-Ling Wang Hon-Hing Wong
EE EEirE Director Managing Director
FA07TE R FE3268 2 s I ARGA M ETRER 2 — The notes on pages 107 to 326 are an integral part of these
9 o consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

B ZE2021412 31 H IEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021
(LAVEEEF TAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

104

ADFARREMERER
Attributable to the shareholders
of the Company
BRI
BRER
Bx  HitfE  RERA Non-  E#HAG
Share Other Retained  controlling Total
capital reserves earnings interests equity
20215110 &R Balance at 1 January 2021 4,248,559 2,091,061 22,046,450 7,304,899 35,690,969
FEEF Profit for the year - - 1,308,404 426,348 1,734,752
FEEM2EKE Other comprehensive income for the year - 804,485 - 81,074 885,559
PARRAE 2 {5t AR (0 1 R E TR S B Provision for equity-settled share-based
2B compensation - 357 - 122 479
B AREE 2 FRiEER Reserve release upon liquidation of a
subsidiary - - - (15296)  (15,296)
W B AR R HIRERR Acquisition of non-controlling interests of
subsidiaries - - - (37,298) (37,298)
R IERERES  EFHSEMATE  Reclassification of net change in fair value
sTE RREEE AR b2 E RS of equity instruments at fair value through
MR IR A TEEETEE other comprehensive income upon
derecognition - (198,801) 198,801 - -
REIREEIMER I T AR Reserves arising from distribution payment
I of additional equity instruments - - 10,591 (10,591) -
REENDETEERENS Reserves arising from reclassification of
I premises to investment properties - 2,049 - - 2,049
—EME R AL ERE Dividend paid to non-controlling interests
KBRS of a subsidiary - - - (115293)  (115,293)
2020 F RER S 2020 final dividend - - (214,118) - (214,118)
2021 FH HR S 2021 interim dividend - - (105,460) - (105,460)
202151231 AR Balance at 31 December 2021 4,248,559 2,699,151 23,244,672 7,633,965 37,826,347
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GARBEDE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

B ZE2021412 A31H 1L Z For the year ended 31 December 2021
(LAZEBEF TA5I7R ) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

ARRREE R
Attributable to the shareholders
of the Company
R
RE
BA  EiEE  REEN Non-  #E&mAGR
Share Other Retained  controlling Total
capital reserves earnings interests equity
2020F1 A1 B &%k Balance at 1 January 2020 4,248,559 1,436,507 21,120,164 6,999,311 33,804,541
FROEM Profit for the year - - 1,158,152 384,880 1,543,032
FEEMEERE Other comprehensive income for the year - 843,190 - 86,090 929,280
PARRAE 2 {5t AR (0 1 R E TR S B Provision for equity-settled share-based
BB REMAE compensation and other adjustments - 610 (262) 119 467
R IERERE  EFTHSEMATE  Reclassification of net change in fair value
AERHEHH AL M2 E K of equity instruments at fair value through
MR IR A TEEETEE other comprehensive income upon
derecognition - (189,246) 189,246 - -
RBIREEIMER I T AR Reserves arising from distribution payment
ZE of additional equity instruments - - 10,575 (10,575) -
— B A AR E R R Dividend paid to non-controlling interests of a
KBRS subsidiary - - - (154,926)  (154,926)
2019 RER S 2019 final dividend - - (345,140) - (345,140)
2020 P HIR S 2020 interim dividend - - (86,285) - (86,285)
202012731 A& Balance at 31 December 2020 4,248,559 2,091,061 22,046,450 7,304,899 35,690,969
F107 B R E326 B 2 M IR E Sk 2 — The notes on pages 107 to 326 are an integral part of these
o o consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

B ZE2021412 31 H IEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021
(LAVEEEF TAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

106

k=3
Note 2021 2020
RETH2HERE Cash flows from operating activities
KRB TR G S Net cash used in operating activities 42(a) (2,504,453) (3,571,207)
REZBZRERE Cash flows from investing activities
BEREMERAMEEEE Purchase of investment properties and other
fixed assets (309,051) (139,873)
EIFfT B A Rl A& (M) ERAE SRR R Repayment of capital to non-controlling
EERA interests of a subsidiary upon liquidation (15,297) -
& Bt [El FE B E TS 5K IR Proceeds from disposal of other fixed assets 229 136
B UL FE I B R B A RIS Dividend received from jointly controlled
entities and associate 230,578 142,387
KEEBMAR & FE Net cash used in investing activities (93,541) 2,650
METH2EERE Cash flows from financing activities
EREERY Repayment of subordinated notes 42(c) (1,949,775) (1,746,731)
BITIREER Issue of subordinated notes 42(c) 2,320,246 -
HEBBEZNHK Payment of lease liabilities (190,498) (181,819)
SNBBEITRERRS Interest paid on subordinated notes and debt
R EBERZHE securities issued 42(c) (170,924) (229,021)
— [P B A &) [ ELDR 4% i R AR R Dividend paid to non-controlling interests
IREEAR S of a subsidiary (115,293) (154,926)
M3 RARAR 2 Dividend paid on ordinary shares (319,574) (431,425)
W R B A B 2 DR R I REAR 3R Acquisition of non-controlling interests of
subsidiaries (46,708) -
BEEBFTAIREFEE Net cash used in financing activities (472,526) (2,743,922)
ReRERRLBEERD FH Net decrease in cash and
cash equivalents (3,070,520) (6,312,479)
FHekERREER Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
the year 19,933,665 26,064,665
MEREAE 2 8 Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (13,917) 181,479
FREEREREELER Cash and cash equivalents at end of
the year 42(b) 16,849,228 19,933,665
F107EEZFI26 8 2T I ARERE M BHREK 2 — The notes on pages 107 to 326 are an integral part of these
5 o consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

1. —RER

A EeMEEFRAR([ARF]) LEKE QA
(Rl AEE ) ETE - R R BERHERT
R - B R EAARRARTS o

AARS—HEEESEMAZREZEBRAR -
i HE A F S & 2 /5 A B R 2485 KT & @t L
261% ©

BB A ERN 0 AR A B IR R A B T oL
PR - WE 20223 531 HES TS HEREK -

2. FESHHEHE

AT BEEAAERRARA L TR SR -
BRRAEAIN  EREMBFEARAE 2 -

21 RREE

AEEZGREUBRRIERELSHMAS([EH
BETEAE DFMEMZMBERESERE
ER([EBIHHRELER ] - BEIEFHE EREA
WBEBPHEREER - BB EN(EESE
ERAREREZGE) BALERMNZES
[RANR BB R AHEDIE622F MiRE o

ARG ISR IRIBESE RN ATERERE - I
IRAFEIIRZBE BEREME - AATE
SFEREEFF ARBEEKE (AR FEFE
BHEHFTAHMEZERSE DNESRMEE - HF
BEEAgZeRMEERSRABMARTETE
BEBFHFABENEREERSRBE(REN
ETR)ZBfMEHTE

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) provide banking, insurance, financial
and other related services in Hong Kong, Macau, and the People’s
Republic of China.

The Company is an investment holding company incorporated in Hong
Kong. The address of its registered office is 26th Floor, Dah Sing
Financial Centre, No. 248 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands
of Hong Kong dollars (HK$’000), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue by the
Board of Directors on 31 March 2022.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the reporting years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs” is a collective term which includes all
applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap.622.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of investment
properties, financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVOCI”), financial assets and financial liabilities held for
trading, and financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative
instruments) at fair value through profit or loss, which are carried at fair
value.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA™ F7Thi57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
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2. FESHHEHBEm

2.1 mEEX%E@m
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REHERHHRRM M BERREREATE -

ii*ﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬁ’]ﬁi&%léi% taE &$%l2ﬂ7ﬁ%
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in applying the Group’s
accounting policies. Changes in assumptions may have a significant
impact on the financial statements in the period the assumptions
change. Management believes that the underlying assumptions are
appropriate and that the Group’s financial statements therefore present
the financial position and results fairly. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in Note 4.

(a) New and amended standards adopted by the
Group

A number of new or amended standards became applicable for
the current reporting period. The Group did not have to change its
accounting policies or make retrospective adjustments as a result
of adopting these standards.

The Group has applied the following amendments for the first
time for their annual reporting periods commencing on 1 January
2021:

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2, amendments to
HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”,
HKFRS 4 “Insurance Contracts”, HKFRS 7 “Financial
Instruments: Disclosures”, HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and
HKFRS 16 “Leases”.

DAH SING FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.1
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2.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a) New and amended standards adopted by the
Gr OUP (Continued)

The amendments address issues that might affect financial
reporting as a result of the interest rate benchmark reform and
relate to:

(i)  changes to contractual cash flows — financial instruments
will not be derecognised, but the effective interest rate
will be updated to reflect the change to the alternative
benchmark rate;

(i) hedge accounting — hedge accounting will not be
discontinued solely because changes are required to
be made by the reform, if the hedge meets other hedge
accounting criteria; and

(iii)  disclosures — information relating to new risks arising from
the reform and disclosure of how the transition to alternative
benchmark rates is managed.

Interest rate benchmark reform is the market-wide initiative to
replace or reform interbank offered rates (“IBORs”) that are
commonly used to determine interest cash flows on financial
instruments such as loans and advances to customers, deposits
from banks and customers, debt securities and derivatives. The
objective of the reform is to replace IBORs with alternative risk-
free interest rates (“RFRs”) that are based on actual market
transactions. Consequently, financial contracts which currently
make reference to IBORs may need to be amended such that
they will make reference to the alternative RFRs in the applicable
currency going forward. Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and
HKFRS 7 modify some specific hedge accounting requirements to
provide relief (the “temporary relief”’) from the potential effects of
the uncertainties caused by the interest rate benchmark reform.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA™ F7Thi57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
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2.1
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R EKE (@)
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2.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a) New and amended standards adopted by the
Gr OUP (Continued)

The Group has certain outstanding interest rate swaps which
are exposed to different types of IBORs, (predominantly US
Dollar London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) and Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”)). These interest rate swaps are
designated as fair value hedge of certain of the Group’s fixed rate
financial instruments including debt securities held at fair value
through other comprehensive income and amortised cost, bank
borrowing, certificates of deposit issued and subordinated notes
issued. The notional amount of interest rate swaps designated
as subject to hedge accounting relationships and the temporary
relief as at 31 December 2021 is approximately HK$49 billion.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. FESHHEHBEm

2.1 mEEX%E@m
() KEFERA 2 FRASISETER ()

TREFEANEENR2021E12 31 BFEFAE
PAZETT S R R aR 1T B 247 15 F R R 5L R -
BRBEEAERBRBETRRBEASE
FERZEBMTENER - TATANEES
BReMEENREAABZIMNT

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a) New and amended standards adopted by the
Gr OUP (Continued)

The following table contains details of all of the financial
instruments that the Group holds at 31 December 2021 which
reference USD LIBOR and have not yet transitioned to Secured
Overnight Financing Rate (“SOFR”) or an alternative interest rate
benchmark. Notional amount of derivatives and gross carrying
value of financial assets are presented below.

Hep:
Of which:
R2021%F

12A31H
R20214 BRBER=R
12H31H Have yet to
ZEREE transition to
Z&SE  an alternative

Carrying benchmark
Value/Notional interest rate
Amount as at as at

31 December 31 December

2021 2021
EHETHABBTEBEERERNRRBNESTE Non-derivative assets exposed
SRIEE to USD LIBOR
DA AN ET 2 Measured at amortised cost
ZHEEREEMERE Advances and other accounts 8,987,411 8,987,411
IABE SRR AP BR ) S R E = Financial assets at amortised cost 577,374 460,424
DAFEFEEEEHT AEMEZEKETE Measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income
AT E 28 EZ8 i AR 2mK=r Financial assets at fair value
TREE through other comprehensive
income 844,228 837,587
FTESMEENAREE Total carrying value of non-
derivative assets 10,409,013 10,285,422
TTET A —R=REH Derivatives — Interest rate swap 48,580,973 48,573,176
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(LA™ F7Thi57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
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2.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New and amended standards and interpretations
not yet adopted

HKFRS 17 “Insurance contracts”

Insurance contracts are defined as contracts “under which
one party (the issuer) accepts significant insurance risk from
another party (the policyholder) by agreeing to compensate the
policyholder if a specified uncertain future event (the insured
event) adversely affects the policyholder”.

HKFRS 17 is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2023. The Group is yet to assess the impact of
the standard on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

There are no other HKFRSs or interpretations that are effective from

1 January 2021 or not yet effective that would be expected to have a

material impact on the Group.
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(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. FESHEEHBE@ 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 MEBMEREK

GAMBRRBEARARREMENBEAREE
12 8318 [E 2 53Rk ©

2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up to 31 December.
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(a) Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to
the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for business combinations by the Group. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values
of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred
includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related
costs are expensed as incurred. ldentifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the
Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate
share of the acquiree’s net assets.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date
fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over
the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration
transferred, non-controlling interest recognised and previously
held interest measured is less than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the statement of
comprehensive income.
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2.2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Consolidation (continued)
(a) Subsidiaries (Continued)

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required
upon receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in
the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.

(b) Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests as
transactions with equity holders of the Company. For purchases
from non-controlling interests, the difference between any
consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying
value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains
or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests are also
recorded in equity.

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest
in the entity is remeasured to its fair value, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is
the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture
or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.
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2.2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Consolidation (continued)
(c) Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting and are
initially recognised at cost. The Group’s investment in an associate
includes goodwill (net of any accumulated impairment loss)

identified on acquisition.

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits or
losses is recognised in the income statement, and its share of
post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in reserves.
The cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted against
the carrying amount of the investment. When the Group’s
share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in
the associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the
Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associates.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is
any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is
impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of
impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of
the associate and its carrying value and recognises the amount
adjacent to “share of results of an associate” in the income
statement.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest
in the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses in associate are recognised in the
income statement.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the investments
in associates are stated at cost less provision for impairment
losses. The results of associates are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividends received and receivable.

RIEREBEERAF 2021 FFRH




RIFEER R M ot

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAFE®EF LAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

116

2. FESHHEHBEm

2.2 MEBERER@
(T) REAZHER

HEEFIERIEA B EEMA TS KH
BARAARETEERDY  DEHXELER
FHRES - ER—TEREE— ZE
o

HEEFERXE BERBBERESS
FOEAR - SR SR EEAEERE KR
ZHEREFEES - M MEIRRA
BREANEERGARZEHER EEFE -

23 REWARXZH

AR BSRKARARNFEFEREEE AR
fh 2T B 2 &% T AN S WA KR H )
FE R ERR A RAERN SR RA -

BRMEETNR—BANGEESREEXSRA
B2 RN S KL AR B A o 0 1) B A B A
EXHBITE - BRFIREA KR T AERG
BB RBERAEER) AZ At R KRR
WXHRAZEREENERBBEZREFEZ
ERAMEER - A EERMNXE - AEERE R
TAEZABGHNGF(MRERBE ZITEE) M
FAEBASRE  BTERARBLEZEERL -1t
AEBREAERHANRSET TR T REE
KRERERNECERARMNEEE RHUAR
PR B Ath s (B sk 4ras

HE-EcREEN —HeMEENEERRERS
BWERIE - BN BUA R E A R R E R E R
FiT & R PARRER R SRR £ IR B 2 M R FHEHERR -

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)
(d) Jointly controlled entities

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby the Group
and other parties undertake an economic activity, which is subject
to joint control and none of the participating parties has unilateral
control over the economic activity.

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled entities
are accounted for using equity method of accounting. The
consolidated income statement includes the Group’s share
of the results of jointly controlled entities for the year, and the
consolidated statement of financial position includes the Group’s
share of the net assets of the jointly controlled entities.

2.3 Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income statement
for all debt instruments measured at amortised cost and fair value
through other comprehensive income using the effective interest
method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and of allocating the
interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating the
effective interest rate, the Group estimates cash flows considering all
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment
options) but does not consider future credit losses. The calculation
includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to
the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been
written down as a result of an impairment loss, interest income is
recognised using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash
flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Fee and commission income and expense

Fee and commission income from contracts with customers is
measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a
customer. The Group recognises revenue when it transfers control over
a service to a customer.

Fees for ongoing account management, custody services and other
servicing fees that are continuously provided over an extended period
of time are recognised on systematic basis over the period the service is
provided.

Revenue related to transaction-based arrangements such as
interchange, broking services and import or export services is
recognised at the point in time when the transaction takes place.

2.5 Dividend income

Dividends are recognised in the income statement when the Group’s
right to receive payment is established.

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities

Measurement methods

Amortised cost and effective interest rate

The amortised cost is the amount at which the financial asset or
financial liability is measured at initial recognition minus the principal
repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the
effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount
and the maturity amount and, for financial assets, adjusted for any loss
allowance.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
Measurement methods (Continued)
Amortised cost and effective interest rate (Continued)

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset (i.e. its amortised cost before any impairment allowance)
or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. The calculation does
not consider expected credit losses and includes transaction costs,
premiums or discounts and fees and points paid or received that are
integral to the effective interest rate, such as origination fees. For
purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets (assets that
are credit-impaired at initial recognition) the Group calculates the
credit-adjusted effective interest rate, which is calculated based on
the amortised cost of the financial asset instead of its gross carrying
amount and incorporates the impact of expected credit losses in
estimated future cash flows.

When the Group revises the estimates of future cash flows, the carrying
amount of the respective financial asset or financial liability is adjusted
to reflect the new estimate discounted using the original effective
interest rate. Any changes are recognised in profit or loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
Measurement methods (Continued)
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
trade-date, the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell
the asset.

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset or financial
liability at its fair value plus or minus, in the case of a financial asset
or financial liability not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs that are incremental and directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of the financial asset or financial liability, such as fees and
commissions. Transaction costs of financial assets and financial
liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in
profit or loss. Immediately after initial recognition, an expected credit
loss (“ECL”) allowance is recognised for financial assets measured
at amortised cost and investments in debt instruments measured at
FVOCI which results in an accounting loss being recognised in profit or
loss when an asset is newly originated.

When the fair value of financial assets and liabilities differs from the
transaction price on initial recognition, the Group recognises the
difference as follows:

(@) When the fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active
market for an identical asset or liability (i.e. a Level 1 input)
or based on a valuation technique that uses only data from
observable markets, the difference is recognised as a gain or
loss.

(b) In all other cases, the difference is deferred and the timing of
recognition of deferred day one profit or loss is determined
individually. It is either amortised over the life of the instrument,
deferred until the instrument’s fair value can be determined using
market observable inputs, or realised through settlement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Financial assets

(i) Classification and subsequent measurement

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

o Fair value through profit or loss (including held for trading);

o Fair value through other comprehensive income; or

o Amortised cost.

The classification requirements for debt and equity instruments
are described below:

Debt instruments

Debt instruments are those instruments that meet the definition
of a financial liability from the issuer’s perspective, such as
loans, government and corporate bonds and trade receivables
purchased from clients in factoring arrangements.

Classification and subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depend on:

o the Group’s business model for managing the asset; and

o the cash flow characteristics of the asset.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
(i) Classification and subsequent measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)

Based on these factors, the Group classifies its debt instruments
into one of the following three measurement categories:

o Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”), and
that are not designated at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVPL”), are measured at amortised cost. The carrying
amount of these assets is adjusted by any ECL allowance
recognised and measured as described in section (ii)
below. Interest income from these financial assets is
calculated using the effective interest rate method.

o FVOCI: Financial assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows and for selling the assets,
where the assets’ cash flows represent SPPI, and that
are not designated at FVPL, are measured at FVOCI.
Movements in the carrying amount are taken through other
comprehensive income (“OCI”), except for the recognition
of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign
exchange gains and losses on the instrument’s amortised
cost which are recognised in profit or loss. When the
financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss. Interest income from these financial assets is
calculated using the effective interest rate method.

. FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised
cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on a
debt investment that is subsequently measured at FVPL
and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in
profit or loss and presented in the income statement in the
period in which it arises.
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2. FESHHEHBEm 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
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LHEE &) Financial assets (Continued)
() PERHEZBZFEG@ (i) Classification and subsequent measurement (Continued)
EFETAM) Debt instruments (Continued)

Business model: the business model reflects how the Group
manages the assets in order to generate cash flows. That is,
whether the Group’s objective is solely to collect the contractual
cash flows from the assets or is to collect both the contractual
cash flows and cash flows arising from the sale of assets. If
neither of these is applicable (e.g. financial assets are held for
trading purposes), then the financial assets are classified as
part of “other” business model and measured at FVPL. Factors
considered by the Group in determining the business model for
a group of assets include past experience on how the cash flows
for these assets were collected, how the asset’s performance
is evaluated and reported to key management personnel,
how risks are assessed and managed and how managers are
compensated. Securities held for trading are held principally for
the purpose of selling in the near term or are part of a portfolio
of financial instruments that are managed together and for which
there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking. These securities are classified in the “other” business
model and measured at FVPL.

SPPI: Where the business model is to hold assets to collect
contractual cash flows or to collect contractual cash flows and
sell, the Group assesses whether the financial instruments’ cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and interest (the
“SPPI test”). In making this assessment, the Group considers
whether the contractual cash flows are consistent with a basic
lending arrangement (i.e. interest includes only consideration
for the time value of money, credit risk, other basic lending
risks and a profit margin that is consistent with a basic lending
arrangement). Where the contractual terms introduce exposure
to risk or volatility that are inconsistent with a basic lending
arrangement, the related financial asset is classified and
measured at FVPL.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in
their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are
SPPI.
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2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (cContinued)

Financial assets (Continued)
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(i) Classification and subsequent measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when
its business model for managing those assets changes. The
reclassification takes place from the start of the first reporting

R R ER AN A o period following the change. Such changes are expected to be
very infrequent and none occurred during the period.
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Equity instruments are instruments that meet the definition of
equity from the issuer’s perspective; that is, instruments that do
not contain a contractual obligation to pay and that evidence a
residual interest in the issuer’'s net assets. Examples of equity
instruments include basic ordinary shares.

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments
at fair value through profit or loss, except where the Group’s
management has elected, at initial recognition, to irrevocably
designate an equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income. When this election is used, fair value
gains and losses are recognised in OCI and are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss, including on disposal. Dividends,
when representing a return on such investments, continue to be
recognised in profit or loss as other income when the Group’s
right to receive payment is established.

Gains and losses on equity investments at FVPL are included in
the “Net trading income” in the income statement.
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2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

(i) IRE

AR ER B R A I B ERT A TR B AR AN DI AR B A
NFEERREFHARMEERSTIER
MEBTABERREEFPER - EFUAE
R BRERAHNRRSIBEEZBHREER
B8 - AEERZFEEN S 25 A HERE
BEE - BHEEBRZGTERR

 RFME RN EERMEE —EE
RN MR R

. TENEHEEE &

o BARBTUVERAIBEAHMAREG
REHRB 2 BRBESM  REER
RIBRIARRGL BN Z B RBER]
REYE R -

AR AGT B Z EREE OREEFHZS
REERERE R - BEFURERIEE
REKZBEEGRERSEE R EBRE
RiER |z —8D - AAFEASEHEE
SPARMEEKE 2 EF TAZREERE
RNFE - EREEFER SR E S
287 e

33 2248 (4B 2 FEF A IR AH &
RIS -

(ii) Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the ECL
associated with its debt instrument assets carried at amortised
cost and FVOCI and with the exposures arising from loans to
customers, loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts.
The Group recognises a loss allowance for such losses at each
reporting date. The measurement of ECL reflects:

o An unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes;

o The time value of money; and

o Reasonable and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort at the reporting date about past
events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.

Impairment allowance of financial assets measured at amortised
cost is presented as a deduction from the gross carrying amount
of the assets. Impairment allowance of loan commitments and
financial guarantee contracts is recognised as a provision as
part of “Other accounts and accruals”. The carrying amount of
debt instruments measured at FVOCI is their fair value. Their
impairment allowance is recognised as part of “Investment
revaluation reserve”.

Note 3.2.2 provides more details of how the ECL allowance is
measured.
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2. FEEFBRBE@ 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
26 SREEREB®
THEE®)

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (cContinued)

Financial assets (Continued)
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(iii) Modification of loans

The Group sometimes renegotiates or otherwise modifies
the contractual cash flows of loans to customers. When this
happens, the Group assesses whether or not the new terms are
substantially different to the original terms. The Group does this
by considering, among others, the following factors:

. TRERAPBRMBEEE - BHETR . If the borrower is in financial difficulty, whether the
EREEHNRSREERATEREE modification merely reduces the contractual cash flows to

NEENEER -

s BENMAMEMEARFGR - flinE
R BERRBEROFBELZ
AR A T 2 [ o

. 2 1ETRAKRFE I B 75 R 15 B B A RE
RERHR -

amounts the borrower is expected to be able to pay.

o Whether any substantial new terms are introduced, such as
a profit share/equity-based return that substantially affects
the risk profile of the loan.

. Significant extension of the loan term when the borrower is
not in financial difficulty.

. MEZEREE - . Significant change in the interest rate.
. ERNEEEE 2 B8 - . Change in the currency the loan is denominated in.
. MMAZ R R - EERYsRER . Insertion of collateral, other security or credit enhancements
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that significantly affect the credit risk associated with the
loan.

If the terms are substantially different, the Group derecognises
the original financial asset and recognises a “new” asset at fair
value and recalculates a new effective interest rate for the asset.
The date of renegotiation is consequently considered to be the
date of initial recognition for impairment calculation purposes,
including for the purpose of determining whether a significant
increase in credit risk has occurred. However, the Group
also assesses whether the new financial asset recognised is
deemed to be credit-impaired at initial recognition, especially in
circumstances where the renegotiation was driven by the debtor
being unable to make the originally agreed payments. Differences
in the carrying amount are also recognised in profit or loss as a
gain or loss on derecognition.
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2. FESHHEHBEm 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
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2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
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(iii) Modification of loans (Continued)

If the terms are not substantially different, the renegotiation or
modification does not result in derecognition, and the Group
recalculates the gross carrying amount based on the revised
cash flows of the financial asset and recognises a modification
gain or loss in profit or loss. The new gross carrying amount is
recalculated by discounting the modified cash flows at the original
effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective interest rate for
purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets).

(iv) Derecognition other than on a modification

Financial assets, or a portion thereof, are derecognised when
the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the assets
have expired, or when they have been transferred and either
(i) the Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership, or (ii) the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and the
Group has not retained control.

The Group enters into transactions where it retains the
contractual rights to receive cash flows from assets but assumes
a contractual obligation to pay those cash flows to other entities
and transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards. These
transactions are accounted for as “pass through” transfers that
result in derecognition if the Group:

. Has no obligation to make payments unless it collects
equivalent amounts from the assets;

o Is prohibited from selling or pledging the assets; and

U Has an obligation to remit any cash it collects from the
assets without material delay.
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2. FEEFBRBE@ 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
26 SREEREB®
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2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (cContinued)

Financial assets (Continued)
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(iv) Derecognition other than on a modification (Continued)

Collateral (shares and bonds) furnished by the Group under
standard repurchase agreements and securities lending and
borrowing transactions are not derecognised because the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards on the basis of the
predetermined repurchase price, and the criteria for derecognition
are therefore not met. This also applies to certain securitisation
transactions in which the Group retains a subordinated residual
interest.

When the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the
assets have been transferred, and the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership,
and the Group has retained control of the transferred assets, the
Group applies continuing involvement approach.

Under this approach, the Group continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of its continuing involvement
and recognise the associated liability, to reflect the rights and
obligations retained by the Group. The net carrying amount of
the transferred asset and associated liability is: (a) the amortised
cost of the rights and obligations retained by the Group, if the
transferred asset is measured at amortised cost; or (b) equal to
the fair value of the rights and obligations retained by the Group
when measured on a stand-alone basis, if the transferred asset is
measured at fair value.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
Financial liabilities
(i) Classification and subsequent measurement

In both the current and prior period, financial liabilities are
classified and subsequently measured at amortised cost, except
for:

U Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: this
classification is applied to derivatives, financial liabilities
held for trading (e.g. short positions in the trading booking)
and other financial liabilities designated as such at
initial recognition. Gains or losses on financial liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or loss are presented
partially in other comprehensive income (the amount of
change in the fair value of the financial liability that is
attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability,
which is determined as the amount that is not attributable
to changes in market conditions that give rise to market
risk) and partially profit or loss (the remaining amount of
change in the fair value of the liability). This is unless such
a presentation would create, or enlarge, an accounting
mismatch, in which case the gains and losses attributable
to changes in the credit risk of the liability are also
presented in profit or loss;

U Financial liabilities arising from the transfer of financial
assets which did not qualify for derecognition, or when

B BEREESER ”Tﬁ/\ﬁ%ﬁ(iﬁﬁﬁm
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B2EER R
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the continuing involvement approach applies. When the
transfer of financial asset did not qualify for derecognition,
a financial liability is recognised for the consideration
received for the transfer. In subsequent periods, the Group
recognises any expense incurred on the financial liability;
when continuing involvement approach applies; and

Financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments.
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2. FEEFBRBE@ 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
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2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (cContinued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)
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(ii) Derecognition

Financial liabilities are derecognised when they are extinguished
(i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expires).

The exchange between the Group and its original lenders of
debt instruments with substantially different terms, as well
as substantial modifications of the terms of existing financial
liabilities, are accounted for as an extinguishment of the original
financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. The
terms are substantially different if the discounted present value of
the cash flows under the new terms, including any fees paid net
of any fees received and discounted using the original effective
interest rate, is at least 10% different from the discounted present
value of the remaining cash flows of the original financial liability.
In addition, other qualitative factors, such as the currency that the
instrument is denominated in, changes in the type of interest rate,
new conversion features attached to the instrument and change
in covenants are also taken into consideration. If an exchange
of debt instruments or modification of terms is accounted for as
an extinguishment, any costs or fees incurred are recognised as
part of the gain or loss on the extinguishment. If the exchange or
modification is not accounted for as an extinguishment, any costs
or fees incurred adjust the carrying amount of the liability and are
amortised over the remaining term of the modified liability.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due,
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Such financial
guarantees are given to banks, financial institutions and others on
behalf of customers to secure loans, overdrafts and other banking
facilities.

Financial guarantee contracts are initially measured at fair value and
subsequently measured at the higher of:

o The amount of the loss allowance; and

. The fee received on initial recognition less income recognised
in accordance with the principles of HKFRS 15 “Revenue from
Contracts with Customers”.

Loan commitments provided by the Group are measured as the amount
of the loss allowance. The Group has not provided any commitment to
provide loans at a below-market interest rate, or that can be settled net
in cash or by delivering or issuing another financial instrument.

For loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts, the loss
allowance is recognised as a provision. However, for contracts that
include both a loan and an undrawn commitment and the Group
cannot separately identify the expected credit losses on the undrawn
commitment component from those on the loan component, the
expected credit losses on the undrawn commitment are recognised
together with the loss allowance for the loan. To the extent that the
combined expected credit losses exceed the gross carrying amount of
the loan, the expected credit losses are recognised as a provision.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8 Derivative and hedging activities

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured
at fair value. All derivatives are carried as assets when fair value is
positive and as liabilities when fair value is negative.

Certain derivatives are embedded in hybrid contracts, such as
the conversion option in a convertible bond. If the hybrid contract
contains a host that is a financial asset, then the Group assesses the
entire contract as described in the financial assets section above for
classification and measurement purposes. Otherwise, the embedded
derivatives are treated as separate derivatives when:

o Their economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to
those of the host contract;

o A separate instrument with the same terms would meet the
definition of a derivative; and

o The hybrid contract is not measured at fair value through profit or
loss.

These embedded derivatives are separately accounted for at fair value,
with changes in fair value recognised in the income statement unless
the Group chooses to designate the hybrid contracts at fair value
through profit or loss.

The method of recognising the resulting fair value gain or loss depends
on whether the derivative is designated and qualifies as a hedging
instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged. The Group
designates certain derivatives as hedges of the fair value of recognised
assets or liabilities or firm commitments (fair value hedges).

The Group documents, at the inception of the hedge, the relationship
between hedged items and hedging instruments, as well as its risk
management objective and strategy for undertaking various hedge
transactions. The Group also documents its assessment, both at hedge
inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are
used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes
in fair values of hedged items.
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2.8

29

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Derivative and hedging activities (Continued)
(a) Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and
qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the income statement
under “Net trading income — Net gain/(loss) arising from financial
instruments subject to fair value hedge”, together with any
changes in the fair value of the hedged asset that are attributable
to the hedged risk.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting,
the adjustment to the carrying amount of a hedged item for which
the effective interest method is used is amortised to profit or loss
over the period to maturity. The adjustment to the carrying value
of a hedged equity security remains in retained earnings until the
disposal of the hedged item.

(b) Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge
accounting

Certain derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge
accounting. Changes in the fair value of any derivative instrument
that does not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised
immediately in the income statement under “Net trading income”.
For derivatives that are managed in conjunction with designated
financial assets or financial liabilities, the gains and losses arising
from changes in their fair value are included under “Net trading
income — Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments at fair value
through profit or loss”.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in

the statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable

right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention

to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on

future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business

and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or

the counterparty.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Sale and repurchase agreements

The liability to counterparties in respect of securities sold subject
to repurchase agreements (“repos”) is included in amounts due to
other banks, deposits from banks, or other accounts and accruals,
as appropriate. Securities purchased under agreements to resell
(“reverse repos”) are recorded as loans and advances to other banks
or customers, as appropriate. The difference between the sale and
repurchase price is treated as interest and accrued over the life of
the agreements using the effective interest method. Securities lent to
counterparties are also retained in the financial statements.

Securities borrowed are not recognised in the financial statements,
unless these are sold to third parties, in which case the purchases and
sales are recorded with the gain or loss included in trading income. The
obligation to return them is recorded at fair value as a trading liability.

2.11 Repossessed assets

Loans on which collateral assets have been repossessed are not
derecognised and are carried in the statement of financial position with
appropriate amounts of impairment allowances made. In the case of
delinquent loans on which collateral assets have been foreclosed and
repossessed by the Group pursuant to legal arrangements or court
orders, and with the legal title of the assets having been passed to the
Group, such loans are derecognised. The foreclosed assets held for
resale are included in “Advances and other accounts — Other assets”.

2.12 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. The
chief operating decision maker is the person or group of persons that
allocates resources to and assesses the performance of the operating
segments of an entity. The Group has determined the Chief Executive
and members of the Executive Committee (“EC”) as its chief operating
decision maker.

All transactions between operating segments are conducted on an
arm’s length basis, with inter-segment revenues and costs being
eliminated on consolidation. Income and expenses directly associated
with each segment are included in determining operating segment
performance.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Segment reporting (Continued)

Based on the requirements of HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments”, the
Group has the following segments: Personal Banking, Corporate
Banking, Treasury and Global Markets, Overseas Banking, Insurance
Business, and Others.

2.13 Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented
in HK dollars, which is the Group’s presentation currency and the
functional and presentation currency of the Company and major
part of the Group.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency of the relevant entity using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from
the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the income statement.

All foreign exchange gains and losses recognised in the income
statement are presented net in the income statement within the
corresponding item. Foreign exchange gains and losses on other
comprehensive income items are presented in the statement of
comprehensive income within the corresponding item.

In the case of changes in the fair value of foreign currency
denominated monetary assets classified as FVOCI, a distinction
is made between translation differences resulting from changes
in amortised cost of the assets and other changes in the carrying
amount of the assets. Translation differences related to changes
in the amortised cost are recognised in the income statement,
and those related to changes in the carrying amount, except for
impairment, are recognised in equity.
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2.13

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(b) Transactions and balances (Continued)

Translation differences on non-monetary items, such as
investments in equity instruments held at fair value through
profit or loss, are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation difference on certain other non-monetary items, such
as equities classified as FVOCI, are included in the investment
revaluation reserve in equity.

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group’s entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position
presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of
that statement of financial position;

(i) income and expenses for each income statement are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a
separate component of equity.

Exchange differences arising from the above processes are
reported in shareholders’ equity under “Exchange reserve”.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities are taken to
shareholders’ equity. When a foreign operation is sold, such
exchange differences are recognised in the income statement as
part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of
a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
entity and translated at the closing rate.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.14 Premises and other fixed assets

Premises comprise mainly offices and shops. Leasehold land classified
as finance lease and all other fixed assets are stated at historical cost
less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are expensed in the income statement during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Leasehold land classified as finance lease commences amortisation
from the time when the land interest becomes available for its intended
use. Amortisation on leasehold land classified as finance lease and
depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their cost to their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, as follows:
- Premises Over the remaining period of lease
- Furniture, fittings, equipment Over the estimated useful lives

and motor vehicles generally between 3 and 10
years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at each end of the reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.17).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised in the income
statement.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.15 Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the companies in the
consolidated Group, is classified as investment property.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related
transaction costs.

After initial recognition, investment property is carried at fair value. Fair
value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any
difference in the nature, location or condition of the specific asset. If
this information is not available, the Group uses alternative valuation
methods such as recent prices on less active markets or discounted
cash flow projections. These valuations are performed in accordance
with the guidance issued by the International Valuation Standards
Committee. These valuations are reviewed annually by external
valuers. Investment property that is being redeveloped for continuing
use as investment property, or for which the market has become less
active, continues to be measured at fair value.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among other things,
rental income from current leases and assumptions about rental income
from future leases in the light of current market conditions.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the
income statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Changes in fair values are recognised in the income statement.

RIEREBEERAF 2021 FFRH

137



RIFEER R M ot

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAFE®EF LAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

138

2. FESHHEHBEm

2.15 REYE m)

I EMEBAEEE T ABMER - AEHE
BRTERHEGEEERE  HEREHNBHREAHZ
NP EFRBERANE °

HRLITEREMEEEERNEREAEZEME S
BREWME  REFBEHEFE165 - ZEER
EZEHZREEENFEREMNER - $EET
EREMBEEEE EAMBERNEREA - A

M A FEREREBEZMERE - %8
BERIN Kz R ARER ©

2.16 BERENEE

7 B WO 2 AN B8 AN SR (B R A MR B T M
BRHCARARERARAFEFEZSHE -
BB ARAE REERR - AERKEFE
TTRERH - BENREBETEDE HEE
BrlaElEEee%hEER I HEREE -

Pé'ﬁ%?é WORESHREEEBMIMERERER
& e @EZELU%TEHH—J BRELAZBEZ
%i‘%/\@*zﬂfﬂi}zi SIS B AR S E A B

fieh B A B T A 2 ST B P B P B B SRR
KA G EMERENMELE 2 B EE -
REBEAARE AR - BV EERFED
FRER - BILEERRBRBRERZOER - AN
REFBENEVEE - B EERERER
FHERARBHER LR2EREERT o #
HIREN F6E125F 2 FARHE A F HARTRIRROR

=g
als+ °

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.15 Investment properties (Continued)

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified
as premises and other fixed assets, and its fair value at the date of
reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes.

If an item of premises and other fixed assets becomes an investment
property because its use has changed, any difference resulting
between the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the
date of transfer is recognised in equity as a revaluation of premises
and other fixed assets under HKAS 16. However, if a fair value gain
reverses a previous impairment loss, the gain is recognised in the
income statement.

2.16 Goodwill and intangible assets

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the acquiree as at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is
carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested annually for impairment. Impairment losses on goodwill are not
reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the
carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of
impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-generating
units or groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from the business combination on which the goodwill arose.

Intangible assets arising from an acquisition are recognised separately
from goodwill when they are separable or arise from contractual or
other legal rights, and their value can be measured reliably. They
include trade names and intangible assets of core deposits, contracts
and customer relationships. Intangible assets are stated at cost less
amortisation, and/or accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is
calculated based on estimated useful life ranging from 5 to 12 years
using a diminishing balance method.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.17 Impairment of goodwill, intangible assets and non-
financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or are not yet available
for use are not subject to amortisation, but are tested annually for
impairment. Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels (cash-generating units) for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows. Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal
of the impairment at each reporting date.

In the Company’s financial statements, impairment testing of the
investment in a subsidiary or an associate is also required upon
receiving dividend from that entity if the dividend exceeds the
Company’s share of the total comprehensive income of that entity
concerned in the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of that entity in the Company’s statement of financial position
exceeds the Company’s share of the carrying amount of that entity’s
net assets including goodwill in its consolidated statement of financial
position.

2.18 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax.
Tax is recognised in the income statement, except to the extent that it
relates to items recognised directly in other comprehensive income. In
such case, the tax is recognised in other comprehensive income within
the corresponding item.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantially enacted at the end of the reporting period
in the countries where the Company’s subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and
that are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised. The tax effects of income tax
losses available for carry forward are recognised as an asset when it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which these
losses can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities,
except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax related to investment properties is measured
according to the tax consequence on the presumption that they are
recovered entirely through sale.

Deferred income tax related to fair value re-measurement of financial
assets at FVOCI, which is charged or credited directly to equity, is also
credited or charged directly to equity and is subsequently recognised in
the income statement upon the realisation of relevant investments.
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2.19

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits
(a) Pension obligations

The Group offers a mandatory provident fund scheme and a
number of defined contribution plans, the assets of which are
generally held in separate trustee-administered funds. These
pension plans are funded by payments from employees and by
the relevant Group companies.

The Group’s contributions to the mandatory provident fund
schemes and defined contribution retirement schemes are
expensed as incurred. Other than mandatory provident fund
contribution, the Group’s contributions may be reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who leave prior to
vesting fully in the contributions.

(b) Share-based compensation

The Group has the choice to pay the intrinsic value of the share
option or to issue new shares to a grantee at the date of exercise
under the share-based compensation plans. The total amount to
be expensed over the vesting period is determined by reference
to the fair value according to settlement type.

For cash-settled share-based compensation, the total cost is the
fair value of the options granted, with re-measurement at each
reporting period with any change in the cost recognised in the
income statement, with a corresponding credit or adjustment to
the “Liabilities”.

For equity-settled share-based compensation, the total cost is
measured and recognised based on the fair value of the equity
options at the grant date, with a corresponding credit to the
“Shared-based compensation reserve” in the shareholders’ funds.
The total cost, which is fixed based on the fair value at the grant
date, is charged to income statement in accordance with the
terms of the vesting of the options over time. When the options
are exercised, the Company will issue new shares to settle its
obligation, and transfer applicable amount from the “Share-based
compensation reserve” to the “Share capital” account.
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2.19

2.20

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)
(c) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. An accrual is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave and long service leave as
a result of services rendered by employees up to the end of the
reporting period.

(d) Bonus plans

Liabilities for bonus plans due wholly within twelve months after
the end of the reporting period are recognised when the Group
has a present or constructive obligation as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation
can be made.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present legal or

constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is more likely than

not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation;

and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not

recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an

outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the

class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the

likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the

same class of obligations may be small.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for use by the
Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to the lease and non-
lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices. However,
for leases of real estate for which the Group is a lessee, it has elected
not to separate lease and non-lease components and instead accounts
for these as a single lease component.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a
present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of
the following lease payments:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any
lease incentives receivable,

o variable lease payments that are based on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date, if any

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual
value guarantees, if any

. the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably
certain to exercise that option, and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term
reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension
options are also included in the measurement of the liability.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Leases (Continued)

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in
the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally
the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing
rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay
to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the
right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms,
security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

. where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the
individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes
in financing conditions since third party financing was received,

o uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest rate
adjusted for credit risk for leases held by the Group, which does
not have recent third party financing, and

3 makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term, country,
currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The
finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

3 the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability,

o any lease payments made at or before the commencement date
less any lease incentives received,

. any initial direct costs, and
U restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the
asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Payments associated with short-term leases and all leases of low-value
assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit
or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or
less.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor is
recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Fiduciary activities

The Group commonly acts as trustees and in other fiduciary capacities
that result in the holding or placing of assets on behalf of individuals,
trusts and other institutions. These assets are excluded from the
Group’s financial statements, as they are not assets of the Group.

2.23 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised as a liability in the
financial statements in the period in which they are approved by
shareholders.

2.24 Cash and cash equivalents

In the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise
balances with less than three months’ maturity from the date of
acquisition, including: cash, balances with banks and other financial
institutions, treasury bills, other eligible bills and certificates of deposit
and investment securities which are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value.

2.25 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events
and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising
from past events that is not recognised because it is not probable that
an outflow of economic resources will be required or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to
the financial statements. When a change in the probability of an outflow
occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a
provision.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.25 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets (Continued)

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events
and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain events not wholly within the
control of the Group.

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
When such inflow is virtually certain, an asset is recognised.

2.26 Insurance contracts

The Group issues contracts that contain insurance risk.

Insurance contracts are accounted for as follows:

(a) Premiums

Premiums for general insurance business are accounted for in
the period in which the risk commences. Unearned premium is
provided and is calculated on a time-apportioned basis as the
proportion of the business underwritten in the accounting year
relating to the period of risk after the end of the reporting period.
Reinsurance premiums are accounted for on the same basis as
gross premiums.

(b) Commission expenses

Commission expenses for securing insurance contracts are
charged to the income statement on a basis consistent with
premium revenue recognition and are presented in the income
statement under “Net insurance claims and expenses”.

(c) Claims and benefits

Claims for general insurance business consist of paid claims and
movement in provisions for outstanding claims with related claims
handling expenses. Reinsurance recoveries are accounted for on
the same basis as the related claims or benefits.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.26 Insurance contracts (Continued)

(d) Liability adequacy test

At each end of the reporting period, liability adequacy tests are
performed to ensure the adequacy of the contract liabilities. In
performing these tests, current best estimates of future cash
flows relating to insurance contracts, claims handling and
administration expenses are used. If a deficiency is identified an
additional provision, the unexpired risk provision, is recognised
for losses arising from liability adequacy tests.

(e) Reinsurance contracts held

Contracts entered into by the Group with reinsurers under which
the Group is compensated for losses on one or more contracts
issued by the Group and that meet the classification requirement
for insurance contracts are classified as reinsurance contracts
held.

The benefits to which the Group is entitled under its reinsurance
contracts held are recognised as reinsurance assets. These
assets consist of short-term balances due from reinsurers,
as well as longer term receivables that are dependent on the
expected claims arising under the related reinsured insurance
contracts. Amounts recoverable from or due to reinsurers are
measured consistently with the amounts associated with the
reinsured insurance contracts and in accordance with the terms
of each reinsurance contract. Reinsurance liabilities are primarily
premiums payable for reinsurance contracts and are recognised
as an expense when due.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks and those
activities involve the analysis, evaluation, acceptance and management
of some degree of risk or combination of risks. Taking risk is core to the
financial business, and operational risks are an inevitable consequence
of being in business. The Group’s aim is therefore to achieve an
appropriate balance between risk and return and minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

The Group’s risk management policies are designed to identify and
analyse these risks, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and
to monitor the risks and adherence to limits by means of reliable and
up-to-date information systems. The Group regularly reviews its risk
management policies and systems to reflect changes in markets,
products and emerging best practice.

Risk management is carried out pursuant to the overall strategy and
policies approved by the Board of Directors. The Risk Management and
Compliance Committee (“‘RMCC”) under the authority delegated by the
Board oversees and guides the management of different risks which are
more particularly managed and dealt with by the Group Risk Division
(“GRD”) and different functional committees. In addition, Internal Audit
is responsible for the independent review of risk management and the
control environment.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

To further enhance the risk governance and risk management
standards, the Board has approved a Risk Strategy framework that also
covers the Group’s Risk Appetite framework. The Risk Strategy sets out
the core values and high level risk management direction of the Group,
taking into account the overall business strategy and direction, under
which a robust Risk Appetite framework is established to guide the
strategic planning process and strengthen the risk-return management.
Fundamentally, the Risk Appetite framework sets out the types and
amount of risk that the Group is willing to take in order to achieve its
business plan. The Group’s risk appetite metrics are composed of key
indicators for measuring capital, risks, return and liquidity and this is
supplemented by a set of risk tolerances made up of major risk limits
of the Group. In order to ensure that business is conducted within our
established risk appetite, monitoring on the compliance with the risk
appetite limits and risk tolerance is undertaken on a quarterly basis.
In this connection, the Group has set out its Risk Appetite Statement
that covers five key dimensions of the risks and returns of the Group,
namely, the target returns to shareholders, earnings volatility, solvency,
liquidity and other key risk measures. The GRD is responsible for the
ongoing monitoring of the compliance with the Risk Appetite Statement
and the regular reporting of the status to the RMCC and the Board.
Moreover, the Risk Appetite framework and major risk appetite limits
are subject to review by the RMCC and the Board on an annual basis.

The most important types of risk are credit risk, liquidity risk, market
risk, operational risk and insurance risk. Market risk includes currency
risk, interest rate risk and other price risks.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments

The Group accepts deposits from customers at both fixed and floating
rates, and for various periods, and seeks to earn positive interest
margins by investing and lending these funds in a wide range of assets.
The Group seeks to increase these margins by consolidating short-term
funds and lending for longer periods at higher rates, while maintaining
sufficient liquidity to meet all claims that might fall due.

The Group also seeks to apply its interest margins through its lending
to corporate and retail borrowers and to charge customers appropriate
fees and commission, taking into consideration credit risk and market
conditions. Such exposures involve not just on-balance sheet loans
and advances, as the Group also enters into guarantees and other
commitments such as letters of credit, performance bonds and other
bonds.

The Group also trades in financial instruments where it takes positions
in exchange-traded and over-the-counter (“OTC”) instruments, including
derivatives, to take advantage of short-term market movements in
equities and bonds and in currencies and interest rates. The Board
places trading limits on the level of exposures that can be taken in
relation to market positions. Apart from specific hedging arrangements,
foreign exchange and interest rate exposures are normally offset by
entering into counterbalancing positions (including transactions with
customers or market counterparties), or by the use of derivatives,
thereby controlling the variability in the net cash amounts required to
liquidate market positions.

The Group also uses interest rate swap and other interest rate
derivatives to mitigate interest rate risk arising from changes in interest
rates that will result in decrease in the fair value of fixed rate assets or
increase in the fair value of fixed rate liabilities. Part of these financial
instruments are designated as fair value hedges, and the terms of
hedge including hedged item, amount, interest rates, hedge period
and purpose are determined and documented at the inception of each
fair value hedge. Hedge effectiveness is assessed at inception on a
prospective basis and is reassessed, on an ongoing basis, based on
actual experience and valuation. Fair value hedge relationships that do
not meet the effectiveness test requirement of hedge accounting are
discontinued with effect from the date of ineffectiveness of the fair value
hedge.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

3.1.1 Derivatives held for risk management and hedge
accounting

Fair value hedges of interest rate risk

The Group uses interest rate swaps to hedge its exposure to changes
in the fair values of fixed-rate issued liabilities and fixed-rate debt
securities held in respect of a benchmark interest rate (mainly LIBOR
and HIBOR). Pay-floating/receive-fixed interest rate swaps are matched
to specific issuances of fixed-rate liabilities or pay-fixed/receive-floating
interest rate swaps are matched to fixed-rate debt securities held with
terms that closely align with the critical terms of the hedged item.

Only the interest rate risk element is hedged and therefore other risks,
such as credit risk, are managed but not hedged by the Group. Interest
rate risk to which the Group applies hedge accounting arises from
fixed-rate issued liabilities and fixed-rate debt securities held, whose
fair value fluctuates when benchmark interest rates change. The Group
hedges interest rate risk only to the extent of benchmark interest rates
because the changes in fair value of an issued liability or a debt security
are significantly influenced by changes in the benchmark interest rate.
Hedge accounting is applied where economic hedge relationships meet
the hedge accounting criteria.

Before fair value hedge accounting is applied by the Group, the Group
determines whether an economic relationship between the hedged
item and the hedging instrument exists based on an evaluation of the
qualitative characteristics of these items and the hedged risk that is
supported by quantitative analysis. The Group considers whether the
critical terms of the hedged item and hedging instrument closely align
when assessing the presence of an economic relationship. The Group
evaluates whether the fair value of the hedged item and the hedging
instrument respond similarly to similar risks.
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3.

3.1

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

3.1.1 Derivatives held for risk management and hedge

accounting (Continued)

Fair value hedges of interest rate risk (Continued)

The Group establishes a hedge ratio by aligning the par amount of the

fixed-rate debt security or issued liabilities and the notional amount of

the interest rate swap designated as a hedging instrument. Possible

sources of ineffectiveness are as follows:

(iii)

(iv)

changes in market liquidity and bid-ask spread of the debt
securities;

the fair value changes related to the benchmark rate before next
fixing date and on the fixed spread over the benchmark rate of
the interest rate swap;

changes in interest rate sensitivity at different fair value level;

the effect of the counterparty and the Group’s own credit risk on
the fair value of the interest rate swap, which is not reflected in
the fair value of the hedged item attributable to the change in
interest rate; and

differences in maturities of the interest rate swap and the debt
securities held or the certificates of deposit issued.
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3. H¥ERERm@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 ERAEBMIARE@m 3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)
311 BFERBEERH METEEZIHTET 3.1.1 Derivatives held for risk management and hedge
A accounting (Continued)
FIR @2 D FEE @) Fair value hedges of interest rate risk (Continued)
B RRE T 5 R =i B ) 2 @ b A B The Group held the following interest rate swaps as hedging
ZERTH - instruments in fair value hedges of interest risk.
ZHH
2021%12H31H 31 December 2021 Maturity
18R 1EE 5k

Less than Z5%F  More than
B8 B — F = E Risk category — interest rate risk 1year 1-5years 5 years
HHEITZAE-TTRE Hedge of issued liabilities — certificates of

deposit
m{E Nominal amount 6,111,217 389,833 —
19 ] E A 2 Average fixed interest rate 0.41% 0.74% -
HihEIT 2 BE—IAEER Hedge of issued liabilities — subordinated
notes
H{E Nominal amount - 4,093,241 -
9 ] E F = Average fixed interest rate - 3.86% -
HHBET BE—BE Hedge of issued liabilities — borrowing
A& Nominal amount - - -
9 ] E A 2 Average fixed interest rate - - =
b A 2 AR EFEAEEE) Hedge of debt securities held at fair value
AT AEMEE W EMNESES through other comprehensive income
H{E Nominal amount 5,257,227 11,811,126 7,826,437
9 ] E F = Average fixed interest rate 3.76% 3.60% 3.41%
$PR R R 2 AR ARSI BREY Hedge of debt securities held at
B 5 amortised cost

H{E Nominal amount 95,119 7,520,434 6,302,929
5 [E R = Average fixed interest rate 4.63% 3.20% 3.38%
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3. HEREKREEm 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
31 EAEMIARM@m 3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)
311 BFERBEERH METEEZIHTET 3.1.1. Derivatives held for risk management and hedge
A accounting (Continued)
FIR @2 D FEE @) Fair value hedges of interest rate risk (Continued)
FHRH
202012 H31H 31 December 2020 Maturity
1E AR 1A E 5L E

Less than Z54F More than
B 8 Rl — ) = [ Risk category — interest rate risk 1 year 1-5 years 5 years
HHEITZARE-TFRE Hedge of issued liabilities — certificates of

deposit
HE Nominal amount 1,456,811 100,000 -
19 ] E A 2 Average fixed interest rate 1.13% 2.55% -
HihET . BE—IAEER Hedge of issued liabilities — subordinated
notes

H{E Nominal amount 1,937,913 1,744,121 -
5 ] E F = Average fixed interest rate 4.25% 5.00% =
HHETCBE—BE Hedge of issued liabilities — borrowing
HE Nominal amount 813,923 - -
9 ] E A 2 Average fixed interest rate 3.25% - -

A 2 AN EFEAEEE) Hedge of debt securities held at fair value

AT AE A2 E W A E RS E through other comprehensive income
H1E Nominal amount 1,826,676 13,395,237 7,719,326
S ] E F = Average fixed interest rate 4.34% 3.84% 3.54%

$PR R R 2 AR ARSI BREY Hedge of debt securities held

BERES at amortised cost
HE Nominal amount - 5,950,602 7,040,029
5 [E R =K Average fixed interest rate - 3.28% 3.32%
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

3.1.1. Derivatives held for risk management and hedge
accounting (Continued)

Fair value hedges

The amounts relating to items designated as hedged items were as

follows:
2021
REEBHBRIRAE
FLARHRUERER
BRGtE20215 2EAHHER 2 ATE
BRENRARER iR HHREAELHE
ZHWERZDTE m¥EE  Accumulated amount
i 2 e ZATERE of fair value hedge
Accumulated amountof  gigurn £ a2 Change in value adjustments remaining
fair value hedge adjustments 55 558R subjectto hedge i the statement of
on the hedged item included | jne item in the used for calculating  financial position for
RAE in the carrying amount  statement of financial hedge ineffectiveness any hedged items
Carrying amount of the hedged item position in which for 2021 that have ceased to be
& af EE &f  the hedged itemis #(F)  adjusted for hedging
Assets  Liabilities Assets Liabilities included Note (a) gains and losses
FiE - 6489717 - (11,333) BEAHFIE 12,553 -
Certificates of deposit Certificates of deposit
issued
{&I6EH - 4128446 - 35205 {&EEE 100,222 -
Subordinated notes Subordinated notes
i - - - - BOER 4,797 -
Borrowing Deposits from banks
BEZIATENEALSHHA 25,986,544 - 656,142 - DATErEAHZ (958,589) -
At 2 AR ERES AR 2 ERH)
Debt securities held at fair value SHEE
through other comprehensive Financial assets at
income fair value through
other comprehensive
income
FRNERIATRNERES 14,134,481 - 216,000 - ARSI (630,866) -
Debt securities held at SREE
amortised cost Financial assets at
amortised cost
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

3.1.1. Derivatives held for risk management and hedge
accounting (Continued)

Fair value hedges (Continued)

The amounts relating to items designated as hedged items were as
follows: (Continued)

2020
RAEAHRAZAR
[RIEARE R R
IEAEAEE 2 AT E
BEEHMRR RAEE s ZiEEnLE
ZHRBRZDTE FiGTE20208  Accumulated amount
Y RRAR LR )P S of fair value hedge
Accumulated amount of mENPEL  adjustments remaining
fair vale hedge adiustments iy % pan & ZDFEZH  inthestatementof
onthe hedged item included 437 72 Changeinvalue financial position for
REE in the carying amount | ing item in the subjectto hedge  any hedged items that
Carrying amount of the hedged item statement of financial used for calculating have ceased to be
BE af BE BfE  position in which the hedge ineffectiveness  adjusted for hedging
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities hedged item is included for 2020 gains and losses
FiE - 1561,697 - 4886 EEfTHFNE (10,964) -
Certificates of deposit Certificates of deposit
issued
&% - 3828458 - 14424 (BEER (87,559) -
Subordinated notes Subordinated notes
fBE - 818,715 - 47%  BITRER 4,354 -
Borrowing Deposits from banks
BEJHNATESEEEETHA 24497271 - 1442337 - NATEHEREE 906,548 -
At 2 AR ERES AR 2 E YR
Debt securities held at fair value SRAE
through other comprehensive Financial assets at
income fair value through
other comprehensive
income
BRZNESHATIRNERES 13812919 - 822,268 - ARSI 328,174 -
Debt securities held at EREE
amortised cost Financial assets at

amortised cost
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3. BXEREE®
3.1 ERSRMTIARE@®

3.1.1 E/’ﬁ/ﬁlﬂﬁ%‘ﬂi&ﬁ?‘#gﬁﬁiEZﬁfﬁéI
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DFEE (3

BREEREFATIAZIER REHRRB 2 ©E
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

3.1.1. Derivatives held for risk management and hedge
accounting (Continued)

Fair value hedges (Continued)

The amounts relating to items designated as hedging instruments and
hedge ineffectiveness were as follows:

2021
RiitE
WAFHREN
ZATERS
BEMRRRAEE Change in fair BRR
WA 2R valueusedfor  WEBZ AN
Line item in the calculating hedge Ineffectiveness
L statement of financial ineffectiveness recognisedin  WEHEAEE
if Carrying amount position where the for 2021 profitiloss) ¥} %Mz ER
Norminal BE B  hedging instrument s () () Lineitem in profit or loss that
amount Assets Liabilities ~ included Note (a) Note () includes hedge ineffectiveness
kLGS

Interest rate risk

HEES- MR 6,501,050 5 11,765 fiEe@IA (12,720) (167) BATESRNEBSRTA LR

Interest rate swaps - Derivatives financial &/ (E8)
hedge of certificates instruments Net gain/(loss) arising from financial
of deposit instruments subject to fair value

hedge

FlkRE-Hink RS 4,093,241 56,051 2,007 (iEERIA (100,376) (154) BATESHNIEBSHIAZHN

Interest rate swaps - hedge of Derivaives financial &/ (F8)
subordinated notes instruments Net gain/(loss) arising from financial

instruments subject to fair value
hedge

FIEES- A E - - - fEERIA (4,726) M RATEHMERERIE RN

Interest rate swaps - Derivatives financial &/ (E8)
hedge of borrowing instruments Net gain/(loss) arising from financial

instruments subject to fair value
hedge

FiERS - HisE 2 24,964,700 45,289 01408 (7EERIA 951,568 (7.021) BATEHMOEBERIALRN
NTEHEAEZHHA Derivatives financial &/ (E8)

At EEREN ERES instruments Net gain/(loss) arising from financial

Interest rate swaps - instruments subject to fair value
hedge of debt securities held hedge
at fair value through other
comprehensive income

flRd - W 20l 13,918,482 159,256 a5\ (TEERTA 630,827 (39) BATEHHEBEHTA R
RERATIENERES Derivatives financial &/ (E8)

Interest rate swaps - instruments Net gain/(loss) arising from financial
hedge of debt securities held instruments subject to fair value
at amortised cost hedge

it Note:

(F) ERERANERNZARFEITEAREE - 5
WEPIHERFANEBEZESH R EHE ZEHT
AENATEEGRERIEZR -

(a) The amount of hedge ineffectiveness recognised in profit/(loss) for each
category of fair value hedges is the difference between the change in
value of the hedged item subject to hedge in the current year and the
change in fair value of the corresponding hedging instrument in the current
year.
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3. HEREKREEm 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
31 ERAEMIAR@m 3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)
311 BFERBEERH METEEZIHTET 3.1.1. Derivatives held for risk management and hedge
p=1¢ J; accounting (Continued)
ATFEE (@) Fair value hedges (Continued)
BRAEEREMIAZIER REHRRM 2 & A The amounts relating to items designated as hedging instruments and
™ ® hedge ineffectiveness were as follows: (Continued)
2020
BRtE
FBRARRES N20FHHRA
HhTAZER ZATEES
Line item in the Change in fair N
E@ﬁ statement of financia vaeusedfor  WEEZHREN WaEENE:
iz Carying amount position where the calculating hedge Ingffectiveness k2R
Nomninal 13 8%  hedging instrument s ineffectiveness recognisedin  Line item in profit or loss that includes
amount Assets Liabilities  included for 2020 profit/(loss)  hedge ineffectiveness
flEER
Interest rate risk
HRigs - HirgaE 1,556,811 4,689 - fi4SRIA 9,674 (1,203) RATENRNAEERTELRN
Interest rate swaps - Derivatives financial &/ (E8)
hedge of certificates of instruments Net gain/(loss) arising from financial
deposit instruments subject to fair value
hedge
xRS R B 3,682,034 146,314 - fi4SRIA 88,423 870 AATEHRIAEERTAZRY
Interest rate swaps - Derivatives financial &/ (E8)
hedge of subordinated instruments Net gain/(loss) arising from financial
notes instruments subject to fair value
hedge
FESEER T 813,923 4720 - fi4SRIA (4,266) 8 AATEHMEECRIEZRY
Interest rate swaps - Derivatives financial &/ (E8)
hedge of borrowing instruments Net gain/(loss) arising from financial
instruments subject to fair value
hedge
k=8 — Sken U 22,041,239 940 1436209 fTEEBIA (904,718) 1830 BATEHRORELRBTIAZIFN
AHEFERESTHA Derivatives financial i/ (El)
A2 ElEhEEES instruments Net gain/(oss) arising from financial
Interest rate swaps - instruments subject to fair value
hedge of debt securiies hedge
held at fair value through
other comprehensive income
FRigE - A2 12,990,631 33,168 855300 fTERRIE (328,774) (600) RATEHAEESRIA L FH
BoR AT AT RS Derivatives financial &/ (E58)
Interest rate swaps - instruments Net gain/(loss) arising from financial
hedge of debt securities instruments subject to fair value
held at amortised cost hedge
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk

The Group’s main credit risk is that borrowers or counterparties
may default on their payment obligations due to the Group. These
obligations arise from the Group’s lending and investment activities,
and trading of financial instruments (including derivatives).

The Group has a Group Credit Committee (“GCC”) for approving major
credit exposures. The Credit Management Committee (“CMC”) and the
Treasury & Investment Risk Committee (“TIRC”) are the committees
responsible for credit policy formulation and portfolio monitoring of
the loan and treasury businesses respectively. These committees
have been chaired by the Chief Executive or Chief Risk Officer with
certain Executive Directors and senior business and credit officers
as members. Credit risk measurement, underwriting, approval and
monitoring requirements are detailed in credit policies.

The Group manages all types of credit risk on a prudent basis. Credits
are extended within the parameters set out in the credit policies and are
approved by different levels of management based upon established
guidelines and delegated authorities. Credit exposures, limits and asset
quality are regularly monitored and controlled by management, credit
committees and GRD. The Group’s internal auditors also conduct
regular reviews and audits to ensure compliance with credit policies
and procedures, and regulatory guidelines.

The Group has established policies and processes for the approval and
review of new products and activities, and credit policies with details of
the loan grading, or credit scoring, processes and impairment policies.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.1 Credit risk measurement

Credit risk grading

The Group uses internal credit risk grading that reflects the credit
quality of the borrowers. The Group uses internal credit grading
scorecards tailored to the various categories of counterparty. The credit
grading scorecards take into consideration borrower and loan specific
information collected at the time of application (such as disposable
income, and level of collateral for retail exposures; and financial
indicators and qualitative indicators for corporate exposures). For retalil
exposures, this is supplemented with internal data such as delinquency
status and external data such as credit bureau scoring information
on individual borrowers. In addition, the scorecards enable expert
judgement from the credit risk officer to determine the final internal
credit grade for each exposure. This allows for considerations which
may not be captured as part of the other inputs into the scorecards.

The following are additional considerations for each type of portfolio
held by the Group:

Retail

After the date of initial recognition, for personal unsecured lending of
retail business, the likelihood of default is monitored on a periodic basis
by behavioural score. This score is mapped to a Probability of Default
(‘PD").

Corporate

For corporate business, the credit grade is determined at the borrower
level. A relationship manager will incorporate any updated or new
information/credit assessments into the credit grading scorecard on an
ongoing basis. In addition, the relationship manager will also update
information about the creditworthiness of the borrower every year from
sources such as financial statements. This will determine the updated
internal credit grading.

Using the internal observed default rate supplemented with external
default data, and by applying statistical methods, PD master scales are
calibrated to arrive at the PD for each credit grade.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.1 Credit risk measurement (Continued)
Credit risk grading (Continued)

Treasury

For debt securities and interbank exposures under the Treasury
portfolio, external rating agency credit grades are used. These
published grades are continuously monitored and updated. The PDs
associated with each grade are determined based on default rates
published by the rating agencies.

3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement

HKFRS 9 outlines a “three-stage” model for impairment based on
changes in credit quality since initial recognition as summarised below:

o A financial instrument that is not credit-impaired on initial
recognition is classified in “Stage 1” and has its credit risk
continuously monitored by the Group.

J If a significant increase in credit risk (“SICR”) since initial
recognition is identified, the financial instrument is moved to
“Stage 2” but is not yet deemed to be credit-impaired.

3 If the financial instrument is credit-impaired, the financial
instrument is then moved to “Stage 3”.

. Financial instruments in Stage 1 have their ECL measured at an
amount equal to the portion of lifetime expected credit losses that
result from default events possible within the next 12 months.
Instruments in Stages 2 or 3 have their ECL measured based on
expected credit losses on a lifetime basis.

. A pervasive concept in measuring ECL in accordance with
HKFRS 9 is that it should consider forward-looking information.

U Purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets are those
financial assets that are credit impaired on initial recognition.
Their ECL is always measured on a lifetime basis (Stage 3).
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MERBEERE@® 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

The following diagram summarises the impairment requirements under

E(BATREZEERESREERIN) HKFRS 9 (other than purchased or originated credit-impaired financial
assets):
BIRERE2EEEREE
Change in credit quality since initial recognition
< >
B ER 1 PEER 2 BEER 3
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
(VAR (EERMR B TR E RIS IN) (EEREEE)
(Initial recognition) (Significant increase in credit risk (Credit-impaired assets)

since initial recognition)

12 A A BpFTEBA(E B e 1R 2 HEMEEER > HEHEEEE
12-month expected credit losses Lifetime expected credit losses Lifetime expected credit losses
7N = B 5h 2 Bl 3R TE B AN 2 B e AN ER 5% i it 20 The key judgements and assumptions adopted by the Group in
T addressing the requirements of the standard are discussed below:

3221 S ERER ARIRIE N

3.2.2.1 Significant increase in credit risk

ERAUTN—IESZIEERRAEBRAES R T The Group considers a financial instrument to have experienced a
B BINMEERMAEIEN : SICR when one or more of the following criteria have been met:

EFEAME - EINMEEFRHREXN
THEE - AIRECHIEBEIRRERG
FBERRARRIERERFIZEH TE—R

. PERMEAME @ EREEFRLRE
g REBEEVGREEFTHR  R—EERRZ
]

«  EB#MAZ((EMAR)EE30X

. HOREATE EERADSRAIEER
=5 |

C EERACKEECREER([BEELE
BNZERAE2RREHEE - DBZE
RRTETHRETR A Z BE R R AARIR 5
HFZELFRENE -

when there is significant adverse external credit rating transition
for the bond portfolio, migrating from investment grade to non-
investment grade, or one notch downgrade for bond with original
non-investment grade at purchase

when there is internal credit rating transition, ranging from one
notch to five notches depending on its initial credit rating, for
corporate portfolio

when the day past due (“DPD”) exceeds 30 days

when the borrower is reported as “Early Warning” for corporate
portfolio

when the borrower is reported as Special Mention according
to the loan classification of the Hong Kong Monetary Authority
(“HKMA”). The decision to classify the loans is based on
the borrower’s repayment ability and likelihood of individual
counterparties defaulting.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)
3.2.2.1 Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

The assessment of SICR is performed on a monthly basis at a portfolio
level for all retail financial instruments held by the Group. In relation to
corporate financial instruments, where an Early Warning list is used to
monitor credit risk, this assessment is performed at the counterparty
level and on a monthly basis. The criteria used to identify SICR are
revised as when appropriate by the respective credit departments of the
portfolios.

The Group has not used the low credit risk exemption for any financial
instruments in the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

3.2.2.2 Definition of default and credit-impaired assets

The Group defines a financial instrument as in default, which is aligned
with the definition of credit impaired (referred to as “Stage 3 financial
assets”), when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following
observable data:

. significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

J a breach of contract such as a default or past due event;

o the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Group on terms that
the Group would not consider otherwise;

3 the borrower is bankrupt;

o it is reported as substandard, doubtful or loss according to the
loan classification of the HKMA. The decision to classify the loans
is based on the borrower’s repayment ability and likelihood of
individual counterparties defaulting; and

. the disappearance of an active market for a security because of
financial difficulties.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)
3.2.2.2 Definition of default and credit-impaired assets (Continued)

A loan that has been renegotiated due to deterioration in the borrower’s
condition is usually considered to be credit-impaired unless there
is evidence that the risk of not receiving contractual cash flows has
reduced significantly and there are no other indicators of impairment. In
addition, a retail loan that is overdue for 90 days or more is considered
credit-impaired.

3.2.2.3 Measuring ECL — Explanation of inputs, assumptions and
estimation techniques

The ECL is measured on either a 12-month (“12M”) or Lifetime basis
depending on whether a SICR has occurred since initial recognition or
whether an asset is considered to be credit-impaired. Expected credit
losses are the discounted product of the PD, exposures at default
(“EAD”), and loss given default (“LGD”), defined as follows:

J The PD represents the likelihood of a borrower defaulting on
its financial obligation (as per “Definition of default and credit-
impaired” above), either over the next 12 months (“12M PD”), or
over the remaining lifetime (“Lifetime PD”) of the obligation.

o EAD is based on the amounts the Group expects to be owed
at the time of default, over the next 12 months (“12M EAD”) or
over the remaining lifetime (“Lifetime EAD”). For example, for
a revolving commitment, the Group includes the current drawn
balance plus any further amount that is expected to be drawn
up to the current contractual limit by the time of default, should it
occur.

o LGD represents the Group’s expectation of the extent of loss
on a defaulted exposure. LGD varies by type of counterparty,
type and seniority of claim and availability of collateral or other
credit support. LGD is expressed as a percentage loss per unit of
exposure at the time of default. LGD is calculated on a 12-month
or lifetime basis, where 12-month LGD is the percentage of loss
expected to be made if the default occurs in the next 12 months
and Lifetime LGD is the percentage of loss expected to be made
if the default occurs over the remaining expected lifetime of the
loan.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3.2.2.3 Measuring ECL — Explanation of inputs, assumptions and
estimation techniques (Continued)

The ECL is determined by projecting the PD, LGD and EAD for each
future month and for each individual exposure. These three components
are multiplied together and adjusted for the likelihood of survival (i.e.
the exposure has not prepaid or defaulted in an earlier month). This
effectively calculates an ECL for each future month, which is then
discounted back to the reporting date and summed. The discount rate
used in the ECL calculation is the original effective interest rate or an
approximation thereof.

The Lifetime PD is developed by applying a maturity profile to the
current 12M PD. The maturity profile looks at how defaults develop on
a portfolio from the point of initial recognition throughout the lifetime of
the loans. The maturity profile is based on historical observed data and is
assumed to be the same across all assets within a portfolio and credit
grade band. This is supported by historical analysis.

The 12-month and lifetime EADs are determined based on the expected
payment profile, which varies by product type.

o For amortising products and bullet repayment loans, this is
based on the contractual repayments owed by the borrower over
a 12-month or lifetime basis. This will also be adjusted for any
expected overpayments made by a borrower. Early repayment/
refinance assumptions are also incorporated into the calculation.

o For non-revolving products, the exposure at default is predicted
by taking current drawn balance and adding a “credit conversion
factor” which allows for the expected drawdown of the remaining
limit by the time of default.

. For revolving products, the EAD is estimated by taking the
maximum between the on-balance sheet exposure and the
estimated utilized amount at default based on utilisation rate.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3.2.2.3 Measuring ECL - Explanation of inputs, assumptions and
estimation techniques (Continued)

The 12-month and lifetime LGDs are determined based on the factors
which impact the recoveries made post default. These include collateral
type and projected collateral values, historical discounts to market/book
values due to forced sales, time to repossession and recovery costs
observed.

Forward-looking economic information is also included in determining
the 12-month and lifetime PD, EAD and LGD. Refer to Note 3.2.2.4 for
an explanation of forward-looking information and its inclusion in ECL
calculations.

The assumptions underlying the ECL calculation, such as how the
maturity profile of the PDs and how collateral values change etc., are
regularly monitored and reviewed.

3.2.2.4 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models

The assessment of SICR and the calculation of ECL both incorporate
forward-looking information. The Group has performed historical
analysis and identified the key economic variables impacting credit risk
and expected credit losses for each portfolio.

These economic variables and their associated impact on the PD, EAD
and LGD vary by financial instrument. Expert judgement has also been
applied in this process. Forecasts of these economic variables (the
“base economic scenario”) are provided by some economic research
institutions and the in-house economic research team on a regular
basis and provide the best estimate view of the economy over the next
five years. For the economic variables out of the forecasting periods (i.e.
after the next five years), the point-in-time default risk level at the last
forecasting period is referenced to estimate the lifetime default risk level
of each instrument. The impact of these economic variables on the PD,
EAD and LGD has been determined by performing statistical regression
analysis to understand the impact changes in these variables have had
historically on default rates and loss rates.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3.2.2.4 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models
(Continued)

The assessment of SICR is performed by considering either the change
in credit quality, expert credit judgement and backstop indicator. This
determines whether the whole financial instrument is in Stage 1, Stage
2, or Stage 3 and hence whether 12-month or lifetime ECL should be
recorded. Following this assessment, the Group measures ECL as
either a probability weighted 12-month ECL (Stage 1), or a probability
weighted lifetime ECL (Stages 2 and 3). These probability-weighted
ECLs are determined by running each scenario through the relevant
ECL model and multiplying it by the appropriate scenario weighting.

ECL Model Enhancement

In 2020, the COVID-19 pandemic had led to rapid deterioration in
business conditions and unprecedented economic uncertainty. Similar
to other industry practitioners in Hong Kong, highly uncertain and
volatile macroeconomic environment under COVID-19 significantly
affected the performance of ECL models due to their unprecedented
nature, leading to overly sensitive ECL estimates under these extreme
conditions. To properly reflect asset quality of the credit portfolios
under macroeconomic situations and to recognise the effects of various
government relief measures in a forward-looking manner, the Group
had conducted portfolio reviews and performed scenario analysis to
come up with credit expert judgement on top of the ECL model outputs
in the assessment of ECL for 2020.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3.2.2.4 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models
(Continued)

ECL Model Enhancement (Continued)

While the COVID-19 pandemic still lingered during 2021, the drastic
volatilities in macroeconomic parameters observed in 2020 and in turn
the impact on ECL models had been much reduced. Nevertheless, in
order to strengthen the resilience of the Group’s ECL quantification
framework, the Group had conducted an ECL model review exercise
in 2021, taking into account the observations noted in 2020 to further
fortify model performance. Certain enhancements were made to the
ECL models which included:

1. Refining the parameters used in the PD models for the HK
corporate banking portfolio and the treasury and global markets
portfolio to better reflect the relationship between credit quality
and macroeconomic conditions;

2. Refining the framework for macroeconomic scenario setting
and the mechanism to determine probability weightings under
the various scenarios in order to better reflect uncertainties in
economic outlook against current macroeconomic conditions.

These model enhancements had been incorporated in the ECL
assessment for end-December 2021 positions.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3.2.2.4 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models
(Continued)

Management judgements and overlay

Notwithstanding the enhancements in ECL quantification models, the
Group closely monitored market developments to assess adequacy
of provision against ECL model outputs in a forward-looking manner.
Considering the market concerns on the credit deterioration of certain
PRC property developers as well as the outbreak of the 5th wave of
the COVID-19 pandemic in Hong Kong, which led to another round of
social distancing and restrictive measures, portfolio reviews had been
conducted on the relevant segments/borrowers. As a result, additional
provision overlay amounting to 0.16% of the HK corporate banking
portfolio on top of the ECL model outputs was made taking into account
anticipated credit downgrade of certain borrowers as well as the
potential credit deterioration of certain borrowers highly impacted by the
COVID-19 pandemic.

EEERAE
IEREEERR
WEZL
Management
Adjustment as
a percentage
of outstanding

7"2021512H31H As at 31 December 2021 balance
BAMERITAS HK Corporate Banking Portfolio 0.16%
AERTERITAEA HK Retail Banking Portfolio -

BAMERIREMSERBAS

ERE A 2 ER - RNEEERET FRATER
B EREEERRE @RS ME -

HK Treasury and Global Markets Portfolio =

The exercise of management judgement and the application of overlay
on top of model outputs had been reviewed and approved by the CMC.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3.2.2.4 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models
(Continued)

Economic variable assumptions

The Group relies on a broad range of forward-looking economic
indicators as model inputs, such as the forecasts of macroeconomic
factors (“MEFs”) such as property price indices, GDP growth rates,
unemployment rates, and interest rates. The selection of MEFs had
gone through stringent statistical data tests commonly adopted by the
industry as well as expert judgements to ensure that MEFs used in
the ECL models are relevant to and reflective of the risk profile of the
Group’s credit portfolios while satisfying required quantitative standards.
The scenarios “base”, “good” and “bad” were determined based on the
underlying assumptions described in the below table. In particular, the
“base” scenario makes reference to a set of macroeconomic forecasts
obtained from different economic research institutions and the Group’s
economist. “Good” and “bad” scenarios were developed by referencing
the MEFs in the “base” scenario, with appropriate adjustment to the
upside and the downside potential variations taking into account
the uncertainties in the forward-looking economic environments.
The magnitude of adjustment were quantified based on historical
movements of the MEFs observed through a long span of observed
data covering peaks and troughs of past economic cycles.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3.2.2.4 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models

(Continued)

Economic variable assumptions (Continued)

Scenario

Underlying assumptions of the scenario

Base Forward-looking macroeconomic factors are a key

component of the macroeconomic outlook. The base

scenario is based on a set of macroeconomic forecasts

which formulate a “base case” view of the most probable

future direction of relevant economic variables.

Good

This scenario is determined by making reference to the

“base” scenario and reflects positive uncertainties by

incorporating upside variations to the “base” scenario

macroeconomic forecasts.

Bad This scenario is determined by making reference to the

“base” scenario and reflects negative uncertainties by

incorporating downside variations to the “base” scenario

macroeconomic forecasts.

Members of the CMC as well as department heads of risk units put

forth their most holistic view on the likelihood of occurrence, enabling

the Group to generate forecasts of economic factors and the forward-

looking PD and LGD. To have further professional review and

reasonableness checking, the Group’s economist provided his overall

view on whether the collective forecasted outcome is generally in line

with his expectation. As a stringent measure, the summarized outcomes

will be submitted to the CMC for final approval. These forward-looking

PD and LGD are then used as input parameters in the expected credit

loss model.
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3. HEERBERE@ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 =ERR@ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

322 HAIEEEEE @) 3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3224 MATEHIE BB BER 2 ATl E R @) 3.2.2.4 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models

(Continued)

AR EEE 2 RE (E) Economic variable assumptions (Continued)
RREFTTEEEESE 2 ERARBEINTAT Significant period-end assumptions used for the ECL estimate are set
out as below.
SEHRIE L9
Average of 1EHATE
5-Year One-Year
A20215F12A31H As at 31 December 2021 Forward-Looking Forward-Looking
BAR A ERERRE Hong Kong GDP Growth Rate (%) i Base 2.0% 2.3%
(BAL) Rif Good 7.6% 7.9%
R Bad -3.6% -3.3%
BBEEME Hong Kong Residential Property i Base 5.5% 7.4%
BIREHES (L) Price Index Change (%) Rif Good 28.8% 30.6%
TR Bad -17.7% -15.8%
BRRER(BHLL) Hong Kong Unemployment Ep Base 3.1% 3.9%*
Rate (%) Rt Good 2.3% 2.3%*
TR Bad 5.4% 6.2%*
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3. BXEREE®

3.2 EERMEm@m)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

322 HAIEEEEE ) 3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)
3224 MATEHIE BB BER 2 ATl E R @) 3.2.2.4 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models

(Continued)

AR EEE 2 RE (E) Economic variable assumptions (Continued)
5EHARIIE T

Average of 1 HARTHE
5-Year One-Year
2020512 H31H As at 31 December 2020 Forward-Looking ~ Forward-Looking
BRI AEEBELERE Hong Kong GDP Growth Rate (%) it Base 2.8% 4.8%
(BAL) Rif Good 2.9% 4.8%
R Bad 1.3% -5.9%
BBEEDE Hong Kong Residential Property Hi Base 5.8% 5.6%
EffEg2s(5ot) Price Index Change (%) RAf Good 12.1% 11.1%
TR Bad -15.5% -32.5%
BAREXR(AAL) Hong Kong Unemployment A Base 4.0% 5.2%*
Rate (%) RiF Good 3.1% 3.1%*
R Bad 6.0% 5.9%*

* Z 1 FHATIE MR R R KA F B 2 FERIF A * These one-year forward-looking rates represent forecast average rates for

S one year.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3.2.2.4 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models
(Continued)

Economic variable assumptions (Continued)
The average weightings assigned to each economic scenario, “base”,

“good” and “bad” are as follows:

31 December 31 December

2021 2020
po Base 66% 70%
Ry Good 12% 10%
TR Bad 22% 20%

BB RRIAR M5 A S5 2 H AR b
ZEAE(PIMEARE  OEABAED LY
B ERRBEEAYE - RLBRRSRENE
MR EAEE AR R EELBR R BN
A -

Other forward-looking considerations not otherwise incorporated within
the above scenarios, such as the impact of any regulatory, legislative
or political changes, have also been considered, but are not deemed
to have a material impact and therefore no adjustment has been
made to the ECL for such factors. This is reviewed and monitored for
appropriateness on a quarterly basis.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3.2.2.4 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models

(Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The most significant assumptions affecting the ECL allowance are as

follows:

(i) Unemployment rates, given its impact on secured and unsecured
borrowers’ ability to meet their contractual repayments;

(i) GDP growth rates, given the significant impact on companies’
performance and collateral valuations; and

(i)  Property price indexes, given the significant impact it has on
mortgage collateral valuations.

Set out below are the changes to the ECL that would result from
reasonably possible changes in these parameters from the actual
assumptions used in the Group’s economic variable assumptions:

=€ Retail
EREESFENEE
ECL Impact
2021 2020
RER Unemployment rates +1% 34,658 20,294
-1% -9,092 -5,569
EEBEERE GDP growth rates +0.5% -5,772 -2,408
-0.5% 5,890 2,453
Y (BB TEE Property price indices +5% -1,004 -624
-5% 7,061 4,571
e Corporate
EREESFENEE
ECL Impact
2021 2020
RER Unemployment rates +1% 31,412 17,187
-1% -27,843 -9,890
EEBEERE GDP growth rates +0.5% -6,485 -11,753
-0.5% 6,763 12,804
Y (B TEE Property price indices +5% -3,804 -15,880
-5% 8,834 22,255
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.3 Risk limit control and mitigation policies

The Group has an established framework to manage and control
concentration risk with respect to individual borrower or counterparty
group, industry or country. Exposure limits by borrower or counterparty
group, industry or country are in place and their exposures are
monitored and reported to credit committees regularly.

The large exposure limits to borrower or counterparty groups are capital
based while the limits for industry are relative to the size of the overall
credit portfolio and bounded by regulatory limit. Country limits are also
set up with reference to the sovereign credit rating from international
credit rating agencies. All these limits aim to achieve a more balanced
portfolio.

To mitigate credit risk and where appropriate, the Group will obtain
collateral to support the credit facility granted. To control credit risk
exposure to counterparty arising from derivative positions, the Group
limits its derivative dealings with approved financial institutions, and uses
established market practices on credit support and collateral settlement
to reduce credit risk exposure to derivative counterparties. Overall
credit risk limit for individual financial institution counterparty, including
valuation limit for derivatives, is approved by the GCC with reference to
the financial strength and credit rating of individual counterparty. The
acceptable types of collateral and their characteristics are established
within the credit policies, as are the respective margins of finance.
Enforceable legal documentation establishes the Group’s direct,
irrevocable and unconditional recourse to any collateral, security or
other credit enhancements provided.

In relation to lending commitments that are unconditionally cancellable
without prior notice, the Group would assess the necessity to
withdraw the credit line in cases where the credit quality of a borrower
deteriorates. Accordingly, these commitments do not expose the Group
to significant credit risk.

Irrespective of whether collateral is taken, all credit decisions are based
upon the customer’s or counterparty’s credit profile, cashflow position
and ability to repay.
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323

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Risk limit control and mitigation policies (Continued)
(a) Loans and advances

The Group has guidelines on the acceptability of specific classes
of collateral for securing loans and advances. The principal
collateral types are:

o Mortgages over properties;

o Charges over business assets such as premises and
accounts receivable;

. Charges over financial instruments such as debt securities
and equities;

. Charges over deposits; and

U Charges over shares.

In addition, in order to minimise credit loss, the Group will, where
possible, seek additional collateral from the borrower as soon as
impairment indicators are noticed on relevant individual loans and
advances.

(b) Debt securities

Debt securities and treasury bills are generally unsecured, with
the exception of asset-backed securities and similar instruments,
which are secured by portfolios of financial instruments or
underlying assets.
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3. HMEBERBREE®

32 FEARM®

3.2.3 BIESEEERIEHIBEE 2B (&)
(R) $T£TA

BEAETAESNMARSET ZEER
BREERXZHT 2 EERBRIES M EERE
FF2z—8n - BREEEZEHINREEERR
ZBURE  BRGEEREMETENEE
Al o SN - AEEA T EENENEFR
BRI BN MRREERELIZENSE
BFFRTR L EXRNTERNZZSHT
FrRIBER R ROTEA NS 2 s
Z E & o

AEBETAERBORZHFATLER L
BE BABESZERZE T EBEMITEE
A R ©

3.24 MEHEFE

EAKEEKEUVERKENE I REF/HIR
BREHZARENEREEMEEZERBIE
BMEE - REREHEAR @R = 1L
TIE B K (if) 20 7 5= B 0 W B 730 A BOH I o
WEEEmMERRNEELRERENEN2H
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AREBAMH DERTHNEREE - BZE20214F
12A31ALEFE - R KRB BRERmE) T
fER - MMEMSEN S REE L RAEERNSRER
13,000,0007# 7T (20204F : 59,000,000/ 7T) ©
R20214F 22020 AR ERB B C MW TR E
RRBREE - BEFURERAER R EERST
EROER - F2HME3.29 -

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.3 Risk limit control and mitigation policies (Continued)
(c) Derivatives

All counterparty credit risk for derivatives trading are managed
as part of the credit risk control and monitoring process in
respect of the counterparty including credit controls such as
setting individual limit for valuation risk, daily settlement limits
and performing periodic credit assessment. Moreover, the
Group requires derivative contract counterparties to enter into
International Swaps and Derivatives Association Agreement or
analogous master agreement in order to follow the standardised
market practice of close-out netting arrangement in the event of
default or early termination and in accordance with the regulatory
requirements.

Collateral arrangements with most counterparties are also
in place to limit our unsecured derivative exposures to these
counterparties.

3.2.4 Write-off policy

The Group writes off financial assets, in whole or in part, when it has
exhausted all practical recovery efforts and has concluded there is
no reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery include (i) ceasing enforcement
activity and (ii) where the Group’s recovery method is foreclosing
on collateral and the value of the collateral is such that there is no
reasonable expectation of recovering in full.

The Group may write-off financial assets that are still subject to
enforcement activity. During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
outstanding amounts of financial assets written off before completion
of enforcement activity of the underlying collaterals was HK$13 million
(2020: HK$59 million). Please refer to Note 3.2.9 for the total amount
of loans and advances to customers, loan commitments and financial
guarantees with or without collateral held by the Group written off in
2021 and 2020.
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3. HEREKREEm 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 EERR@m) 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
325 KRl AKZBRZEFRBERMERRAFZ 3.2.5 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held
REEEREE or other credit enhancements
TREEERIANEERR 2O - TIE£R The following tables contain analysis of the credit risk exposure of
BEMNKREE SGEBEENIRAEEZS financial instruments. The gross carrying/notional amount of financial
ERMEE HZREERRE - assets below also represents the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk on these assets.
(1) AFREFEHSBEE (1) Financial assets subject to impairment
20215124311 At 31 December 2021
REE/ 2528
Gross carrying/notional amount
BHEE
BREE  OREEUT FRER
% Special Sub-standard &t ECL 78
Pass mention or below Total allowance Net
RITRERRER Balance and placements with banks 17,414,452 - - 17414452 8,787 17,405,665
—BE - Stage 1 17,414,452 - - 17,414,452 8,787 17,405,665
—[E2 - Stage 2 - - - - - -
—fE83 - Stage 3 - - - - - -
IATEE BEZHHA Debt instruments at fair value through
A2 A ERTIA other comprehensive income 40,324,942 - - 40,324,942 41,181 40,283,761
— e - Stage 1 40,324,942 - - 40,324,942 41,181 40,283,761
—[f&E2 - Stage 2 - - - - - -
—FBE3 - Stage 3 - - - - - -
DBBRATIENERTIA  Debtinstruments at amortised cost 24,622,718 - - 24622718 30215 24,592,503
—P&e - Stage 1 24,622,718 - - 24,622,718 30,215 24,592,503
—[&&R2 - Stage 2 - - - - - -
B8 - Stage 3 - - - - - -
XEEN Advances to customers 141,659,329 1,255,174 1,398,836 144,313,339 1,370,947 142,942,392
—F&e - Stage 1 131,412,534 - - 131,412,534 469,184 130,943,350
V) - Stage 2 1026795 1,255,174 - 11,501,969 /4154 11,147,815
—R&&3 - Stage 3 - - 1,398,836 1,398,836 547,609 851,227
B5Z5 Trade bills 4,253,850 - - 4,253,850 7,347 4,246,503
—R&e - Stage 1 4,253,340 - - 4,253,340 7,347 4,245,993
—Re2 - Stage 2 510 - - 510 - 510
—[BE3 - Stage 3 - - - - - -
JERT IS REMERE Accrued interest and other accounts 6,134,288 4,408 81,812 6,220,508 39,690 6,180,818
BB - Stage 1 6,122,418 - - 6122418 13,119 6,100,200
—Re2 - Stage 2 11,870 4,408 - 16,278 489 15,789
—Es - Stage 8 - - 81,812 81,812 26,082 55,730
BRERIBER Loan commitments and financial
guarantees 76,041,645 40,878 46,227 76,128,750 120,604 76,008,146
—Pae1 - Stage 1 73,678,288 - - 73,678,288 114,783 73,563,505
Rk - Stage 2 2,363,357 40,878 - 2,404,235 5,821 2,398,414
-3 - Stage 3 - - 46,227 46,227 - 46,227
At Total 310,451,224 1,300,460 1,526,875 313,278,559 1,618,771 311,659,788
ERBREIBERE - BIIRUATETE For the purpose of this disclosure, notional amount of debt
BHEZH ALMEERENEEIAZR instruments at FVOCI and the associated ECL allowance

ELRAMNREEGHFETESHEE

HEEEE -

maintained in investment revaluation reserve are presented.
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3. BXEREE®

3.2 EERMEm@m)

325 AFALBEZHR R EMEEIRZZFZ
BEEEREE®)

(1) ZAEREFANEHEE @)

2020F12H31H

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.5 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held
or other credit enhancements (Continued)

(1) Financial assets subject to impairment (Continued)

At 31 December 2020

REB/ 2508
Gross carrying/notional amount
BHEE
BREE  ORBEUT BRERE

% Special  Sub-standard =) ECL et
Pass mention or below Total allowance Net
BITHERRER Balance and placements with banks 21,871,559 - - 21,871,559 9319 21,862,240
S EY — Stage 1 21,871,559 - - 21871559 9,319 21,862,240
—RE2 - Stage 2 - = = = = =
—fEER3 —Stage 3 = = = = = =

NATE: 2 AAZEA Debt instruments at fair value through
EthEERENEFIA other comprehensive income 40,074,922 - - 40,074,922 33836 40,041,086
—RE —Stage 1 40,074,922 - - 40,074,922 33836 40,041,086
—f&E2 - Stage 2 - - - - - -
—[BE3 - Stage 3 - - = = = =
DESRRKATIRMEB LA Debt instruments at amortised cost 22,927,335 = - 22927.33% 24352 22,902,983
—BE — Stage 1 22,927,335 = - 2292733 24352 22,902,983
—RE2 - Stage 2 - = = = = =
—RBE3 - Stage 3 - - = = = =
EFER Advances to customers 135,115,561 888,020 1,573,803 137,577,384 1,251,164 136,326,220
—[B&1 — Stage 1 125,010,106 - - 125,010,106 486,431 124,523,675
—[B82 —Stage 2 10,105,455 888,020 - 10,993475 208225 10,785,250
—[BE3 - Stage 3 = = 1,573,803 1,573,803 556,508 1,017,205
BH5E Trade bills 3,790,517 = 607 3,791,124 8,859 3,782,265
—[BE - Stage 1 3,782,143 - - 3,782,143 8,848 3,773,295
—[BEr2 - Stage 2 8,374 - - 8,374 11 8,363
—[A&3 —Stage 3 - - 607 607 - 607
R FI B R EMERE Accrued interest and other accounts 7,753,190 3710 76,778 7,833,678 37,356 7,796,332
S EY —Stage 1 7,741,756 = - 774175 12,516 7,729,240
—[BE2 - Stage 2 11,434 3,710 = 15,144 547 14,597
—REs - Stage 3 - = 76,778 76,778 24,293 52,485

ETAERBEER Loan commitments and financial

guarantees 78,455,814 33,015 291 78,489,120 155,969 78,333,151
—RBE —Stage 1 75,855,320 = - 75855320 146,243 75,709,077
—f&8R2 —Stage 2 2,600,494 33,015 - 2633509 9,726 2,623,783
-3 - Stage 3 - - 291 291 - 291
Total 309,988,898 924,745 1651479 312,565,122 1520855 311,044,267
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3.2

3.2.5

B EREE @
EERME @)

KA BB R BB EIZF 2
BEEEREE®)

(1) ZAEREFANEHEE @)
EEFEABEMT ¢

D3

T
E

F1EMNER |82 ERRARHIEI A
ZFEI0KRA ©

F2ARIERIRE | —RBESERAEBEH
fE31E90K °

EMEMREHIAT | —RESEFEI A
FHBBIOK °

7S

F1ERIIER IR 2 A EBABERTRF
R ZENEFEI - KREFARKDH
ENEEET2HNENSMNEREAE 26
NWTEEE °

SR SR |8 E R EEAIE KT
MEFH 2 E108% - KREBRALERRRE
5 R TR BHIRERZE R - BIFTaE
SAREERBEERK -

FEIMARIREHAT |B B A EEAED
AMEFZPZENEFIR - KREHA
CRERBERRNEZRE - T AER
L CEIERN SERER SN St
BRZER  XHHFZEREREBRBEBK
T RBREFER AR -

2

\

3.2

325

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held
or other credit enhancements (Continued)

(1) Financial assets subject to impairment (Continued)

The credit ratings are broadly categorised as follows:

Retail

Class 1 “pass”, which covers loans that are current or within 30
DPD.

Class 2 “special mention”, which generally covers loans with 31-
90 DPD.

Class 3 “sub-standard or below”, which generally covers loans
that are more than 90 DPD.

Corporate

Class 1 “pass”, which covers Grade 1 to 9 of the Group’s internal
loan grading system, represents loans for which borrowers are
current in meeting commitments and for which the full repayment
of interest and principal is not in doubt.

Class 2 “special mention”, which covers Grade 10 of the Group’s
internal loan grading system, represents loans with which
borrowers are experiencing difficulties and which may lead to
credit losses to the Group if the deterioration in loan quality
cannot be contained.

Class 3 “sub-standard or below”, which covers Grade 11 to 13
of the Group’s internal loan grading system, represents loans in
which borrowers are displaying a definable weakness that is likely
to jeopardise repayment; or collection in full is improbable and
the Group expects to sustain a loss of principal and/or interest; or
loans that are considered uncollectible after all collection options
have been exhausted.
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3.2

3.2.5

B EREE @
EERME @)

KA BB R BB EIZF 2
BEEEREE®)

(1) ZAEREFANEHEE @)

HE
F1EMER |82 REEEN&SBB-%
A E2 X ZEFHI R o

F2ERINFRIFE | B2 NAMEERT R BB+
EB-ZRXHHFHEAL o

SE3ER RS AT B2 AFMEETAR
CCC+H AT 2R ZHF R

(2) BAERENSREE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.5 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held
or other credit enhancements (Continued)

(1) Financial assets subject to impairment (Continued)
Treasury
Class 1 “pass”, which covers exposures to counterparties with

internal credit rating of BB- or above.

Class 2 “special mention”, which covers exposures to
counterparties with internal credit rating of B+ to B-.

Class 3 “sub-standard or below”, which covers exposures to
counterparties with internal credit rating of CCC+ or below.

(2) Financial assets not subject to impairment

IREE
Gross carrying amount
2021 2020
FEEERENEE Trading assets
—BEBES — Debt securities 4,425,384 5,080,047
—PTETH — Derivatives 375,201 957,370
HPPTETAR Hedging derivatives 260,651 189,831
AFE = BHEEE ABRA Financial assets at fair value
SREE through profit or loss 101,146 33,109
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3. BXEREE®
3.2 EERMEm@m)

325 AFALBEZHR R EMEEIRZZFZ
BEEEREE®)

AEBZEERRAIZE THIFTEE —F 7S -

. HEFZEADBZREER A HRERZ
BE

. EEREZRFERKBIERFER KR
UEFER)0.97%(20204F  1.14%) : &

. B8 5 N B E 5% & 1 73% (20204 :
74%) VL EA-EERF

3.2.6 EHRZ5
EEERRBFBMT

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.5 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held
or other credit enhancements (Continued)

The results of credit performance of the Group can be further assessed
with reference to the following:

o Mortgage loans, which represent the biggest group in the
portfolio, are backed by collateral;

o Loans and advances to customers that are credit-impaired
constituted 0.97% (2020: 1.14%) of the total loans and advances
to customers; and

. 73% (2020: 74%) of the investments in debt securities and other

bills have at least an A- credit rating.

3.2.6 Loans and advances

Loans and advances to customers are summarised as follows:

2021 2020
ER KRB EEE Gross loans and advances 144,313,339 137,577,384
kR RELEELRRE Less: total impairment allowances (1,370,947)  (1,251,164)
R Net 142,942,392 136,326,220
FEEREZERZER Credit-impaired loans and advances 1,398,836 1,573,803
Nk : PEERSFEER Less: Stage 3 impairment allowances (547,609) (556,508)
pEik:c] Net 851,227 1,017,295
BEERmATE Fair value of collateral held * 758,124 787,030
EEREEREBFERFERK Credit-impaired loans and advances
BHRBEA DL as a % of total loans and advances
to customers 0.97% 1.14%

* Efmz A FEDRBERARMEREFRER
iR METREEET -

*

Fair value of collateral is determined at the lower of the market value of
collateral and outstanding loan balance.
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3. HBBEBREEm 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 =ERR@ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

326 EFRZH @) 3.2.6 Loans and advances (Continued)

TRIRIEE BN RAR 2 RMEEED BE The table below shows the percentage of impairment allowance as a
ERRBRZEDH - percentage of loans and advances for each of the three broad internal

rating classes.

2021 2020
RERERE BB ZLE
IR ERERTE BB ERE
ADL At
BEXRBHK Impairment EHNEHK  Impairment
B2tk  allowance Anth allowance
Loans and as a % of Loans and as a % of
advances loan balance advances loan balance
% % % %
487 Class
1-1E% 1 — pass 98.1 0.5 98.2 0.4
2 - %rhlEdE 2 — special mention 0.9 8.2 0.7 1.4
3 — RBIIAT 3 — sub-standard or below 1.0 39.2 1.1 35.4
100.0 1.0 100.0 0.9
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3. BXEREE®
3.2 EERMEm@m)
326 EFRB &)

() REABVMBREENFIRESER (a) Loans and advances to customers that are credit-

BEZEFERRBR

EEREER R B B R ASE
PR HEER R D FERERIATAT

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.6 Loans and advances (Continued)

impaired under HKFRS 9

The analysis of the gross amount of credit-impaired loans
and advances by class, along with the fair value of the related

collateral held by the Group as security, is as follows:

BFHEIEHm
AFE
ReiazE BEERE BRE{E  Fair value
Gross Impairment Carrying of collateral
2021%12H31H At 31 December 2021 exposure allowance amount held
EEREZER Credit-impaired loans
BAER : Loans to individual:
—(=BFK — Credit cards 17,250 14,749 2,501 =
—IRIBE — Mortgages 204,192 37,027 167,165 181,543
—Hm — Others 367,247 167,404 199,843 58,139
EER : Loans to corporate entities:
—FHIER — Term loans 254,374 116,752 137,622 158,756
—RIBE — Mortgages 111,170 10,032 101,138 105,930
—EBo5/E — Trade finance 267,908 142,939 124,969 93,559
—HA — Others 176,695 58,706 117,989 160,197
FEERBEZERBE Total credit-impaired loans 1,398,836 547,609 851,227 758,124
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3. H¥ERERm@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 =ERR@ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
326 BEFRE @) 3.2.6 Loans and advances (Continued)
(F) REBMEBREENFEIREESER (a) Loans and advances to customers that are credit-
E2EFERRERE) impaired under HKFRS 9 (Continued)
ST =Eiitile
AE
[R\% 48 58 B LR BREE Fair value
Gross  Impairment Carrying  of collateral
202012 A31H At 31 December 2020 exposure allowance amount held
EEREZER Credit-impaired loans
BAER : Loans to individual:
—fEAR — Credit cards 12,645 10,447 2,198 =
—IRIBER — Mortgages 186,507 34,054 152,453 166,302
—HM — Others 415,559 185,205 230,354 88,549
EER : Loans to corporate entities:
—BHER — Term loans 218,901 36,303 182,598 138,547
—RIBER — Mortgages 112,384 9,142 103,242 91,163
—Eo58E — Trade finance 349,314 163,020 186,294 108,633
—HAM — Others 278,493 118,337 160,156 193,836
EEREZERER Total credit-impaired loans 1,573,803 556,508 1,017,295 787,030
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3. HBBEBREEm
32 FEARM®
326 B#REH ®)
(2) BE3EANLEZERRBRK

(i) BEAREEENEE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.6 Loans and advances (Continued)
(b) Loans and advances overdue for more than 3 months

(i)  Gross amount of overdue loans

2021 2020
BHREE BEARER
B BExezs
Gross Gross
amount of L4858 amount of IH4R%E
overdue ADL overdue A7t
loans % of total loans % of total
REEREFENRBTE Gross advances to customers
Pt which have been overdue for:
—3fE A LA LE6MEA — six months or less but
over three months 103,435 0.07 240,472 0.17
—6EANLEE1F — one year or less but
over six months 126,868 0.09 136,656 0.10
—1FRE — over one year 583,423 0.40 525,674 0.38
813,726 0.56 902,802 0.65
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3. HERBEE@ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 =ERR@ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
326 BFREHM @ 3.2.6 Loans and advances (Continued)
(Z) B3 EA U L2 ERRBR(H) (b) Loans and advances overdue for more than 3 months

(Continued)

(i) BEKREEEZRBZLZHE (i) Value of collateral held and impairment allowances
BRI A Hn (B against overdue loans and advances

BERRBRK HHRm

REBHE BmE HRm  EFmAREE P& ER3

Outstanding Current  Fr&IEIR#% AR5 WEEE

amount of market Portion Portion not Stage 3

loans and value of covered by covered by impairment

2021%12H31H At 31 December 2021 advances collateral collateral collateral allowances

BEAARERZES  Overdue loans and

e VSEEN advances to customers 813,726 888,796 456,744 356,982 350,828
BN ER I

NEEEER WmE Hifm  ERmAREE F&E3

Outstanding Current  FTEIESR D AIEER S SEE

amount of market Portion Portion not Stage 3

loans and value of  coveredby coveredby impairment

2020F12H31H At 31 December 2020 advances collateral collateral collateral  allowances

BHEIREE®EFP  Overdue loans and

ERRBR advances to customers 902,802 930,016 593,229 309,573 302,651
AR T EAKEEES )8 Collateral held mainly represented pledged deposits,
e 1 A E A [ R A AN SR A o mortgages over properties and charges over other fixed

assets such as equipment.

(A) BREAER(ESHKREFEE LT ZE (¢) Rescheduled advances net of amounts included in
HMEM) overdue advances shown above
1G4 G485
Btk Bt
2021 % of total 2020 % of total
BEER Advances to customers 350,761 0.24 374,963 0.27
F& EXS R B %S Stage 3 impairment allowances 141,673 141,869
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3. BXEREE®
3.2 EERMEm@m)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

327 BEFE 3.2.7 Trade bills
2021 2020
BHEE @ Trade bills which have been overdue for:
-6AANEE1F — one year or less but over six months - =
- 15 E — over one year - 607
= 607
PRI IE Stage 3 impairment allowances - =

BRESERREBEAER -

3.2.8 WEIHE #im
RERFA ZWEER @RI T

The overdue trade bills are fully secured.

3.2.8 Repossessed collateral

Repossessed collateral held at the year-end is as follows:

2021 2020

BEHE Nature of assets
BdEkyES Repossessed properties 208,090 304,514
Hth Others 1,090 24,923
209,180 329,437

WEHERRRATEARRIE - BRKBERN
IEA B Z fERAREEET ©

fih 51 7] 2 38 48 {8 /4 64,984,000 7% 7T (2020 4F :
63,158,000/ 7T ) 2 /E 1 B A ) 75 T E A 7 3 -
THZ5 £ BRI P B At SR B AR A 2 JE < T AT 18 A
PR R B o ZIK A A2 RS2 2 [ K
EEIBTHRIEREEZEE - HEERE
AR | EFER o

Repossessed collaterals are sold as soon as practicable with the
proceeds used to reduce the outstanding indebtedness of the borrowers
concerned.

Certain other properties in the Mainland China with a total estimated
realisable value of HK$64,984,000 (2020: HK$63,158,000), which had
been foreclosed and repossessed by the Group pursuant to orders
issued by courts in the Mainland China, represent assets held by the
Group for resale and have been reported under “Other assets” in Note
32. The relevant loans had been derecognised.
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3. H¥ERERm@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 FERR@ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
329 EEER 3.2.9 Loss allowance
TRBIRE BB 1S AR 95k AN & B IR [E ER The tables below provide a reconciliation of the Group’s ECL
ZRPERRBN - BEFERE RV EIER 2 B allowances for loans and advances to customers, loan commitments
EEEEEBINEER - and financial guarantees by stage under HKFRS 9.
=€ Retail
P B P& ER2 P& ER3 &t
BEHEE BEREE BHEE BHEE
BB B BEESE EIE%ERE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
ECL ECL ECL ECL
allowance allowance allowance allowance
2021F1H1H At 1 January 2021 401,256 40,967 229,706 671,929
| Transfers:
BB ERE Transfer to Stage 1 8,357 (7,664) (693) -
HEBEEE2 Transfer to Stage 2 (3,776) 3,776 = —
S EERS Transfer to Stage 3 (17,919) (14,019) 31,938 -
MBS R EEEHHES  Effect of stage transfers and
k-7 changes in allowance (2,482) 1,823 262,336 261,677
HAETRAE ~ BEASK New financial assets originated,
RiFER 2 @ REE purchased or derecognised
during the period 43,011 8,046 (964) 50,093
BRISAR BHIIELRK /##) Changes in PDs/LGDs/EADs/
RRANE, /AR forward-looking assumptions
=i (71,549) 1,478 (15,510) (85,581)
BRE( Model enhancements 8,406 1,437 (712) 9,131
FRERBRER Unwind of discount 502 37 30 903
iy Write-offs - - (286,951) (286,951)
SN K HoAh Foreign exchange and other movements 19 15 - 34
2021128318 At 31 December 2021 365,825 36,230 219,180 621,235
2020F1A1H At 1 January 2020 382,703 30,024 154,044 566,771
B - Transfers:
BB ERE Transfer to Stage 1 5,543 (5,543) - =
BB Transfer to Stage 2 (6,470) 6,878 (408) =
HSERERS Transfer to Stage 3 (38,929) (15,105) 54,034 -
PSR L EEZEESL  Effect of stage transfers and
=74 changes in allowance (3,864) 7,563 356,833 360,532
HRFTRAE - AL New financial assets originated,
RiFER 2 o REE purchased or derecognised during
the period 47,104 8,392 (5,173) 50,323
BUNAE EBHIBKRE /14 Changes in PDs/LGDs/EADs/
RBRALE /AR E RS forward-looking assumptions
) 15,085 8,723 258 24,066
FRRBRER Unwind of discount 33 35 9 77
Hss Write-offs - - (329,891) (329,891)
SN I H A Foreign exchange and other movements 51 - - 51
202012 A31H At 31 December 2020 401,256 40,967 229,706 671,929
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3. HEREKREEm 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 FERMRE@m) 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
329 EiEER @) 3.2.9 Loss allowance (Continued)
1 Corporate
P& B P& X2 PR ER3 &t
BHEE HHEE HHEE HHEE
ER%ERE ER%ERE EE%ERE EEERE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
ECL ECL ECL ECL
allowance allowance allowance allowance
2021F1H1H At 1 January 2021 231,418 176,984 326,802 735,204
B Transfers:
B B FEEA Transfer to Stage 1 12,518 (12,518) - -
BEBEEE2 Transfer to Stage 2 (10,761) 10,761 - -
S ERERS Transfer to Stage 3 (384) (3,997) 4,381 -
S ERER SR B FTES  Effect of stage transfers and
W7 changes in allowance (7,637) 16,300 34,781 43,444
HAFTRA « BASUEEEER  New financial assets originated,
LEMEE purchased or derecognised
during the period 71,228 (3,082) (35,501) 32,645
ERHAE ELIELE /4] Changes in PDs/LGDs/EADs/
BB AIE R BRER forward-looking assumptions
)] (41,787) 159,350 74,678 192,241
EAE(L Model enhancements (37,011) (22,085) - (59,096)
FRERARIR Unwind of discount 237 1,509 51 1,797
Hii4 Write-offs - - (77,503) (77,503)
SN Ko FAh 5 Foreign exchange and other movements 321 523 740 1,584
2021F12A31H At 31 December 2021 218,142 323,745 328,429 870,316
20201 H1H At 1 January 2020 232,019 131,285 227,153 590,457
&% Transfers:
HEBERE Transfer to Stage 1 8,410 (8,410) - =
BB ERE2 Transfer to Stage 2 (25,941) 25,941 - =
BB EEES Transfer to Stage 3 (796) (13,860) 14,656 =
MRS L EFEEHATES  Effect of stage transfers and
TE changes in allowance (8,971) 35,881 55,545 87,455
HIRNFRA AR New financial assets originated,
LEMEE purchased or derecognised
during the period 17,475 (11,432) (32,156) (26,113)
BHBARER EHIBRE /124 Changes in PDs/LGDs/EADs/
B ETE /B HRORE forward-looking assumptions
# 3,047 15,825 192,125 210,997
FRERAEIR Unwind of discount 127 1,313 50 1,490
HsH Write-offs - - (130,271) (130,271)
HINEEE % EL At Foreign exchange and other movements 1,048 441 (300) 1,189
202012 A31H At 31 December 2020 231,418 176,984 326,802 735,204
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3. HEREKREEm 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 EERMEm@) 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
329 EBEEH 3.2.9 Loss allowance (Continued)
TREHERE BT RE ERIFR AL EIEEER The tables below provide a reconciliation of the Group’s gross exposure
ZEBBE(MELPERIBR REERAERE (in terms of the aggregate of carrying amount of loans and advances
FAEPERVBEROZER ST LR - to customers and notional amount of loan commitments and financial
guarantees) by stage under HKFRS 9.
e Retail
P ER1 P& Ez2 PEFER 3 &t
Rk Rk et o] et o]
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Gross Gross Gross Gross
exposure exposure exposure exposure
20211A1H At 1 January 2021 108,821,831 460,323 614,711 109,896,865
i Transfers:
BB Transfer to Stage 1 77,250 (70,801) (6,449) -
BY R Transfer to Stage 2 (261,588) 261,588 - -
BB EREES Transfer to Stage 3 (328,740) (84,431) 43,171 -
FIIATERR « 4R UETERR Origination, derecognition,

E—FETIER further lending and repayment 3,438,058 (117,918) (145,794) 3,174,346
iy Write-offs - - (286,951) (286,951)
HINEE J2 HAth £ Foreign exchange and

other movements 12,413 81 - 12,494
2021%F12A31H At 31 December 2021 111,759,224 448,842 588,688 112,796,754
2020F1A1H At 1 January 2020 109,343,346 558,641 346,533 110,248,520
B Transfers:
B BRI Transfer to Stage 1 93,558 (90,182) (3,376) -
BB Transfer to Stage 2 (306,510) 310,039 (3,529) -
BB EEES Transfer to Stage 3 (352,725) (255,651) 608,376 =
IR » #REHER Origination, derecognition,

E—TERER further lending and repayment (9,454) (62,524) (3,402) (75,380)
i Write-offs - - (329,891) (329,891)
SN Ko EAh 5 Foreign exchange and

other movements 53,616 = = 53,616
2020F12A31H At 31 December 2020 108,821,831 460,323 614,711 109,896,865

192 DAH SING FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021



(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

PR R M T
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BXEREE®
3.2 EERMEm@)
329 EEEE®

3.

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.9 Loss allowance (Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

¥ Corporate
P EX1 P ER2 PEFER 3 &3t
B 4 R [ B AR R [ B R
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Gross Gross Gross Gross
exposure exposure exposure exposure
20211 A1H At 1 January 2021 92,043,595 13,166,661 959,383 106,169,639
8% Transfers:
B2 2R Transfer to Stage 1 1,619,588 (1,619,588) - -
BB EEE2 Transfer to Stage 2 (4,317,741) 4,319,007 (1,266) -
S ERERS Transfer to Stage 3 (176,151) (50,799) 226,950 -
TIATER ~ BRETER Origination, derecognition,

E—PERRER further lending and repayment 4,080,324 (2,369,406) (253,623) 1,457,295
s Write-offs - - (77,503) (77,503)
HNEE J2 H fth 2 Foreign exchange and

other movements 81,983 11,487 2,434 95,904
2021F12H31H At 31 December 2021 93,331,598 13,457,362 856,375 107,645,335
20201 H1H At 1 January 2020 98,229,248 9,000,565 713,624 107,943,437
B Transfers:
BB Transfer to Stage 1 1,503,040 (1,503,040) - -
HEB TR Transfer to Stage 2 (6,360,069) 6,360,069 = =
BEBEEES Transfer to Stage 3 (175,608) (106,228) 281,836 -
FIATER « 4R TR Origination, derecognition,

E—HERRER further lending and repayment (1,313,794) (590,064) 97,774 (1,806,084)
sy Write-offs = = (130,271) (130,271)
SN I H A 5 Foreign exchange and

other movements 160,778 5,359 (3,580) 162,557
202012 431H At 31 December 2020 92,043,595 13,166,661 959,383 106,169,639

I EAS BRI S RERTTEER R IAZRKA
BEt AHMEEKE
MEBTE SEERBRIENFERLERERS

SIS A AT REES

% o

transition during the year.

Treasury portfolio, which consists of cash and balances with banks
and debt instruments at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, are classified in Stage 1 with no stage
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3. BXEREE®

3.2 EERMEm@m)
3.2.10 EHEF

TRFIRMN20214F 2020512 A 31 BT it

HEE Z AR 2 BF5RE T

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.10 Debt securities

The table below presents an analysis of debt securities by rating

agency designation at 31 December 2021 and 2020.

NATEHE
BHEFHTA
Hitn 2 R
NemEE
Financial — SAEERRZAF
assetsat IRMERMEE
HFEE fair value Financial
FA®REE  through other assets at
Trading comprehensive amortised &t
2021F12H31H At 31 December 2021 assets income cost Total
AAA AAA - 1,395,716 284,131 1,679,847
AA- £ AA+ AA- to AA+ 4,425,384 11,192,294 3,631,286 19,248,964
A-Z A+ A-to A+ - 17,997,513 12,297,697 30,295,210
B R EERA- Rated but lower than A- - 7,688,494 4,689,472 12,377,966
AR Unrated - 3,093,776 3,720,132 6,813,908
At Total 4,425,384 41,367,793 24,622,718 70,415,895
MATEFE
BEEZHHA
Hih 2 Ele
NemEE
Financial LA &AAT]
assetsat  EMEHAE
FEEE fair value Financial
B#®HEE  through other assets at
Trading  comprehensive amortised CEH
20201274311 At 31 December 2020 assets income cost Total
AAA AAA - 2,126,332 255,484 2,381,816
AA- £ AA+ AA-to AA+ 5,080,047 12,337,307 3,196,522 20,613,876
A- = A+ A-to A+ - 17,321,067 11,203,245 28,524,312
B R EERA- Rated but lower than A- - 6,537,625 4,002,501 10,540,126
B Unrated - 3,424,717 4,269,583 7,694,300
Total 5,080,047 41,747,048 22,927,335 69,754,430
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3. H¥ERERm@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 =ERR@ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

211 WEEEERREZZBEEZAREFE 3.2.11 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit
E risk exposure
() B (a) Geographical sectors
BEFERZEHATIHIREE Z RERED Advances to customers by geographical area are classified
B2 ERAMEDEE - —RME - EEX according to the location of the borrowers after taking into
BRI BRREERANR Z [RIEF - @ account the transfer of risk. In general, risk transfer applies when
118 - an advance is guaranteed by a party located in an area which is

different from that of the borrower.

TRARFPEREEIREH AN The following table analyses gross advances to customers by
geographical area.

20215 20204F
12A31H 12H31H
At At
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
KEENREE Gross advances to customers
— &5 — Hong Kong 121,821,903 115,234,954
— — China 7,615,412 7,630,058
— BT — Macau 13,777,935 13,686,148
— Hth — Others 1,098,089 1,026,224

144,313,339 137,577,384
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3. BXEREE®
3.2 EERMEm@)

B2 MWEFEERBZEBEE BT TE

B
() 17%

EFEHBHE — KITRRENFEE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.11 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit

risk exposure (Continued)

(b) Industry sectors

Gross advances to customers by industry sector classified

according to the usage of loans

2021 2020
ERBFEANER Loans for use in Hong Kong
TrE<Rt Industrial, commercial and financial
—WIEERE — Property development 5,467,229 5,611,830
—ERE — Property investment 19,253,002 17,221,674
— R — Financial concerns 4,661,129 5,756,814
—RELKLE — Stockbrokers 1,642,984 1,733,867
— PR TEXE — Wholesale and retail trade 5,401,435 6,004,660
—BUEE — Manufacturing 1,987,035 1,790,941
— B NE R — Transport and transport equipment 2,269,160 2,512,559
—FRELTEE) — Recreational activities 59,895 96,223
— BREHR — Information technology 59,058 51,827
—HAh — Others 6,970,986 6,003,396
47,771,913 46,783,791
EA Individuals
-BEIEEEHEE] — Loans for the purchase of flats
[RAAZEEREE X in Home Ownership Scheme,
[FEEHESEFER Private Sector Participation
Scheme and Tenants Purchase
Scheme 529,218 558,428
—~BEHMEEMERR — Loans for the purchase of other
residential properties 33,473,466 31,260,619
—ERREX — Credit card advances 3,670,096 3,610,141
—HAh — Others 13,105,677 13,079,682
50,778,457 48,508,870
EEBFERANER Loans for use in Hong Kong 98,550,370 95,292,661
B & (1)) Trade finance (Note (1)) 8,123,088 8,115,481
EBEBIMEROER(FE(2)) Loans for use outside Hong Kong
(Note (2)) 37,639,881 34,169,242
144,313,339 137,577,384
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3. BXEREE®
3.2 EERMEm@m)

211 WEEEERREZZBEEZAREFE
B

(2) 1738

EFENERE — RITEREXFE S
(#)

(1) LI RZEBEIRERSERSCERE
HZEBESImoEAESRSED - O
BOMHRE UEERESIRESZER -

TEREBZBESHMEBER(BIEAIRIT
BIRAR ([ RFHERIT]) 2 /BIMEITHIE A
AR T 2B SR E )18 {5485,128,000/%5 7T
(2020412 A31 8 : 260,328,000/ 7T.) 2
BREEEBUIMERMERIET -

() [EFEMIMEBNERIBEETEER
FPEEFBAIMEMZER -

3.3 hiEERE

TG R T T 5 _ LR & R ER A E s
HYEE  BEREERERINGRZEERR

BERGzmERBEHESS  BREERS
REBERMERRERBREZBERERTERT
ZRENMZEZ S RRRRENIESINEE - &
IR FIR AR A FE T DA e %% B i P R R B 2R R
E - ZERBEEBETHEDR  LARE -
gRMEERTSRRBE(TSRREE] 2
BB RTSERARNEERARTEERR
MEARK - KERRBzAREEREZEHR(R
REIEREZER]) T — @B 2 AR B K
P B ELBRERME FAREE - AHR - 5
B EERREEZFRRREZABITHERR
FAERRHEAMERZKTEA - ERAFARER
NGB EBERERABRRMEFRKAEERE - M&
MRERRZES  EREENAREZESNE
EFERERIE -

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.11 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit
risk exposure (Continued)

(b) Industry sectors (Continued)

Gross advances to customers by industry sector classified
according to the usage of loans (Continued)

Note:

(1)  Trade finance shown above represents loans covering finance of
imports to Hong Kong, exports and re-exports from Hong Kong
and merchandising trade classified with reference to the relevant
guidelines issued by the HKMA.

Trade finance loans not involving Hong Kong (including trade
finance extended by the overseas subsidiary banks of Dah Sing
Bank, Limited (“DSB”)) totalling HK$485,128,000 (31 December
2020: HK$260,328,000) are classified under Loans for use outside
Hong Kong.

2) Loans for use outside Hong Kong include loans extended to
customers located in Hong Kong with the finance used outside
Hong Kong.

3.3 Market risk

Market risk is the risk of losses in assets, liabilities and off-balance
sheet positions arising from adverse movements in market rates and
prices.

Market risk exposure for different types of transactions is managed
within various risk limits and guidelines approved by the Board, the
RMCC and the TIRC under the authority delegated from the Board.
Risk limits are set at the portfolio level as well as by products and
by different types of risks. The risk limits comprise a combination of
notional, stop-loss, sensitivity and value-at-risk (“VaR”) controls. All
trading positions are subject to daily mark-to-market valuation. The Risk
Management and Control Department (“RMCD”) within the GRD, as an
independent risk management and control unit, identifies, measures,
monitors and controls the risk exposures against approved limits and
initiates specific actions to ensure positions are managed within an
acceptable level. Any exceptions have to be reviewed and sanctioned
by the appropriate level of management of TIRC, RMCC or the Board as
stipulated in the relevant policies and procedures.
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3. BXEREE®
3.3 ThiEEME@m)

RIRITZMBABRFIBERRITRNDERRA]
(MRPIFERTT]) RAFHRIT(FE) BR QA
(TRFRT(PE) DREBEE —EBERBMBER
REXRFBITREL T HARERERANTE
RITZHERE) o RFTIRIT AR EIE R EEE
ERRERPIEERITRART(FE)MHES
B2miGRAKR - HARD B R R EE R
FRE R P BB AR AE B o

AEEREHEEERMRITRZTISRERER T
Az B E IR ER K2 o

331 FEEERZ S EE

AEBEZEERA - HINE - BFES  #alt
ERMTETAZEEBRRPHFETSAR -

(F) mSERTERE®

ERTERRER  AREERZEXRE
BIRAZ A EMSER MIEH T SRR
NREZERBELHEAR - TERANFER
EEMISER 2T IARMINT o

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A. (“BCM”) and Dah Sing Bank (China)
Limited (“DSB China”), which are subsidiaries of DSB, run their treasury
functions locally under their own set of limits and policies and within
the market risk management framework set by DSB. The RMCD of
DSB oversees the market risk arising from the treasury operations of
BCM and DSB China to ensure that the risk controls put in place are
commensurate with their businesses and consistent with the Group
standards.

The Group applies different risk management policies and procedures
in respect of the market risk arising from its trading and banking books.

3.3.1 Market risk arising from the trading book

In the Group’s trading book, market risk is associated with trading
positions in foreign exchange, debt securities, equity securities and
derivatives.

(@) Market risk measurement technique

In the management of market risk, the Group measures market
risks using various techniques commonly used by the industry
and control market risk exposures within established risk limits.
The major measurement techniques used to measure and control
market risk are outlined below.
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3.3

3.3.1

B EREE @
™ 15 BB ()
FEEERZ TSR ®)

() mHEBEGE @

() TEEEREE

AEEEATSRBEES  E—
BB AEERIIEEEARMES
EATIS T AEETEHETERAK - HX
PAAEERNEESEKFRIEBLZ
BAHEE - B RS E H B
o AEEZBEKFAEI9% ° At
ARSI - BRIBAA
LSRR EE 2 EETEAKN o Bt
BRANEZ AN T e o B T A B
EERECRBEIL ST 218K -

il

5 A b BUEE B R R R B2 4
(RMAEBME A —R)BEEAERE
B - MBRRBETMKER A ZHE
e mERAREEBEE—(EEF
Bz HEBERNRE - 8 —EE
SERETDARTE -

AEEFZDBEAARER 2 MHA
RBESR  HEEITSRERBE
BELZ BRI - FrE BRI R E
FTURERAREEEABER -

AmiSRRE(E A4S B 2 5 ER
ERHBEAN—EER EFFRE
BRZZESHMBEERERET
RIMSRBREEREERDEESER
= WELSEGEER - AREER
BRI RAEREETSRREEZ
B R T H L TR R o AE
ERFEANEHR S ER 2 TSRBREK
{EHH{E 41,379,000/ 7T (20204 :
2,389,000/57T ) °

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.1 Market risk arising from the trading book (Continued)

(a)

Market risk measurement technique (Continued)
(i) Value at risk

The Group applies a VaR methodology, which is a
statistically based estimate, to measure the potential loss
of its trading portfolio from adverse market movements. It
expresses as the maximum amount the Group might lose
given a certain level of confidence, which for the Group
is 99% for a one day holding period. There is therefore a
specified statistical probability that actual loss could be
greater than the VaR estimate. Hence, the use of VaR does
not prevent losses outside the VaR limits in the event of
extreme market movements.

The VaR model assumes a certain “holding period” (one
day in the case of the Group) until positions can be closed.
It is calculated based on the current mark-to-market value
of the positions, the historical correlation and volatilities
of the market risk factors over an observation period of
one calendar year using a method known as historical
simulation approach.

The VaR model is continuously validated by back-testing
the VaR results for trading positions. All back-testing
exceptions are investigated and back-testing results are
reported to senior management.

As VaR constitutes an integral part of the Group’s market
risk control regime, VaR limits are established and reviewed
by the Board and its delegated committees at least annually
for all trading positions and allocated to business units.
Actual exposures, including VaR, are monitored against
limits on a daily basis by RMCD. Average daily VaR for
the Group for all trading activities during the year was
HK$1,379,000 (2020: HK$2,389,000).
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

() mHEBEGE @ (a)

(i) B8

BRI RIS T AT R HIR 2
BEBERZOE AREEREE
FETHEDAHAER  BREERE
DR - TERESR R AR T HETT
TRENEE  RMEAREBAAR - 77
AR A BTER LB N E R ER
REARSETRE - thHh - TRatER
EEBERZRAE 2B BRAFTEE
BHEEEEKTFRERRETEH
IR IR E B BB IRAHRE © it
Sh - EITHEBENRBIER —HEXK
TREUFEARERBERAEZAR
RBIKFRIFTRE A T I5 B N BRAK)
B o

BAOMRzERRESTE REAREY
g

(2) mEEBREMRE

(b)

B ZE2021F12A31 8112184
12 months to 31 December 2021

3.3.1 Market risk arising from the trading book (Continued)

Market risk measurement technique (Continued)
(ii)  Stress tests

Stress tests provide an indication of the potential size of
losses that could arise in extreme conditions. The stress
tests carried out by RMCD include: risk factor stress testing,
where stress movements are applied to each risk category;
and scenario stress testing, which includes applying
possible stress events to specific positions or portfolios.
Besides, the expected shortfall of the trading portfolio
is measured to evaluate the expected size of extreme
trading loss beyond a specified confidence level and over a
longer holding period. In addition, reverse-stress tests are
performed as a useful tool to evaluate the maximum size of
market stress that the Group can endure before hitting the
prescribed tolerable levels.

The results of the stress tests are reviewed by the Board
and its delegated committees regularly.

VaR summary of trading portfolio

£ Z=2020F12 431 H [E12{E A
12 months to 31 December 2020

15 &= BIK 5 =545 =K

Average High Low Average High Low

47|\ PEE [0 Be2 Foreign exchange risk 966 3,362 273 1,925 3,559 291
2= 2 e Interest rate risk 834 4,124 211 1,128 3,544 494
2 EPE R All risks 1,379 4,317 413 2,389 3,916 574
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 Market risk (Continued)
3.3.2 Market risk arising from the banking book

In the Group’s banking book, market risk is predominantly associated
with positions in debt and equity securities.

(a) Market risk measurement technique

Within the risk management framework and policies established
by the Board and its delegated committees, various limits,
guidelines and management action triggers are established to
control the exposures of the Group’s banking book activities
to foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, and price risk. In
particular, position and sensitivity limits and price triggers are
in place to control the price risk of the investment securities. In
addition, sensitivity analysis and stress testing (including reverse-
stress testing) covering shocks and shifts in interest rates on the
Group’s on- and off-balance sheet positions and credit spreads
on the Group’s investment securities are regularly performed
to gauge the market risk inherent in the Group’s banking
book portfolios and manage it against the established control
measures.

VaR methodology is not used to measure and control the market
risk of the banking book.

(b) Sensitivity analysis of non-trading portfolio
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group has limited net foreign exchange exposure
(except for USD, Macau Pataca (“MOP”) and Renminbi
(“RMB”)) as foreign exchange positions and foreign
currency balances arising from customer transactions are
normally matched against other customer transactions or
transactions with the market. Foreign exchange exposure
of the non-trading portfolio in respect of MOP and RMB
arise mainly from the operation of overseas subsidiaries in
Macau and Mainland China. The net exposure positions
including the trading and non-trading portfolios, both by
individual currency and in aggregate, are managed by the
Treasury and Global Markets Division of the Group on a
daily basis within established foreign exchange limits.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.2 Market risk arising from the banking book (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis of non-trading portfolio (Continued)

(i) Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

Long-term foreign currency funding, to the extent that this
is used to fund Hong Kong dollar assets, or vice versa, is
normally matched using foreign exchange forward contracts
to reduce exposure to foreign exchange risk.

At 31 December 2021, if HK$ had weakened by 100 basis
points against RMB with all other variables held constant,
the profit after tax for the year and equity would have been
HK$39 million higher (2020: HK$41 million higher), mainly
as a result that the foreign exchange gain on translation of
RMB denominated financial assets outweighed the foreign
exchange losses on translation of RMB denominated
financial liabilities.

Conversely, if HK$ had strengthened by 100 basis points
against RMB with all other variables held constant, the
profit after tax for the year and equity would have been
HK$39 million lower (2020: HK$41 million lower).
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.2 Market risk arising from the banking book (Continued)

(b)

Sensitivity analysis of non-trading portfolio (Continued)

(ii)  Interest rate risk

The framework adopted by the Group to measure interest
rate risk exposures arising from its banking book positions
is consistent with the guidelines set out by the HKMA in
its Supervisory Policy Manual (“SPM”) on Interest Rate
Risk in the Banking Book (“IRRBB”). From an earnings
perspective, interest rate risk is the risk that the net income
arising from future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
From an economic value perspective, interest rate risk is
the risk that the economic value of a financial instrument
will undergo adverse impact because of changes in market
interest rates. The Group takes on interest rate risk from
both perspectives in the banking book. As such, the
interest margins or net interest income and the economic
value of the capital may increase or decrease as a result of
such changes or in the event that unexpected movements
arise. The Board and the Asset and Liability Management
Committee (“ALCO”) set limits on the level of mismatch of
interest rate repricing that may be undertaken and monitor
the interest rate impacts through scenario analysis and
stress testing regularly.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)
3.3.2 Market risk arising from the banking book (Continued)

(b) Sensitivity analysis of non-trading portfolio (Continued)

(ii)  Interest rate risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2021, if HK$ and US$ market interest
rates had experienced a 200 basis points parallel up shock
under the HKMA'’s standard parallel up scenario, with other
variables held constant, the impact on earnings over the
next 12 months and the impact on economic value of equity
would have been HK$78 million higher and HK$727 million
lower respectively (2020: HK$44 million higher and HK$435
million lower respectively).

The method and assumptions used in the above sensitivity
analysis on foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk are
broadly on the same basis for both 2020 and 2021.

In addition to foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk, the Group’s
investments in debt securities and equity securities are also exposed
to risks arising from other factors. Consequently, the value of such
investments could change significantly depending on a variety of factors
including liquidity risk, market sentiment and other events that might
affect individual or portfolios of exposures.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.3 Market risk (Continued)
3.3.3 Currency risk

The table below summarises the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities as well as off-balance sheet net notional positions and credit
commitments translated into equivalent HK$ amounts, categorised by

currency.
B Y A N Hity i
20215128318 At 31 December 2021 HKD UsD MOP RMB Others Total
BE Assets
B RIERITM AR Cash and balances with banks 6,144,644 1,386,160 644,542 2,395,942 2,220,574 12,791,862
ERMZE12[EANEIS Placements with banks maturing
HER between one and twelve months 2,922,855 268,824 2,117 888,863 531,144 4,613,803
BEEBERGENES Trading securities 4,425,384 - - - - 4425384
IWATE:t 2 AE2H: Financial assets at fair value
AERHSREE through profit or loss 35,983 302,270 - 14,119 256,894 609,266
fEeRIA Derivative financial instruments 50,869 489,281 - 11,457 84,245 635,852
XBESREMEEE Advances and other accounts 112,490,126 19,425,374 8,673,411 10,976,389 1,804,413 153,369,713
IATEEBEZEHA Financial assets at fair value through
2 ENENEREE other comprehensive income 10,206,736 34,732,299 36,991 140,751 1,281,491 46,398,268
DB ATIBRE S REE Financial assets at amortised cost 2,157,902 19,546,811 970,094 1,729,294 188,402 24,592,503
SREES Total financial assets 138,434,499 76,151,019 10,327,155 16,156,815 6,367,163 247,436,651
af Liabilities
BER Deposits from banks 64,147 1,377,614 - 259,937 1,499 1,703,197
fiEemIA Derivative financial instruments 50,424 1,298,004 - 6,628 70,309 1,425,365
FEEERRNEE Trading liabilties 1,511,927 - - - - 1511927
RPEH Deposits from customers 125,561,497 38,016,368 9,539,024 14,048,505 7,756,319 194,921,713
BEIRERE Certificates of deposit issued 200,057 6,389,660 - - - 6,589,717
{&IERE Subordinated notes - 4,128,046 - - - 412806
HibfRE LR Other accounts and accruals 5,616,329 1,345,378 647,470 508,399 51,786 8,169,362
SREEAH Total financial liabilities 133,004,381 52555470 10,186,494 14,823,469 7,879913 218,449,727
BEERRABRTE Net on-balance sheet positions 5430,118 23,595,549 140,661 1,333,346 (1,512,750) 28,986,924
EESRRIMEREERER Off-balance sheet net notional
positions* 17,201,973  (19,767,365) - (240,501) 2,630,250 (175,643)
EERE Credit commitments 62,398,672 7,579,705 2,294,001 3,749,471 106,901 76,128,750

* BERBERIMGREZZFREIZANRBAE
ESNEZE R ZINESRINTE T AR B FTFH

*

Off-balance sheet net notional positions represent the net notional
amounts of foreign currency derivative financial instruments which are
principally used to reduce the Group’s exposure to currency movements.
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3. BXEREE® 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 WHRER@ 3.3 Market risk (Continued)
3.3.3 SMEEEE @) 3.3.3 Currency risk (Continued)
BT e el ARE Eth A

20205124318 At 31 December 2020 HKD usb MOP RMB Others Total
BE Assets
Re RERTNER Cash and balances with banks 6,408,750 4,667,958 501,742 1,298,645 3242405 16,119,500
ERTIE12EA M2 Placements with banks maturing

B between one and twelve months 1,808,157 77516 = 3,689,143 167,924 5,742,740
HEEERENES Trading securities 5,080,047 = = = = 5,080,047
AATE: &R EEH:T Financial assets at fair value

NEEREHEE through profit or loss 103,993 166,504 - - 286,856 557,353
fTESRTA Derivative financial instruments 75,404 1,043,115 - 2,320 26,362 1,147,201
REEAREMER Advances and other accounts 106,001,317 20,053,964 8502,305 10,738,498 2,608,723 147,904,807
IATERE BEZEHA Financial assets at fair value through

Hit2ANSENEREE other comprehensive income 11,070819 33752555 36,826 65,624 1469,880 46,395,704
I\EESAR AT S BB E Financial assets at amortised cost 1,730,660 18,150,770 1,337,977 1,484,883 198,693 22,902,983
SHEEST Total financial assets 132,279,147 77912382  10,378850 17,279,113 8,000,843 245,850,335
af Liabilities
FAER Deposits from banks 125,921 1,928,551 = 1,365,645 80,325 3,500,442
fTESEBIA Derivative financial instruments 82,514 3,105,249 = 1,230 7,674 3,196,667
KIEEERENAR Trading liabilities 1,570,675 - = = = 1,570,675
REER Deposits from customers 123,328,094 35,808,904 9743334 13484743 7,536,270 189,901,345
BEEINERE Certificates of deposit issued 1,734,650 6,391,152 = = = 8,125,802
Bt Subordinated notes = 3,828,458 = = = 3,828,458
HifR A KR Other accounts and accruals 5,751,233 1,790,129 644,391 468,229 56,636 8,710,618
SREEAT Total financial liabilities 132,593,087 52,852,443 10,387,725 15,319,847 7,680,905 218,834,007
BEABERABAEE Net on-balance sheet positions (313,940) 25,059,939 (8875 1,959,266 319938 27,016,328
BEABRIBREERE Off-balance sheet net notional

positions* 21124262 (21,136,477) = (947,605) 757,213 (202,607)

FERE Credit commitments 66,383,165 8,126,556 1,988,267 1,824,825 166,307 78,489,120
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 Market risk (Continued)
3.3.4 Interest rate risk

The table below summarises the Group’s exposure to interest rate risks.
Included in the table are the Group’s financial assets and liabilities at
carrying amounts, categorised by the earlier of contractual repricing or
maturity dates.

EANL
3{@A BE 1£0E
FUT Over B56 5N FitE,

3 months 3months  Over 1 year Over  Non-interest &5
2021%12A31A At 31 December 2021 or less to 1 year to 5 years 5years Bearing Total
EE Assets
R RIERITH AR Cash and balances with banks 10,025,013 630,420 - - 2,136,429 12,791,862
ERMIZE12(ER M35 Placements with banks maturing

HER between one and twelve months 1,850,214 2,763,589 - - - 4,613,803
BEEERRNES Trading securities 2,248,385 2,164,714 12,285 - - 4,425,384
IATEE BEZEA Financial assets at fair value through

ERfeREE profit or loss 37,511 - - - 571,695 609,266
fTEERTA Derivative financial instruments - - - - 635,852 635,852
REERREMEE Advances and other accounts 131,332,932 10,131,026 5,365,482 227,537 6,312,736 153,369,713
IATEEBEEHHA Financial assets at fair value through

A2 ERRNERHEE other comprehensive income 8,471,896 7,211,145 17,594,765 8,197,295 4,923,167 46,398,268

BRSNS REE Financial assets at amortised cost

SREER Total financial assets

af Liabilities

BITER Deposits from banks

ITESBIA Derivative financial instruments

BEEEREMER Trading liabilties

BFREH Deposits from customers

BEINERE Certificates of deposit issued

kEEK Subordinated notes

iR A kR Other accounts and accruals

SRAEAT Total financial liabilities

FEgBEEAH Total interest sensitivity gap
(REHE) (unadjusted)*

FIRfTETRAN & Effect of interest rate derivative

contracts

FSSREESH (LHR) Total interest sensitivity gap
(adjusted)*

* RERENSBREENREERBRRANEEMN
BEMNBEEET - KARMNBHREZEDFA
FUBE A X AR AT M ERITE TR S MR
B

4,682,704 2,071,409 11,303,111 6,521,913 13,366 24,592,503

158,648,715 24,972,303 34275643 14,946,745 14,593,245 247,436,651

1,695,507 - - - 7,690 1,703,197

- - - - 1,425,365 1,425,365

1,511,927 = = = = 1,511,927
167,803,436 9,771,425 1,081,214 - 16,265,638 194,921,713
1,737,343 4,468,052 384,322 = = 6,589,717

- = 4,128,446 = = 4,128,446

346,349 96,554 323,061 158,491 7,244,907 8,169,362

173,094,562 14,336,031 5,917,043 158,491 24,943,600 218,449,727

(14,445,847) 10,636,272 28,358,600 14,788,254

28,679,285 216,443  (14,790,621)  (14,105,107)

14,233,438 10,852,715 13,567,979 683,147

Unadjusted interest sensitivity gap is determined based on positions of on-
balance sheet assets and liabilities. Adjusted interest sensitivity gap takes
into account the effect of interest rate derivative contracts entered into to
mitigate interest rate risk.
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3. H¥ERERm@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 WHRER@ 3.3 Market risk (Continued)
3.3.4 FIFEEEE ) 3.3.4 Interest rate risk (Continued)
3fEAMNLE
3fEA BE 155 F
E1N Over B5F 5ELE TEr8
3 months Imonths  Over 1 year Over  Non-interest Bt

20205127318 At 31 December 2020 orless to 1 year to 5 years 5 years Bearing Total
BE Assets
B RIERITH AR Cash and balances with banks 11,673,520 = = = 4445980 16,119,500
ERME12ANFIH Placements with banks maturing

HER between one and twelve months 2,293,897 3,448,843 = = = 5,742,740
KEEERENES Trading securities 2,743,279 2,306,679 30,089 = - 5,080,047
WATE 8 BEZEEHA Financial assets at fair value through

BRMsHEE profit or loss = = = = 557,353 557,353
fTESRIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - 1,147,201 1,147,201
XBEHREMEEE Advances and other accounts 124,832,195 9,713,964 5,616,149 268,641 7473858 147,904,807
IATEEBEZHHA Financial assets at fair value through

Ht2ENENEREE other comprehensive income 10,158,005 6,460,216 16,823,708 8,412,722 4541053 46,395,704
BB AT RS REE Financial assets at amortised cost 2,935,102 2,307,555 9,952,284 7,694,675 13367 22,902,983
CREESH Total financial assets 154,635,098 24237257 32422230 16376038 18178812 245850335
L Liabilities
BITER Deposits from banks 3,492,389 - - - 8,053 3,500,442
fTEeRIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - 3,196,667 3,196,667
BEEERENAR Trading liabilties 1,129,526 440,132 1,017 = = 1570,675
RREH Deposits from customers 161,608,735 11,468,283 2,285,593 - 14538734 189,901,345
BEIRERE Certificates of deposit issued 4257530 3,766,378 101,894 = - 8125802
BEER Subordinated notes = 1,964,475 1,863,983 = = 3,828,458
HihiR A kR Other accounts and accruals 546,910 121,134 299,485 218,182 7,524,907 8,710,618
ERERAE Total financial liabilities 171,085,090 17,760,402 4,551,972 218,182 25268361 218,834,007
FISHREBA(REHFZL)"  Total interest sensitivity gap (unadjusted)*  (16,399,092) 6,476,855 27,870,258 16,157,856
FIRfTAETRANZF/E Effect of interest rate derivative contracts 29,430,281 2830791 (17,501,718)  (14,759,355)
FlE R EBA (LHE) Total interest sensitivity gap (adjusted)* 13,031,189 9,307,646 10,368,540 1,398,501
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to fund increases in
assets or meet its payment obligations associated with its financial
liabilities when they fall due without incurring unacceptable loss.

3.4.1 Liquidity risk management process

The Group manages its liquidity on a prudent basis with the objective
to comply with the statutory standards and to ensure that there is
an adequate liquidity and funding capacity to meet normal business
operations and to withstand severe liquidity stresses. The Group has
adopted the Liquidity Maintenance Ratio (“LMR”) and the Core Funding
Ratio (“CFR”) as the regulatory standards specified by the HKMA for
reporting on the Group’s liquidity position. During the period, the Group
had maintained sufficiently high LMR and CFR well above the statutory
minimum of 25% and 75% respectively.

Moreover, the Group has maintained a sound liquidity risk management
framework in accordance with the HKMA'’s requirements set forth in
the SPM LM-1 on “Regulatory Framework for Supervision of Liquidity
Risk” and the SPM module LM-2 on “Sound Systems and Controls
for Liquidity Risk Management”. The SPM LM-1 is to provide the
approach adopted by the HKMA for supervising and assessing the
liquidity risk of banks while the SPM LM-2 is developed to implement
the liquidity sound principles formulated by the Basel Committee on
Banking Supervision (“Basel Committee”) to strengthen the liquidity risk
management standards of banks.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.1 Liquidity risk management process (Continued)

Liquidity risk management is governed by the policy and framework
approved by the Board, which delegates to the Group’s ALCO to
oversee liquidity risk management. The ALCO regularly reviews the
Group’s loan and deposit mix and changes, funding requirements and
projections, and monitors a set of liquidity risk metrics, including the
LMR, CFR and maturity mismatch on an ongoing basis. In addition,
material changes in the liquidity risk metrics together with any
corresponding proposed mitigation actions will be reviewed by ALCO.
Appropriate limits or triggers on these risk metrics are set and sufficient
liquid assets are held to ensure that the Group can maintain a sufficient
level of stable funding to support its asset growth. The Treasury and
Global Markets Division is responsible for the day-to-day management
of funding and liquidity position while the GRD is responsible for the
measurement and monitoring of liquidity risk exposures on a daily and
monthly basis, and also conducting liquidity analysis and stress testing.
The Financial Control Division handles regulatory reporting in relation to
liquidity risk, and coordinates the regular forecast of loans and deposits,
and LMR, CFR, budget and analysis relating to liquidity and funding
management.

The Group places considerable importance to establish a diversified
and stable funding. While customer deposits form the primary portion of
the Group’s funding, certificates of deposit and medium term notes are
issued at opportune times in order to lengthen the funding maturity and
optimise asset and liability maturities. Short-term interbank deposits are
taken on a limited basis with the aim of maintaining the presence in the
market and the Group is a net lender to the interbank market.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.1 Liquidity risk management process (Continued)

The monitoring and reporting take the forms of cash flow measurements
and projections for different time horizons, including the next day,
week and month, which are key periods for liquidity management. The
starting point for those projections is an analysis of the contractual
maturity of the financial assets and liabilities as well as the expected
maturity of these assets and liabilities based on historical observations.
The cash flow projections also take into account the historical behaviour
of off-balance sheet items, including undrawn lending commitments and
contingent liabilities such as standby letters of credit and guarantees.
The Group always maintains an adequate liquidity cushion, which is
composed of high quality marketable securities with sufficient market
depth to meet its liquidity needs at all times, even under adverse market
conditions. Eligible securities in the cushion mainly have low risk and
simple structure and can be readily sold or used as collateral to obtain
funds within a short period of time. Debt securities held are marked to
the market on daily basis to ensure their market liquidity.
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3. BXEREE® 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 REBESEE @ 3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

341 FEELEBREZERESF &)

3.4.1 Liquidity risk management process (Continued)

BEETT In HK$ million
20214 20204
12A31H 12H31H
Ao As at As at
Internal HARZER| 31 December 31 December
categorisation Basic Criteria 2021 2020
BB REDSEBHBTINDELOBA - ZEBRRT  AREREERA 13,696 16,150
EEMBETRERZEAREER%NE EES
Tier 1 Marketable securities issued or guaranteed by government,
multilateral development banks, relevant international
organisations and public sector entities with a 0% risk weight
under the Basel Il Standardised Approach
FE2AMR RECEBHEIDEEOBAT - SBBRRGT - ALBLRESH 7,923 6,847
PEBITRERZ EREER20%N B ERS
Tier 2A Marketable securities issued or guaranteed by government,
multilateral development banks, public sector entities and
non-financial corporate entities with a 20% risk weight under
the Basel Il Standardised Approach
F2BAR 2L BEEREBERLFIBRENREEEARL RPN AIREEE 40,725 37,732
Wb BB EITHRR Ht B EES
Tier 2B Other marketable securities issued or guaranteed by corporate or

financial institutions with at least an investment grade and those
securities that may be included in “liquefiable assets” under the
liquidity maintenance ratio.
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3. BXEREE®
3.4 REBESEE @
341 FEELEBREZERESF &)

AREEFEHETENNS - SFERES ERH
B~ —RIIB A R OFA M E TR T R IAR
ERBUEMRRERBZMIHER THEEZE -
REERY —RIARERER  BRELOR
EHNERRS RAEBRAEMNFHHED
[2\Be 2 ARBTG5 18R - REB MR E S EE T
2 FIEHESEN 2 REMNERER TR
MIREMT R IR (HIaETT R =R 5k #
BERERDERREER G EE) - SFETHE
BARARELSFEHNREE B URERED
ARERBEY -  KRERAM R ZRATFRAE
IRREFBERATZRERFAME - NFREE
MWE=ZNDZRXHEE - ARBZMBARNER
REBERTRERERBESHNIABNEFE
Z o REBZNTETARHRE RINES K KA
KA - REBEZITET AR GRS RINEEH)
RMEEH - RRAKERTETARSEHFZ
ERRLBHER  BRRz 2B REEE 2 EE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.1 Liquidity risk management process (Continued)

The Group performs stress testing regularly, which includes an
institution-specific crisis scenario, a general market crisis scenario and
a combination of these crisis scenarios in order to assess the potential
impact on its liquidity position under stressed market conditions. The
Group maintains a set of early warning indicators, including qualitative
and quantitative factors and involving both internal and market
indicators that help identify any emerging risk at an early stage. The
Group maintains a contingency plan that sets out its strategies for
dealing with liquidity stresses and the procedures for making up cash
flow deficits (e.g. conducting repo transactions or liquidation of assets
held for liquidity risk management purpose) in emergency situations.
An annual drill test is conducted and the contingency plan is reviewed
at least annually to ensure it remains sound and effective. Intragroup
transactions are conducted on arm’s length basis and are treated the
same way as other third party transactions for the purpose of cash
flow projection under normal scenario. Subsidiaries of the Group are
required to manage their liquidity positions to meet their needs under
both normal and stressed conditions. Most of the Group’s derivative
transactions are exchange rate contracts and interest rate contracts.
Under the terms of our collateral arrangements with derivative
counterparties, collateral movements are not linked with the credit
ratings of the Group.
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3. HEEKREE® 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.4 REBELEE @) 3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

34.2 FRIH T 3.4.2 Maturity analysis

TEROMAEBZBREAREB@AES AR E A The table below analyses the Group’s assets and liabilities into relevant
HFEAERA(ER) 2 FHRBRS 2 EER maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the end of the
BfE - reporting period to the contractual maturity date or, where applicable,

the earliest callable date.

1fR%E  3EANL
18R E3EARNUT EF 1ERE

pHEE AT 3months or Over B5E SENL
Repayable Upto lessbutover ~ 3months  Overtyear Over  EXHEH fit

20215124318 At 31 December 2021 on demand 1 month 1 month tolyear  to5years 5 years Indefinite Total
gE Assets
R RIS Cash and balances with banks 4203561 8,498,301 - - - - - 12,791,862
ERT1Z12ERRM Placements with banks maturing

@R between one and twelve months - - 1850215 2,763,588 - - - 4613803
HESERENES Trading securities - 27399 1990986 2,164,714 12,285 - - 4405384
KATEEAEES Financial assets at fair value through

TAERNEREE profitor loss - - - - - - 609,266 609,266
TESRTA Derivative financial instruments - 142,748 82,257 106,992 154,208 149,647 - 635,852
FREHREMEE Advances and other accounts 7695540 25,715,450 9378984 20,301,299 45265899 42,815,247 2,197,294 153,369,713

WATEFSAEEEHA  Financial assets at fair value through
Et2EREMEHEE  other comprehensive income
SRRSO EBEE  Financial assets at amortised cost

2,391,285 4,639,872 8,664,049 17,491,336 8,197,295 5014431 46,398,268
1,520,903 1,771,787 2,602,765 12,064,648 6,619,034 13,366 24,592,503

BENRE Investment in an associate - - - - - - 4230951 4230951
KEEGERLRE Investments in jointly controlled entities - - - - - - 114,373 114,373
5 Goodwill - - - - - - 785,774 785,774
BEE Intangible assets - - - - - - 80,927 80,927
EREMETEE Premises and other fixed assets - - - - - - 3051205 3,051,205
VS Investment properties - - - - - - 760,256 760,256
ELHAEE Deferred income tax assets - - - - 70,852 - - 70,852
BEAT Total assets 11,989,101 38,526,086 19,714,101 36,603,407 75,059,228 57,781,223 16,857,843 256,530,989
8 Liabilities

KRR Deposits from banks 57,311 721,683 924,203 - - - - 1,703,197
TEERTIA Derivative financial instruments - 128,735 60,438 155,569 514,338 566,285 - 1,425,365
REBERAMAR Trading liabilties - 500,001 1,011,926 - - = - 1511927
REER Deposits from customers 91,049,003 30673333 61,656,685 10,231,602 1,311,090 - - 194,921,713
BRINETE Certificates of deposit issued - 100,057 1,637,286 4,468,052 384,322 - - 6,589,717
BEER Subordinated notes - - - - 4128446 - - 4128446
HERE Lease liabilties - 12597 24,423 97,120 327,104 158,491 - 620,335
EthRPRER Other accounts and accruals,

THfEREEE excluding lease liabilities 329,446 1,669,121 499,823 1,745,904 1,312,564 910,750 1,081,419 7,549,027
SEHEERE Current income tax liabilties - - - 162,365 - - - 162,365
ERLHEARE Deferred income tax liabilities - - - - 92,550 - - 92,550
BEA Total liabilities 91,435,760 33,805,527 65,814,784 16,360,612 8,071,014 1,635,526 1,081,419 218,704,642
FREMEE Net liquidity gap (79,446,659) 4720559  (46,100,683) 19,742,795 66,988,214  56,145697 15776424 37,826,347
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3. BXEREE®

3.4

REBESRER @

3.4.2 ZIRIH B (&)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.2 Maturity analysis (Continued)

AL SEANE
1A ESEAZUT EE 1455k
AR ST 3months or Over E5EF SEM £
Repayable Upto lessbutover ~ 3months  Over1 year Over  BHHAE 8%

2020512310 At 31 December 2020 on demand 1 month 1 month fo 1 year to5 years 5 years Indefinite Total
gE Assets

e RERTHES Cash and balances with banks 4896202 7350737 3872561 - - - - 16,119,500
ERME2ERR Placements with banks maturing

5|HeER between one and twelve months - - 2237402 3505338 - - - 5742740
HEEERBNES Trading securities - 789,485 1,953,794 2,306,679 30,089 - - 5,080,047
WATEFSEER Financial assets at fair value through

STABRNEREE profit or loss - - - - - - 557,353 557,353
fTESRTE Derivative financial instruments - 184,802 373,886 362,305 193,688 32430 - 1,147,201
REETREMER Advances and other accounts 7,576,141 23,644,219 12292148 21,195,493 39,675,080 41,807,136 1,714590 147,904,807
WATEFSALEEHA  Financial assets at fair value through

EhzEhaterEE other comprehensive income - 1,583,228 6,081,943 7447465 18,237,686 8,412,722 4632660 46,395,704
DESNATIFMEHEE  Financial assets at amortised cost - 876,659 867,655 2,307,684 11,142,951 7,694,667 13367 22,902,983
AN Investment in an associate - - - - - - 4TI 4211927
RFZHERRE Investments in jointly controlled entities - - - - - - 105,553 105,553
R Goodwil - - - - - - 776,364 776,364
BYEE Intangible assets - - - - - - 80,927 80,927
NEREMEATEE Premises and other fixed assets - - - - - - 312892 312892
RENE Investment properties - - - - - - 671,150 671,150
BLHEAE Deferred income tax assets - - - - 69,923 - - 69,923
BEAsT Total assets 12472343 34429220 27679380 37124964 69349417 57046955 15958813 254,961,101
8 Liabiliies
FicHUEE Deposits from banks 197205 1650234 1712913 - - - - 3500442
fTESRTE Derivative financial instruments - 172,487 324,462 369,288 1,043,400 1,287,030 - 3,196,667
BEEERRMER Trading liabilities - 160,498 969,028 440,132 1,017 - - 1,570,675
RFER Deposits from customers 102,005,801 69,682,077 8,705,645 6,874,190 2,633,632 - - 189,901,345
BRINERE Certificates of deposit issued - 1,007,680 464,932 6,551,296 101,894 - - 8,125,802
) Subordinated notes - - - 1,964,475 1,863,983 - - 3,828,458
HERR Lease liabilities - 15,207 38,223 120,033 297,806 218,181 - 689,450
AP RTER - Other accounts and accruals,

MEREEE excluding lease liabilities 74,176 2,302,903 426,634 1,399,689 1,132,838 1,062,585 1,622,343 8,021,168
HEfEas Current income tax liabilties - - - 389,147 - - - 389,147
BRHEGE Deferred income tax liabilties - - - - 46,978 - - 46,978
BfEA% Total liabilities 102,217,272 74,991,086 12,641,837 18,108,250 7,121,548 2,567,796 1,622,343 219,270,132
FRatER Net liquidity gap (89,744929)  (40,561,866) 15,087,552 19,016,714 62227869 55379159 14,336,470 35,690,969
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3. HEEKREE® 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

34 REBELRM @ 3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

34.2 FEHZH 3.4.2 Maturity analysis (Continued)
RBERRFERERERBEEEEAT AN In respect of certificates of deposit held for investment purpose
FHRB 2 EAER  REDEH BRI Z FRER and included in total assets as at the end of the reporting period,
AHIREAT : the relevant balance, analysed based on the remaining period to

contractual maturity is shown as follows:

1EARE
38R SEANL
AUT BE {ENL
PHEE  1BAIUT  3Imonths or Over B5% 5EHE

Repayable Upto lessbutover ~ 3months  Over 1 year Over EHAM GH
on demand 1 month 1 month tolyear  to5years 5years  Indefinite Total
2021512A318 At 31 December 2021
T HEQER : Certficates of deposit held included in:
JATEFEAEEET A Financial assets at fair value through other
A EANENEREE comprehensive income - 150,015 93,789 - 245,970 - - 489,774
DERHATIENSMAE  Financial assets at amortised cost - 244904 244036 720872 327552 - - 1537364
2020%512A318 At 31 December 2020
T FEEER Certificates of deposit held included in:

IAFEFEAEEHFA  Financial assets at fair value through other

A2 ERGEHEREE comprehensive income - - - 100,110 244,238 - - 344,348
DERHATIENSMAE  Financial assets at amortised cost - 23809 99967 1407544 - - - 1,745,601
BEHEEHR LANEORREM I ER Y E The matching and controlled mismatching of the maturities and interest
EEEE+SEE - HRETHNESRSIEES rates of assets and liabilities are fundamental to the management of the
Kﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ&?ﬁﬁ%ﬁgu  ¥ERTTI S - w2 Group. It is unusual for banks to be completely matched, as businesses
BRI AR - TSNS EiEa & transacted are often of uncertain term and of different types. An
Flgehh - B ﬁg/\i- EEE K - unmatched position potentially enhances profitability, but also increases

the risk of losses.
BEHBENINEHARUNSERNKAZSREE 2 The maturities of assets and liabilities and the ability to replace, at an
MEBENRED  2fHEERHES RERF acceptable cost, interest-bearing liabilities as they mature are important
RNEREHFTRIERBHNEERE - factors in assessing the liquidity of the Group and its exposure to
changes in interest rates and exchange rates.
AEE BRI TERE= A 2REGEHZ2HF Liquidity requirements to support calls under guarantees and
BES  FENEFRNERERABETNEAIERN standby letters of credit are considerably less than the amount of
MBESEREVNEIENSEE AN RZEE the commitment because the Group does not generally expect the
AERE B KR IFEHBERES - Bt ARIE third parties to fully draw funds under the agreement. The total
HEEZEEAENRENASNEALSTEARANER outstanding contractual amount of commitments to extend credit does
HiEMIEESENK o not necessarily represent future cash requirements, as many of these

commitments will expire or terminate without being funded.
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3. BXEREE®
3.4 REBESEE @
343 BEXNFBAZFAHELEST

TRINTAEEFINTEE BB BN - 17
AEBBERECREMIEAERTAGE A
o RBERR AN YA RSREHSELEL
BEMm - RNIITZBBERAORBRRER
MAEEKBAFT 2 ARERBARSAERESF
RN E 2R -

. SMNEDTAET R : HINZ HINERRE - JNEH
g - XA ZINERHE

o FIEFTATA : MXEH  EHMEREL -
BN BRI - FIRHIE REMARE

R

c BEUTETH - Rt R R RS

o HNESTETA : EHEINE - HNERERZHR
IR

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.3 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

The table below presents the cash flows payable by the Group under
non-derivative financial liabilities, derivative financial liabilities that will
be settled on a net basis and derivative financial instruments that will
be settled on gross basis by remaining contractual maturities at the
end of the reporting period. The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows, whereas the Group manages the
inherent liquidity risk based on expected undiscounted cash inflows.

The Group’s derivatives that normally will be settled on a net basis
include:

. Foreign exchange derivatives: OTC currency options, currency
futures, exchange-traded currency options;

3 Interest rate derivatives: interest rate swaps, forward rate
agreements, OTC interest rate options, interest rate futures and

other interest rate contracts; and

. Equity derivatives: equity options and equity futures.

The Group’s derivatives that will be settled on a gross basis include:

o Foreign exchange derivatives: currency forward, currency swaps
and cross currency interest rate swaps;

3 Interest rate derivatives: interest rate swaps; and

o Credit derivatives: credit default swaps.
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3. H¥ERERm@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.4 REBELEE @) 3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
34.3 BEA BB AZ KB R £ 5 (&) 3.4.3 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

(Continued)

1fBANLE SEAMUL
SEARIT 2E 180 E
1fAZAT 3 months or Over 5%

Upto less but over 3months  Over 1 year 56HLE fF
2021%12A318 At 31 December 2021 1 month 1 month to 1 year to5years  Over5 years Total
FETARER Non-derivative cash flow
aff Liabilities
RITEH Deposits from banks 779,026 924,913 - - - 1,703,939
BFER Deposits from customers 122,315,853 62,263,119 10,345,961 1,342,110 - 196,267,043
BIEEERENAR Trading liabilities 500,000 1,012,008 - - - 1,512,008
BRTRTERE Certificates of deposit issued 102,543 1,644,480 4,491,532 395,611 - 6,634,166
T Subordinated notes 44,343 - 113539 4,505,489 - 4663371
HEARE Lease liabilities 13,254 25,683 102,201 341,907 161,278 644,323
HitafE Other liabilities 1,848,341 547,860 728,268 615,591 350,178 4,090,238
BEEE Total liabilities

(AEIEA) (contractual maturity dates) 125,603,360 66,418,063 15,781,501 7,200,708 511,456 215,515,088
FIETARSR Derivative cash flow
REFEEE TESRIA Derivative financial instruments settled
on net basis (1,124) 1,318 2,055 (14,253) 2,296 (9,708)
RERREE 7 {TESRTA Derivative financial instruments settled
on a gross basis
yiutet Total outflow 48,789,682 16,750,300 17,297,065 3,749,175 1,067,931 87,654,153
A Total inflow (48,726,928) | |(16,732,620) | |(16,781,821) (2,053,710) (497,691) | |(84,792,770)
62,754 17,680 515,244 1,695,465 570,240 2,861,383
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3. H¥ERERm@m
3.4 REBESREK @
343 BEXNFEHZFAHEBES @)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.3 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

(Continued)
1MEANLEE  3EAME
3EAKMUT BE N
1EAZLAT 3 months or Over Z5EF
Upto  lessbut over 3months  Over 1 year SE E fit
20204127318 At 31 December 2020 1 month 1 month to 1 year to5years  Over5 years Total
HITETERER Non-derivative cash flow
A Liabilities
RITER Deposits from banks 1,805,393 1,701,134 4,098 - - 3,510,625
BFER Deposits from customers 127,400,638  49,045973 11,854,680 2,713224 - 191,014,515
FEEERENAR Trading liabilities 160,500 969,008 440,126 1,008 - 1570,642
BETHEHRE Certificates of deposit issued 1,032,951 473,063 6,598,777 102,543 - 8,207,334
{BERER Subordinated notes 43 361 - 2063648 1,962,136 - 4069145
HERE Lease liabiliies 16,121 39,946 126,446 316,929 202,892 722,334
HitRfE Other liabilities 2,214,553 655,872 815,190 428,448 253,054 4,367,117
BELE Total liabilities
(R%3I4R) (contractual maturity dates) 132,673,517 52884996 21,902,965 5,524,288 475946 213,461,712
ITETERSR Derivative cash flow
BEBEETEERTA Derivative financial instruments settled
on net basis (16,257) 940 314 (554) 594 (14,963)
REBEE /TEERTA Derivative financial instruments settled
on a gross basis
it 8% Total outflow 11,706,176 | | 21,479,924 | | 29,343,852 3,977,676 1256574 | | 67,764,202
MALE Total inflow (11,649,551) | |(21,399,229) | |(28,940,253) | | (2,188,269) (634,012) | |(64,811,314)
56,625 80,695 403,599 1,789,407 622,562 2,952,888
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3. BXEREE® 3.
3.4 REBELEE @) 3.4
344 BEEMEZXIER 3.4.4
TRBENATIER : Includ
. EFAERTEEEEREMRG 2 ERURE .
(CEBAEBEERERIIGHTAZE
#)AR& HE)

o RERAARARGROBN 2 HE c
&

c AEERAEBAZ T AT BUBKR TR A EER o
ARE 2 RIEBENRERE &

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Off-balance sheet items

ed in the table below are the following items:

Loan commitments by reference to the dates of the contractual

amounts of the Group’s off-balance sheet financial instruments
that commit it to extend credit to customers and other facilities;

Financial guarantees based on the conditions existing at the
reporting date as to what contractual payments are required,;

The future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of operating lease commitments
where a Group company is the lessee; and

. BEEERRBIEARRE - . Capital commitments for the acquisition of buildings and
equipment.
1E R 10 E
No later Z54F 585 E &5t
202112831H At 31 December 2021 than 1 year 1-5years Over 5 years Total
BRuRE Loan commitments 70,691,292 2,790,191 64,236 73,545,719
PR A R EAM S BARTS Guarantees, acceptances and other
financial facilities
- ERRERERZE - Guarantees and standby letters
of credit 1,840,864 38,570 - 1,879,434
- REREEEAE — Documentary and commercial
letters of credit 703,597 - - 703,597
BT A A Operating lease commitments 6,985 21,997 - 28,982
B Capital commitments 17,310 85,279 - 102,589
=H) Total 73,260,048 2,936,037 64,236 76,260,321
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3. BXEREE® 3.
3.4 REBESEE @
344 BEEEFEFKIEH &)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.4 Off-balance sheet items (Continued)

1FEAR 1L E
No later E54F 5 L &t
202012 431H At 31 December 2020 than 1 year 1-5years  Over5 years Total
BRURYE Loan commitments 74,263,218 2,176,395 19,751 76,459,364
PR A R EAM S BIARTS Guarantees, acceptances and
other financial facilities
- EREERERE — Guarantees and standby letters
of credit 1,065,098 114,284 3,476 1,182,858
- REREEEAE — Documentary and commercial
letters of credit 846,898 - - 846,898
i ST Operating lease commitments 9,304 19,649 = 28,953
BRESE Capital commitments 108,241 89,999 - 198,240
A&t Total 76,292,759 2,400,327 23227 78,716,313
35 tREEREBEZATE 3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

(F) AFEZEE

AFEXRRAREFSAARRAEES
EEOGEEREFRF CEHIER -2
ZEREVERKRERRZBERESHT
AZERF - HEHRREIE KRR
B EEAERMERRAEEE (ER) B
MHETT - MAEAERDERRE @ BERA
FEEBRIEZ TR -

EMTRZAFEDERATMSER TS
SEENTBAETZEFRSTHERE
PR R B AN 2 BIE - T (B
RAER A BRLE B GETAMGE -

(a) Determination of fair value

Fair values are subject to a control framework that the Board is
held responsible for ensuring proper valuation governance and
control processes of the Group. It delegates the responsibility for
overseeing the valuation process for financial instruments to the
TIRC. Valuation is performed independently by RMCD and where
appropriate, by independent and professionally qualified valuers
and actuaries and the valuation results are periodically verified to
ensure the integrity of the fair value measurement process.

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date
under current market conditions regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using a valuation technique.
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MR EE @
EMEEREBBEZATE®@

(F) RAFEZEE®E

RemTEZ HREBFETHARSH - X
S BN TFRAR  EERBMEE
I - AIRERERM S HREZER
TH - NERMS cRE/AFERKKA
F2EE  WARAERRER - MepE
EXERBEFEABRELE  AEEK
RREEEZETPEXFRATHRERRAT
BB -

Mem TR ZAIBRMIGREREEEE
15 AEEFREERERZR ZMER
EMETZESMIAZATE  BERER
ERIBEBRETEEER  c NEAZESR
TAZMERER NEERSAREFER
FERE AT B ER(HR (a0« FE - [ER R E)
M EEEE) MERIBREFERTAE
BUKIE o FIAnN RIS A 2 A T ER R
BARKE @R IRETE o REINESRZ
ANFE—BIBRRTRBEXRGE - i
SRZAFERGE EBREEAE - 40
Black—Scholest&7! o

AEEFEMRIFRELEAHGERRE - U
BErEeRBAEIEEBAATEFEZH
REZHRE - WAREZEEREER
BEZEETE TREeRAZFARBELZ
Wit o WAKREZEEEEWE - AEZE
BLHA ASEEEIMHZFREZE

1B

MEFE - ARGERFZERBEBERZ2H
SRFABZNRAESER  EhLEFE
ZEERNTSERER -

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
(a) Determination of fair value (Continued)

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market
if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an
exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or
regulatory agency. A quoted price in an active market provides
the most reliable evidence of fair value and shall be used
whenever available. If a financial asset or a financial liability has a
bid price and an ask price, the price within the bid-ask spread that
is most representative of fair value in the circumstances is used
by the Group.

Where observable market quotation of financial instruments is
not directly available, the Group estimates the fair value of such
financial instruments by using appropriate valuation techniques
that are widely recognised including present value techniques and
standard option pricing models. In applying valuation techniques
for these financial instruments, the Group maximises the use of
relevant observable inputs (for examples, interest rates, foreign
exchange rates, volatilities, credit spreads) and minimises the use
of unobservable inputs. For example, the fair value of interest-rate
swaps is calculated as the present value of the estimated future
cash flows, the fair value of foreign exchange forward contracts
is generally based on current forward rates and the fair value of
option contracts is derived using appropriate pricing models, such
as Black-Scholes model.

The Group uses external price quotes and its own credit spreads
in determining the current value of its financial liabilities and other
liabilities for which it has elected the fair value option. When the
Group’s credit spreads widen, the Group recognises a gain on
these liabilities because the value of the liabilities has decreased.
When the Group’s credit spreads narrow, the Group recognises
a loss on these liabilities because the value of the liabilities has
increased.

Price data and parameters used in the measurement process
are reviewed carefully and adjusted, if necessary, to take
consideration of the current market developments.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
(b) Fair value hierarchy

The Group measures fair values using the following hierarchy
that reflects the significance of the observable and unobservable
inputs used in the fair value measurement:

Level Descriptions

1 Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities. This level includes equity
securities and derivatives that are listed on exchanges.

2 Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived
from prices). This level includes the majority of the OTC
derivative contracts.

8 Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs). This
level includes equity and debt securities with significant
unobservable components.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
(b) Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value:

Recurring fair value measurements

F1R FE28% £33 a5t
2021%F12H31H At 31 December 2021 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AR Descriptions
AT ETEREE Financial assets at fair value

STABENEREE through profit or loss
BEEEH Debt securities - 4,425,384 - 4,425384
B ES R Equity securities and
KEHES investment funds 522,239 - 87,027 609,266
PTESRMTA Derivative financial instruments
HIEEERS Held for trading 14,796 360,405 - 375,201
B RIEEH Held for hedging - 260,651 - 260,651
AT ETEAEE Financial assets at fair value
ST AE At 2 HE W Y through other comprehensive
SREE income
BESES Debt securities - 41,367,793 - 41,367,793
PR A Equity securities 4,925,251 22,433 82,791 5,030,475
BN EE 2 EEAST Total assets measured at fair
value 5,462,286 46,436,666 169,818 52,068,770
AFEFEBHEZS) ST Financial liabilities at fair value
AR /A E through profit or loss — held for
trading
HIEEERZ Debt securities - 1,511,927 - 1,511,927
PTESRMTA Derivative financial instruments
HIEEERE Held for trading - 315,959 - 315,959
FrE REEH Held for hedging - 1,109,406 - 1,109,406
BNV ETE 2 8ESST Total liabilities measured at fair
value - 2,937,292 - 2,937,292

RERFIRHNEEZ CREERIFLTE
SRS REFNERKEERE - RIFL
mEmEESNERREEREHENRE
HEITE - EARRAFEIIR - BEKAK

BT °

HZ2021F12 A31H KX2020F12 A31H 1+
FE HECREERBEEASIEL AT
BEFPINEL - F2RFEILF - BREEE

BREMHKE R

o

carrying value represent the revaluation gains/losses.

Financial assets classified as Level 3 assets represent direct or indirect
investments in unlisted equity securities and debentures. An indirect
investment in unlisted equity securities is revaluated at the discounted
offer price. Others are stated at fair value which approximates the cost.

For the year ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, there
were no transfers of financial assets and liabilities into or out of the
Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 fair value hierarchy. The changes in
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B 7S B B 2R () 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
cREEREEZAFE@® 3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
(Z) R-FEER @ (b) Fair value hierarchy (continued)
BRATEFEZEERBE : (& Assets and liabilities measured at fair value: (Continued)
BEMATFETE®) Recurring fair value measurements (Continued)

ER FEom E3R B
2020 12AH31H At 31 December 2020 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AR Descriptions

AN EFT= EEEE) Financial assets at fair value

STABENEREE through profit or loss
BIEES Debt securities - 5,080,047 - 5,080,047
EmEES R Equity securities and
KEES investment funds 524,244 - 33,109 557,353
PTESmIE Derivative financial instruments
FIEEEH® Held for trading 11,387 945,983 — 957,370
FrE RESH Held for hedging - 189,831 - 189,831
AAFEFT = EHEEE) Financial assets at fair value
FTAH MR ER through other comprehensive
SREE income
BEES Debt securities — 41,747,048 — 41,747,048
R E A Equity securities 4,550,097 16,070 82,489 4,648,656
BATE 82 EEAST Total assets measured at fair
value 5,085,728 47,978,979 115,598 53,180,305
AN AR E BEES)ET  Financial liabilities at fair value
ABTmHNESmEE through profit or loss — held for
trading
FHEEEASE Debt securities — 1,570,675 = 1,570,675
PTESRITA Derivative financial instruments
FREEEASE Held for trading 5,479 899,670 - 905,149
FrE REEH Held for hedging - 2,291,518 - 2,291,518
WA EEZABESET  Total liabilities measured at fair
value 5,479 4,761,863 - 4,767,342
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
(c) Financial instruments not measured at fair value

The following methods and significant assumptions have been
applied in determining the fair values of financial instruments
presented below:

(i) Placements with banks

The fair value of floating rate placements and overnight
deposits is their carrying amount. The estimated fair value
of fixed interest bearing deposits is based on discounted
cash flows using prevailing money-market interest rates for
debts with similar credit risk and remaining maturity.

(ii) Loans and advances to customers, and trade bills

The estimated fair value of loans and advances and trade
bills represents the discounted amount of estimated future
cash flows expected to be received. Expected cash flows
are discounted at current market rates to determine fair
value.

(iii) Investment securities

Investment securities include interest-bearing assets
included in the amortised cost category. Fair value of
amortised cost assets is based on market prices or broker/
dealer price quotations. Where this information is not
available, fair value is estimated using quoted market
prices for securities with similar credit, maturity and yield
characteristics.

(iv) Deposits and balances from banks, deposits from
customers, certificates of deposit issued and
other borrowed funds

The estimated fair value of deposits with no stated maturity,
which includes non-interest bearing deposits, is the amount
repayable on demand. The estimated fair value of fixed
interest-bearing deposits and other borrowings not quoted
in an active market is based on discounted cash flows using
interest rates for new debts with similar remaining maturity.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(c) Financial instruments not measured at fair value
(Continued)

(v) Debt securities in issue including subordinated
notes issued

For those notes where quoted market prices are not
available, the present value technique is used based on
current yield curve and/or credit spread appropriate for the
remaining term to maturity to estimate fair value.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments carried
at cost or amortised cost are not materially different from their fair
values as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 except as follows:

IREE E1R EPE H3R ATE
2021F12A31H At 31 December 2021 Carrying value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair value
SREE Financial assets
PABEERAK AT BR A Financial assets at

SREE amortised cost 24,592,503 - 24,518,421 13,366 24,531,787
cREE Financial liabilities
BEITHENE Certificates of deposit issued 6,589,717 - 6,589,883 - 6,589,883
KIEER Subordinated notes 4,128,446 - 4,193,099 - 4,193,099

FEE AR Eof F3 A¥E
2020F12A31H At 31 December 2020 Carrying value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair value
SHEE Financial assets
AR BRAK AN 51 BR ) Financial assets at

SREE amortised cost 22,902,983 - 23,094,662 13,366 23,108,028
SHAR Financial liabilities
BEINERE Certificates of deposit issued 8,125,802 - 8,137,099 - 8,137,099
&EER Subordinated notes 3,828,458 - 3,840,512 - 3,840,512
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.6 Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are:

. To comply with the capital requirements set by the banking and
insurance regulators in the markets where the entities within the
Group operate;

o To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue its business as a
going concern;

o To maximise returns to shareholders and optimise the benefits to
other stakeholders; and

. To maintain a strong capital base to support the development of
its business.

3.6.1 Banking business

Capital adequacy of and the use of regulatory capital by the Group’s
Hong Kong banking subsidiary is monitored regularly by the Group’s
management, employing techniques based on the guidelines developed
by the Basel Committee, as implemented by the HKMA, for supervisory
purposes. The required information is filed with the HKMA on a
quarterly basis.

Under the regulatory framework in Hong Kong, DSB is required to meet
three capital ratios, namely, the Common Equity Tier 1 capital, Tier
1 capital and Total capital respectively against risk-weighted assets.
The internationally agreed minimum of these three ratios are set at
4.5%, 6.0% and 8.0% respectively and are adopted by the HKMA. In
order to comply with HKMA'’s requirements as stated in the SPM CA-
G-5 on “Supervisory Review Process”, DSB is required to set further
buffers, to reflect material risks not included in the minimum regulatory
capital calculation, arising from regulator’s requirements, internal
assessment of risks and the results of stress tests under the Pillar ||
capital requirement. In addition, DSB is required to fulfil the capital
conservation buffer and countercyclical capital buffer requirements
set by the HKMA. Likewise, the Leverage Ratio forms part of Basel llI
implementation and the required information is submitted to the HKMA
on quarterly basis. In line with the international standards, the minimum
Leverage Ratio is set at 3% by the HKMA.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.6 Capital management (Continued)
3.6.1 Banking business (Continued)

Risk-weighted amount is the aggregate of the risk-weighted amounts for
credit risk, market risk and operational risk, and covers both on-balance
sheet and off-balance sheet exposures. On-balance sheet exposures
are classified according to the obligor or the nature of each exposure
and risk-weighted based on the credit assessment rating assigned by
an external credit assessment institution recognised by the HKMA or
other rules as set out in the Banking (Capital) Rules, taking into account
the capital effects of credit risk mitigation. Off-balance sheet exposures
are converted into credit-equivalent amounts by applying relevant credit
conversion factors to each exposure, before being classified and risk-
weighted as if they were on-balance sheet exposures.

The principal forms of capital included in the balances on the
consolidated balance sheet are share capital, retained profits, other
equity instruments and other reserves. Capital also includes collective
provisions and regulatory reserve for general banking risks as allowed
under the Banking (Capital) Rules.

Capital adequacy of and the use of regulatory capital by the Group’s
Macau banking subsidiary, BCM, and banking subsidiary in China, DSB
China, are monitored regularly by the Group’s management, employing
techniques based on the guidelines provided by the Autoridade
Monetaria de Macau (“AMCM”) and the China Banking and Insurance
Regulatory Commission (“CBIRC”) respectively for supervisory
purposes.

The required information is filed by BCM with the AMCM and by DSB
China with the CBIRC on a quarterly basis. The AMCM requires BCM
and the CBIRC requires DSB China to maintain a ratio of own funds or
capital base to total risk-weighted exposures (i.e. the capital adequacy
ratio) not lower than the required statutory minimum of 8%.

Certain non-banking subsidiaries of the Group are also subject to
statutory capital requirements from other regulatory authorities, such as
the Securities and Futures Commission.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.6 Capital management (Continued)
3.6.2 Insurance business

In each market in which the Group’s insurance subsidiaries operate,
the local insurance regulator specifies the minimum amount and type of
capital that must be held by each of the subsidiaries in addition to their
insurance liabilities. The minimum required capital must be maintained
at all times throughout the year. The Group’s subsidiaries are subject
to insurance solvency regulations in the markets in which they issue
insurance and investment contracts, and where they have to comply
with the local solvency regulations. The Group has embedded in its asset
and liability management framework the necessary tests to ensure
continuous and full compliance with such regulations. The solvency
requirement of each insurance company in each market is subject to
local requirements, which may differ from jurisdiction to jurisdiction.

3.7 Fiduciary activities

The Group provides custody, trustee, wealth management and advisory
services to third parties, which involve the Group making allocation
and purchase and sale decisions in relation to a variety of financial
instruments. Those assets that are held in a fiduciary capacity are not
included in the Group’s financial statements. These services could give
rise to the risk that the Group could be accused of mal-administration.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.8 Insurance risk

The Group manages insurance risk through its underwriting strategy,
risk management system and reinsurance arrangements.

The Group is subject to concentration risk arising from natural disasters
accidents. The Group’s underwriting strategy seeks diversity to ensure
a balanced portfolio and is based on a portfolio of similar risks over
a number of years and, as such, it is believed that this reduces the
variability of the outcome. Premium pricing is set at an appropriate level
that corresponds with the underlying exposure of the risks underwritten.
The Group has a company-wide retention limit on risks and
reinsures the excess of risks under facultative and treaty reinsurance
arrangement.

Within the insurance process, concentrations of risk may arise where
a particular event or series of events could impact heavily upon
the Group’s liabilities. Such concentrations may arise from a single
insurance contract or through a small number of related contracts, and
relate to circumstances where significant liabilities could arise.

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. Estimates
and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Changes
in estimates and assumptions may have a significant impact on the
results of the Group in the periods when changes are made. The
application and selection of different estimates and assumptions, and
their subsequent changes, could affect the Group’s profit and net asset
value in the future. The Group, based on its high-level assessment
of the sensitivity impacts on the reported assets and liabilities of the
Group arising from the changes in critical accounting estimates and
assumptions, believes that the estimates and assumptions adopted
are appropriate and reasonable, and the financial results and positions
presented in the Group’s financial statements are fair and reasonable in
all material respects.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(@) Measurement of the ECL allowance

The measurement of the ECL allowance for financial assets measured
at amortised cost and FVOCI is an area that requires the use of
complex models and significant assumptions about future economic
conditions and credit behaviour (e.g. the likelihood of customers
defaulting and the resulting losses). Explanation of the inputs,
assumptions and estimation techniques used in measuring ECL is
further detailed in Note 3.2.2, which also sets out key sensitivities of the
ECL to changes in these elements.

A number of significant judgements are also required in applying the
accounting requirements for measuring ECL, such as:

o Determining criteria for significant increase in credit risk;

o Choosing appropriate models and assumptions for the
measurement of ECL;

. Establishing the number and relative weightings of forward-
looking scenarios for each type of product/market and the
associated ECL; and

. Establishing groups of similar financial assets for the purposes of
measuring ECL.

Detailed information about the judgements and estimates made by the
Group in the above areas is set out in Note 3.2.2.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Fair value of financial instruments

A majority of the Group’s investments in debt securities carried at fair
value are valued based on observable market quotations. The Group
applies judgement in selecting the most appropriate quotation for
valuation purposes based on its assessment of the range of observable
quotations, recent observable transactions, the reliability and quality of
the pricing source, and the value of securities of a similar nature.

(c) Goodwill and intangible asset valuation

For business combinations, subsequent to initial recognition of goodwill
and intangible assets, any major change in the assumptions in relation
to future benefits to be generated from the intangible assets, including
future cash flow of benefits to be generated from the acquired entities,
or discount rates which could be caused by major changes in market
conditions and outlook, could result in adjustments to the carrying
values of such assets. In the event that the expected recoverable
amounts of goodwill and intangible assets are significantly lower than
their carrying values, impairment of such assets would have to be
recognised.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Impairment assessment of the investment in an
associate, Bank of Chongqing (“BOCQ”)

The Group carries out periodic impairment assessments on its
investment in BOCQ in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of
assets”.

This assessment compares the carrying value of the investment against
the higher of management’s estimate of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal. Management’s estimate of the value in use is based
on a discounted cash flow projection which contains certain assumptions
derived from management and observable market information. This
estimate is subject to application of management judgement and is
sensitive to assumptions on the discount rate and the cash flows arising
from the holding of this investment and from its ultimate disposal.

As at 31 December 2021, management’s estimate of the value in use is
lower than the carrying value of its investment in BOCQ. As a result, in
the year ended 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of the Group’s
investment in BOCQ has been written down by HK$726 million (2020:
HK$531 million).

(e) Determination of the lease term

In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and
circumstances that create an economic incentive to exercise an
extension option, or not exercise a termination option. Extension
options (or periods after termination options) are only included in the
lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended (or not
terminated).
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(e) Determination of the lease term (Continued)

For leases of properties, the following factors are normally the most
relevant:

o If there are significant penalties to terminate (or not extend), the
Group is typically reasonably certain to extend (or not terminate).

U If any leasehold improvements are expected to have a significant
remaining value, the Group is typically reasonably certain to
extend (or not terminate).

. Otherwise, the Group considers other factors including historical
lease durations and the costs and business disruption required to
replace the leased asset.

Most extension options in property leases have not been included in
the lease liability, because the Group could replace the assets without
significant cost or business disruption.

The lease term is reassessed if an option is actually exercised (or not
exercised) or the Group becomes obliged to exercise (or not exercise)
it. The assessment of reasonable certainty is only revised if a significant
event or a significant change in circumstances occurs, which affects
this assessment, and that is within the control of the lessee. During the
current financial year, the Group has not exercised any extension or
termination options.
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5. ARATMBMRRERRFEESE 5. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
AN R B AR R 2R Statement of Financial Position of the Company
12A31H
As at 31 December
2021 2020
IEMBNE = Non-current assets
HEBRARIERE Investments in subsidiaries 6,106,201 6,106,201
MENEE Current assets
R —RE B A B Z SRITAE Bank balances with a subsidiary 51,234 80,258
BRI ZE12EAR Placement with a subsidiary maturing
EIEAMTE R between one and twelve months 57,199 56,494
AP EEBEZST A Financial assets at fair value through
EtrmliiaEesmEE other comprehensive income 898,587 898,587
FEUHR K E A AR B Accounts receivable and other accounts 1,695 3,008
UK B A RIFIE Amounts due from subsidiaries 3,344,751 3,272,587
4,353,466 4,310,934
mENEE Current liabilities
TElRER R EMERE Accrued expenses and other accounts 47,417 32,794
FERTHE A BIFIA Amounts due to subsidiaries 60,676 60,676
108,093 93,470
FmENEE Net current assets 4,245,373 4,217,464
10,351,574 10,323,665
s EQUITY
(N Share capital 4,248,559 4,248,559
HAtbf#E Other reserves
(BIERBEF) (B8)  (including retained earnings) Note (a) 6,103,015 6,075,106
EZEE Total equity 10,351,574 10,323,665
EEEN202253 A31 BHLAE R RAER M - Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 31
March 2022.
EX (=) EEHE Gary Pak-Ling Wang Hon-Hing Wong
3 EFairr Director Managing Director
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T

() FAFGRES

5. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Note:

(a)  Reserve movement of the Company

BEARRHE REER
Capital Retained Sir
Reserve Earnings Total
20201 H1H At 1 January 2020 256,027 5,797,233 6,053,260
F Profit for the year = 453,271 453,271
20194 KR & 2019 final dividend = (345,140) (345,140)
20204 HERR & 2020 interim dividend - (86,285) (86,285)
20204128318 At 31 December 2020 256,027 5,819,079 6,075,106
202141818 At 1 January 2021 256,027 5,819,079 6,075,106
FEE Profit for the year - 347,483 347,483
2020F AR HIRE B 2020 final dividend - (214,114) (214,114)
2021 F AR B 2021 interim dividend - (105,460) (105,460)
2021%F12A31H At 31 December 2021 256,027 5,846,988 6,103,015

BIR1993F 12 A1 B BB FHAIAZER - LHEER
1993F 12 20 H A BB R AR L% - AR RN &
{8 Bl )74 256,027,000 B T W B = E N EBHRA © %
256,027,000/ TT B 4R & & AR e B g 24K R o

By a special resolution passed on 1 December 1993 and subsequently
approved by the Supreme Court of Hong Kong on 20 December 1993, the share
premium of the Company was reduced by HK$256,027,000 and this amount
was transferred to a capital reserve account. On consolidation the reserve of
HK$256,027,000 has been applied against goodwill.
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6. EE/ERE
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6. OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING

Segment reporting by the Group is prepared in accordance with
HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments”. Information reported to the chief
operating decision maker, including the Chief Executive and other EC
members, for the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment, is determined on the basis of banking business and
insurance business. For banking business, operating performances
are analysed by business activities for local banking business, and on
business entity basis for overseas banking business. For insurance
business, resources allocation and performance evaluation are based
on insurance business entity basis.

Considering the customer groups, products and services of local
businesses, the economic environment and regulations, the Group
splits the operating segments of the Group into the following reportable
segments:

o Personal banking business includes the acceptance of deposits
from individual customers and the extension of residential
mortgage lending, personal loans, overdraft, vehicle financing
and credit card services, and the provision of insurance sales and
investment services.

. Corporate banking business includes the acceptance of deposits
from and the advance of loans and working capital finance
to commercial, industrial and institutional customers, and the
provision of trade financing.

o Treasury and global markets activities are mainly the provision
of foreign exchange services and centralised cash management
for deposit taking and lending, interest rate risk management,
management of investment in securities and the overall funding
of the Group.

o Overseas banking businesses include personal banking,
corporate banking business activities provided by overseas
subsidiaries in Macau and China, and the Group’s interest in a
commercial bank in China.
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6. OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

U Insurance business includes the Group’s insurance and pension
fund management business. Through the Group’s wholly-owned
subsidiaries in Hong Kong and 96% owned subsidiaries (which
subsequently increased to 100% in November 2021) in Macau,
the Group offers a variety of insurance products and services.

o Others include results of operations not directly identified under
other reportable segments, corporate investments and debt
funding (including subordinated notes).

For the purpose of segment reporting, revenue derived from customers,
products and services directly identifiable with individual segments
are reported directly under respective segments, while revenue
and funding cost arising from inter-segment funding operation and
funding resources are allocated to segments by way of transfer pricing
mechanism with reference to market interest rates. Transactions within
segments are priced based on similar terms offered to or transacted
with external parties. Inter-segment income or expenses are eliminated
on consolidation.

All direct costs incurred by different segments are grouped under
respective segments. Indirect costs and support functions’ costs are
allocated to various segments and products based on effort and time
spent as well as segments’ operating income depending on the nature
of costs incurred. Costs related to corporate activities that cannot be
reasonably allocated to segments, products and support functions are
grouped under Others as unallocated corporate expenses.
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6. =EE/ERZ@®
H5Z20215128318 L EE

6. OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BERER
%S
BARST  GEBT  Treasury  HMET  REEE EER
Personal  Corporate and Global ~ Overseas Insurance Hit Inter- by
Banking Banking Markets Banking  Business Others  segment Total
FHSMA/ (it Net interest income/(expenses) ~ 1,637,016 1,194,462 747,645 494,999 5121 (125,019) - 3954225
IEFBMA /(i) Non-interest income/
(expenses) 991,658 208,776 69,980 133,646 216,399 119,498 (17,905) 1,722,052
RRERE &8 Total operating income/
W\/ i) (expenses) net of insurance
claims 2,628,674 1,403,238 817,625 628,645 221,520 (5,520) (17,905) 5,676,277
BEY Operating expenses (1,724,721)  (520,859)  (206,615)  (537,204)  (143,878) (90,150) 17,905  (3,205,522)
IREERES / iﬁ Operating profit(loss) before
AlZzE L/M‘J/ (B8 credit impairment (losses)/
written back 903,953 882,379 611,010 91,441 77,642 (95,670) - 2,470,755
EERESE)/EE  Creditimpairment (losses)/
wiitien back (178654)  (126488)  (15475)  (51,289) 453 (858) - (372305)
?DW #),/E# Operating profit/(loss) after
L/ﬁﬁﬂ/ (B#8)  creditimpairment (losses)/
written back 725,299 755,891 595,535 40,158 78,095 (96,528) - 2,098,450
HEREMERAMETE  Netloss on disposal and
EEREATERAZZ  fairvalue adjustment of
FER investment properties and
other fixed assets (2,326) (1,034) (16) (29) (930) (15,241) - (19,576)
HENATEFEAEZE) Net gain on disposal of
SAEMEZENENSE  financial assets at fair
BEZ RS value through other
comprehensive income = = 4,993 = = = = 4,993
N Share of results of an associate - - - 697,954 - - - 697,954
BENARAEZREERE  Impaiment loss on the
investment in an associate - - - (726,000) - - - (726,000)
REHEREARREL  Loss on deemed disposal of
BR investment in an associate - - - (31,202 - - - (31,202
B EREGEE 2£E  Share of results of jointly
controlled entities - - - - - 33,060 - 33,060
BHARH/ (58) Profit/(loss) before taxation 722,973 754,857 600,512 (19,119) 77,165 (78,709) - 2,057,679
FE(i) /E Taxation (expenses)/credit (119,336)  (124561)  (98,914)  (34927)  (11,902) 66,713 - (322927)
FERF/(B8B) Profit/(loss) for the year 603,637 630,296 501,598 (54,046) 65,263 (11,996) - 1,734,752
BF2021512/31H For the year ended
IH5E 31 December 2021
TEREHEER Depreciation and amortisation 76,645 15,500 8,070 59,364 12,131 234,098 - 405,808
1202145127318 At 31 December 2021
PEBEE Segment assets 56,651,282 70,473,506 80,791,990 38,977,756 5,057,577 10,660,000 (6,081,122) 256,530,989
PERE Segment liabilities 114,634,275 49,555,753 12,777,503 30,182,181 1,728,188 15,907,864  (6,081,122) 218,704,642
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6. OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

HZE2020F12A31HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2020
HERER
ik
AARST  CEPT Treasuy  BMRIT RBER EER
Personal  Corporate  and Global ~ Overseas  Insurance HAh Inter- @t
Banking Banking Markets Banking Business Others segment Total
FHBMA /(i) Net interest income/(expenses) 1,584,254 1,124,905 669,395 486,130 11,001 (156,484) - 3,719,201
SERBIA /(i) Non-interest income/
(expenses) 1,008,393 194,070 197,802 117,623 247,795 104,561 (18,136) 1,852,108
RRERE &8 Total operating income/
WA/ (i) (expenses) net of insurance
claims 2,592,647 1,318,975 867,197 603,753 258,796 (51,923) (18,136) 5,571,309
EEYH Operating expenses (1630,344)  (504,889)  (185689)  (507522)  (138,630)  (70,946) 18,136 (3,019,884)
NBEERESENEE Operating profit/(loss) before
wfl/ (B8) credit impairment losses 962,303 814086 681,508 96,231 120,166 (122,869) - 2551425
fEERERE Credit impairment losses (342,197)  (151,822)  (20,102)  (131,768) (738) (1,041) - (647,668)
NGEERESERZEE Operating profit/(loss) after
wH/(BR) credit impairment losses 620106 662264 661406  (35537) 119428  (123,910) - 1,903,757
HEREMERZMET  Netloss on disposal and
EEREATEAZ,  fairvalue adjustment of
FEE investment properties and
other fixed assets (2,902) - - (68) (3,825)  (138,985) - (145,780
HENATFEFEEEES Net gain on disposal of
SAAEMRENENSE  financial assets at fair
BEZENE value through other
comprehensive income = = 13,448 = = = = 13,448
EEZAEEE Impairment loss on goodwill - (98,239) - - - - - (98,239)
il AN Share of results of an associate - - - 710370 - = = 710,370
BENFIREZHERSE  Impairment loss on the
investment in an associate - - - (531,000) - - - (531,000)
ElEAREHZERZEE  Share of results of jointly
controlled entities - - - - - 33,190 - 33,190
BRaER/ (Bi8) Profit/(loss) before taxation 617,204 564025 674854 143765 115603  (229,705) - 1885746
FE() /E Taxation (expenses)/credit (101,353)  (110,166)  (111,368)  (19.217)  (17,024) 16,414 - (342714)
FRRF/(F8) Profit/(loss) for the year 515,851 453,859 563,486 124,548 98,579 (213,291) - 1,543,032
HZ2020F12/31A For the year ended
I5E 31 December 2020
HEREHER Depreciation and amortisation 74,976 14,965 7,135 56,312 9833 230,747 - 393988
120205128318 At 31 December 2020
NEEE Segment assets 53,965,730 66,782,037 84,562,197 38,200,663 4,753,741 11,990,176  (5,293,443) 254,961,101
NERE Segment liabilities 112,788,974 46,684,129 16,220,032 29,899,300 1,767,611 17,203,529  (5,293,443) 219,270,132
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6. EEIERIFT@ 6. OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)
BEER Geographical information
[ 15 5 18 & kY IR 1R A8 & B M AN S0 = P 1R it AR Geographical segment information is based on the domicile of the legal
% BEEER S RELBENEEEIE T entities within the Group with business dealing and relationship with,
H o BE2021F K2020F12 H31HIEFE - BrE and services to external customers. For the period ended 31 December
BN WEE —BRK RN HIAEK10%A 2021 and 2020, no single country or geographical segment other than
ZAEBEZEE - BF EBRATBRARF Hong Kong contributed 10% or more of the Group’s assets, liabilities,
operating income, or profit before taxation.
7. FERBEWA 7. NETINTEREST INCOME
2021 2020
FIE WA Interest income
e RERITHAE Cash and balances with banks 152,221 283,421
BHEE Investments in securities 1,003,279 1,364,467
BEBEERREAMRE Advances and other accounts 4,021,172 4,582,618
5,176,672 6,230,506
FE X H Interest expense
BITER S BEER Deposits from banks/Deposits from
customers 1,062,801 2,186,553
BEITHFESE Certificates of deposit issued 43,284 126,852
BEES Subordinated notes 103,308 137,815
HEBE(HIF30(2)) Lease liabilities (Note 30(b)) 9,744 10,490
EA Others 3,310 49,595
1,222,447 2,511,305
MNEKAEE Included within interest income
— BEEERENBF AR TEAE — Trading securities and financial
BHZFH: A\ ERNE/MEE assets at fair value through profit
or loss 2,508 53,199
— UATFEEBEESH T ALMEM — Financial assets at fair value through
WK SR EE other comprehensive income 466,232 852,468
— DB ATIEEN S RMEE — Financial assets at amortised cost 4,707,932 5,324,839
5,176,672 6,230,506
FEZHEE Included within interest expense
—RUADTEFEAEEB T ABENSRAE — Financial liabilities not at fair value
through profit or loss 1,221,471 2,468,478
REE20214F 202012 A31 B ILFE » W EHE For the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, there was no interest

REREEEZNBWRA -

income recognised on impaired assets.

DAH SING FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021



PR R M T
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

8. FHREERASWA 8. NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME
2021 2020
REERAESEA Fee and commission income
RANFETZ A RSB A Fee and commission income from
BalemEERBBZRER financial assets and liabilities not at
PSRN fair value through profit or loss
—EEAEEZRBERAS — Credit related fees and commissions 170,138 170,451
—E5mE — Trade finance 80,739 78,218
—ERAFR — Credit card 276,342 254,537
H RS E KA WA Other fee and commission income
—BAELRe — Securities brokerage 215,359 192,202
—REREHE R E M — Insurance distribution and others 199,028 263,390
—ZERE RV EEERS — Retail investment and wealth
management services 325,244 287,946
—IRITIRBERFEE — Bank services and handling fees 70,720 65,587
— H ARG & — Other fees 70,019 66,477

1,407,589 1,378,808

REERAEIH Fee and commission expense
RARAFETEBHEES T A Fee and commission expense from

BaNemEERBBZRER financial assets and liabilities not at

kA€XE fair value through profit or loss

—FEERAS — Handling fees and commission 206,264 196,202

—BENEMER — Other fees paid 15,477 10,062

221,741 206,264

AEEME=FRHETE 25t bEBEERE The Group provides custody, trustee, corporate administration, and
BEHERS - BEXUERBHEESUAREAS investment management services to third parties. The assets subject to
DR/ELTNESEIZIHEHRERNA © these services are held in a fiduciary capacity and are not included in

these financial statements.
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9. NET TRADING INCOME

2021 2020
AATER = B &R AlBma Dividend income from financial assets
EREEZREWLA at fair value through profit or loss 21,035 13,600
HNE B B F e Net gain arising from dealing in
foreign currencies 169,160 323,157
RHEEERENES 2F(EE) e Net (loss)/gain on trading securities (23) 14,133
BEEERERNITET A2 F(EE) s Net (loss)/gain from derivatives
entered into for trading purpose (54,440) 48,657
BAFESFHEASRIAZ Net (loss)/gain arising from financial
F ()M instruments subject to fair value
hedge (7,310) 895
AT EANZEBHEEE T ABIRN Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments
SRMITE 2 F K/ (EE) at fair value through profit or loss 73,066 (24,373)
201,488 376,069

10. FREREMMUWA

10. NET INSURANCE PREMIUM AND OTHER INCOME

2021 2020

—MRARBE General Insurance:
REBWALEEE Gross premiums written 883,627 862,751
RAIBREZREEE) Movement in unearned premiums (37,209) (6,875)
BRI IREHERE Gross premiums earned 846,418 855,876
REBWABE D RIDE Gross premiums written ceded to

reinsurers (382,778) (357,413)
KRR REES 2 HRDE Reinsurers’ share of movement in

unearned premiums 17,410 1,665
ERINZRELRE 2D RNEE Reinsurers’ share of gross premiums

earned (365,368) (355,748)
REWAFEE Net insurance premium income 481,050 500,128
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11. OTHER OPERATING INCOME

2021 2020
LARF B2 B HE B AR b 2 E K Dividend income from investments
iR TR E 2 IREIWA in equity instruments at fair value
through other comprehensive income
— FARIHER — Derecognised during the year
— EmRE — Listed investments 29,982 13,052
—RERIFAE — Held at the end of the year
— EWigE — Listed investments 99,615 79,639
—JEEMIRE — Unlisted investments 14,891 5,298
WEME 2 HS WAL Gross rental income from
investment properties 20,614 29,381
Hipf WA Other rental income 16,523 15,445
HAh Others 9,843 12,434
191,468 155,249
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12. RERERZHER

12. NET INSURANCE CLAIMS AND EXPENSES

2021 2020

—RRARE General Insurance:
BENRE - FIE&RR Claims, benefits and surrenders paid 414,408 461,409
e # Movement in provisions (110,982) (39,923)
RieREBBNMRRAEGEED) Gross insurance claims and movement

in insurance liabilities 303,426 421,486
BRNRE - FIEERRZDRHE Reinsurers’ share of claim, benefits and

surrenders paid (138,163) (239,219)
EHESEE 2 D IRNEE Reinsurers’ share of movement in

provisions 100,818 96,784
RERREBRLERRABEEEH 2 DRDEE Reinsurers’ share of insurance claims

and movement in insurance liabilities (37,345) (142,435)
REERERERR B EEE) 2 F5E Net insurance claims and movement in

insurance liabilities 266,081 279,051
REAE S HF5E Net insurance commission expenses 71,721 72,831
= Total 337,802 351,882
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13. EEXH 13. OPERATING EXPENSES
2021 2020
1B B HM R EFZ Employee compensation and benefit
expenses
—HREMASER — Salaries and other staff costs 2,005,835 2,012,370
—BUNRB) — R FTEIGE(R)) — Government grant — Employment
Support Scheme (Note (a)) - (67,803)
— DARRAD A ELTR B HE TR (P 3E45) — Provision for share-based
compensation charged (Note 45) 480 821

—RARE X H - REHKEEI(FE(2))

TEREMEEEES T - TRIENE

—fTEME X (KE30(2))
—Hit

e
—fTEREAMEEEE (FEE30(F))

—BfERREZMEMFE30(2))
S RIEHEB
ENfl - XAREE
ZEETEN S
HAl

i

() 1720205 - AEEBF T HBEBBARLAIIR
TURESHER AR GBI (TR 5T )
R ZEEASBNERBFRHEMESIE - U
REBTAIESHREMNET - RIBMMRAFE IFHEIN
R AEENEREXRMENESE - ¥

REBRH AR EEETE -

— Pension costs — defined contribution
plans (Note (b)) 101,043 108,548
Premises and other fixed assets
expenses, excluding depreciation

— Rental of premises (Note 30(b)) 3,956 3,497
— Others 229,493 209,870
Depreciation
— Premises and other fixed assets
(Note 30(a)) 213,053 200,762
— Right-of-use properties (Note 30(b)) 192,755 193,206
Advertising and promotion costs 84,496 86,182
Printing, stationery and postage 47,110 53,481
Auditors’ remuneration 12,538 10,703
Others 314,763 208,247

3,205,522 3,019,884

Note:

(a) In 2020, the Group applied for funding support from the Employment
Support Scheme (“ESS”) under the Anti-epidemic Fund set up by the
Hong Kong Government. The purpose of the funding is to provide financial
support to enterprises to retain their employees who would otherwise be
made redundant. Under the terms of the ESS, the Group is restricted from
making redundancies during the period covered by the cash subsidy and
to spend all the funding on paying wages to its employees.

RIEREBEERAF 2021 FFRH

247



RIFEER R M ot

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAFE®EF LAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

248

13. EEXH®@m)

it ()

(2) BREEmRESF S

13. OPERATING EXPENSES (continued)

Note: (Continued)

(b)

In respect of the Group’s mandatory provident fund schemes

2021 2020

FARRIRSE B TR AU SR

BEFRAT AR B R AR KRR

RN Bt E R R B

Forfeited contributions utilised to

reduce the Group’s contribution

during the year 29,289 15,200
Forfeited contributions available for

reducing future contributions at the

year end 2,516 1,814

In respect of the other defined contribution schemes of the Group

2021 2020

F AR RS B SR YRR

BUEFARA AR B R SR Yk

Forfeited contributions utilised to

reduce the Group’s contribution

during the year 1,858 1,410
Forfeited contributions available for

reducing future contributions at the

year end 1,348 1,097
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14. EEM< 14. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
BRABNTEHIE383G R AR (EERFE The emoluments of the Directors of the Company in respect of the
RHEEE ) A - AR A EEHRMEHME S 5K E period of directorship disclosed pursuant to section 383 of the Hong
WA Kong Companies Ordinance and the Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation were set out below:
BRFARE
FRAs 2 R
REEA
Incentive ~ MRGHAEE  BEREE
bonuses i ) 2R
Fé 28 accrued (&1) Employer’s
REWFG inrespect  Share-based  contribution &t
Salary, of services  compensation to retirement (§2)
Bz Year ended EZH4 allowancesand rendered payment benefit Total
2021E12B3ALEEE 31 December 2021 Directors’ Fee benefits in kind in the year (Note 1) schemes (Note 2)
Ed:; Chairman
TFERE David Shou-Yeh Wong 1,000 5,946 14,175 - - 21,121
WTES Executive directors
BERLE Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) - 8,718 3,250 - - 11,968
FHERE Gary Pak-Ling Wang - 6,144 10,000 - 492 16,636
FHUTES Non-executive directors
alE—%k Eiichi Yoshikawa 320 - - - - 320
EREMEE Yoshikazu Shimauchi 320 - - - - 320
BUFHTES Independent non-executive
directors
PEREE Robert Tsai-To Sze 1,030 - - - - 1,030
REESRE Andrew Kwan-Yuen Leung 470 - - - - 470
BfRfEE Paul Michael Kennedy 500 - - - - 500
BRELE David Wai-Hung Tam - - - - - -
RfEREE Paul Franz Winkelmann 740 - - - - 740
&t Total 4,380 20,808 27,425 - 492 53,105
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EEME@w

AR AR E R ERE B < X N B RN FEEARETT
{2 FRRLAE AR &% B R SHRR B AR 2 S 2 A
RRAD VEREERE 2 AT o DARREESZ 3 2 AR D 1E /%
AN ZHBH - ERRAEERBIAERTE
R R AER S » MIAR SN 2 AR ER
ERXAZ B - RIRRITRE R R AR AT 5
B AT51ER % B AR ER D 2 FHRTIE

ERERB T AATRITEERRA R REKE
RAZEE  HEZREMBEARXNZHFHEE
SHELIIZERAFMAFTA

REERFRFLER - TEANEEEBERT
MEARS RHERAEL  HRARBREF—
FRAREZ EREEKHBEELFBRERF
#=(2020%F : #&) °

REZE2021F12A31 B ILEE WA MES
METE AR R KEMB QR EHAE 2 AR
AT 2R E B & (20204F : ££) o

AERN - WES IO SRS BN TES
Ko I L IR BN E B ARG T (R 56 =75 S A S 32 A
R/ (B (20204F : &) -

14.

Note:

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (cContinued)

Share-based compensation payment includes both equity-settled and
cash-settled share based payment on the share options exercised or
cancelled during the year. For equity-settled share based compensations,
it represents the cost borne by the Group recognised on the exercise of
the share options while for cash-settled share based compensation, it
represents the cash payment, being the difference between the exercise
price and the average closing price of the shares of the Company for the
5 trading days immediately preceding the date of cancellation of the share
options.

For directors who are also directors of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited
or its subsidiaries, remuneration paid by these subsidiaries are included in
the consolidated total remuneration set out above.

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to
the Group’s business to which the Company was a party and in which
a director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year
(2020: Nil).

No other emoluments were paid to or receivable by any director in respect
of directors’ other services in connection with management of the affairs
of the Company or its subsidiaries undertakings during the year ended 31
December 2021 (2020: Nil).

No termination payments or benefits were made to the directors and no
consideration was provided to or receivable by third parties for making
available directors’ services during the year (2020: Nil).
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14. EEMEw@ 14. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)
BBEANRE
R TR
RENEA
Incentive  MR(IAER  RKENEE
bonuses T ZEEHR
e EH accrued (1) Employer's
REMFE inrespect  Share-based contribution =)
Salary, of services  compensation to retirement (#2)
i Year ended %02  allowances and rendered payment benefit Total
2020512A31BEFE 31 December 2020 Directors' Fee  benefits in kind in the year (Note 1) schemes (Note 2)
B Chairman
TTFERE David Shou-Yeh Wong 1,000 5,946 15,750 - - 22,696
HIES Executive directors
BERLAE Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) - 8,718 3,008 - - 11,726
FRALE Gary Pak-Ling Wang - 6,144 11,900 = 492 18,536
FRITES Non-executive directors
BllE—%E Eiichi Yoshikawa 320 - - - - 320
RS A Yoshikazu Shimauchi 320 - - - - 320
BUETES Independent non-executive directors
L BREE Robert Tsai-To Sze 950 - - - - 950
PEERE Andrew Kwan-Yuen Leung 470 - - - - 470
BfREE Paul Michael Kennedy 500 - = = = 500
BRELE David Wai-Hung Tam 500 - - - - 500
RfEREE Paul Franz Winkelmann 520 - - - - 520
Ch Total 4,580 20,808 30,658 - 492 56,538
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15. REME5UAL

15. THE EMOLUMENTS OF THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID

INDIVIDUALS

(i) Me4Ect (i) The aggregate emoluments
2021 2020

e FBE BN &EAMRRL Salaries, housing, benefits in kind and
other allowances 35,134 35,134
ERAE N AERE R SRS Performance-related bonus 56,575 56,646

RGBS 2 B E MK Employer’s contribution to retirement

benefit schemes 1,511 1,511
93,220 93,291

(i) SUBERSWAALHMSARMT :

(ii) The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals
are within the following bands:

A
Number of individuals
2021 2020
P ITHKS
11,500,000 - 12,000,000 1 1
16,500,001 — 17,000,000 1 -
18,000,001 — 18,500,000 - 1
18,500,001 — 19,000,000 = 1
19,500,001 — 20,000,000 1 -
21,000,001 — 21,500,000 1 -
21,500,001 — 22,000,000 = 1
22,500,001 — 23,000,000 - 1
23,500,001 — 24,000,000 1 -
5 5

w5 sm e WA Z ALA » B3(I(20204F : 3
) AES - HAENESHEE BEE L2k
14 ©

RER - AEEIL EEERSL&D WAL AT
e - (ESIMASINE AR KB 2 528 S prmE o

bisfirREBAA TS BEEREEZFE
PRz ARIG TN AN SR [ 2 AR O TRAR AR BNTEAL ©

Included in the emoluments of the five highest paid individuals were
the emoluments of 3 (2020: 3) Directors. Their respective Directors’
emoluments have been included in Note 14 above.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office during the year.

The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals shown above
included incentive bonuses accrued in respect of the services rendered
and the Group’s performance for the financial year.
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16. EEREFE

16. CREDIT IMPAIRMENT LOSSES

2021 2020
g (SR B8 2 ) New allowances net of allowance
releases 460,597 746,312
W Bl 38 7 B 8H 2 IR Recoveries of amounts previously
written off (88,292) (98,644)
372,305 647,668
BT Attributable to:
—FPER — Advances to customers 394,119 603,479
—HtbSREE — Other financial assets 13,552 36,862
— BRI R BER — Loan commitments and financial
guarantees (35,366) 7,327
372,305 647,668
17. BiE 17. TAXATION

B 78 15 B T 1% BR 4 1 AT B AR A U ) DA R =R
16.5%(20204F : 16.5% ) JE B Xl « BINEEFRTD
RENBIMESHERTE MK AR S B S & S5
B 2IBITHRGE -

EEHBERRAAEINERHER - KRAZSF
RIARER BN EER THRRMER 2
RIERBIER -

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2020:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year. Taxation on
overseas profits has been calculated on the estimated assessable profit
for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in which

the Group operates.

Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary differences under
the liability method at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the

year when the liability is settled or the asset is realised.

2021 2020
RNEEHIE - Current income tax:
—HBNEH — Hong Kong profits tax 285,077 285,454
—GHNRIR — Overseas taxation 46,020 29,963
—RBEFE(BR) TRz BE — (Over)/under-provision in
prior years (10,958) 6,462
IEIERLTE (MI5E38) Deferred income tax (Note 38):
—ARERERNELRER — Origination and reversal of timing
differences (4,924) 10,357
—ERTBER — Utilisation of tax losses 7,712 10,478
I8 Taxation 322,927 342,714

RIEREBEERAF 2021 FFRH

253



RIFEER R M ot
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA™ F7Thi57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

17. BiE@) 17. TAXATION (continued)
REBRTADEF 2 BIIBA RN ERE & D R AN The tax on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from the theoretical
IR EGTE 2 IR T amount that would arise using the weighted average tax rate applicable
to profits of the consolidated companies as follows:
2021 2020
BR AL Al Profit before taxation 2,057,679 1,885,746
REBHEHE16.5%H 2B Tax calculated at Hong Kong profits tax
rate of 16.5% 339,517 311,148
BIRRHBRR Tax effects of:
HpBIZR 2 AR R Different taxation rates in other
countries 24,983 12,252
BRI A Income not subject to taxation (54,208) (52,871)
TREHR B Expenses not deductible 145,361 173,096
VAT 1% Bl 2 302 Bt N R e Results of associates and jointly
- = 4o | = e - 4
ARIEHIR 2 XS controlled entities reported net
of tax (120,617) (122,684)
AEERIELEHREENHIEER Tax losses for which no deferred
tax asset was recognised 7,869 4,099
ERBEREERNHIEER Utilisation of previously unrecognised
tax losses (291) (289)
REMEEY T ERZIEE ltems recorded in other
comprehensive income (8,729) 11,501
PRBEFEGEE), TR ZBE (Over)/under-provision in prior years (10,958) 6,462
BIA Taxation 322,927 342,714
18. KA 18. DIVIDENDS
2021 2020
Bk ERE : Hﬁj&@ﬂﬁo.asiﬁﬁ Interim dividend paid of HK$0.33
(20204 : 0.27/87T) (2020: HK$0.27) per ordinary share 105,460 86,285
FURRMBE, « SREEBRO0.7387T Proposed final dividend of HK$0.73
(20204 : 0.67/87T) (2020: HK$0.67) per ordinary share 233,290 214,115
338,750 300,400
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19. ERER 19. EARNINGS PER SHARE
2021 2020
(#7T) (B7T)
(HKS) (HK$)
B2 Earnings per share
EARNEEE Basic and diluted 4.09 3.62

2021 F 2 BREARRBF R FREERF THIZR
2 %1 1,308,404,000 % 7T (2020 : 1,158,152,000
BIT) REANBETEBIRR M Z kT H
319,575,100/% (2020 : 319,575,100/% )15 -

20. BERERITHEE

The calculation of basic earnings per share and fully dilutive earnings
per share for 2021 is based on earnings of HK$1,308,404,000 (2020:
HK$1,158,152,000) and the weighted average number of 319,575,100
(2020: 319,575,100) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

20. CASH AND BALANCES WITH BANKS

2021 2020
& RERITHEESH Cash and balances with banks 3,288,485 4,842 172
AR HER Money at call and short notice 9,504,741 11,278,691

kR - REXEE

—PEERA

12,793,226 16,120,863
Less: impairment allowance
— Stage 1 (1,364) (1,363)

12,791,862 16,119,500
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2. FEEEAZNESZRUAAFETE 21. TRADING SECURITIES AND FINANCIAL ASSETS

BEHSHTHABEZNERMEE AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
2021 2020
RIEEEABNES Trading securities:
BEEES Debt securities:
—&BBEm — Listed in Hong Kong 12,285 30,089
—3LEm — Unlisted 4,413,099 5,049,958

4,425,384 5,080,047

A HEFTEEHEEH T ABGNEREE Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss:
BRMEHFRIEEES Equity securities and investment funds:
—&E&ELEM — Listed in Hong Kong 46,756 103,994
— BB T — Listed outside Hong Kong 475,483 420,250
—3E kM — Unlisted 87,027 33,109
609,266 557,353
A&t Total 5,034,650 5,637,400
PREEBEFAA Included within debt securities are:
—BERKR(ZRELER) — Treasury bills which are cash
equivalents 2,304,220 482,991
—HE AR EE R — Other treasury bills 2,108,879 4,566,967
—BUNES — Government bonds 12,285 30,089
4,425,384 5,080,047
R20214F 202012 A31 8 @ LR ER As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, there were no certificates of
FERBFREE ° deposit held included in the above balances.
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21. BEEEAZNESERULATEE
BEESET ABEZNEREE@®
BEEERRNESMAAFEEF=E BEEZ 5t

ANEZRE RS ER B THREER DTN T

21. TRADING SECURITIES AND FINANCIAL ASSETS AT

FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

Trading securities and financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss are analysed by categories of issuers as follows:

2021 2020
— R RBUF R R ERTT — Central governments and central
banks 4,425,384 5,080,047
—RITREM S B — Banks and other financial
institutions 14,263 23,368
— 1% — Corporate entities 595,003 533,985
5,034,650 5,637,400
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22. PTEERT A 22. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
202112 A1 AR HITETAE N 2 REAR The notional principal amounts of outstanding derivatives contracts and
S REQNFERT : their fair values as of 31 December 2021 were as follows:
e/
ZHSHE A¥E
Contract/ Fair values
notional BE afE
amount Assets Liabilities

1) FHEEERBRZITETA 1) Derivatives held for trading

H) SMEDTHET A a) Foreign exchange derivatives

RHRBESRN Forward and futures contracts 73,866,338 305,938 (266,003)

B8 A\ ROt ) NG B Currency options purchased and written 8,296,314 5,106 (5,275)

G R K 4 1] Cross currency interest rate swaps 404,909 4,734 (4,491)
Z) FIEPTAET A b) Interest rate derivatives

1| 2= 452 B Interest rate swaps 4,953,683 25,773 (21,335)
A) a1 1TET A ¢) Equity derivatives

B8 A N0 e e 1 B Equity options purchased and written 476,746 33,650 (18,855)
REEERGZTETE Total derivative assets/(liabilities) held for

BE/(BB)EF trading 87,997,990 375,201 (315,959)

2) FEEHRABZITETR 2) Derivatives held for hedging
) 18E A L FHEE R 2 4T a) Derivatives designated as fair value
TA hedges
M= 5 Interest rate swaps 49,477,473 260,651  (1,109,406)

B hRR 2 fTET BEE,~  Total derivative assets/(liabilities) held for
(BfE)&E hedging 49,477,473 260,651  (1,109,406)

BHERZITESBM T AEE,  Total recognised derivative financial assets/
(BfE)&EH (liabilities) 137,475,463 635,852  (1,425,365)
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22, fTHEEBMIAEmw 22. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
2020512 A1 AREHISTETAA N 2 REAR The notional principal amounts of outstanding derivatives contracts and
SREQNFERAT : their fair values as of 31 December 2020 were as follows:
&t/
ZHELHE ~¥E
Contract/ Fair values
notional BE afE
amount Assets Liabilities
1) BIEEERGZITETER 1) Derivatives held for trading
H) SMEDTHET A a) Foreign exchange derivatives
mEANEBESH Forward and futures contracts 63,788,312 857,935 (821,340)
B8 A\ ROt ) NG B Currency options purchased and written 9,794,008 16,681 (16,661)
) FIELTAET A b) Interest rate derivatives
Fl| 2t 5 Interest rate swaps 5,149,560 48,888 (44,691)
A) B 1 1TET A ¢) Equity derivatives
B\ RO D s | E A Equity options purchased and written 747,112 33,866 (22,457)
RHEEBERSBZITETR Total derivative assets/(liabilities) held for
BE/(AE)E:T trading 79,478,992 957,370 (905,149)
2) HFEHABRZITETA 2) Derivatives held for hedging
) IEEUARNFEE 2 0T a) Derivatives designated as fair value
TA hedges
|2 4 HR Interest rate swaps 41,984,638 189,831  (2,291,518)
FHESSh AR 2 STE T BEE ~  Total derivative assets/(liabilities) held for
(BE)As hedging 41,984,638 189,831  (2,291,518)
BHERZOTESRIEEZE, -  Total recognised derivative financial assets/
(A& (liabilities) 121,463,630 1,147,201  (3,196,667)
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23. REEFKRHEMIRE

23. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS

2021 2020
BEF BN Gross advances to customers 144,313,339 137,577,384
kR - ORELEE Less: impairment allowances
—PEER1 — Stage 1 (469,184) (486,431)
—FEE2 — Stage 2 (354,154) (208,225)
—F&E3 — Stage 3 (547,609) (556,508)
(1,370,947)  (1,251,164)
142,942,392 136,326,220
EE e Trade bills 4,253,850 3,791,124
MR REZLER Less: impairment allowances
— REER — Stage 1 (7,347) (8,848)
—[&ER2 — Stage 2 = (11)
(7,347) (8,859)
4,246,503 3,782,265
H & 2 (f17E32) Other assets (Note 32) 6,220,508 7,833,678
kR RELER Less: impairment allowances
— REERT — Stage 1 (13,119) (12,516)
—PfEER2 — Stage 2 (489) (547)
—PEER3 — Stage 3 (26,082) (24,293)
(39,690) (37,356)
6,180,818 7,796,322
BEHEFRREMIRE Advances and other accounts 153,369,713 147,904,807
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23. REESFREMERE @

(B) BEEEFERRBRzEBEHEEK
BRINE :

EFERLBNEEREREMERAAREMR
ERFMZEBaNMERETERS ZRBREF
o ANREABRAREERRERZRE - U@\
EBEZLBEE -

23. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (continued)

(a) Loans and advances to customers include finance
lease receivables as follows:

Loans and advances to customers include net investments in
equipment leased to customers under finance leases and hire purchase
contracts having the characteristics of finance leases. The contracts
have an option for acquiring by the leasee the leased asset at nominal
value at the end of the lease period.

2021 2020
BREERMENE 2 BUIREER Gross investment in finance lease
receivables:
1FLAR Not later than 1 year 1,088,890 1,670,776
1F LA EE56F Later than 1 year and not later than
5 years 1,721,515 2,012,941
5FIA Later than 5 years 419,025 373,460

REHE 2 RMELZBE WA

BMEMEREFHR

BMEMEREFBRIOMMT

1R
1F LA EFE5F

5FAE

20214 K 2020F12 531 H » FalHRiEHER
BEBAL R EERFEISRER -

R2021F12A31H  AEBEZEHREEER
FEAAWE 2 g E SRR EEES A
51,224,000/% 7T (20204 : 109,308,000/87T) °

3,229,430 4,057,177

Unearned future finance income on
finance leases (195,201) (206,327)

Net investment in finance leases 3,034,229 3,850,850

The net investment in finance leases is
analysed as follows:

Not later than 1 year 1,010,973 1,569,945
Later than 1 year and not later than

5 years 1,640,033 1,929,074
Later than 5 years 383,223 351,831

3,034,229 3,850,850

There is no unguaranteed residual value included in the gross
investment in finance leases above as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.

The allowance for uncollectible finance lease receivables included
in the impairment allowances as at 31 December 2021 of the Group
amounted to HK$51,224,000 (2020: HK$109,308,000).
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24. UATEFTEBEHESEHFTAEMEE 24. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

WENEREE OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
2021 2020
BEES Debt securities:
—&BBLE™ — Listed in Hong Kong 16,676,005 14,080,633
— BN ET — Listed outside Hong Kong 16,231,931 16,774,050
—3FEm — Unlisted 8,459,857 10,892,365

41,367,793 41,747,048

EmIEFS Equity securities:
—HBALEM — Listed in Hong Kong 909,722 1,077,412
— BRI ET — Listed outside Hong Kong 4,031,647 3,488,755
—JE Lk — Unlisted 89,106 82,489
5,030,475 4,648,656
att Total 46,398,268 46,395,704
PREEBELFAR Included within debt securities are:
— B ERE — Certificates of deposit held 489,774 344,348
—BHERE(ZERKRLER) — Treasury bills which are cash
equivalents 2,439,243 3,551,262
— Hfth BB = 4R — Other treasury bills 5,459,898 6,026,161
— BN ES — Government bonds 708,540 123,458
— Hin(Ei55E 5 — Other debt securities 32,270,338 31,701,819

41,367,793 41,747,048
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24. UATEFTEBEHESEHFTAEMEE 24. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

WEFENEREE @®)

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (continued)

2021 2020
AR HERF 8 B HEE 5 AHMEE K Financial assets at fair value through
LREERBITREERITAT other comprehensive income are
analysed by categories of issuers as
follows:
ESE S Debt securities:
— R RBUFMF RIRTT — Central governments and central
banks 7,987,115 9,700,881
— N — Public sector entities 789,164 134,779
—RITREM S R — Banks and other financial
institutions 6,800,550 7,590,109
—% — Corporate entities 25,790,889 24,321,204
—HAh — Others 75 75

PRSP -

41,367,793 41,747,048

Equity securities:

—RIT R E M mE AR — Banks and other financial

institutions 543,571 536,366

— X — Corporate entities 4,486,904 4,112,290

5,030,475 4,648,656

46,398,268 46,395,704
ETUAFEFEEEEZSHFALMEEEE Certain investments in equity instruments measured at fair value
HERETARERFEFRNARBEREERE through other comprehensive income have been sold during the
MHE - RRIEERE - REZATER year due to risk monitoring consideration. The fair value of the
1,803,407,0007% 7T (2020 : 1,540,479,000/% 7T ) investments at the date of derecognition was HK$1,803,407,000
MHHE RaTUkE54198,801,000/8 (2020 © 2 (2020: HK$1,540,479,000) and its cumulative gain on disposal was

=tk 25 4189,246,00076 7T ) ©

HK$198,801,000 (2020: cumulative gain of HK$189,246,000).
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25. DUBSREATIRNEREE

25. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED COST

2021 2020
BEEES Debt securities:
—&XELEM — Listed in Hong Kong 9,748,480 8,751,193
— BB T — Listed outside Hong Kong 9,869,613 9,297,525
—JELT — Unlisted 5,004,625 4,878,617
24,622,718 22,927,335
kR RELEE Less: impairment allowance
—PEER1 — Stage 1 (30,215) (24,352)
At Total 24,592,503 22,902,983
BEEEBEAFNE Included within debt securities are:
—RHENERE — Certificates of deposit held 1,537,364 1,745,601
—BEEE — Treasury bills 921,707 1,308,909
— BN ES — Government bonds 242,800 248,395
— B At ERES — Other debt securities 21,920,847 19,624,430
24,622,718 22,927,335
LABERR K AR DIBR Y 2 BB Financial assets at amortised cost are
a8 e # Pal K -
BEATRIBRBID AT : analysed by categories of issuers as
follows:
— PR K R R ERTT — Central governments and
central banks 1,164,507 1,557,304
— RNEHAE — Public sector entities 529,658 293,469
— RIT R H A & B — Banks and other financial
institutions 7,898,098 7,707,121
—1b — Corporate entities 15,019,366 13,358,352
—HAh — Others 11,089 11,089
24,622,718 22,927,335
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26. BMEQFRE

26. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

2021 2020
B ERE Share of net assets 6,878,328 6,199,304
mE Goodwill 344,623 344,623

kR - RESEM

128318 2 A&

NEBMAEERTZRENAFEDLEEER
1THR% 722021 FF 52020 F 48 2 Wi (8 o

MN20214F K 20205F 12 AB1 B v A AFIZ T EE
BT

7,222,951 6,543,927

Less: impairment allowances (2,992,000) (2,266,000)

4,230,951 4,277,927

Fair value at 31 December 2,045,244 2,224,088

The fair value of the Group’s investment in Bank of Chongging shown
above is calculated with reference to the closing market price of
BOCQ’s H-shares as at the end of 2021 and 2020.

The following is the key information relating to the associate as at 31
December 2021 and 2020:

R i itk B FritERBE DL
8 Place of incorporation and FEEK Percentage of
Name operation Principal activities interest in ownership
2021 2020
BERIT FREE AR HAME HR1T
Bank of Chongqing People’s Republic of China Banking 13.20% 14.66%
2021 2020
1A1H At 1 January 4,277,927 3,888,775
FEARERI (% AR Share of results, net of tax 697,954 710,370
FEIRBRTRIR I A Bt Share of investment revaluation
reserve, net of tax 44,040 382
B S Dividend received (206,338) (118,387)
B R REE R Impairment loss charged (726,000) (531,000)
RRLEZEE Loss on deemed disposal (31,202) -
EHERRAMFEE Exchange differences and other
adjustments 174,570 327,787
12A31H At 31 December 4,230,951 4,277,927

ERAEBESERTNESSAZRRE A
BraL 2 AR M AR BIE - MASERR AYE
BRITASATESN -

The Group is considered to have significant influence over BOCQ on
the basis of its representation on the board of directors and participation
in policy-making process.
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26. BEQATRE®@
() EERIT2RENKER
EEIRITOEATET2E88A12A31H -

HZE2021F12A31 HIEFEHHE - AEEERS
FERITEAMNEE2021F12A31 8 (E121E A
ZHTERR ZHELE -

HZE2020512A31HILFEHH - AEEERS
EERRITHEEN2019F g —FEH E20204F9
AB0RE=FRN12ME A 2 #¥%& - LAEERTA
MEBEEESEMNAEE2020F E N BHREE
¥4 - WEF &F2020F10 71 H E20204F 12
A3BBEZEARG REENUBEHE o

PA b B8 2R R E A AN 55 B 7R 25 152021 4 1Y) B 75 3R
L ERRITEE2021F12 8318 ILFERE
BB INAHR o

26. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)
(a) Selected financial information of BOCQ

The statutory accounting reference date of BOCQ is 31 December.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the results of BOCQ were
included by the Group on the basis of BOCQ’s financial statements
announced for and made up to the 12 months to 31 December 2021.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the results of BOCQ were
included by the Group by combining the results attributable to the 12
months’ period from the last quarter of 2019 to the first three quarters
ended 30 September 2020 which were published by BOCQ up to the
date that the 2020 annual financial statements of the Group were
approved by the Board of Directors for issue, and taking into account
the financial effect of significant transactions or events in the period
from 1 October 2020 to 31 December 2020.

The above changes are made because the results of BOCQ for the
year ended 31 December 2021 are publicly available by the time these
2021 financial statements of the Group are issued.
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26. BEQATRE®@
() EEFRTZREMKEEN @)

26. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

(@) Selected financial information of BOCQ (Continued)

20214 20205
12831H 9A30H
At At
31 December 30 September
2021 2020
ERBITZEEEERABER Selected balance sheet information of
BOCQ
e R RIRITHE R Cash and balances with central banks 45,612,239 43,885,655
FE W E At 3R1T I & Bl A Due from other banks and
financial institutions 54,969,190 66,139,034
HEERNER Loans and advances to customers 376,276,117 306,971,588
HihemEE Other financial assets 268,688,065 221,986,438
Hin&E Other assets 13,365,802 12,754,357
BEAG Total assets 758,911,413 651,737,072
e R RERTT Due to central banks 62,080,178 96,750,478
BFER - ERITREMESREETRE Customer deposits, and amounts due to
banks and other financial institutions 431,920,104 370,884,276
HiemaR Other financial liabilities 198,505,347 126,469,718
HaE Other liabilities 6,023,426 7,846,215
BEA Total liabilities 698,529,055 601,950,687
@ As Total equity 60,382,358 49,786,385
ik - BET2EER Less: Preferred shares issued (6,019,400)  (5,850,240)
HIBR - R FEHIRARR Less: Non-controlling interests (2,419,756)  (2,084,751)
TR R (R a AT Total equity attributable to ordinary
shareholders 51,943,202 41,851,394
FEERIT R ERESFTEAINIBITAAVEHREAN ZEREE Reconciliation of BOCQ’s total shareholders’
R equity to the carrying amount in DSB’s
consolidated financial statements
AR TIE LR R AR DSB’s share of total shareholders’ equity 6,855,608 6,137,403
m: WERZHERATERE Add: Goodwill and fair value
adjustment at acquisition 367,343 406,524
ks : RFE Less: Impairment (2,992,000)  (2,266,000)
HREE Carrying amount 4,230,951 4,277,927
20214 20205
12831H 6A30H
At At
31 December 30 June
2021 2020
B EERITZ HABBERAE Share of BOCQ'’s contingent liabilities and
commitments 9,919,288 8,897,871

RIEREBEERAF 2021 FFRH

267



RIFEER R M ot
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEME

(LA™ F7Thi57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

NTS

268

26. BEQATRE®@®
() EEFRTZREMKEEN @)

26. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

(a) Selected financial information of BOCQ (Continued)

20215 20194
1A18Z 10A1HE
20215 20204
12A31H 1 9H30H 1
1218 A 12{E A
12 months 12 months
from from
1 January 1 October
2021 to 2019 to
31 December 30 September
2021 2020

BERIT 2 EERERER Selected income statement information of

BOCQ

FEFBURA Net interest income 13,994,140 11,571,802
FREE KA WA Net fee and commission income 927,758 1,563,508
ERBBER Loan impairment charges (6,155,105)  (4,995,097)
BIIES Tax expense (1,488,054)  (1,300,839)
FERH Profit for the year 5,863,517 5,011,428
Hih 2 HE Other comprehensive income 372,671 (39,250)
2HEK S Total comprehensive income 6,236,188 4,972,178
BIRERRITIRE Dividend received from BOCQ 206,338 118,387
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26. BEQATRE®@

(2) RE 2B RH K R2021 F /R 2R
=1

MR2021F12A31H » AEBEEERITIHREZ
AFEDERRAEALSE - At - AEEFE
HHEBEIRITZRE 2 REEETRE R AR
EA U B 5E -

ERARLHAGFEEREE(ERER)ME
EZERRITAINESBNZIRE ZREE - £
REENRBEEEGMEZERRITANIRK
RIS - REERERRITHHMEHZER
MEERERZBHARRNAIERTEER - EF
MRREREBAAE - BEANEREENE
BERETI2ZEARNRFATISEER 2 EERITRA
AT EE o

ETERABEAEASHZREZATRE £
- AEBERMERBEEREEMSEHRE
ERFRAERFBEEREEZZ2HEE - AR
RIEHARMFE B EERTT 2 RGN ETER
EERITAREKAFHEZPHRERTZRE
EHEEBRTZAKRRERETFEEEER
ERHE -

26. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

(b) Impairment testing on the investment and impairment
recognised in 2021

At 31 December 2021, the fair value of the Group’s investment in
BOCQ had been below the carrying amount for approximately 8 years.
On this basis, the Group continues to perform an impairment test on the
carrying amount of the investment in BOCQ to assess the recoverable
amount.

The impairment test is performed by comparing the recoverable amount
of BOCQ, determined by a value in use (“VIU”) calculation, with the
carrying amount of the investment. The VIU calculation uses discounted
cash flow projections based on management’s estimates of BOCQ’s
earnings and dividends to be paid in future, and the estimated probable
exit value in future after considering the growth of BOCQ and its net
asset value for the medium and longer term. The discount rate applied
to the VIU calculation was estimated with reference to BOCQ'’s cost of
equity, which is publicly available in the market.

In performing the VIU calculation to arrive at the recoverable amount
of the investment, the Group considers all relevant factors including
market views and qualitative factors to ensure that the inputs to the
VIU calculation are appropriate. Adjustments need to be made to
reflect the latest situation affecting BOCQ and also market outlook for
the medium and longer term that are relevant in projecting BOCQ’s
future performance. Significant management judgement is required in
estimating the future cash flows of BOCQ.
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26. BEQATRE®@®

(Z) REZRENRERNA2021 FERE 2 H
B (@)

RIEBAS TstE 2021 FE12 A1 BEAEBE
#4,231,000,000/8 7T * & FTERA 2 & KR U0
—|T g

FRBMERE

e SRR

ALIR K

FRUMER TR A B2 AR BB A D
ik

TRMAERERAA RN LN EA GRS
BYUEAEEOYE - A THEERRER BEY
BE-BABRIWEHGEE - SR—BHH
82,5 I BB B N BB TR — S R R o

26. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

(b) Impairment testing on the investment and impairment
recognised in 2021 ()

The key assumptions used in the combinations of scenarios underlying
our calculated VIU of HK$4,231 million as at 31 December 2021 are as
follows:

F2025F K AT
F6%ZE7% ' E&EF
#45%

Ranging from 6%—7%

Annual profit growth rate

in the near term up
to 2025, and 5% per
annum thereafter

Dividend payout ratio 29.3%
Discount rate 13.34%
Price-to-book ratio (“PB ratio”) for estimation of 0.66

potential future recovery value under different
holding periods

The following table illustrates the impact on VIU of changes to key
assumptions which management considers as reasonable and possible.
The following summary reflects the sensitivity of the VIU in response to
the change of each key assumption. It is possible that more than one
favourable and/or unfavourable change may occur at the same time.

BRHES FHHER
Favourable change Unfavourable change
EREEN EREEN
LH Tk
Increase in ERER Decrease in ERER
(AE#T) (In millions of Hong Kong dollars) ViU ViU VIU ViU
FERFERE  Annual profit growth rate +1.0% 76 4,307 -1.0% (76) 4,155
R BIRE b Dividend payout ratio N/A N/A N/A -6.3% (99) 4,132
B Discount rate -5 5% 54 4,285 +2552 (54) 4177
-25 bps +25 bps
[LES PB ratio +126 50 4,281 +1% (50) 4,181
+1 pt +1 pt
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26. BEQATRE®@

(Z) REZRENRERNA2021 FERE 2 H
B (@)

RIEEHE2021F12B31B 2 MR D EE LitE
N R G RIER ER A S =R ) =
T2iHh K ER 2 FEREEREERMAE
HARE(EBIEHE2020612831HEERZ R
FTRERR) MG ERZEMETE 2 TR E <58
HAMEREREE - NEERE2021F12A31H 2k
METERIRENR  RAELTEFERAEERZ
A] Bl & BT A E R IR AV 220205F12 A31 H
2 2HR{ERT22,266,000,000/% T4 2 BRE(E -
75 BB 1B % #8 /4 726,000,00078 7T © E It R
20214 5 /Z W sR 7 18 Rl B %8 1% 726,000,000 % 7T
LAFAR 2% & 2 (B{E = 4,231,000,00075 7T °

AERMBITZ2EAT R KT EBIEZREY
REBAEF - ERFBITRREERITZIRERE
BRObN o B ZIEEHEF SN k@R IR IR E KA
21,213,000,000/8 7T * #ZIKE ZBERTZEKXR
FRIT 2 EATERLL R -

26. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

(b) Impairment testing on the investment and impairment
recognised in 2021 ()

Based on the assessment conducted for the position up to 31
December 2021 which takes into account the sensitivity of the key
assumptions shown above and the effects of possible interaction of
these assumptions, the recoverable amount, as determined by the
VIU calculation and after considering all relevant factors (including
the cumulative impairment charge having been recognised as of 31
December 2020) and valuation assumptions, remained below the
carrying amount. The latest impairment test performed by the Group for
the position as at 31 December 2021 concludes that the recoverable
amount, based on the VIU calculation, is assessed as lower than the
carrying amount, after deducting the cumulative impairment allowance
made up to 31 December 2020 of HK$2,266 million, by HK$726 million.
As a result, an additional impairment charge of HK$726 million was
recognised in the year of 2021 to reduce the value of the investment to
HK$4,231 million.

The calculation of DSB’s capital adequacy does not include the retained
earnings from the investment, except for BOCQ cash dividend received
by DSB. Provided that the investment continues to be held at or above
the original cost of the investment of HK$1,213 million, impairment
made on the investment does not affect DSB’s capital adequacy.
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27. HEEFEERE

27. INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

2021 2020

FE ETRE - AR Unlisted shares, at cost 20,000 20,000
FEAR U B & Share of post-acquisition reserves 94,373 85,553
114,373 105,553

#2021 4F 20204 12 A 31 B A £ 742 5 & 22 40
T ¢

The following are the jointly controlled entities as at 31 December 2021
and 2020:

hHEEEZESL
{3 26 FTEXERRLE B Percentage of
Z1B Place of Principal activities and place effective interest
Name incorporation of operation in ownership
SREEIERR AR A A HE KA - B
Bank Consortium Holding Limited Hong Kong Investment holding, Hong Kong 13.333%
IREHMEFERIR AR i BEBR XY BE
Bank Consortium Trust Company Limited Hong Kong Mandatory provident fund business,
Hong Kong 13.333%
IREEDRLAIR A A B BEBERER - B
BCT Financial Limited Hong Kong Mandatory provident fund business,
Hong Kong 13.333%

AEBERBERER AR 2EmmfBARKN
FIRTTRA - MRBEXAERIALRBEEHE
RARTIREIERER AR Z2ENBRF]

The Group’s interest in Bank Consortium Holding Limited is held by
DSB, a subsidiary of the Company. Bank Consortium Trust Company
Limited and BCT Financial Limited are the wholly owned subsidiaries of
Bank Consortium Holding Limited.
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28. MIEATAE 28. SUBSIDIARIES
2021F12A8318  NAFZHIBARIAT The following is a list of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December
2021:
FrERBBE S BRFLBRRA
Percentage of shares held Particulars of
DAER TEER Eaiisih s i i issued ordinary
Name of company Principal activity Place of incorporation Directly Indirectly share capital
AHRTEEBR AR REER 0
Dah Sing Banking Group Limited* Investment holding Hong Kong 74.37% - HK$6,894,438,231
AHEERRAR REER BE
Dah Sing Company Limited Investment holding Hong Kong 100% = HK$1,000,000
AHRER(1976)BR AR (FE(H)) —bx BE
Dah Sing Insurance Company General insurance Hong Kong 100% = HK$996,000,000
(1976) Limited (Note (a))
EER BRE
Dah Sing Holdings Limited Inactive Bermuda 100% = US$100,000
A RBRREBRAR RipRE BE
Dah Sing Insurance Agency Limited Insurance agency Hong Kong 100% - HK$500,000
RERR BHRE
Dah Sing International Limited Investment holding Bermuda 100% = US$100,000
BEX B Tapeils
Dah Sing Medical Science Investment  Inactive British Virgin Islands 100% = US$50,000
Incorporated
B2 BE
Dah Sing Secretarial Services Limited  Inactive Hong Kong 100% = HK$2
EEX BE
DSE Investment Services Limited Inactive Hong Kong 100% - HK$1,000,000
(Note (b)) (F£(Z.))
i E S BN
Filey Investment Corporation Inactive Panama 100% - US$2
MERE RERUHE
High Standard Investment Ltd. Property investment British Virgin Islands 100% = US$2
HKERERRAA B2 Bk
Newinner Investments Limited Inactive Hong Kong 100% = HK$2
EiE S BE
WOF Escrow Limited Inactive Hong Kong 100% - HK$25,000,000
ERER T REER BE
World Prosper Limited Investment holding Hong Kong 100% = HK$1
RERKR RBRTRS
Upway Wealth International Limited Investment holding British Virgin Islands 100% = US$1
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28. MIBAT @

28. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Fri6 R B DM

Percentage of shares held

ERTEBRRA
Particulars of

NGIES FEEK Bl =k iz issued ordinary

Name of company Principal activity Place of incorporation Directly Indirectly share capital
EER RBRTHS

Cycle Chance Limited Inactive British Virgin Islands 100% = us$2

BRTARAH NERE &R

Fortune Land Corporation Limited Property investment Hong Kong 100% - HK$1

EEIRERAR REER Bk

Right Vision Limited Investment holding Hong Kong 100% = HK$1
BER Bk

DSFH Limited Inactive Hong Kong = 100% HK$2
REER RBRTRE

DSGI (1) Limited Investment holding British Virgin Islands - 100% US$1
REER RERUHE

DSLI (BVI) (1) Limited Investment holding British Virgin Islands = 100% US$1
RERK RBRTRS

DSLI (2) Limited Investment holding British Virgin Islands = 100% US$1
REER RBRTEE

DSMI Group Limited Investment holding British Virgin Islands - 100% US$1

REEHERAR AR (E(R)) REER RERUHE

Able Keen Holdings Limited (Note (c))  Investment holding British Virgin Islands = 100% US$1

EBEXARAR BER B

Luen Fung Investment Company, Inactive Hong Kong = 100% HK$303,000

Limited

BPIRRROBRAR —RIRMR B

Macau Insurance Company Limited General insurance Macau - 100% MOP220,000,000

RIRRESERRNEB AR BRESER R

Macau Pension Fund Management Pension fund Macau - 100% MOP60,000,000

Company Limited management

AFBRTERAR RAT 0

Dah Sing Bank, Limited Banking Hong Kong - 74.37%  HK$6,200,000,000

AHRIT(PE)BRAR RAT thE \RAME

Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited Banking People’s Republic of China = 74.37%  RMB1,200,000,000

ZH(1931) B8R A7 EEX B

MEVAS (1931) Limited Inactive Hong Kong - 74.37% HK$400,000,000

BEEERITROBRAR 17 i

Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A. Banking Macau - 74.37% MOP225,000,000
WERE RERURES

CWL Prosper Limited Property investment British Virgin Islands = 74.37% US$1
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28. MiEE A= @ 28. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
FiERBBE A BRFLERRA
Percentage of shares held Particulars of
NGIES FEEK Bl =k iz issued ordinary
Name of company Principal activity Place of incorporation Directly Indirectly share capital
RHHBERAR EER B8
Dah Sing Finance Limited Inactive Hong Kong - 74.37% HK$25,000,000
AETRRERERAR RpELR &
Dah Sing Insurance Brokers Limited Insurance broking Hong Kong - 74.37% HK$500,000
AHEEARAR RIEAR BE
Dah Sing Nominees Limited Nominee services Hong Kong = 74.37% HK$100,000
RERK BE
Dah Sing Properties Limited Investment holding Hong Kong = 74.37% HK$9,998
REER BE
DSB BCM (1) Limited Investment holding Hong Kong - 74.37% HK$1
REER BE
DSB BCM (2) Limited Investment holding Hong Kong = 74.37% HK$1
AHESFBRAR EHER EE
Dah Sing Securities Limited Securities dealing Hong Kong = 74.37% HK$10,000,000
E2X 0
MEVAS Nominees Limited Inactive Hong Kong - 74.37% HK$50,000
RREHK(FE)ERAT b 3 BB
Pacific Finance (Hong Kong) Limited Inactive Hong Kong = 74.37% HK$450,000,000
ZEMBHRAR & B
OK Finance Limited Money lending Hong Kong = 74.37% HK$1,000
MAEEEERLH E2X 0
Modern World Holdings Limited Inactive Hong Kong - 74.37% HK$1
MAEEBARRAA EBEE BE
Modern Bright Hong Kong Limited Inactive Hong Kong = 74.37% HK$1
REZR RBRARS
South Development Limited Investment holding British Virgin Islands = 74.37% US$1
NERE RERAHES
Talent Union Holding Limited Property investment British Virgin Islands - 74.37% US$2
HERBBRARF NERE B
Vanishing Border Investment Services  Property investment Hong Kong = 74.37% HK$20
Limited
NERE RERURES
Well Idea Enterprises Limited Property investment British Virgin Islands = 74.37% US$1
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28. MIBAT @

28. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

FiERBBEA BRFLERRA

Percentage of shares held Particulars of

AFEB FEER EEdipichs HE M issued ordinary

Name of company Principal activity Place of incorporation Directly Indirectly share capital
MERE EBRUHE

Wise Measure Limited Property investment British Virgin Islands = 74.37% US$1
NERE RBRTRE

Reliable Associates Limited Property investment British Virgin Islands - 74.37% US$1

- EEBMARZMERAF LR

BRATRITEBEERARRAFBITERAE R
ABRBRARIN - LAMMBRARBBILARRHK
& E LASND 7 s AR - B EER BB R T
DAV NNV Y P

BRAFRIT(FER)BERARF - RFIEERITARND
BRAR - BFAREROBERAGE - BFIRKE
SEBRRNOAR AR R LAFIBBERE AN
RIZEVR RSN - B R RIIERELE

K#FER1T(FRE) AR A FHR2008F7 A 1EH &R
AL - EARE A EE A R LM B 20548 sl
BIERARI(EREE EF3CRMZEER
&) o

s

() R¥FRE(1976)ER A RIRETEBARIN - INEE
77 42{8550,000,000/%5 7T Ky A] i [B1{E S A% o

(Z,) DSE Investment Services Limited [ 3% 17 & 38 i%
Sh + JREEITHR(ET00/8 T RIB L% o

(A) AERQRR2021F9815ABAZ 2 LB AR °

*

Listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Except for Dah Sing Banking Group Limited and Dah Sing Bank,
Limited which are public limited companies, all the above companies
are private companies or, if incorporated outside Hong Kong, have
substantially the same characteristics as a Hong Kong incorporated
private company.

Except for Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited, Banco Comercial de Macau,
S.A., Macau Insurance Company Limited, Macau Pension Fund
Management Company Limited, and companies incorporated outside
Hong Kong specified above, all other companies operate in Hong Kong.

Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited was incorporated in Mainland China in
July 2008. It is registered as “Limited liability company” (solely funded
by Taiwan, Hong Kong or Macau corporate body) under the laws of the
People’s Republic of China.

Note:

(a) In addition to the ordinary shares issued by Dah Sing Insurance Company
(1976) Limited, it also has redeemable preference shares in issue totalling
HK$550,000,000.

(b) In addition to the ordinary shares issued by DSE Investment Services
Limited, it also has preference shares in issue totalling HK$700.

(c) Acquired as a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company on 15 September
2021.
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29. BERELEE 29. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

EFHBE
&8 BOER B EE
BREE BREE Customer

[k Contract Core deposit relationship (il a3
Goodwill  intangibles  intangibles  intangibles  Trade name Total
A Cost
2021F1H1AH At 1 January 2021 874,603 26,499 80,583 69,256 80,927 1,131,868
b Addition 9,410 - - - - 9,410
2021%12A31H At 31 December 2021 884,013 26,499 80,583 69,256 80,927 1,141,278
2RERE/ Accumulated impairment/
amortisation
2021118 K At 1 January 2021 and
20214 12H31H 31 December 2021 98,239 26,499 80,583 69,256 - 274,577
REE Carrying value
2021%12A31H At 31 December 2021 785,774 - - - 80,927 866,701
EPHEE
GL BOER EVEE
EVEE EREE Customer
[ Contract ~ Core deposit  relationship &l B%
Goodwill intangibles intangibles intangibles ~ Trade name Total
A Cost
20201 A1 & At 1 January 2020 and
2020412 H31H 31 December 2020 874,603 26,499 80,583 69,256 80,927 1,131,868
ZRRE Accumulated impairment/
amortisation
2020F1H1H At 1 January 2020 - 26,499 80,583 69,256 - 176,338
BRI Impairment charge 98,239 - - - - 98,239
2020%12A31H At 31 December 2020 98,239 26,499 80,583 69,256 - 274,577
REE Carrying value
2020%12A31H At 31 December 2020 776,364 - - - 80,927 857,291
BEEAHBRZEREEBREESY RUEREER Intangible assets of finite life include contract intangibles, core deposit
FRREFEEBUSRBERRAZEN T5212F intangibles and customer relationship intangibles, and are amortised
Z A REEREE - R ARERNRLESFA over their useful life ranging from 5 to 12 years using a diminishing
AR BER R K ARG RITREREST o balance method. Trade name is carried as an asset of indefinite life

and is tested annually for impairment losses. It is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment loss.
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29. BEREFEE® 29. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)
PMESIEEIREANSEIEREEE —BNELD Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units (“CGU”)
BERACREELEM(REELEN]) - & identified according to business segments in line with the internal
BENRBE2FINT - management reporting structure. A summary of goodwill allocation is
presented below.
EiE B
Hong Kong Macau
DERLT fBARAT BIMRAT
Corporate Personal Overseas Rz &F

Banking Banking Banking Insurance Total
A Cost
202141 H1H At 1 January 2021 98,239 220,428 493,023 62,913 874,603
(1)) Addition (Note (1)) = = - 9,410 9,410
20211274318 At 31 December 2021 98,239 220,428 493,023 72,323 884,013
2iERE Accumulated impairment
2021F1A18 K At 1 January 2021 and

2021124318 31 December 2021 98,239 - - - 98,239
FEE Carrying value
2021%12A31H At 31 December 2021 = 220,428 493,023 72,323 785,774
BB RF
Hong Kong Macau
BERIT {HARIT IMRAT
Corporate Personal Overseas N CH

Banking Banking Banking Insurance Total
A Cost
20201418 At 1 January 2020 196,478 122,189 493,023 62,913 874,603
BHHE(FE) Reclassification (Note (2)) (98,239) 98,239 = = =
2020125318 At 31 December 2020 98,239 220,428 493,023 62,913 874,603
2iAE Accumulated impairment
20201 A1H At 1 January 2020 - - - - -
AERTR Impairment charge 98,239 - - - 98,239
202012 A431H At 31 December 2020 98,239 - = = 98,239
REE Carrying value
2020F12H31H At 31 December 2020 = 220,428 493,023 62,913 776,364
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29, BEREFEE®

(1) R2021%F  KEIEFERREBALSER
FIRE AR R A2 R 4% R EME LN EE R
9,410,000/&7T °

(2)  72020%F & B FETSE (LA E IR I TR ] 2
B BHREERT TORED HEEEART
‘F °

(F) BEREFEE ZRENR

REAETGFERBENR  HHBREBEFTEZERE
BEmMEEZHCEABMNA KRS - ZTEE
FAHEREEEABMFER - LSFTE 2R
S KEBEASFERERANETEFEER
N F-2% 5% H#E B B 5F A B E KR ° 5Z5F 5T
SHEEEEABEAREYEMRSEASENY
ETE RZEBRIEARHRAIE RS R 2 5 HFT
fREL o FTEA 2B R B ER RS E K HIRTT
SEEBHSEABN Z EBEBEAR 2 EAKA
IEFHE - RITEBRESEEEM 2R EE
11.12%(2020F : 9.97%) ' MR EFRESEE
BN 7 BRIR R 510.36%(20204F : 9.23%) °

RS S FEITOREARDER2REEEBRER
S22 ENEE (RITEBR3%  REREBA
2% ) RIARFHAGT B 2 FERIUR A - BRI SE5F LA
B - FTERZAR R DEENAEE K ER
TEB 2 BARKAMNEFHE - 2R Rig#ET
ZEBER MmN T10.836% = 11.12% (2020 4F :
9.23%%9.97%) Z & °

RNEFE W EEREE R R ARERRE © 72020
F o ERESEABNMNAEKRSEERNERT
B SEEEABRTHHERITRERERER
2 BR 4 E A B (U R R B R (B 8 6598,239,000 %
=

30. TERHMEEEE

29. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Note:

(1) The addition of goodwill of HK$9,410,000 in 2021 arose from the Group’s
acquisition of the remaining 4% equity interest of Macau Insurance
Company Limited held by the non-controlling interest in 2021.

) During 2020, part of the goodwill under Corporate Banking was transferred
to Personal Banking following the change in the management and
reporting line of a business unit.

(a) Impairment testing on goodwill and intangible assets

Impairment testing in respect of goodwill is performed annually by
comparing the recoverable amount of CGU determined based on
value in use calculation. The calculations use discounted cash flow
projections prepared by the Senior Management based on the latest
5-year business plan, taking into account projected annual growth
rate of net profit, and in perpetuity with constant growth rates ranging
from 2% to 5% after the fifth year. The 5-year business plan was
developed by the Senior Management based on their evaluation of the
businesses and associated projected discounted cash flow of net profit
of the relevant CGU and the conditions in which such businesses will
operate over the projection period. The discount rate used is based
on the Group’s and its Banking Group’s weighted average cost of
capital depending on type of businesses carried out by CGU, which are
11.12% (2020: 9.97%) for CGU under banking business and 10.36%
(2020: 9.23%) for CGU under insurance business.

For trade name, impairment testing is performed annually using pre-tax
royalty rate of 3% for banking business and 2% for insurance business
with reference to similar business transactions, projected revenue in the
medium-term plan, and in perpetuity after the fifth year. The discount
rate in the range of 10.36% to 11.12% (2020: 9.23% to 9.97%) used is
based on the Group’s and its Banking Group’s weighted average cost
of capital depending on type of businesses carried out.

No impairment loss on goodwill and trade name were identified in the
year. During 2020, the Senior Management had decided to recognise
a goodwill impairment charge of HK$98,239,000 for the CGU of the
equipment finance business of Corporate Banking given that the
recoverable amount of the equipment finance business under this CGU
is lower than the carrying value.

30. PREMISES AND OTHER FIXED ASSETS

2021 2020

1TE RIS Premises, furniture and equipment 2,463,433 2,469,228
EREEE Right-of-use assets 587,772 659,694
3,051,205 3,128,922
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30. TERHMEEEEm

() 17 - BRIMRRE

30. PREMISES AND OTHER FIXED ASSETS (Continued)

(a) Premises, furniture and equipment

A
BERAE
Furniture,
equipment
TE and motor A%
Premises vehicles Total
HZ2020F12B31HIEFE Year ended 31 December 2020
FAEREFE Opening net book amount 1,739,065 430,145 2,169,210
g Additions 8,618 131,255 139,873
HE Disposals - (3,163) (8,163)
FES W (FiF13) Depreciation charge (Note 13) (71,708) (129,054) (200,762)
EHEE Exchange difference 6,956 4175 11,131
ENOBERENERTE Reclassification from investment properties
to premises 352,939 - 352,939
FRIREFE Closing net book amount 2,035,870 433,358 2,469,228
202012 A31H At 31 December 2020
PR Cost 3,029,694 1,274,671 4,304,365
ZEHE Accumulated depreciation (993,824) (841,313)  (1,835,137)
HREFE Net book amount 2,035,870 433,358 2,469,228
HZ20215128318 LEE Year ended 31 December 2021
FREFE Opening net book amount 2,035,870 433,358 2,469,228
i Additions - 240,246 240,246
HE Disposals - (9,163) (9,163)
FrEZ L (HEE13) Depreciation charge (Note 13) (72,369) (140,684) (213,053)
EHER Exchange difference 3,249 1,819 5,068
ENNBITERRENE Reclassification from premises to investment
properties (28,893) - (28,893)
FREEFE Closing net book amount 1,937,857 525,576 2,463,433
2021F12A31H At 31 December 2021
(BN Cost 3,004,598 1,446,956 4,451,554
ZEME Accumulated depreciation (1,066,741) (921,380)  (1,988,121)
IREFE Net book amount 1,937,857 525,576 2,463,433
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30. TEREMEEEE®
() 7E& - B RERE

30. PREMISES AND OTHER FIXED ASSETS (Continued)

(a) Premises, furniture and equipment (Continued)

TEZEREFERE The net book value of premises comprises:
2021 2020
Gichi=pil Leaseholds
BRI Z R EEL Held in Hong Kong on medium-term
(fE102=505F 2 A1) lease (between 10-50 years) 1,548,438 1,605,580
BB LAINFE 2 H B A Held outside Hong Kong on medium-
(FE10=504F 2 ) term lease (between 10-50 years) 389,419 430,290
1,937,857 2,035,870
() HE (b) Leases

BEMT AR BIE R AR A Z HEREEH -

() ERZRUBRIERZLH

MIBHARKAERERE 2 S BIIRAT

This note provides information for leases where the Group is a lessee.

(i) Amounts recognised in the statement of financial
position

The statement of financial position shows the following amounts
relating to leases:

2021 2020
EREEE Right-of-use assets
LIES Properties 587,772 659,694
HEaE Lease liabilities 620,335 689,450

21 FHMBFEERNNBEREEER
119,331,00078 7T (20204 : 432,236,000/8
TE) ©

Additions to the right-of-use assets during the 2021 financial year
were HK$119,331,000 (2020: HK$432,236,000).
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30. TERHMWEEEE®m 30. PREMISES AND OTHER FIXED ASSETS (Continued)
(2) HE@m (b) Leases (Continued)
(i) RNz (ii) Amounts recognised in the income statement
Wbk ABBHEE 2 SBYIRIT ¢ The income statement shows the following amounts relating to
leases:
BiteE
Note 2021 2020
EREEEZIEXH Depreciation charge of
right-of-use assets
bJES Properties 13 192,755 193,206
MEXZH(BEEMNEEH — Interest expense (included in
HEEE) interest expense — lease
liabilities) 7 9,744 10,490
A HAHENEEEEE 2 XL (BEATE REMEE Expense relating to short-
BEIH  TEERE) term leases and low-
value assets (included
in premises and other
fixed assets expenses,
excluding depreciation) 13 3,956 3,497

20201 FAEHAMEZRERELRER
200,242,0007% 7T (20204 : 192,309,00078
JE) ©

(iii) FEEHEEZERAUTARR

AEEHESEFEYE o 120204 2021
F o HEAR—MRABI1FREIF 2 ETHR
1B AT REFT A 20 R 71 (iv) S it 2 JE IR 124 -

RERRERBREEREEZHH TR
RPN - BRHBAARAREZEEZE
RiERSN - HEA R RIMEMZZL -
EZEEDMFTRENEERE EAEER
1 o

(iv) EERKILEER

ERFMEIDEEEBRBREAKERITZET
YEHER - RAKEEERNZERERZ
BEMS @ EAZSGRITERRELER
B RZBISE CER IR IDRERRA]
RAEREMIER BAEAITHRE

The total cash outflow for leases in 2021 was HK$200,242,000
(2020: HK$192,309,000).

(iii) The Group’s leasing activities and how these are
accounted for

The Group leases various properties. Rental contracts are
typically made for fixed periods of 1 year to 9 years for 2020 and
2021, but may have extension options as described in (iv) below.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain
a wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants other than the security
interests in the leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased
assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

(iv) Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included in a number of
property leases across the Group. These are used to maximise
operational flexibility in terms of managing the assets used in the
Group’s operations. The majority of extension and termination
options held are exercisable only by the Group and not by the
respective lessor.
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31. REYH 31. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

2021 2020
1H1H At 1 January 671,150 1,166,842
i Additions 68,805 -
BB EMERTE Reclassification from investment

— BN BEZREMEZATE

BN BRTERREMSE

— BN BZRENEZAFE

ERAFERRE

12H31H

RERFHZEEERSRT
EHER 2 RER R B

properties to premises
— Fair value of investment properties
reclassified - (352,939)
Reclassification from premises to
investment properties
— Fair value of investment properties

reclassified 30,943 -
Fair value losses on revaluation (10,642) (142,753)
At 31 December 760,256 671,150

Unrealised gains or losses recognised
in income statement relating to those
assets held at the end of the year

— R FEEE — Fair value losses (10,642) (142,753)
WA 7 REFEDE The net book value of investment properties comprises:
2021 2020
TR Leaseholds
EEBFA 2R EEL Held in Hong Kong on medium-term
(FE10Z=504F 2 &) lease (between 10-50 years) 574,374 511,872
BB LAINEFE 2 H B A Held outside Hong Kong on medium-
(FE10E506F 2 ) term lease (between 10-50 years) 185,882 159,278
760,256 671,150

BREMEREWBERAR AN EL & #
136,359,000 # 7T ( 7 2020 & 12 A 31 H
106,796,000 7T) + Lt SIBIMNEE B MRS )8 IMR
RIS FTRE AN B BE D Z PR -

Included in the investment properties, the right of disposal of a property
owned by a subsidiary amounting to HK$136,359,000 (31 December
2020: HK$106,796,000) was restricted to satisfy the solvency
requirement imposed on the overseas insurance business by an

overseas regulator.
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31. REVWEm@
SERREMEZAFE

AREE 720214 & 2020F12 A31 H AR EWED
BEETTTEMRN - Wi HBEBY ZXEFTAER
FE—RNFERAENR(HERZEER)BRA R A
REBRFBEEANZZEYHERE KT
CRF)ERRBAMMNRPIZIEEMEREREL
BRI AREEE AN 25 Z UMD
EH T HARK A A SRS T ©

MSEEAMFE Z(GERER  HEFEMBRE
R BAIPFARAFEFEIF A FEEE —BK
EEARTSRHEENS 2 &= MEENYER

BREMEARBO PRI ER 2 BIRERMGET A
AEATE  EROBERAERBBYBHRS
ERFE1BF(RAFEFEIT A FESHENEIR
I

N

o0

EFTREMENEER  HP—BIEREA
REBRRE - B R ER A= NEFH AN RE
BT R S BALER - FTEEZBENTE
F770R 1,938 70 (20204 : 1,928/ 8L ) 2 &FF 1
IR 193,000/ 7T (20204F : 114,000/ 7T) ° $EEE
ERNTRESBIRENEZ AT ETEFHE
EBEDLLARED - RZINA ©

NRAREBEEELTTEBEAFEZREDE -
BRAZHERBRARBEELCREERBZEY
EZXHBEETERRAZENET - AFER
EEMSEESKIEABAER  BH5RaERKE
HHEARAR ©

31. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value measurement of investment properties

The Group’s investment properties were last revalued at 31 December
2021 and 2020 by adopting the direct comparison approach or
the income capitalisation approach and with reference to recent
transactions for similar premises as far as practicable by independent,
professionally qualified valuer Savills (Valuation and Professional
Services) Limited for investment properties in Hong Kong and Mainland
China, and by Savills (Macau) Limited for investment properties in
Macau.

The basis of the valuation of property was market value which is
consistent with the definition of fair value under HKFRS 13 “Fair Value
Measurement” and takes into account the highest and best use of the
property from the perspective of market participants.

Investment properties are measured at fair value using valuation
techniques with significant unobservable inputs which are classified as
Level 3 under the fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, “Fair
value measurement”.

One of the key inputs used in valuing the investment properties was the
unit sale rate taking into account of time, location, and individual factors
such as size and levels of buildings, which ranged from HK$1,938
(2020: HK$1,928) to HK$193,000 (2020: HK$114,000) per square
foot. A decrease in unit sale rate would result in decrease in fair value
measurement of the investment properties by the same percentage and

vice versa.

For investment properties of which the fair value is determined using the
income capitalisation approach, the assessment is conducted on the
basis of capitalisation of net incomes with due allowance for outgoings
and reversionary income potential. The fair value measurement is
positively correlated to the market rental and inversely correlated to the
market yields.
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31. REVWEm@
STEREMEZAFE@®
WASREEEL AT B 2 Uk :

31. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value measurement of investment properties (Continued)

Unobservable inputs on income capitalisation approach:

fRER % TAERZEE &=
Valuation technique(s) Unobservable input(s) Range
REWE WARBEEHE THKEE(ERRRE) 2.00%Z3.10%
(20204 : 2.00%%3.10%)
Investment properties Income capitalisation Market yields 2.00% to 3.10%
approach (reversionary yield) (2020: 2.00% to 3.10%)
[Ekgiika BYHR227BTE13ET
(2020% : §FHR63BTE1804TT)
Market rental HK$27 to HK$193 per square foot
(2020: HK$63 to HK$180 per square foot)
32. HthEE 32. OTHER ASSETS
2021 2020
DREE Reinsurance assets 549,644 633,052
GO EYSSENEELE Accounts receivable and prepayments 4,582,031 6,043,487
FEETHA Accrued income 866,468 888,474
Hity Others 222,365 268,665
6,220,508 7,833,678
33. BEEERZNAR 33. TRADING LIABILITIES
2021 2020
TR E R K B E S Short sales of treasury bills and
treasury bonds 1,511,927 1,570,675
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34. BEFEX

34. DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS

2021 2020

TEEATE SR R E RTFE R Demand deposits and current accounts ~ 48,091,893 53,410,604
GELETN Savings deposits 41,503,676 40,945,875
TEH - BANMEHTER Time, call and notice deposits 105,326,144 95,544,866
194,921,713 189,901,345

WHRHEADE BB T A BEHAE 2 BIPR 2 7R
13,304,000 7T (20204F : 18,222,000 7T) B 2
WA EMBR B R FEIR B R ©

B - BAMRERERIN
BERFRER

A EMEFER

35. BRITHERE

Deposits of HK$13,304,000 (2020: HK$18,222,000) held as collateral
for irrevocable commitments under import letters of credit were reported
under other accounts and accruals.

Other than time, call and notice deposits, all other customer deposits
carry variable interest rates.

35. CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT ISSUED

2021 2020
IR R R R T AR SR AN A A TE At amortised cost with fair value
R AEEE TR hedge adjustments (for hedging
interest rate risk) 6,489,717 1,561,697
TREE AR AT BR At amortised cost 100,000 6,564,105
6,589,717 8,125,802

520219 R2020%F 19 + A BIHA RV TERES
EEEARETEREANATESBARS
STASR -

AEBAENSEETFREIBRIZENOEN
K& BB LA _EFT %I 2 BR 8 /= 11,000,000 7% 7T
(20204 : 1£1,000,000/87T) °

During 2021 and 2020, the Group did not designate on initial recognition
any certificates of deposit issued at fair value through profit or loss.

The amount that the Group would be contractually required to pay at
maturity to the holders of these certificates of deposit is HK$11 million
higher (2020: HK$1 million lower) than the above carrying amount.
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36. ®REEK 36. SUBORDINATED NOTES
2021 2020
RED R RS T AR AR RN TE At amortised cost with fair value hedge
¥R AR adjustments (for hedging interest rate
risk):
250,000,000 7T 742026 4F £ HAHY US$250,000,000 Subordinated Fixed
ELBEREGE(R)) Rate Notes due 2026 (Note (a)) - 1,964,475
225,000,000 7T 7420294 £ B ) US$225,000,000 Subordinated Fixed
ELEBERBGE(Z2)) Rate Notes due 2029 (Note (b)) 1,810,359 1,863,983
300,000,000 7T/ 2031F 2| £iK) US$300,000,000 Subordinated Fixed
ELBERRGE(R)) Rate Notes due 2031 (Note (c)) 2,318,087 =
4,128,446 3,828,458

1K20214F &2020F N + ANE B R B R YA R R

E\

B

it

(&)

<

BEEMAERERBAARTEFSEEEHFTA

It J5 K R 77 2016 E 11 A 30 B & 17 2
250,000,000 TEBER S AT ([ BBEXHFT])
tHRFAERERBENTHRRES - FERN
105 HIE B2 EER ([ & ) (BBFEBCRT
E(EXR)RADZIERK) o b EEH 1 7120264F
11 A30B 28 - MIZMHEEH 52021511 530
H o K¥TRITEN2021 E 2 BUE B I ZETS o

b Ty R F R T R2019 51 A15 8 & 17 2
225,000,000 T EBARFHH LT RFEEE
RIBE N R E A BRERNI0FHE BRE
&% ([EH ) (BESFEACGRITE(ERN)BADZ
1530 o LS BN 202041 A15 8 25 - %12
MEEE A A2024F1 A165H - HBTAEHEE
MEEA FRARS%  BEEME—IR - Hik -
HEBAERELEERED  TENFEEE
5] R E RS F BB B & (& % B K IN2558 T &
BEESBSERBLAIE  RFIBRITAIUEZEE
EEBATA GERBD ) ER - AFRITIHE R
BRERATET N F RIS HI A WIS RIS /O B i F B 14
BAETIRTTRIZEN B AERAZBFI S -

During 2021 and 2020, the Group did not designate on initial recognition

any subordinated notes at fair value through profit or loss.

Note:

This represents US$250,000,000 Basel Ill compliant 10-year Subordinated
Fixed Rate Notes qualifying as Tier 2 capital of DSB (subject to the
provisions of the Banking (Capital) Rules of Hong Kong) issued on 30
November 2016 (the “Notes”), which were listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“SEHK”). The Notes had a maturity date on 30
November 2026 with an optional redemption date falling on 30 November
2021. DSB had fully repaid the Notes in 2021.

This represents US$225,000,000 Basel Ill compliant 10-year Subordinated
Fixed Rate Notes qualifying as Tier 2 capital of DSB (subject to the
provisions of the Banking (Capital) Rules of Hong Kong) issued on 15
January 2019 (the “Notes”), which are listed on the SEHK. The Notes will
mature on 15 January 2029 with an optional redemption date falling on
15 January 2024. Interest at 5% p.a. is payable semi-annually from the
issue date to the optional redemption date. Thereafter, if the Notes are not
redeemed, the interest rate will be reset and the Notes will bear interest
at the then prevailing 5-year U.S. Treasury Rate plus 255 basis points.
DSB may, subject to receiving the prior approval of the HKMA, redeem
the Notes in whole but not in part, at par. An interest rate swap contract to
swap the fixed rate payment liability of the Notes to floating interest rate
based on LIBOR has been entered into with an international bank.
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36. ZBEGSK@

(A) I ARFFETR2021F11 A2H FE T2
300,000,000 TTEBER ST EHEFEEE
BIBENMERE B RERNI0OFHE B BE
&R ([EH ) (BETFEB(RITE(BEAR)RADZ
1630  HEESAER2031F11 A2R F|H] - B2
MREE H A2026F11 A2H - HBETHEHERE
MEER - FEA3%  FEFME—IK - Hit -
HEBAERELHEERER  TENFEEE
R AERSFHEEBEES SR M195%F - &
BEEASERBEAME  KRFRITAUEEE
BEBATA GEBD ) &R - AFRITHEE—H
BRERATET N A RIm HI A AR5 R0 B e 7 Sk 4R
BAETIRITRIFENF S AEREZBFIS AR

AEBENSREEFIPEHEZANEND S
£R8 DA _E BT %Il 2 Bk 8 {£.35,000,000 7% 7T (2020
F : {K146,000,000/5 7T ) °

37. HttfRB R

36. SUBORDINATED NOTES (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(c) This represents US$300,000,000 Basel |1l compliant 10-year Subordinated
Fixed Rate Notes qualifying as Tier 2 capital of DSB (subject to the
provisions of the Banking (Capital) Rules of Hong Kong) issued on 2
November 2021 (the “Notes”), which are listed on the SEHK. The Notes
will mature on 2 November 2031 with an optional redemption date falling
on 2 November 2026. Interest at 3% p.a. is payable semi-annually from
the issue date to the optional redemption date. Thereafter, if the Notes
are not redeemed, the interest rate will be reset and the Notes will bear
interest at the then prevailing 5-year U.S. Treasury Rate plus 195 basis
points. DSB may, subject to receiving the prior approval of the HKMA,
redeem the Notes in whole but not in part, at par. An interest rate swap
contract to swap the fixed rate payment liability of the Notes to floating
interest rate based on LIBOR has been entered into with an international
bank.

The amount that the Group would be contractually required to pay at
maturity to the holders of these subordinated notes is HK$35 million
lower (2020: HK$146 million lower) than the above carrying amount.

37. OTHER ACCOUNTS AND ACCRUALS

2021 2020

HEBEMES(Z)) Lease liabilities (Note 30(b)) 620,335 689,450
REEHzHEMEBEGE(R)) Other liabilities under insurance

contracts (Note (a)) 1,320,037 1,393,810

HAth Others 6,228,990 6,627,358

8,169,362 8,710,618
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37. HttERERFER®@®

37. OTHER ACCOUNTS AND ACCRUALS (continued)

() REEEHzHMBESHAOT : (a) Other liabilities under insurance contracts are
analysed below:
2021
DRIDE
#%  Reinsurers’ =ik
Gross Share Net
—RRR General Insurance
KA REFEE Unearned premium reserve 449,363 (170,081) 279,282
BEE2HRZRE Notified claims 620,938 (288,886) 332,052
FRNERZEWMZEE Claims incurred but not reported 249,736 (93,893) 155,843
RIERER < Unexpired risk reserve - 3,216 3,216
|5t Total 1,320,037 (549,644) 770,393
KRR ZRERE Unearned premium reserve
1A1H At 1 January 412,154 (152,671) 259,483
REBWA Premiums written 891,345 (385,442) 505,903
BRI RE Premiums earned (854,136) 368,032 (486,104)
12H31H At 31 December 449,363 (170,081) 279,282
EEHRREAMEREHR2EE Notified and incurred but not reported claims,
RRERERZHE and unexpired risk reserve
BEEWmIRE Notified claims 750,307 (412,847) 337,460
BRMARERZIRE Claims incurred but not reported 228,939 (67,314) 161,625
RIEWER 2 Unexpired risk reserve 2,410 (220) 2,190
1A1H At 1 January 981,656 (480,381) 501,275
BEXNRE Claims paid (414,408) 138,163 (276,245)
BEARNRE Claims incurred 303,426 (37,345) 266,081
12A31H At 31 December 870,674 (379,563) 491,111
BEE2HRZRE Notified claims 620,938 (288,886) 332,052
FAMEBRZR RE Claims incurred but not reported 249,736 (93,893) 155,843
RIEWER 2 Unexpired risk reserve - 3,216 3,216
870,674 (379,563) 491,111
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37. HttlRE RFER®@®

() REEHzHMEEIHMT (@)

37. OTHER ACCOUNTS AND ACCRUALS (continued)

analysed below: (Continued)

(@) Other liabilities under insurance contracts are

2020
HRNEE
B Reinsurers’ FE
Gross Share Net
—RAR B General Insurance
KA RERE Unearned premium reserve 412,154 (152,671) 259,483
BERZRE Notified claims 750,307 (412,847) 337,460
FRNERZEWMZEE Claims incurred but not reported 228,939 (67,314) 161,625
PN ENE A Unexpired risk reserve 2,410 (220) 2,190
|5t Total 1,393,810 (633,052) 760,758
KRR ZRERKE Unearned premium reserve
1A1H At 1 January 405,278 (151,005) 254,273
REMA Premiums written 871,916 (359,947) 511,969
BRI IRE Premiums earned (865,040) 358,281 (506,759)
12A31H At 31 December 412,154 (152,671) 259,483
EEHRREAMEREHR2EE Notified and incurred but not reported claims,
RRERERZHE and unexpired risk reserve
BEERZRE Notified claims 746,423 (457,983) 288,440
BRMARERZRE Claims incurred but not reported 275,156 (121,248) 153,908
RIEWER 2 Unexpired risk reserve = 2,065 2,065
1818 At 1 January 1,021,579 (577,166) 444,413
BEXNRE Claims paid (461,409) 239,221 (222,188)
BEANRE Claims incurred 421,486 (142,436) 279,050
12A31H At 31 December 981,656 (480,381) 501,275
BEE2HRZRE Notified claims 750,307 (412,847) 337,460
FRMNEREMZEE Claims incurred but not reported 228,939 (67,314) 161,625
REMER 2 #E Unexpired risk reserve 2,410 (220) 2,190
981,656 (480,381) 501,275
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38. IEZEBIR
BELERREERB BN ERIEREBRIERITHE

B[R] — ISR R R 5 P T - HEH 2 & F A
T~

38. DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current income tax assets against
current income tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate
to the same fiscal authority. The offset amounts are as follows:

2021 2020
EETIEEE Deferred income tax assets 70,852 69,923
FERIBRE Deferred income tax liabilities (92,550) (46,978)

EEHBEERBBEREBERZRZHRER R
Bz Tt BB AT T

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities analysed based on the
underlying category of temporary differences and the expected date of
recovery and settlement are as follows:

2021 2020
RAEFIIR B EE Deferred income tax assets:
— A 1218 A& e 2 BEF B & = — Deferred income tax assets
to be recovered after more than
12 months 275,454 267,231
FEMIBRE Deferred income tax liabilities:
—EE12@AREEZEERIBARG — Deferred income tax liabilities
to be settled after more than
12 months (297,152)  (244,286)
(21,698) 22,945

EIETIRAR B @B EHMT

The gross movement on the deferred income tax account is as follows:

2021 2020
1A1H At 1 January 22,945 59,299
U ER BR AT A S (B EE17) Tax charged to the income statement
(Note 17) (2,788) (20,835)
g BR A BT ST Tax charged to equity (46,728) (20,361)
BE H 2 R R B B Exchange difference and other
adjustments 4,873 4,842
12H31H At 31 December (21,698) 22,945
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38. EIERIE @)

EEHBREERBBERAFEZEE  TRER

MRBUEEERE TG T

38. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during the

year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within

the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

BELEBIEEE : Deferred income tax assets:
HE BREXH
EERBE REAM
Impairment REER Deferred
allowances and BEER Investment expenses &t
provisions Tax losses revaluation and others Total
2020F1A1H At 1 January 2020 196,819 21,733 - 61,071 279,623
MIREIRAEIE /()  Credited/(charged) to
the income statement 5119 (10,478) - (11,875) (17,234)
R ERREMAE Exchange difference and
other adjustments 3,021 - - 1,821 4,842
2020124318 1 At 31 December 2020 and
2021F1H1H 1 January 2021 204,959 11,255 - 51,017 267,231
YERBRAEIE /(%) Credited/(charged) to the
income statement 12,378 (7,712) - (1,598) 3,068
PR 2 R PR ] 48 Credited to equity - - 282 - 282
EREEREMAR Exchange difference and
other adjustments 1,255 - - 3,618 4,873
2021%12A31H At 31 December 2021 218,592 3,543 282 53,037 275,454
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38. EIERIE @)

38. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

BELEREBESE: Deferred income tax liabilities:
NERBHE  REWXER
Accelerated Investment REEM
B tax properties Investment &t
Provisions depreciation revaluation revaluation Total
2020F1H1H At 1 January 2020 14,843 92,567 24,153 88,761 220,324
UERBR A (EH) /S (Credited)/charged to the
income statement (7,117) 11,949 (1,231) - 3,601
PERIRAS T Charged to equity 1 - - 20,360 20,361
2020124318 1 At 31 December 2020 and
2021F1H1H 1 January 2021 7,727 104,516 22,922 109,121 244,286
MREERASE /(%)  Charged(credited) to the
income statement 3,726 2,361 (231) - 5,856
MER IR Charged to equity - - - 47,010 47,010
2021%12A31H At 31 December 2021 11,453 106,877 22,691 156,131 297,152

T Ty AR R A IRERUR

The deferred income tax charged to equity during the year is as follows:

2021 2020
R RS 2 A FERFEE Fair value reserves in shareholders’
equity:
— AT EREBESE ARt E RS — financial assets at fair value through
CREE other comprehensive income (46,728) (20,361)
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39. RAEBREAE
() EREE

MR12A31 BERE RIDARREEHEBEE ME
ANEEBE 2 ERFEMT ¢

39. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
(a) Capital commitments

Capital expenditure in respect of projects and acquisition of fixed assets
as at 31 December but not yet incurred is as follows:

2021 2020

EROBERERERZHAX

(2) FEESE

AEBEERBERIMEERETEPZERMIA
BREBRREEERBRINESEENT

Expenditure contracted but not

provided for 102,589 198,240

(b) Credit commitments

The contract and credit risk weighted amounts of the Group’s off-
balance sheet financial instruments that commit it to extend credit to
customers are as follows:

EHLE

Contract amount
2021 2020
HEEERB R Direct credit substitutes 1,383,242 645,720
HIZX 5 MHR 2 SRR B Transaction-related contingencies 496,192 537,138
HIEE 5 MR < SR IE B Trade-related contingencies 703,597 846,898

AT EAEUE M N AT @A 2 e Commitments that are unconditionally

cancellable without prior notice 69,241,096 72,035,740
H b AiE Other commitments 4,304,623 4,423,624
76,128,750 78,489,120

EERRIEREE

Credit risk weighted amount

2021 2020
DEN=CE Y ESS Contingent liabilities and commitments 2,454,143 1,574,554

ERRARINESBDREGRITE(ER) R

Ny
Al >+ °

The credit risk weighted amount is calculated in accordance with the
Banking (Capital) Rules.
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39. RAEBRAE®

(W) EFERzEE

39. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

(Continued)

(c) Assets pledged

2021 2020
BB EEBERREER Trading assets and financial
TRREERERR investments pledged to
secure liabilities 2,593,024 3,077,937
—Erh RO — of which: under repurchase
agreements 1,518,732 1,506,126
ERyaBeE Amount of liabilities secured 2,585,362 3,123,207
—Hep 2O — of which: under repurchase
agreements 1,510,862 1,551,207

ERIRIERRANEEMR L EREREE
RZBE - ZEXHHREFRBENERARS
(BIEE B R IR E E U REA R KB f 4
B2 XATRFF ) IGFGETT -

(T) REEERE

WAEEZ ARRHEA - RTATEUERL S
HEMRAREY 2 RERENRAERELLT -

The table above shows assets where a charge has been granted to
secure liabilities on a legal and contractual basis. These transactions
are conducted under terms that are usual and customary to
collateralized transactions including repurchase agreements, and
include assets pledged to cover short positions and to facilitate
settlement processes with clearing houses.

(d) Operating lease commitments

Where a Group company is the lessor, the future minimum lease
payments receivable under non-cancellable building operating leases
are as follows:

2021 2020

1ER Within 1 year 15,470 15,102
1225 Between 1 and 2 years 7,415 9,469
2E3F Between 2 and 3 years 2,720 3,265
3Z4F Between 3 and 4 years 1,101 508
26,706 28,344

gEoh - AREBERAMEA - E120214F &20204F
12A31B &I A TNARBZHE - IZZEHE
i f& 2 1 2 M E [ R A8 FE & 51 728,982,000 7T
(20204 : 28,953,000/87T) °

In addition, the Group has, as a lessee, entered into a number of leases
as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 that have not yet commenced.
The aggregate lease payments payable under these leases amount to
HK$28,982,000 (2020: HK$28,953,000).
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40. BA 40. SHARE CAPITAL
2021 2020
RE IR BRE [
ZER Ordinary shares, Number Share Number Share
ERTRAZRAK issued and fully paid: of shares capital of shares capital
1A18 K&12H31H At 1 January and 31 December 319,575,100 4,248,559 319,575,100 4,248,559
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M. f#E 41. RESERVES
TEEf REEf NRARE REEA
i i il A (&)
Premises  Investment ESifdE EXGHE —RE®E  Reservefor Retained
Revaluation  Revaluation Exchange Capital General  Share-based Earnings fit
Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Compensation (Note) Total
2021%151A At 1 January 2021 606,238 977,875 13,191 6,318 484,289 3,150 22,046,450 24,137,511
AHEFERNALRARLER  Fair value loss realised and transferred
IATFEFEEEZEHA  toincome statement upon disposal
EZENENERTAR  of debtinstruments at fair value
PSP E Y through other comprehensive income
upon derecognition - (3,713) - - - - - (3,713)
RRIEREZES - A% Reclassiication of net change in fair
ATEFHEEEETHA value of equity instruments at fair
Et2ERRMESMHTE  value through other comprehensive
LATEREFE income upon derecognition - (198,801) - - - - 198,801 -
IATEFFEEEZEHA  Netchange in fair value of debt
E2ERENERTIEZ  instruments at fair value through
ATEEGFE other comprehensive income - 51,251 - - - - - 51,251
ERRES ST ZRENBE  Share of other comprehensive income
Relz B2 ElE of an associate accounted for using
the equity method - 32,753 - - - - - 32,753
WATEFZEESEEFA  Netchangein fair value of equity
2 ERaMERETAZ  instruments at fair value through
INTEY 52 other comprehensive income - 606,539 - - - - = 606,539
RASEREEYZETHE  Deferred income tax on movements in
investment revaluation reserve - (41,872) - - - - - (41,872)
INATEFFEEEZEA  Netchange in allowance for expected
Ef2ERENERTEZ  creditlosses of debt instruments
EHCEFEEEZHTE  atfairvalue through other
comprehensive income = 5,454 = = = = - 5,454
RERERMERETE Reserves arising from distribution
B payment of additional equity
instruments - - - - - - 10,591 10,591
REBIEENBRED Exchange differences arising on
EHER translation of the financial statements
of foreign entities - - 154,073 - - - - 154,073
DARRRE ST FARR({EAERE  Provision for equity-settled share-based
S8z BERE AR compensation and other adjustment - - - - - 357 - 357
REEFDEAERRENE  Reserve arising from reclassification of
L premises to investment properties 2,049 - - - - - - 2,049
FERT Profit for the year - - - - - - 1,308,404 1,308,404
020FRERE 2020 final dividend - - - - - - (214,114) (214,114)
AN ERERE 2021 interm cvidend - - - - - - (0s460)  (105,460)
2021%12A31A At 31 December 2021 608,287 1,429,486 167,264 6,318 484,289 3,507 23,244,672 25,943,823
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M. fFE@

41. RESERVES (Continued)

BZ12A31BLLEE
Year ended 31 December

2021 2020
BIERRE BN A 2 BR KRR S Proposed final dividend/final dividend
EIRAREIE (HI5E18) paid included in retained earnings
(Note 18) 233,290 214,115
G Note:

RHTIRIT BB B EMIBITANEERET N ERRED
IS MELAFTHR A2 RADRERSE - BRZEER
B (E AR ORFIRERT RAFRT(FBE) DANEE
BIRTEGHIRABBEERBNZAMEERE » &
EERBRBRURETRR2REEHSE - BERB2E
PRAREB T E RETHN - WEHENERFE RN -

M2021F12 A31H - KFTIRTTE HEE 432,194,000/ 7T
(20204 : 502,278,000 7T ) » £ BBIEREE HE LK
HEARA —RHE - fRERTESSRBANREE

DSB as a locally incorporated bank in Hong Kong is required to maintain
minimum impairment provisions in excess of those required under HKFRS in the
form of regulatory reserve. The regulatory reserve, which also covers BCM and
DSB China, is maintained to satisfy the provisions of the Hong Kong Banking
Ordinance and local regulatory requirements for prudential supervision purposes.
The regulatory reserve restricts the amount of reserves which can be distributed
to shareholders. Movements in the regulatory reserve are made directly through
equity reserve and in consultation with the HKMA.

As at 31 December 2021, DSB has earmarked a regulatory reserve of
HK$432,194,000 (2020: HK$502,278,000) first against its consolidated general
reserve; and for any excess amount, the balance is earmarked against its
consolidated retained earnings.
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41. #E®@ 41. RESERVES (continued)
TS REBM DR AE REEF
Ei ffe TRIRM 2 1A (&)
Premises Investment G BAGRE —#%5E  Reservefor Retained
Revaluation  Revaluation Exchange Capital General  Share-based Eamnings Rt
Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve  Compensation (Note) Total
2020F151A At 1 January 2020 606,238 612,443 (275,321) 6,318 484,289 2,540 21,120,164 22,556,671

DTEEERNAILRACHER  Fair value loss realised and transferred

IAFEE AR
A EEREHRE AR
SRRELE Rk

IR - EHARA
AHEAEAEZHEA
AEEREHERNTA
LAVEREEE

ERBEL G TR
HELARARINFAE

WATEHERARHIA
AHREREORFIAL
1TEEETE

(e
PLFELES

AT RSB

Eeeabangalt TAZ

AFERIFE
RREHERROZEENR

KATEH AR
K2 EIEORRTAL
BORAERLERDS

RRRZRMERITA
WHZ B

BEBMEBERY
EfzE

EELARRD
ARES MR D (AR
B BER AR

FERA
0195 R8RS
20205 8RS

20205128318

to income statement upon disposal
of debt instruments at fair value
through other comprehensive income
upon derecognition

Reclassification of net change in fair
value of equity instruments at fair
value through other comprehensive
income upon derecognition

Additional net assets in a subsidiary
acquired via share option
arrangement

Net change in fair value of debt
instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Share of other comprehensive income
of an associate accounted for using
the equity method

Net change in fair value of equity
instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Deferred income tax on movements in
investment revaluation reserve

Net change in allowance for expected
credit losses of debt instruments
at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Reserves arising from distribution
payment of additional equity
instruments

Exchange differences arising on
translation of the financial statements
of foreign entities

Repurchase of ordinary shares

Provision for equity-settled share-based
compensation and other adjustment

Profit for the year

2019 final dividend

2020 interim dividend

At 31 December 2020

(10,001)

(189,246)

(58214)

284

643,208

(25,391)

4792

189,246

10,575

(262)
1158152
(345,140)
(86,285)

(10001)

(58214)

284

643,208

(25,391)

4,792

10,575

288,512

8
1,158,152
(345,140)
(86,285)

977,875

22,046,450

24,137,511
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42, ZEBERELERNE

() MilrE TREREEEEZWHERER
Al EERNEEEEH AR EFHE
HiRE

42,
CASH FLOWS

(@)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

Reconciliation of operating profit before gains and

losses on certain investments and fixed assets to net

cash used in operating activities

2021 2020
B A TIRE REE B = 2 W R EIERTZ Operating profit before gains and losses
HiE i A on certain investments and fixed assets 2,098,450 1,903,757
FA B WA Net interest income (3,954,225)  (3,719,201)
Iz S Dividend income (165,523) (111,589)
EEREEE Credit impairment losses 372,305 647,668
e Depreciation 405,808 393,968
BRI 18 2 B R SH Advances written off net of recoveries (276,162) (361,518)
AR S2 T AR (7 V5 R EE TR SR BN 2 B Provision for equity-settled share-based
compensation 480 820
B B Interest received 5,846,682 6,160,736
EAFLE Interest paid (1,049,375)  (2,354,933)
BUARE Dividend received 165,523 111,590
LERENBERYF 2 EERMN Operating profit before changes in
operating assets and liabilities 3,443,963 2,671,298
HEEERBECE Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
— RBe RERTOEM R R ABAEARA 2 — cash and balances with banks and
BAREHER money at call and short notice with
an original maturity beyond three
months (1,107,942) 473,840
— [RE|HRBMAIMEA 2 ERITHFR — placements with banks with an original
maturity beyond three months 1,771,401 (1,626,395)
— FIERERBNES — trading securities 2,475,892 2,184,413
= ﬁ iiﬁﬂlﬂ — derivative financial instruments (1,259,953) 1,534,368
— LA EFEAHSE I AESNeREE — financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (51,913) 123,378
- B5RE — trade bills (462,726) (397,261)
- RFEX — advances to customers (6,735,955) (630,522)
— HAh AR B — other accounts receivable 1,591,172 (1,527,164)
— WA EFTEEEEHHARMPANEN S — financial assets at fair value through
BhE = other comprehensive income (435,853)  (1,281,862)
— LABEBRRK AT BRAY £ Bl & B — financial assets at amortised cost (2,232,607)  (6,849,831)
— RITTER — deposits from banks (1,797,245) 1,035,373
— %ﬂEi%iEﬁH SHBE — trading liabilities (58,748)  (3,945,883)
— BRI — deposits from customers 5,020,368 7,786,048
— BIIERE — certificates of deposit issued (1,555,672) 1,374,183
— HMEMRE RER — other accounts payable and accruals (438,854)  (3,751,685)
ME H SR Exchange adjustments (37,699) (169,061)
BELFBMANE S Cash absorbed by operating activities (1,872,371)  (2,996,763)
SHEBITHEREZFE Interest paid on certificates of deposit
issued (85,161) (159,356)
EAEANER Hong Kong profits tax paid (525,056) (388,542)
[BECUEZINTEA Overseas tax paid (21,865) (26,546)
KRETEB AR 2% Net cash used in operating activities (2,504,453)  (3,571,207)
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42. GERERBEERME@®

(2) ERERBFERN  RERZEARS
HERERBEAGEIEARUATE
Mz N ol%er  REEESLCEERR
REATERERERERSBEZLE

42. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash
and cash equivalents comprise the following balances
with maturity of three months or less from the date of
acquisition, deposits that are readily convertible to

M e known amount of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.
2021 2020

& MAERITHAEER Cash and balances with banks 2,845,498 4,436,622
JREIER A 1ES {6 A 3 A T 2 B0 K A8 B K Money at call and short notice with an

original maturity within three months 7,756,739 10,601,193
[RENHA B 1ES & A sk LA R 2 FERI TR 3K Placements with banks with an original

maturity within three months 1,503,528 861,597
BEEREEERRES  HEEE Treasury bills included in trading

securities 2,304,220 482,991
BIEENATEF 2 BEE S5 AL 2E K= Treasury bills included in financial

MEREEBERE assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income 2,439,243 3,551,262

RELE Z KA P RERTTH) 45 £4382,987,000/8 7T
(20204 : 405,550,0005% 7T ) & FA {E 3 1R (R B 3
TSR B mF BN 5 = 77 $R17 8 45 £260,000,0007%
(20204 : E)EH[Re RERELEA IRE
THBRREEE RS RERITHAERIREAT -

16,849,228 19,933,665

Included in cash and balances with banks, HK$382,987,000 (2020:
HK$405,550,000) and HK$60,000,000 (2020: nil) were balances with
central banks for prudential purposes and with third party bank for
pledging for insurance business respectively and have been excluded
from cash and cash equivalents.
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/H\Ijgui;uua_iﬂixiﬁi/mﬁ#
/)luiyzg;t?% W/\*Eﬁmﬂé/ﬁafﬁiungfﬁ °©

EERHE @ 42,

CASH FLOWS (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities from financing
activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising
from financing activities are liabilities for which cash flows were,
or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated

statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

REREEE
ZBEAH
Total
HEAE ®EEK EAFIS  liabilities from
Lease  Subordinated Interest financing
liabilities notes payable activities
120201518 At 1 January 2020 439,598 5,510,181 92,256 6,042,435
MERSM E) : Changes from financing cash flows:
iﬁﬂ?‘?ﬂéf RIS Interest paid on subordinated notes and debt
BEER TR securities issued = = (229,021) (229,021)
BRIEEEH Repayment of subordinated notes - (1,746,731) - (1,746,731)
EEMEAE Repayment of lease liabilities (192,309) - - (192,309)
RERS R EBEE Total changes from financing cash flows (192,309) (1,746,731) (229,021) (2,168,061)
Hih &) Other changes:
BETEEREK Interest accrued on subordinated notes and
ERES 2 EATHE debt securities issued - - 183,669 183,669
MEHERE Additions to lease liabilities 432,236 = = 432,236
HEABEZFIET Interest expense on lease liabilities 10,490 = = 10,490
ERER Exchange difference (565) (16,649) - (17,214)
NI Fair value change = 81,657 = 81,657
HinZapess Total other changes 442,161 65,008 183,669 690,838
#2020 124318 At 31 December 2020 689,450 3,828,458 47,304 4,565,212
ERER Exchange difference 2,003 - - 2,003
R2021F1A18 At 1 January 2021 691,453 3,828,458 47,304 4,567,215
RERSR AT : Changes from financing cash flows:
S'ZﬁE?"“?ﬂ%f S Interest paid on subordinated notes and
BTS2 I8 debt securities issued - (170,924) (170,924)
BITIREER Issue of subordinated notes 2,320,246 - 2,320,246
BREEES Repayment of subordinated notes - (1,949,775) (1,949,775)
BEHEAR Repayment of lease liabilities (200,242) - (200,242)
RERSRZz2BAE Total changes from financing cash flows (200,242) 370,471 (170,924) (695)
Hih &) Other changes:
BEEBERR Interest accrued on subordinated notes and
_BHES 2 RIS debt securities issued - - 175,565 175,565
ERERE Additions to lease liabilities 119,331 - - 119,331
HEBEMEZH Interest expense on lease liabilities 9,744 - - 9,744
ERER Exchange difference 49 14,610 14,659
ATEEE Fair value change - (85,093) (85,093)
Hin@ a8 Total other changes 129,124 (70,483) 175,565 234,206
20215128310 At 31 December 2021 620,335 4,128,446 51,945 4,800,726
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43. EXRTE=S

BIFES D FIEN (5622GE ) F178 (RBEESE
FZER) BEEERTFTESFEHE20214 %2020
F12AMBIEFEZHEFS W25 -

43. LOANS TO DIRECTORS

Particulars of loans to directors disclosed pursuant to section 17
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622G) (Disclosure
of Information about Benefits of Directors) for the year ended 31
December 2021 and 2020 are shown as below.

2021 2020
M2A31B 2 B FRIEERBAE Aggregate amount of relevant
transactions outstanding at
31 December
—BERRBK — Loans and advances 79 71
FRERAR G Z &= BEER Maximum aggregate amount of relevant
transactions during the year
—ERRBR — Loans and advances 134 174

120214 20204 il 2 Fi B BRI 5 B — Rt
BRI - WERANARZER °

4. EHEATZRS

EREALRZFALAERNERXERZEH S
—7 B HEERMBREERK T ET
EERTES - WEEMTRALZE KRS
IHAEAFER > BEALTRESBHEEA
A

20214 20204 © AEENIER FHEBH L H
BRAEATHEITRITEBRR S o NREVE IR
TEFERMAEE 2B RERE - EHZEN
THFR) B EBRFEEAE IR FETE
B - Z5EEREBEERARBREBERATER 2H
Ml REEMBFEEFEIRSDBEAEE 2
EEHEE AlEHE - —BEEEARED - &
AFEEERFAEARDAIREEEFSET

o

The above relevant transactions in 2021 and 2020 were all transacted
by a subsidiary and nil by the Company.

44. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related parties are those parties, which have the ability, directly or
indirectly, to control the other party or exercise significant influence over
the other party in making financial and operating decisions. Parties are
also considered to be related if they are subject to common control or
common significant influence.

During 2021 and 2020, a number of banking continuing connected
transactions were entered into with related parties in the normal course
of business of the Group. These, as described in Note (a) below
and being continuing connected transactions, had been reviewed by
the Company’s independent non-executive directors in their review
of the financial statements of the Group. Based on their review and
enquiry with management, the Company’s independent non-executive
directors were satisfied that all of the continuing connected transactions
were conducted in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group, on normal commercial terms, and in accordance with relevant
agreements on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests
of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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44. EBREALTZRZ ®)
HAEBFBALZEARZFBUOT :

(F) RBERARANR S

AR RAEBE2ENBERAEZENBRRINER
HIEEHBRARATBITEBEKE QAR (FHE
[RFRITERDEICHERERIZ (EERA
BRGF#ES EMARN ERAIIE14A31E)
WRIREEATNZBARTH - ZERXH2BAE
KRBT A IRIE_ LT A58 14A.53E% [k 14A.54
B BARAEBZFEELR - AARBESTE
TRAFEI4AZEERT -

44. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Details of the significant related party transactions are as follows:

(a) Transactions with subsidiaries

The Company and its wholly-owned/substantially-owned subsidiaries
within the Group received and incurred the following income and
expense from the continuing connected transactions (within the
definition of Rule 14A.31 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the SEHK (the “Listing Rules”)) entered into with the non-
wholly-owned subsidiaries which are members of the Dah Sing Banking
Group (collectively the “DSBG Group”) during the year. The aggregate
values of these transactions are within or consistent with the respective
annual caps applicable to the Group pursuant to Rules 14A.53 and
14A.54 of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

BE/B%

e tm BRtEm
RAEI4AE  RAE14AE
Subject to Excluded/
Chapter exempted
14A of the  from Chapter
Listing 14A of the

20216 2021 Rules Listing Rules
B (EEG)) Interest received (Note (i) N/A 3,628
BASRITFER () Bank charges paid (Note (i) N/A (1,574)
BNESRIEAABEEE K2 (7)) Rentals and related building management fee
and charges paid (Note (i) N/A (4,357)
Bl RIEBAEEEE R (5ii) Rentals and related building management fee
and charges received (Note (iii)) N/A 3,423
BENEERE (F(v)) Management fees paid (Note (iv)) (13,046) N/A
EREBAE RENE (FE(v)) Insurance commission and referral fees paid
(Note (v)) (25,437) N/A
BUIRBRIRE (FE(vi)) Insurance premiums received (Note (vi)) 8,189 N/A
BA/ %
et
HRAIE14AE
Bl Em Excluded/
HAIE14AE exempted
Subject to from
Chapter Chapter
14A of the 14A of the
Listing Listing
20204 2020 Rules Rules
BUFIE (RE(G)) Interest received (Note (i) N/A 3,238
BIETFER (7)) Bank charges paid (Note (i) N/A (1,586)
BRHE REAAEERE K5 (7 (i) Rentals and related building management fee
and charges paid (Note (ii)) N/A (5,140)
BUiHE RABBAEERE K% (i) Rentals and related building management fee
and charges received (Note (iii)) N/A 3,416
BERERE (FF(v)) Management fees paid (Note (iv)) (13,199) N/A
BARBAERENE (FE(v) Insurance commission and referral fees paid
(Note (v)) (27,302) N/A
EBURBRIRE (5F(vi)) Insurance premiums received (Note (vi)) 9,150 N/A
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RIBIOTEERATEREEE T A RRMZR
1TZHE

RITRITEBRAR B RIEAFRTEBME R
AlZRARMERR (R KRR DRME
ARITRT - BREXEAEAE  ADEER  XRZR
RITEARRP - EAREPRE BEEARR

REBE o

FHXERE  aBER  XEREREPZR
TR - THRRIRER P R EMRRARE TR
MIBTEBEEMTE ZARD A RH T A SR
B - ERRRPRIERBEERRLHEHRE
ERBEAOLBRTISRERME - ERAREHP
R 2 AR AE T 5 18 I3 SR (B E SF H - HESRTT AT IA
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A =734 T A DR6ME A EEBEAN T AR < T
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AT RITRE ZRITMB R R M AT S L E
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BREPFAEEPREEBERITRERER - ZF
IR M EE fn BT AT K (B R i R MR
TF) o RAFTIRITERE Z RITHIE R RIFREFR
ZEFPBERMEBEBEKERT - 3 WA
ME @ A BEBNK S R RFREFREK LT
RAS1AABREZ HEMERS -

EEHRAAH S REBK B R RAFERRAFRIT
KE 2 SRITHE AR 2 FRTERTIHKFE A
WS ERETELE =T 2 EFEEHTER
ZEERZ EREEGR  BXBRAZENBEE
BYARFRTTERBEEFEER - BENIL - ZF
FEMER S ERRET LR RIF14A.9015 2
IR - WERBIRRAE ZRE o EMIRITR
BHE LR AIE14A 761G 2 HIEFHRKTE R
% - WEhREF ETRRAFE14AT 2 RIS o

44,
(@

Note:

RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Transactions with subsidiaries (Continued)

Banking arrangements provided by the DSBG Group for companies within
the DSFH Group

The DSBG Group provide standard banking services to members of the
Company and fellow subsidiaries not being subsidiaries of the DSBG
Group (collectively the “DSFH Group”) including cheque clearing, autopay,
cheque and deposit bank accounts, credit card merchant facilities, co-
branded credit cards and investment dealing.

The banking services in respect of cheque clearing, autopay, cheque
and deposit accounts are provided to the DSFH Group in the same way
as they are provided to other customers of DSBG Group under standard
account opening and other forms. The credit card merchant facilities and
co-brand credit card arrangements are provided under normal commercial
contracts and are at market standard. The standard market practice for
credit card merchant facilities is not to provide for a fixed term, but allow
for termination at the option of the bank by giving written notice. The co-
brand credit card arrangements between DSBG Group and the DSFH
Group can be terminated after the first two years by either party giving
not less than six months’ notice in writing. All such banking services, by
their nature, are not normally provided for a fixed term. Accordingly, the
banking arrangement between DSBG Group and the DSFH Group are not
for a fixed term.

The banking services provided by DSBG’s banking subsidiaries to
the companies within the DSFH Group are banking services and
arrangements normally provided by DSBG Group to its other customers
and are conducted on normal commercial terms. The provision of such
banking services by DSBG Group to the DSFH Group enables DSBG
Group to earn reasonable income consistent with the nature and types of
the banking services.

The banking subsidiaries of DSBG Group provide commercial banking
services and products to their customers in the ordinary and usual course
of their businesses. Such services and products include the taking of
deposits (including fixed and floating term deposits and deposits at call).
Customers who place deposits with the banking subsidiaries of DSBG
Group include members of the DSFH Group. For purposes of the Listing
Rules, the placing of deposits provided by members of the DSFH Group
constitute continuing connected transactions within the meaning of
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Directors confirm that the deposits placed by members of the DSFH
Group at the banking subsidiaries of DSBG Group are at market rates and
on normal commercial terms that are comparable or no more favourable
than those offered to independent third parties and that no security
over the assets of DSBG Group is granted in respect of such financial
assistance. On that basis, such continuing connected transactions are
exempted from complying with the reporting, disclosure and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.90 of the
Listing Rules. Other banking services are fall to be de minimis transaction
under Rule 14A.76 and is exempted from the reporting and announcement
requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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44. EBREALTZRZ ®)
(FF) EHINEATNR S (@)
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(i)

(iii)

(%)
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ETRAIE14AE 2 BRR R IR o

AFTER1TAHigh Standard#8 /B #%

A 4R 77 B2 High Standardz] 37 — 8 [@ fH 17 5 ©
R - RFTRITIRATE &£ 2 BB K A [ High
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44. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a) Transactions with subsidiaries (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Lease of properties between DSI (1976) and MIC and DSB and BCM

DSB and BCM have leased certain of their owned properties to members
of the DSFH Group, namely, Dah Sing Insurance Company (1976) Limited
(“DSI (1976)”) and Macau Insurance Company Limited (“MIC”) as their
office premises. DSB and BCM received from DSI (1976) and MIC the
lease rentals, and air-conditioning charges, building management charges
and other utilities charges based on the actual amount of costs incurred.
The lease is fall to be de minimis transaction under Rule 14A.76 and
is exempted from the reporting and announcement requirement under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Lease of property by DSB from HS
A lease back agreement has been entered into by DSB with High

S”). Pursuant to which, DSB paid to HS
the lease rentals, and air-conditioning charges, building management

Standard Investment Limited (“H

charges and other utilities charges based on the actual amount of costs
incurred.

With the implementation of HKFRS 16, when the Group enter into a lease
transaction as a lessee with its fellow subsidiaries and recognise the right-
of-use asset, the lease transaction is regarded as an one-off connected
transaction (i.e. an acquisition of capital assets) under the definition of
transaction set out in Rule 14.04(1)(a). The lease is fall to be de minimis
transaction under Rule 14A.76 and is exempted from the reporting and
announcement requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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44. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a) Transactions with subsidiaries (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(iv)

Computer and Administrative Services Agreement with DSB and BCM

On 31 December 2019, DSB entered into a new computer and
administrative services agreement with the Company for a fixed term of
three years with effect from 1 January 2020 and ended on 31 December
2022.

Pursuant to the services agreements, DSB has agreed to provide
members of the DSFH Group with certain computer and administrative
services. These services principally consist of the following (collectively,
the “Services”):

3 computer services including data processing, printing and
enveloping, system development, technical support, disaster
recovery and contract management;

. administrative, company secretarial, internal audit, compliance,
operational, risk management, investment custodian and treasury
operations; and

. secondment of, and provision of services by, staff to the DSFH
Group.

With the stronger pool of resources and functional expertise of DSB which
historically has been operating to provide administrative and computer
services to other companies within the DSFH Group on a cost-recovery
basis, the provision of the Services to the DSFH Group at a fee enables
DSBG Group to continue to expand its scale and operational capabilities
while costs incurred by DSBG Group in providing the Services are
recovered from the DSFH Group.
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44. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(a) Transactions with subsidiaries (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

Distribution and Agency Agreements and other business referral services

(@)

Distribution and Agency Agreements with DSB and BCM

DSI (1976) entered into new distribution agreement and underlying
agency agreement with DSB for the marketing and distribution of
general insurance products through the branch network of DSB
for a fixed term of three years with effect from 1 January 2020 and
ending on 31 December 2022;

DSIA entered into new distribution agreement and underlying
agency agreements with DSB for the marketing and distribution
of general insurance products through the branch network of DSB
for a fixed term of three years with effect from 1 January 2020 and
ending on 31 December 2022; and

MIC entered into new distribution agreement and underlying agency
agreement with BCM for the marketing and distribution of general
insurance products through BCM’s branch network for a fixed term
of three years with effect from 1 January 2020 and ending on 31
December 2022.

Pursuant to the Distribution Agreement entered into by DSI (1976)
with DSB (the “DSI (1976) Distribution Agreement”), DSB will
market and distribute such general insurance products as agreed
between the parties from time to time for the DSFH Group through
its branch and other distribution networks.

Pursuant to the DSI (1976) Distribution Agreement, DSB entered
into an agency agreement with DSI (1976) (the “DSI (1976) Agency
Agreement”) in respect of the sale of certain general insurance
products in return for commission payments, as agreed between
the parties from time to time. Under the terms of the DSI (1976)
Agency Agreement, the commission payable by DSI (1976) to DSB
shall, initially, be between 20% and 55% (depending on the product
type) of each year’s premium received in respect of a new or
renewal policy, but which may vary between the parties from time
to time.

Pursuant to the Distribution Agreement entered into by DSIA
with DSB (the “DSIA Distribution Agreement”), DSB markets and
distributes such general insurance products as agreed between the
parties from time to time through its branch and other distribution
networks.
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44. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a) Transactions with subsidiaries (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(v) Distribution and Agency Agreements and other business referral services
(Continued)

(a)

Distribution and Agency Agreements with DSB and BCM
(Continued)

Pursuant to the DSIA Distribution Agreements, DSB entered into
an agency agreement with DSIA (the “DSIA Agency Agreements”)
in respect of the sale of certain insurance products in return for
commission payments, as agreed between the parties from time
to time. Under the terms of the New DSIA Agency Agreement,
the commission payable by DSIA to DSB shall be 50% of the
commission earned by DSIA or at such rate as agreed by both
parties from time to time.

Pursuant to the Distribution Agreement entered into by MIC with
BCM (the “MIC Distribution Agreement”), BCM markets and
distributes such general insurance products of MIC as are agreed
between the parties from time to time through its branch and other
distribution network.

Pursuant to the MIC Distribution Agreement, BCM entered into
an agency agreement with MIC (the “MIC Agency Agreement”)
in respect of the sale of general insurance products in return
for commission payments, as agreed between the parties from
time to time. Under the terms of the MIC Agency Agreement, the
commission payable by MIC to BCM in respect of general insurance
products shall, initially, be between 10% and 50% (depending on
the product type) of each year’'s premium received in respect of
new or renewal policies, but which may vary between the parties
from time to time.

In respect of each of the DSI (1976), DSIA and MIC Distribution
Agreements (collectively the “Distribution Agreements”), DSI
(1976) and DSIA shall each reimburse or pay on behalf of DSB and
MIC shall reimburse or pay on behalf of BCM, agreed expenses
including the registration fees for licences for the bank staff to
sell insurance, sales incentives, marketing expenses and other
costs and expenses related to the performance of the Distribution
Agreements.
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44. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a) Transactions with subsidiaries (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(v) Distribution and Agency Agreements and other business referral services
(Continued)

(a)

Distribution and Agency Agreements with DSB and BCM
(Continued)

Each of the Distribution Agreements is on a mutually non-exclusive
basis and will be for a three-year fixed term with effect from 1
January 2020 and ending on 31 December 2022. Each of the DSI
(1976), DSIA and MIC Agency Agreements (collectively the “Agency
Agreements”) is on a mutually non-exclusive basis for a three-
year fixed term with effect from 1 January 2020 and ending on 31
December 2022, save that the provisions relating to the payment of
outstanding renewal premiums shall remain in force until payment is
received in full.

The distribution and agency arrangements described above,
including the commission rates set out in the various sets of
Distribution Agreements and Agency Agreements, are consistent
with normal arrangements between banks and insurance
companies in the Hong Kong and Macau markets, and will provide
DSBG Group with insurance products and services to be offered
to the customers of the banking subsidiaries of DSBG Group. The
distribution of different types of insurance products through the
respective bank branches and other distribution networks of DSB
and BCM in return for a commission income to be paid by the
DSFH Group will also produce fee income.
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44. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a) Transactions with subsidiaries (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(v) Distribution and Agency Agreements and other business referral services
(Continued)

(b)

Business referral services

On 31 December 2019, DSBG entered into a new cooperation
agreement with the Company (the “New Business Referral
Services Agreement”), for a fixed term of three years with effect
from 1 January 2020 and ending on 31 December 2022. Pursuant
to the New Business Referral Services Agreement, DSBG shall
provide and shall procure members of the Group to, either directly
or via their sole agents (if any), provide members of the DSFH
Group with business referral and insurance brokerage services
in relation to obtaining applications for general insurance policies
to be underwritten by members of the DSFH Group. There is no
commitment on any member of DSBG Group to refer to member(s)
of DSFH Group such transactions of any minimum or maximum
number and/or amount. Where concluded between the relevant
parties, the terms and conditions for the provision of such business
referral services shall be, if required, reduced into individual written
agreement(s).

Pursuant to the cooperation agreement, the fee income actually
received shall either on normal commercial terms or, if there are
not sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether they are
normal commercial terms, on terms no less favourable to relevant
member(s) of DSBG Group than terms available from independent
third parties. The fee income is payable by cheque(s) monthly in
arrears.
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44. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a) Transactions with subsidiaries (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(vi)

Insurance services provided by DSI (1976) and MIC

On 31 December 2019, DSBG and the Company entered into a
cooperation agreement (the “Cooperation Agreement”) for a fixed term of
three years with effect from 1 January 2020 and ended on 31 December
2022 (both days inclusive).

The general insurance policies underwritten by DSI (1976) and MIC are
in the name, and for the benefit, of members of DSBG Group and their
respective customers.

DSI (1976) underwrites general insurance policies in the name, and for the
benefit, of DSB and other members of DSBG Group and their respective
customers including policies covering domestic motor, property all risks,
public liability, money, electronic equipment, employees’ compensation
and group/personal accident. Certain policies are subject to renewal
annually.

MIC underwrites general insurance policies in the name, and for the
benefit, of BCM and its customers including policies covering medical,
personal accident, employees’ compensation, vehicle, properties, civil
liability and money. Certain policies are subject to renewal annually.

The premiums payable under such insurance policies are payable in
arrears on a monthly, yearly or other basis, depending on the type of
insurance policy.

The insurance policies are procured by DSBG Group to enable certain of
the DSBG'’s subsidiaries, namely DSB and BCM, to comply with relevant
regulatory requirements in reducing risks to DSBG Group’s assets,
businesses and operations and/or to provide additional services to DSBG
Group’s customers. In addition, the Directors consider that the fees
proposed by DSI (1976) and MIC respectively are comparable to those
offered by other insurance companies in the market.

Under the Cooperation Agreement, either party to the agreement may
terminate the agreement by giving one month notice in advance to the
other party without having to incur a penalty.
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44,

(b)

RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Key management personnel

(i) Material transactions and balances with directors
and key management personnel

The Group provides credit facilities to, and takes deposits from
the Group’s key management personnel, their close family
members and entities controlled by them. For the year ended 31

FEERIOT - December, the following balances were outstanding:

2021 2020
B R Loans and advances 325 157
7R Deposits 310,130 372,319
KAz BFUEH Undrawn commitments 2,649 2,603

(i) TEEENSME

ARAEBEEAEBRES  HAMEEE
EREIINHIFE4 -

(A) RBERNRARAFEHNER RS RE
23

FR - AEBWRIB EBE QR EERT
206,338,0007% 7. (20204 : 118,387,000/ 7T ) i%
BURA » 102021F12A318 » AEEBRESZHAEE
$R1TE H AR (EIE 5350 548,529,000/ THE 5=
(20204 : &) - £ - AEEIFERIESE
B2 MER2021F12A31 B EREH A
510,113,000/ 7T (20204 : 540,391,000/ ) °
FA - RNEEWE B H R 2 E §824,240,0007%
70 (20204 : 24,000,000/ 70) B B R A © 5B LER
5 REHRIIR A B EBEIER — R FE IR PTE
i °

()

(i) Remuneration of key management personnel

Key management personnel of the Company are directors and
their remunerations are included under Note 14.

Transactions and balances with associate and jointly
controlled entities

During the year, the Group received from BOCQ, an associate,
dividend income of HK$206,388,000 (2020: HK$118,387,000). As at
31 December 2021, the Group accepted trade bills issued by BOCQ
with outstanding balance of HK$48,529,000 (2020: Nil). During the
year, the Group took deposits from the jointly controlled entities and
the balance of deposit as at 31 December 2021 was HK$510,113,000
(2020: HK$540,391,000). During the year, the Group received from
a jointly controlled entity dividend income of HK$24,240,000 (2020:
HK$24,000,000). The transactions and balances were provided in the

ordinary course of business and on normal commercial terms.
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45. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS

The Group operates equity-settled and cash-settled share-based
compensation plans. Details of the share-based compensation paid to
directors under these plans are disclosed in Note 14.

(1) Equity-settled share-based compensation plans

Pursuant to the Company’s Share Option Scheme (the “DSFH
Scheme”) and the Share Option Scheme of its subsidiary, Dah Sing
Banking Group Limited (the “DSBG Scheme”), equity-settled share-
based compensation is available to directors and senior executives of
the Group.

(a) DSFH Scheme

On 27 May 2015, the shareholders of the Company approved the
adoption of a share option scheme (the “DSFH Scheme”).

No share options had been granted under the DSFH Scheme
since the date of its adoption to 31 December 2021.

(b) DSBG Scheme

The respective shareholders of the Company and DSBG
approved the adoption of a share option scheme of DSBG (the
“DSBG Scheme”) on 27 May 2014.

The share options were granted in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the DSBG Scheme. The exercise price per option
share was concluded by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee (“NRC”) on behalf of the Board of DSBG on the basis
no less exacting than the requirement set out in Rule 17.03(9) of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the SEHK and
was determined as no less than the highest of (i) the closing price
of DSBG’s shares traded on the SEHK on the date of grant; and
(ii) the average closing price of DSBG’s shares traded on the
SEHK for the five business days immediately preceding the date
of grant.

DAH SING FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021



PR R M T
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

45. AR HERHRMETE (@
(1) SAREXNURDJHERFHNTE

(Z) AFRITEEE =)

BRAFRTEBEERMABEZ2021F
1283101 BF 2BREWT

45. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (continued)

(1) Equity-settled share-based compensation plans
(Continued)

(b) DSBG Scheme (cContinued)

Share options granted under the DSBG Scheme since the
date of its adoption to 31 December 2021 are as follows:

BRITEEGER)

#FH Al BB {TfEH#A Exercise price per

Date of grant Type Vesting period Exercise period share (HK$)
201844 A26H VARG 2~ 20184 26 H = 2019F4 A26H =
2023F4F26H 20244 F526H

26 April 2018 Equity-settled 26 April 2018— 26 April 2019— 18.24
26 April 2023 26 April 2024

TR 25 R P B 3R 2 LA B AR S A5 LA RS 153 7 1kt = T
ZX T

Equity-settled share-based compensation charged to income statement
is as follows:

2021 2020

AR ST 5 2 SR e e

Equity-settled options 480 821
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45. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (continued)

(1) Equity-settled share-based compensation plans

(Continued)

Equity-settled options

With respect to the equity-settled options granted under the DSBG
Scheme described above, the fair value is determined by using the

Trinomial Option Pricing Model at the date when the options are

granted.

No equity-settled options were granted under the DSBG Scheme and

DSFH Scheme in the year of 2021.

Movements in the number of share options granted and their related

weighted average exercise prices are as follows:

¥ kA | RARTREHE
DSFH Scheme DSBG Scheme
2021 2020 2021 2020

RTIRE RFEE RTIRE TS

pi i ANiTeR KERTER A58
AEr  mET AWEr NET IREY O NETS BRET METS
R#E it HhEA izE  RHHE ik  W®hEA it
Number of (B7)  Numberof (%) Numberof (B7)  Numberof (1)
DSFH  Weighted DSFH  Weighted DSBG  Weighted DSBG  Weighted
shares average shares average shares average shares average
in share exercise in share exercise in share exercise in share exercise
options price options price options price options price
granted (HKS) granted (HK9) granted (HKS) granted (HK9)
1A1R At 1 January - - - - 1,200,000 1824 1500000 18.24
8 Granted - - - - - - - -
BB Expired - - - - - - - -
B Exercised - - - - - - - -
BAE/ 2 Cancelledforfeited - - - - - - (300,000) 18.24
12A318 At 31 December - - - - 1,200,000 1824 1,200,000 1824
1A ETFE Exercisable at 31 December _ _ _ _ 720,000 18.24 480,000 18.24

AR F 2021 F 12 A31 B I £ K171 2 R
(20204F : RAERTHEZRRE) - BRAEE
EFRERTBRABERBZ RFRTEER
BEHE - 2021612 A31 B RITEZ AHBITE
BRI HE 2 1T{F 18 518.2475 70 (20204 : 18.24
BIT) - REMEFHFIRE DITEER2.324F
(2020%F : 3.324F) °

The Company has no outstanding share options as of 31 December

2021 (2020: Nil). In respect of directors and senior executives of the

Group, their applicable DSBG’s share options outstanding as of 31
December 2021 have an exercise price of HK$18.24 (2020: HK$18.24),
and a weighted average remaining contractual life of 2.32 years (2020:

3.32 years).
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45. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (continued)
(2) Cash-settled share-based compensation plans

The Company and DSBG have each established a cash-settled share-
based incentive option scheme (hereinafter referred to as the “DSFH
Incentive Option Scheme” and the “DSBG Incentive Option Scheme”
respectively) as a long-term incentive plan to incentivise employees.

() A#ZmEZRER 2

ZatBIER 20183 A20H - BER4VH #E
£2021F12A31H1F » BT ZHEFT ¢

(a) DSFH Incentive Option Scheme

The scheme was established on 20 March 2018. Incentive
options granted under the scheme since the date of its adoption
to 31 December 2021 are as follows:

BRITHEE

(E7T)

Exercise price

£FH Al R 1THEHA per share

Date of grant Type Vesting period Exercise period (HK$)
201844 H26H AR & AT 2018F4 H26H % 2019FF4 H26 H &
20234 F26H 2024F4H26H

26 April 2018 Cash-settled 26 April 2018 — 26 April 2019 — 56.00
26 April 2023 26 April 2024
202049 H28H AR & X F 20205F9 H28H & 20215F9H28H &
202559 H28H 20269 H28H

28 September 2020 Cash-settled 28 September 2020 — 28 September 2021 — 19.89
28 September 2025 28 September 2026
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45. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (continued)

(2) Cash-settled share-based compensation plans

(Continued)

(b) DSBG Incentive Option Scheme

The scheme was established on 20 March 2018. Incentive

options granted under the scheme since the date of its adoption

to 31 December 2021 are as follows:

BRITEE

(B7)

Exercise price

®FH k]| BB 1T per share

Date of grant Type Vesting period Exercise period (HK$)
201844 F26H AR & X AT 20184 H26H = 20194 A26H =
2023%F4H526H 20244726 H

26 April 2018 Cash-settled 26 April 2018 — 26 April 2019 — 6.67
26 April 2023 26 April 2024
20196 H5H ARE = AT 20196 A5HE 20206 A5BE
20246 A5H 20256 A5H

5 June 2019 Cash-settled 5 June 2019 — 5 June 2020 — 13.66
5 June 2024 5 June 2025
202047 A22H AR & Xt 202057 H22B % 202157 H22B &
20257 H22H 20267 H22H

22 July 2020 Cash-settled 22 July 2020 — 22 July 2021 — 7.33
22 July 2025 22 July 2026
202048 F28H AR & = T 20204F8 A28H = 202168 28H =
202558 H28H 20268 H28H

28 August 2020 Cash-settled 28 August 2020 — 28 August 2021 — 7.44
28 August 2025 28 August 2026
2021410 H29H AREZ AT 2021510 H29H = 202210298 &
202610 A29H 20274 10H29H

29 October 2021 Cash-settled 29 October 2021 — 29 October 2022 — 7.46

29 October 2026

29 October 2027
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45. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (continued)

(2) Cash-settled share-based compensation plans
(Continued)

The incentive options were granted in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the respective DSFH and DSBG schemes. The exercise
prices per incentive option were concluded by the NRC on behalf
of the respective Boards of DSFH and DSBG on the basis no less
exacting than the requirement set out in Rule 17.03(9) of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the SEHK and were determined
as no less than the highest of (i) the closing price of DSFH’s/DSBG’s
shares traded on the SEHK on the date of grant; and (ii) the average
closing price of DSFH’s/DSBG’s shares traded on the SEHK for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant.

The rights granted under the respective schemes shall be exercisable
upon vesting in 5 equal tranches commencing from the first anniversary
of the date of grant. Subject to the satisfaction of performance appraisal
factors, the grantees may exercise their vested options. No shares of
the Company or DSBG will be issued to the grantees of the options
under the schemes which are essentially deferred cash incentive
schemes linked to the performance of the grantees and the share price
of the Company and DSBG.

Cash-settled share-based compensation charged to income statement is
as follows:

2021 2020

PR & S A5 2 HE R

Cash-settled options 13,000 -
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45. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (continued)

(2) Cash-settled share-based compensation plans
(Continued)

Cash-settled options

With respect to the cash-settled options granted under the DSFH and
DSBG Incentive Option Schemes described above, the fair value is
determined by using the Trinomial Option Pricing Model at reporting
date. The assumptions used to estimate the fair value of the options
granted during 2020 and 2021 are as follows:

AFERE
REERIE
DSFH Incentive R RAT R R B RERI S
Option Scheme DSBG Incentive Option Scheme
= 20209 A28H 20207 A22H 20208 H28H 20214107294
Grant date 28 September 2020 22 July 2020 28 August 2020 29 October 2021
I B RS & 8,/ AMBRITEENRE(ET)
Share price of DSFH/DSBG as at grant date (HK$) 19.14 7.27 7.44 7.46
TEECET)
Exercise price (HK$) 19.89 7.33 7.44 7.46
FRERRIE (F1())
Expected volatility (Note (i)) 35.74% 31.77% 33.00% 37.22%
HESm(F)
Option life (years) 6 6 6 6
42 B )2 (B (i)
Risk free rate (Note (i) 0.24% 0.17% 0.34% 1.20%
TREARE 2 (R (i)
Expected dividend rate (Note (iii)) 3.55% 3.30% 3.30% 3.94%
BEARE A TEGET)
Fair value of a share in the option (HK$) 4.63 1.61 1.76 2.01
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45. AR HERHRMETE (@

(2) BAREZM AR MERE 7R &
(#0)

UB 2R m)

it

() RREEATAHBNTRRE R EXNT R
RIBIOTEERENEL KSR HWREER
Z2  BHRPEXRBBAERNERBIAIR
TRENEER A —FARENELIRE X
EE - W EXFAIR -

(i) EMEARFEATBHINELSFEHRN G A EEH
FIH R R -

(i) TEAREEXRUBTAMNESLRSFTHE -

45. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (continued)

(2) Cash-settled share-based compensation plans
(Continued)

Cash-settled options (continued)

Note:

(i) Expected volatility is determined by calculating the historical volatility
of the share price of DSFH or DSBG, as appropriate, during the one
year period immediately preceding the grant date and is based on the
assumption that there is no material difference between the expected
volatility over the time to maturity of the options and the historical volatility
of the share price of DSFH or DSBG, as appropriate, as set out above.

(ii) Risk free rate is the Hong Kong Exchange Fund Notes yield of relevant
time to maturity at grant date.

(i)  Expected dividend rates are based on historical dividends at grant date.
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45. DR M AEHBRME @ 45. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (continued)

(2) UREXFURGIERER BN S (2) Cash-settled share-based compensation plans
(&) (Continued)

UBEF(TZ R ) Cash-settled options (Continued)

BT 2 ENEE REMETHTEEZEBNT ¢ Movements in the number of options granted and their related weighted

average exercise prices are as follows:

KifERERER T8 KA RTERREER
DSFH Incentive Option Scheme DSBG Incentive Option Scheme
2021 2020 2021 2020
RFTEE RFARE
RYTEE RFAEE KATRAT AT

AHER  METH  NfeR METY S8 MERH S8 mET
AR it BRET ik  RRED ik BhRET i
Rit#A (Bn)  Rh%E (Bn)  R#%A (Bx)  RA%A (%)
Numberof ~ Weighted ~ Numberof ~ Weighted ~ Numberof ~ Weighted ~ Numberof  Weighted
DSFH average DSFH average DSBG average DSBG average
shares in exercise  sharesin exercise  sharesin exercise  sharesin exercise
options price options price options price options price
granted (HKS) granted (HKS) granted (HKS) granted (HKS)

1A18 At1 January 835,000 28.11 230,000 56.00 15,200,000 12.37 10,340,000 16.38
& Granted - - 645,000 19.89 550,000 746 6,600,000 7.36
EH Expired - - - - - - - -
Bfife Exercised - - - - - - - -
BEE/ R Cancelled/forfeited (55,000) 56.00 (40,000) 56.00  (1,000,000) 1181 (1,740,000) 1719
124318 At 31 December 780,000 26.14 835,000 28.11 14,750,000 1223 15,200,000 12.37
12A31A7{1f8 Exercisable at 31 December 210,000 2129 76,000 5600 5,360,000 1452 2,680,000 16.94
HERTZURSIN2#RN - REERZ2HRA In relation to the cash-settled options granted, the Group has recorded
2Z 8N TEHE AR A& 513,000,000 7T liabilities of HK$13,000,000 (2020: Nil) with reference to the fair value
(20204 : £®) o of the options at the reporting date.

322 DAH SING FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021



PR R M T
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

45. AR HERHRMETE (@

(2) BAREZM AR MERE 7R &
(#0)

UB 2R m)

AR AEEESRARITRABEAZ A&
AR RFIRITEREERN - R2021F12A31 B R
T2 RREZITEED R AN T19.898 T E
56.007% 7t (20204F : 19.897% 7T £56.007% 7T ) &
N F7.33% L E18.24%5 L (20204F : 7.33 B L E
18.24%7T) + REMETARBRE LITEEHD B
#4.334 (20204F : 5.194F ) & 3.664F (20204 :
4.58%F) o

45. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (continued)

(2) Cash-settled share-based compensation plans
(Continued)

Cash-settled options (continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the outstanding cash-settled options under
the DSFH and the DSBG Incentive Option Schemes related to directors
and senior executives of the Group have exercise price in the range of
HK$19.89 to HK$56.00 (2020: HK$19.89 to HK$56.00) and HK$7.33 to
HK$18.24 (2020: HK$7.33 to HK$18.24) respectively, and a weighted
average remaining contractual life of 4.33 years (2020: 5.19 years) and
3.66 years (2020: 4.58 years) respectively.
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46. TRIEERBBHYHH

BB ER ERBIERTOEN TS HEREE
RBEZEERSRE  URABNFEEEHH
REXRBEREENBERAE  ATKERE
ERAFEMELHH -

() FREEIHREEY S HEMEIRRE
NEEzTHEERER

AEEBAEBTETRGEARAR([FETR
BEDARZBPREPETREREERS -

REBRZF KR ENBERREL 2 SR
BB E BB REE 2 EWGRIERTE R BT
TEAARE © A20214F [220209F12 A31 8 © i2F 5 A
FEUGRIE B B B sE82r 2 [ FE W kT8 K FB 18
B IBRIER - B SEHN T X -

46. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES

Financial assets and liabilities are presented net when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle them on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.

(a) Financial assets and liabilities subject to netting
agreement and offset on the statement of financial
position

The Group maintains an account with the Hong Kong Securities
Clearing Company Limited (“HKSCC”) through which it conducts
securities trading transactions for its customers.

In presenting the amounts due from and to HKSCC, the Group has
offset the gross amount of the accounts receivable from and the
gross amount of the accounts payable to HKSCC. As at 31 December
2021 and 2020, the net amount was a receivable and was included in
“Accounts receivable and prepayments” in Note 32. The amounts offset
are shown below.

2021 2020
JEUE B RAEE 7 FIBAATE Gross amount of accounts receivable
from HKSCC 93,037 172,133
JERNEABRRLEE 2 FIBERE Gross amount of accounts payable to
HKSCC (984) (57,378)
R BB R A HEE Net amount due from HKSCC 92,053 114,755

(2) RFREERHERBERNBRRARA
HE TRMEERAE

BREFERELH

AEEEBARERIHFIVARFEEEL
B URIEEERR - FREEEBHRRE  —B
HRENEN  ESRRBIHFZARTKK S
BaRIt MAAERRFARHSRFREE -
WIFREENEMN AR FIRSENEE
BER—RIEEMBIRNKTEHIFEERAE -

(b) Financial assets and liabilities subject to netting
agreement but not offset on the statement of financial
position

Master netting arrangements

To mitigate credit risks, the Group enters into master netting
arrangements with counterparties whenever possible. Netting
agreements provide that, if an event of default occurs, all outstanding
transactions with the counterparty will be terminated and all amounts
outstanding will be settled on a net basis. Except for the event of
default, all outstanding transactions with the counterparty are settled
on a gross basis and generally do not result in offsetting the assets and
liabilities in the statement of financial position.
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46. cRIEEHESBENHEHE@ 46. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES (continued)
() SRBEETHERBEEMBMRRRA (b) Financial assets and liabilities subject to netting
HEEMEEREE@® agreement but not offset on the statement of financial
position (Continued)
R FERAEE T () Master netting arrangements (Continued)
g g
TRIRZEH  BEAER N2 BB FHREER The following tables present details of financial instruments subject
FERERBHEMORNESR T A - to offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements and similar
agreements.
TEERBRRARAHS
HetRER ZEBeE
HuYERED Related amounts not set
SHaRLE Rei% off in the statement of
Gross  HAARIIF e pcaton FERTfok
amountsof ZEMEEFE $HMIA B2
BB recognised  Netamounts (BB FEE
SREELE financial o financial #HR) i kx|
Gross  liabilities set assets Financial Amounts not
amounts of offinthe  presentedin instruments  EHELER subject to
recognised statement  the statement (including Cash enforceable
financial ~ offinancial  of financial non-cash collateral ] netting A
20215128318 At 31 December 2021 assets position position collateral) received  Netamount  agreements Total
SRAE Financial assets
fTE2RIA Derivative financial instruments 565,259 - 565,259 (504,251) (44,316) 16,692 70,593 635,852
TEERBRRARAHH
AR ZEmeH
HusaEn Related amounts not set
SHEEEE REE off in the statement of
Gross  RRHAFIT financil position THRTME
amountsof ZEREEFE HIR BT
BE2  recognised  Netamounts (B3RS FERE
SHEEEE financial o financial bigil=) i Pkl
Gross  assets set liabilities Financial 2ER Amounts not
amounts of offinthe  presentedin instruments RefR subject to
recognised statement  the statement (including Cash enforceable
financial  offinancial  of financial non-cash collateral et netting &t
2215128318 At 31 December 2021 liabilities position position collateral) placedout  Netamount  agreements Total
SHEE Financial liabiies
i Deposits from banks 1,203,131 - 1,203,131 (1,203,131) - - 500,066 1,703,197
fTESMIA Derivative financial instruments 1,381,163 - 1,381,163 (504,251) (851,835) 25,077 44,202 1,425,365
HERERREEE Trading liabilties 1,511,927 - 1511927 (1511927) - - - 1511927
HiiRE KRR Other accounts and accruals 307,731 - 307,731 (307,731) - - 7,861,631 8,169,362
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46. TRIEEHESENHEHE@® 46. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES (Continued)
(2) SREFAERHOARBEVBRRRRA (b) Financial assets and liabilities subject to netting
HvemEEREBE@ agreement but not offset on the statement of financial
position (Continued)
AR HEE AL () Master netting arrangements (Continued)
ERHBRAR A
HBRRER LiBef
Y gD Related amounts not set
sEaRELE i off in the statement of
Goss  Rgapy _ fendelposiion RRAfcE
amountsof  ZEREEFE SRIA i
EEZ  recognised  Netamounts  (BFEFEEE R
SRAELE financial ~ of financial H#R) =Pk
Gross liabilties set assets Financial Amounts not
amounts of offinthe  presentedin instruments B4R subjectto
recognised statement  the statement (including Cash enforceable
financial  offinancial  of financial non-cash collateral it netting it
20205128318 At 31 December 2020 assets position position collateral) received Netamount  agreements Total
SREE Financial assets
ik a Derivative financial instruments 955,385 - 955,385 (690,911) (244,637) 19,837 191,816 1,147,201
ERHBRARAEH
G e Lies
HY R Related amounts not set
SHEEaE Wi off in the statement of
Goss  HRRARIT e R RyRAfE
amountsof  Z&REETFHE SBIE BT
BB2  recognised  Netamounts  (2FEEES FETE
SRAGBEE financial ~ of financial ##q) @ &8
Gross assets set liabilities Financial BER Amounts not
amounts of offinthe  presentedin instruments RefR subject to
recognised statement  the statement (including Cash enforceable
financial ~ offinancial  of financial non-cash colateral et netting A
20205128318 At 31 December 2020 liabilties position position collateral) placedout  Netamount  agreements Total
HAE Financial liabltes
/R Deposits from banks 762,285 - 762,285 (762,285) - - 2,738,157 3,500,442
k% a8 Derivative financial instruments 2,990,586 - 2,990,586 (690911)  (2,266,018) 33,657 206,081 3,196,667
HERERBMAE Trading liabities 1570675 - 1570675 (1570675) - - - 1500675
HiiRE kR Other accounts and accruals 490,059 - 490,059 (490,959) - - 8,219,659 8,710,618
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TIREEAREE 2 ERHE R SRR 2 B0 M
IER B FEREAMEIRER 2 —FFD -

. ZARERTEZ2EX  BEEKRE

REBRTERIDAAMRTEBFGR AR (K
IRTTERE DI5E - KRITEBEAKRFRITHE
RAR([RFHERIT ) 2 ZEIRRR] - #imHE RN
BEERTIROAR QR (DEPIERRIT ) B
RIT(PBE)BERAB(TAFRIT(PE) ) 2B
Pt o

The following information relates to the Group and is disclosed as part
of the accompanying information to the financial statements and does
not form part of the audited financial statements.

. INFORMATION ON CAPITAL, LEVERAGE AND
LIQUIDITY POSITIONS OF THE BANKING
BUSINESS OF THE GROUP

The banking business of the Group is held by Dah Sing Banking Group
Limited (“DSBG”). DSBG is the holding company of Dah Sing Bank,
Limited (“DSB”) which in turn holds the entire equity capital of Banco
Comercial de Macau S.A. (“‘BCM”) and Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited
(“DSB China”).

1. EXRFZEEEER 1. Capital adequacy ratio
202145 20204
12A31H 12A31H
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2021 2020

BEAF L= Capital adequacy ratio

—EimARE—R — Common Equity Tier 1 14.2% 13.8%
——& — Tier 1 14.7% 14.3%
— B — Total 18.1% 17.6%

202112 A31H &2020F12 A31 B 2 EA 7 B
LE T Ty RFTRITHV AR S IR BRI TR (B AR
ADEEZERBEINEBAAAE - ZEAFR R X
ETEE E R B SRR AR IERRE

RIBEBRITEMD - KHRVITRBBEMRIT
BETERT R EREENR < MPIRHERITA
BT ABRFRITRETNHRE RARFHRT (P
B)AETAMTERITREENHRE °

The capital adequacy ratio as at 31 December 2021 and 31 December
2020 represents the consolidated position of DSB computed on Basel
Il basis in accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules. This capital
adequacy ratio takes into account market risk and operational risk.

DSB as a locally incorporated bank in Hong Kong is subject to the
minimum capital adequacy ratio requirement under the Hong Kong
Banking Ordinance. BCM is subject to Macau banking regulations and
DSB China is subject to China banking regulations.
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. ZAEBERTEXEZER  EEERRE
e 0h=g 10))

. INFORMATION ON CAPITAL, LEVERAGE AND
LIQUIDITY POSITIONS OF THE BANKING
BUSINESS OF THE GROUP (Continued)

2. EiRkE 2. Leverage ratio
20215 20204
12A31H 12H31H
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
TEARLL 2 Leverage ratio 9.9% 9.4%

ERTYRFRIT 2 AR L E BB AT R
b 2 IR A EE S o

3. REMEFHLR

The above ratios represent the consolidated position of DSB and are
computed on the same consolidated basis as the capital adequacy
ratio.

3. Liquidity maintenance ratio

2021 2020

MBNMEHERF LR

BN EHEFF L R Ty RFTIRIT (R IRRPIR ERT
RETRTT (P E)) R BRFEBEE AR FHEE
MEN AR L R B T8 - MBERRT LR
TIREBCGRITEORBME) RADHE -

AFRTT RE B EMIRITARIBERBRITEED
BT RBUEESER - RPIBERRITAETEH
BPIRITEEEORERARHRT(PE) BET
BRATBERITEEENRE

RE 22021412 431 H % 2020412 531 H [E
FFEEM  NEEZIFRITER LB EMBITR
SNEBIEE o Alt - WEASENEHIFRITELZ
BENEELERIWEEE -

Liquidity maintenance ratio 46.9% 47.8%

The LMR is calculated as the simple average of each calendar month’s
average consolidated LMR of DSB (covering BCM and DSB China)
for the financial year. The LMR is computed in accordance with the
Banking (Liquidity) Rules.

DSB as a locally incorporated bank in Hong Kong is subject to the
liquidity requirement under the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance. BCM
is subject to Macau banking regulations and DSB China is subject to
China banking regulations.

The non-banking businesses of Group does not have any bank or
external borrowing in the two years ended 31 December 2021 and
31 December 2020. On this basis, it is not meaningful to disclose a
separate gearing ratio of the Group or its non-banking businesses.
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. AEEEERERE BN In.

1. BROTESBZEFERAR(UERHA 1.
BOERUZERRRENEI LS

ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND
EXPOSURES OF THE GROUP

Gross advances to customers by industry sector
classified according to the usage of loans and

#) analysed by percentage covered by collateral
2021124316 2020124318
At 31 December 2021 At 31 December 2020
EXaE Eas
ZERARRE SHEARRE
ZEA ZEDH
% of gross % of gross
REELER advances REREH advances
Outstanding covered by Outstanding covered by
balance collateral balance collateral
EEBERANER Loans for use in Hong Kong
ITHsm Industrial, commercial and financial
R EE — Property development 5,467,229 75.2 5,611,830 66.5
—MERE — Property investment 19,253,002 93.2 17,221,674 92.4
R — Financial concerns 4,661,129 14.9 5,756,814 5.8
—RE&RL — Stockbrokers 1,642,984 61.6 1,733,867 46.7
—JBETEL - Wholesale and retail trade 5,401,435 91.8 6,004,660 90.4
—BlE% — Manufacturing 1,987,035 60.7 1,790,941 56.4
—BHRERRE — Transport and transport equipment 2,269,160 79.2 2,512,559 80.1
~REEE) — Recreational activities 59,895 99.1 96,223 99.6
— BB — Information technology 59,058 91.1 51,827 86.5
—Hf - Others 6,970,986 74.4 6,003,396 68.4
47,771,913 1.5 46,783,791 71.6
EA Individuals
-BEIEEEERME] — Loans for the purchase of flats in
[FAZEEEHEIR Home Ownership Scheme, Private
[HEEREEET Sector Participation Scheme and
=670 Tenants Purchase Scheme 529,218 100.0 558,428 100.0
-BEAMEENEER — Loans for the purchase of other
residential properties 33,473,466 100.0 31,260,619 100.0
—ERAFRER — Credit card advances 3,670,096 = 3,610,141 =
—Htb — Others 13,105,677 51.0 13,079,682 51.6
50,778,457 80.1 48,508,870 79.5
TERBERMER Loans for use in Hong Kong 98,550,370 78.8 95,292,661 75.6
ZSBEA (1)) Trade finance (Note (1)) 8,123,088 67.3 8,115,481 61.5
EBRBIMERNER (F2) Loans for use outside Hong Kong (Note (2)) 37,639,881 58.4 34,169,242 63.7
144,313,339 729 137,577,384 71.8
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REBEERSEZEIDN @

BROEDPE2EFERBEE(LERH
EoERUSEHERRENE LD
) (@)

RPN BEMERSETESEREHZA
BiEsSImoEAREED MONEBOMNRE
UEEmEHBESEZEN

TERBERZ B SREER(BERMRITZEI
RITMBARE T 2B SHRE ) #{5485,128,000
757t (202012 431 H : 260,328,000/ 7T) 7 48
RIEBBAIMERNERIET -

[EEBMIMERNESR I BERTREETPEE
BEAIMER ZEHK

ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND
EXPOSURES OF THE GROUP (continued)

Gross advances to customers by industry sector
classified according to the usage of loans and
analysed by percentage covered by collateral (Continued)

Trade finance shown above represents loans covering finance of imports
to Hong Kong, exports and re-exports from Hong Kong and merchandising
trade classified with reference to the relevant guidelines issued by the
HKMA.

Trade finance loans not involving Hong Kong (including trade
finance extended by the overseas subsidiary banks of DSB) totalling
HK$485,128,000 (31 December 2020: HK$260,328,000) are classified
under Loans for use outside Hong Kong.

Loans for use outside Hong Kong include loans extended to customers
located in Hong Kong with the finance used outside Hong Kong.
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I AEEGEEREREZEIND @

1. RITESEZEFERBBE(UERA
EoERUSEHERRENE LD
) (@

B ZEKE P ERAEFE10% A EBTT
¥ EEEREENRE  BHETE BRI R
B RFEBR2EFOREERBIT ¢

. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND
EXPOSURES OF THE GROUP (continued)

1. Gross advances to customers by industry sector
classified according to the usage of loans and
analysed by percentage covered by collateral (Continued)

For each industry sector reported above with loan balance constituting
10% or more of the total balance of advances to customers, the
attributable amount of impaired loans, overdue loans, Stage 3, and
Stage 1 and Stage 2 impairment allowances are as follows:

EXAE
BEREE BRE1REER2
HEER H#iB3ME A PEER3 HEEE
(=) Gross BEXEE Stage1and
AEEER Impaired advances Stage 3 Stage 2
Outstanding loans  overdue for  impairment  impairment
2021412A31R At 31 December 2021 balance (Stage 3) over3 months  allowances  allowances
EBBERANER Loans for use in Hong Kong
ITHsR Industrial, commercial and financial
—MERE ~ Property investment 19,253,002 51,919 38,121 11,729 89,789
EA Individuals
—-BEEMET — Loans for the purchase of
MEER other residential properties 33,473,466 89,902 85,138 9,624 24,502
EEBAIMERNER Loans for use outside Hong Kong 37,639,881 392,169 368,601 163,778 342,823
Bz
jalipN=pe PEER1 ]k ER2
REER iE3(EA PEER3 REER
(FER3) Gross WEEE  Stage 1and
REREH Impaired advances Stage 3 Stage 2
Outstanding loans overdue for impairment impairment
20204127314 At 31 December 2020 balance (Stage 3) over 3 months allowances allowances
EBBEANER Loans for use in Hong Kong
Iem Industrial, commercial and financial
—WERE — Property investment 17,221,674 59,373 41,590 4,705 95,584
EA Individuals
-BEEMEE — Loans for the purchase of
MEER other residential properties 31,260,619 62,747 92,630 7,826 40,076
EBRBIMERHNER Loans for use outside Hong Kong 34,169,242 520,305 400,017 187,244 154,835
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I AEEGEEREREZEIND @

2. HREREAEEBNERE

REFESERCGERITEKE)RAD - U THF
BAEXBNRBZOMNH2REESERY D
IKF%?‘T&EF'#&%%EPFﬁﬁ‘JZ?«Efihiﬁ XA FIE

. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND
EXPOSURES OF THE GROUP (continued)

2. Mainland activities exposures

The analysis of Mainland activities exposures is based on the
categories of non-bank counterparties and the type of direct exposures
defined by the HKMA under the Banking (Disclosure) Rules with

RN EEEREREREN S Hbh A aERH reference to the HKMA Return of Mainland Activities, which includes
RITRE Wfﬁiﬁ M8 A BT 2 BRRE S the Mainland activities exposures extended by DSB and its Mainland
HIEREE o subsidiary bank only.
BEBERA BERER)
HIEREE HEREE
On-balance Off-balance Bere
20214 2021 sheet exposure sheet exposure Total exposures
1. PRS- RREfTHEBLHE 1. Central government, central government-
KEMBARMEE AR owned entities and their subsidiaries and
([&%2n7]) joint ventures (“JV’s) 9,094,497 120,098 9,214,595
2. WA - A HTEEREE 2. Local governments, local government-owned
REKBARNAEAR entities and their subsidiaries and JVs 1,447,842 263,538 1,711,380
3. EfFEFEMN 2 BREHE 3. PRC nationals residing in Mainland China or
POSB ST B E A RS T EL O other entities incorporated in Mainland China
IO and their subsidiaries and JVs 14,376,645 1,504,435 15,881,080
4 RBHELNE—BERZFRIK 4. Other entities of central government not
[FRE s reported in item 1 above 2,890,926 10,714 2,901,640
5 KB LMEZHEHK 2 AR 5. Other entities of local governments not
TR E it reported in item 2 above 1,060,321 249,582 1,309,903
6. EEEFENEAINZERSE 6. PRC nationals residing outside Mainland China
FRE S A SRR ST RO+ or entities incorporated outside
W REERAH B A Mainland China where the credits are granted
for use in Mainland China 11,835,454 806,339 12,641,793
7. B SUTF - HEBEHREY 7. Other counterparties where the exposures
R AR RITER PR are considered to be non-bank
Mainland China exposures 732,977 289 733,266
41,438,662 2,954,995 44,393,657
AEETREMNMRITHBARZ  Total assets of DSB and its Mainland subsidiary
MR BEA bank after provision 233,473,940
BEBBRRANBEGEES On-balance sheet exposures as percentage
Aol of total assets 17.75%

HiHEPR

other balances of claims on the customers.

Note: The balances of exposures reported above include gross advances and
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. FEEBEERBREIEIIDT . ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND
EXPOSURES OF THE GROUP (continued)
2. HHPEIAREEKNERE@ 2. Mainland activities exposures (Continued)
BEBEBRA BEBERN
gl ik
On-balance Off-balance e
2020F 2020 sheet exposure sheet exposure Total exposures
1. PRIFT - PREFHELQHE 1. Central government, central government-owned
KEMBARMEE AR entities and their subsidiaries and JVs
([&ERA]) 9,723,405 124,954 9,848,359
2. WA - A HTERREE 2. Local governments, local government-owned
REHBARMEE R entities and their subsidiaries and JVs 1,405,599 274,501 1,680,100
3. BEfFEFEM 2 BRI EHE 3. PRC nationals residing in Mainland China or
PSB S B A R  EL O other entities incorporated in Mainland China
NG YNG and their subsidiaries and JVs 12,076,834 1,745,392 13,822,226
4 RBELMFE—HEH 2P RE 4. Other entities of central government not reported
e S in item 1 above 2,221,324 36,918 2,258,242
5 RABHE LMEH2H 25 5. Other entities of local governments not reported
R in item 2 above 1,609,556 283,753 1,893,309
6. EEEFENMANZERSE 6. PRC nationals residing outside Mainland China
R A SN ST RO - T or entities incorporated outside Mainland
W R B EFRA B At 5 China where the credits are granted for use in
Mainland China 11,647,569 592,157 12,239,726
7. B SETF - HBEHAES 7. Other counterparties where the exposures are
B ARESERITIRR P RIEAEE considered to be non-bank Mainland China
exposures 1,100,005 - 1,100,005
39,784,292 3,057,675 42,841,967
RESRITREWMIRTHB AR Z  Total assets of DSB and its Mainland subsidiary
MR BEA bank after provision 230,973,725
AEBERANBEEEEST On-balance sheet exposures as percentage
Aol of total assets 17.22%
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3. RESSMZEFERRERBHMER

BEFEFZBREIMIRECEERREBRR L
RPHEFHRAEMBDE - —RME - EEKOER
HRRERZZHF TR RIEE - BRERER -

TRATFPENER  BETPER(ERI) &
HIEPER - B3 - RER1 MR EEFR
AT o

. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND
EXPOSURES OF THE GROUP (continued)

3. Analysis of gross advances to customers and overdue
loans by geographical area

Advances to customers by geographical area are classified according
to the location of the counterparties after taking into account the
transfer of risk. In general, risk transfer applies when an advance is
guaranteed by a party located in an area which is different from that of
the counterparty.

The following table analyses gross advances to customers, impaired
advances to customers (Stage 3), overdue advances to customers,
Stage 3, and Stage 1 and Stage 2 impairment allowances by
geographical area.

HEEFER L)

(PB&Er3) PEEr3 HE%ER

EFENER Impaired BHEFER WE%fE Stage1and

Gross advances to Overdue Stage 3 Stage 2

advances to customers advancesto  impairment  impairment

2021F12A31H At 31 December 2021 customers (Stage 3) customers  allowances  allowances
B Hong Kong 121,821,903 1,114,820 539,610 469,827 676,463
ClE China 7,615,412 72,577 62,677 1,865 62,079
P Macau 13,777,935 211,439 211,439 75,917 76,856
Hit, Others 1,098,089 - - - 7,940
144,313,339 1,398,836 813,726 547,609 823,338

HEZPER Y

(GE) REER3 R E%ER

REER @ Impaired  BHEFEH WEEE  Stage 1and

Gross  advances to Overdue Stage 3 Stage 2

advances to customers  advances to impairment impairment

20201274318 At 31 December 2020 customers (Stage 3) customers allowances allowances
& Hong Kong 115,234,954 1,239,712 600,421 467,445 595,174
H China 7,630,058 63,294 28,269 1,119 50,382
R Macau 13,686,148 270,797 270,797 87,944 42,121
Hfth Others 1,026,224 - 3,315 - 6,979
137,577,384 1,573,803 902,802 556,508 694,656
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4. BIRERE

BRERENZEEEBRARNERR @ RIEXS
HFNAMEBMEEHINER HHFREEHH
B> —RME  EXZHTFNEEEHETR
BRNZ—TER  KETEES -RRTHE
31T > MERBRERTRNBER 1 E8%R
BRA—BEREBEES—BR - L5 REMRA
ZEREBR - RAEHBKEREERER10%3A
EZRIETIEHIE -

. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND
EXPOSURES OF THE GROUP (continued)

4. International claims

The information of international claims discloses exposures to foreign
counterparties on which the ultimate risk lies, and is derived according
to the location of the counterparties after taking into account any
transfer of risk. In general, transfer of risk from one country to another
is recognised if the claims against a counterparty are guaranteed by
another party in a different country or if the claims are on an overseas
branch of a bank whose head office is located in a different country.
Only regions constituting 10% or more of the aggregate international
claims after taking into account any recognised risk transfer are

disclosed.
FRTAARE
Non-bank private sector
ke
FER1T FAAKE
SREME Non-

BAKE Non-bank financial et 7k
2021F12A318 At 31 December 2021 BT Official financial private Total
BEAT In millions of HK$ Banks sector institutions sector claims
BEPL Offshore centres 5,278 12,937 5,891 155,733 179,839

—He: FE — of which: Hong Kong 4,715 11,890 5,813 139,779 162,197
FRADAR Developing Asia and Pacific 24,731 1,216 795 18,695 45,437
—He: — of which: Mainland China 19,423 1,055 451 14,731 35,660
ERTRAKLE
Non-bank private sector

El

JEIRIT FLABEE

SR Non-

B Non-bank financial ERkEE
2020F12A31H At 31 December 2020 $}IT Official financial private Total
BEAT In millions of HK$ Banks sector institutions sector claims
BEPL Offshore centres 6,928 15,016 6,727 143,869 172,540

—Hip: BB — of which: Hong Kong 6,441 13,595 6,727 128,137 154,900
BFRADAE Developing Asia and Pacific 27,306 1,060 880 17,681 46,927
—Hi - of which: Mainland China 19,036 894 526 14,159 34,615
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF DAH SING FINANCIAL HOLDINGS
LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Dah Sing Financial Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are
set out on pages 101 to 326, comprise:

o the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31

December 2021;

3 the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

. the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

J the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended;
and

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:
o Impairment allowances on advances to customers

o Recoverable amount of investment in an associate, Bank of
Chongging (“BOCQ”)
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Impairment allowances (“ECL”) on advances to customers

Refer to notes 4(a) and 23 to the
consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group
recorded impairment allowances of
HK$1,370,947 thousand in respect of its
advances to customers.

The determination of the impairment
allowances involves complex methodologies
and significant management judgement. In
addition, the extent and pace of recovery
from COVID-19 and other current macro-
economic conditions have impacted the
inherent risk and estimation uncertainty
involved in estimating impairment
allowances.

Key judgements and estimates in respect of
the measurement of ECL include:

o Applicability of ECL model
methodologies, and appropriateness
of key measurement parameters and
assumptions;

o (Criteria for determining whether or not
there was a significant increase in credit
risk (‘SICR"), or a default;

o Determination of macro-economic
forecasts, and the application of
economic scenarios and weightings;

o The estimated future cash flows for
loans and advances to customers in
stage 3; and

*  Appropriateness of management
overlays applied.

Impairment allowances on advances to
customers is an audit focus due to the
material balance of the Group’s impairment
allowances on advances to customers and
high inherent risk given the uncertainty of
estimates, adoption of complex models,
involvement of significant management
judgements and assumptions and use of
numerous parameters and data inputs in
such measurement.

We understood and evaluated management’s
internal controls and assessment process for the
measurement of impairment allowances on advances
to customers.

We assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of estimation
uncertainty and level of other inherent risk factors
such as the complexity of estimation models used,
the subjectivity of significant management judgements
and assumptions, and susceptibility to management
bias.

We tested the key internal controls over:

*  Selection of ECL model methodologies,
determination and approval of significant
management judgements such as staging and
macro-economic forecasts and their related
probability weightings, and appropriateness of
management overlays applied;

*  Timely identification, assessment and reporting
of credit impaired advances to customers;

¢+ Estimated future cash flows with respect to
advances to customers in stage 3 under a range
of possible scenarios and their weightings based
on financial information of borrowers, collateral
valuations and information on other available
sources of recovery;

*  Input of key data used in the impairment models.

In addition to testing the key controls, we have also
performed the following substantive procedures:

¢+ Weinvolved our credit risk experts in evaluating
the model methodologies for ECL measurement
including changes to model methodologies
during the year, significant management
judgements and assumptions. We also assessed
the supportability of the management overlays
applied;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Impairment allowances (“ECL”) on advances to customers (Continued)

* On sampling basis, we assessed the
appropriateness of the internal credit ratings,
management’s judgements used in determining
significant increases in credit risk and
identification of default and credit-impaired
advances to customers based on the borrower
financial and non-financial information and other
external evidence provided by management;

¢+ We evaluated management’s selection of
macro-economic forecasts, economic scenarios
and weightings assigned. We assessed
the reasonableness of the macro-economic
forecasts by comparing them to available public
information, taking into account the latest
developments of COVID-19 and other current
macro-economic conditions;

*  For a sample of advances to customers in
Stage 3, we assessed the reasonableness of
key management judgements and estimates to
the ECL calculation such as estimated future
cash flow from borrowers, latest valuation of
collateral, range of scenarios and scenarios
weightings.

We checked and evaluated the financial statements
disclosures in relation to the measurement of
impairment allowances on advances to customers.

Based on the procedures performed, we considered
that the models, significant judgements and
assumptions, as well as relevant data and key
parameters used by management in measuring
impairment allowances on advances to customers
were supported by available evidence.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Recoverable amount of the Investment in an associate, Bank of Chongging (‘B0CQ”)

Refer to notes 4(d) and 26 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group’s investment in BOCQ is accounted for as
an associate, using the equity method. The Group
carried the investment in BOCQ of HK$4,230,951
thousand at 31 December 2021, after making a
provision for impairment of HK$2,992,000 thousand
as at year end.

The gross carrying amount of the investment (prior to
impairment allowances) was higher than the market
value of BOCQ. This is considered as an indicator
of impairment. Therefore, management performed
an impairment assessment and concluded that the
recoverable amount of the investment in BOCQ was
lower than its gross carrying amount, leading to an
impairment allowance. The recoverable amount
was measured as value-in-use (‘VIU") estimate
calculated by discounted cash flow model.

The recoverable amount of the investment in BOCQ
is an audit focus as it is subject to a high degree
of estimation uncertainty, particularly in estimating
future cashflows arising from holding the investment
in BOCQ and any future disposal proceeds and in
determining the discount rate. The inherent risk is
considered significant due to the subjectivity involved
in management judgements and assumptions used
in developing the estimate.

We understood and evaluated management's internal controls
and assessment process for the measurement of recoverable
amount of the investment in BOCQ.

We assessed the inherent risk of material misstatement
by considering the degree of estimation uncertainty and
level of other inherent risk factors such as the complexity
of estimation models used, the subjectivity of significant
management judgements and assumptions, and susceptibility
to management bias.

We have performed the following procedures:

We involved valuation experts in assessing the
appropriateness of the valuation model used by the
management and the mathematical accuracy of the
calculations;

We assessed the reasonableness of key assumptions
and inputs used by the management, including the
discount rate, profit growth rate and price-to-book
ratio, based on relevant supporting evidence and our
knowledge of the business and industry;

We determined a reasonable range for the discount
rate assumption, with the assistance of our valuation
experts, and compared it to the discount rate used by
management;

We performed scenario analysis and developed our
range of VIU estimates, by using independent inputs
and assumptions, and compared with management’s
estimates;

We obtained representations from the Group that
assumptions used were consistent with information
currently available to the Group; and

We checked and evaluated the financial statements
disclosures in relation to the measurement of
recoverable amount of the Group's investment in BOCQ.

Based on the procedures performed, we considered that
the recoverable amount of the investment in BOCQ were
supported by available evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with Section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit

findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we

identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have

complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,

and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that

may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where

applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Lam Hung, Emily.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 31 March 2022
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